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Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench

Company Application No. 192/2024

Connected with

Company Application (CAA) No. 29/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement
Amongst

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private
Limited having its registered office at Haldiram -
Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
having its registered office at Haldiram -Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.
Haldiram Marketing Private Limited having
its registered office at Haldiram -Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited having its
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

HR Bakers Private Limited having its registered
office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi
Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana,
India, 122001.

Haldiram Retail Private Limited having its
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana, India, 122001.

Dreamcann Foods Private Limited having its

registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,

Demerged Company-1/ Applicant
Company-1
Demerged Company-2/ Applicant
Company-2

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/

Applicant Company-3

Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating

Company-1/ Applicant Company-4

Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating

Company-2/ Applicant Company-5

Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating

Company-3/ Applicant Company-6

Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating

Company-4/ Applicant Company-7
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Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

[For the sake of brevity, the Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 are hereinafter collectively
referred as ‘“Demerged Companies”. Further, the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1,
Transferor Company-2 / Amalgamating Company-2, Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 and
Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 are hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Companies”/
“Amalgamating Companies” and Applicant Company-1, Applicant Company-2, Applicant Company-3,
Applicant Company-4, Applicant Company-5, Applicant Company-6 and Applicant Company-7 are hereinafier

referred to as the “Applicant Companies’’]

Sub:  Notice of the meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private
Limited, as on March 31, 2024 (Cut-off date), to be convened as per the directions of the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (Court-I), Chandigarh (“Tribunal”).

Ref: In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) amongst Haldiram Manufacturing Company
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Demerged Company-1” or “Petitioner Company-
1”), Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Demerged Company-
2” or “Petitioner Company-2”’), Haldiram Marketing Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Petitioner Company-3”), Haldi Ram
Products Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company-1” or
“Amalgamating Company-1” or “Petitioner Company-4”), HR Bakers Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company-2” or “Amalgamating Company-2’ or
“Petitioner Company-5”), Haldiram Retail Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Transferor Company-3” or “Amalgamating Company-3” or “Petitioner Company-6~) and
Dreamcann Foods Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor Company-4” or
“Amalgamating Company-4” or “Petitioner Company-7”) and their respective shareholders and

creditors.

This is to inform that a meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company-1 will be held on Friday,
March 28, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. (IST), at its registered office situated at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi
Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India, at which time and place the unsecured creditors
are requested to attend, to consider and if thought fit, to approve the Scheme under Section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“CA, 2013”) as directed by the Hon’ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench, vide its order dated January 03, 2025, passed in the Company Application
CA(CAA) No. 29/CHD/HRY/2024 (“Order”).

Copy of the Notice convening aforesaid meeting along with the Explanatory Statement and other Annexures are

enclosed.
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Pursuant to the direction of the aforesaid order the Demerged Company-1 has provided remote e-voting facility
and has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) (“E-voting Agency”) and ballot
paper at the meeting, for which the Demerged Company-1. The remote e-voting facility shall commence on March

25,2025 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) and end on March 27, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. (IST).

A copy of this Notice and relevant documents will be placed on the website of E-voting Agency at
https://nsdl.co.in/. The copy of the aforesaid Notice accompanying documents can be obtained free of charge on
all working days, from the registered office of the Demerged Company-1 between 11:00 A.M. to 05:00 P.M.

The detailed instructions such as manner of casting vote through e-voting have been set out in the Notice of the

meeting.

Pursuant to the Order the notice of the meeting has been sent to the Unsecured Creditors

@A) through electronic mode to the Unsecured creditors whose e-mail IDs are available with the Demerged
Company-1; and/or

(i)  through courier to the Unsecured creditors whose e-mail IDs are not available with the Demerged

Company-1.

We request you to take the above information on record.

Thanking You

Yours truly,

For Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited
Sd/-

Rachit Dhingra

Authorised Signatory of the Demerged Company-1
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MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF HALDIRAM MANUFACTURING COMPANY

PRIVATE LIMITED

(Pursuant to Order of the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh, dated January 037, 2025)

Day Friday

Date March 28, 2025

Time 10:30 a.m. (IST)

Venue Its registered office situated at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Remote e-voting | | Commencement of remote e-voting: March 25, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. (IST)

date and time End of remote e-voting: March 27, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. (IST)

Ballot voting at | March 28, 2025

the meeting
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Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench
Form No. CAA. 2
[Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 |
Company Application No. 192/2024
Connected with

Company Application (CAA) No. 29/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement

Amongst

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Demerged Company-1/ Applicant

Limited having its registered office at Haldiram - Company-1

Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,

Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited Demerged Company-2/ Applicant
having its registered office at Haldiram -Village ~Company-2

Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,

Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldiram Marketing Private Limited having Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/
its registered office at Haldiram -Village Applicant Company-3

Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,

Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited having its Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Company-1/ Applicant Company-4

Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,

Haryana-122001, India.

HR Bakers Private Limited having its registered Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating
office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Company-2/ Applicant Company-5
Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana,

India, 122001.

Haldiram Retail Private Limited having its Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Company-3/ Applicant Company-6



|00

Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana, India, 122001.

Dreamcann Foods Private Limited having its Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Company-4/ Applicant Company-7
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,

Haryana-122001, India.

[For the sake of brevity, the Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 are hereinafter collectively
referred as “Demerged Companies”. Further, the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1,
Transferor Company-2 / Amalgamating Company-2, Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 and
Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 are hereinafier referred to as “Transferor Companies”/
“Amalgamating Companies” and Applicant Company-1, Applicant Company-2, Applicant Company-3,
Applicant Company-4, Applicant Company-5, Applicant Company-6 and Applicant Company-7 are hereinafter

referred to as the “Applicant Companies”’|
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NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
HALDIRAM MANUFACTURING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED (“DEMERGED COMPANY-1")

To,
Unsecured Creditors

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited (“Demerged Company-1”)

Notice is hereby given that by an order dated January 03, 2025, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) vide Company Application (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (“Company
Application”) has directed to convene a meeting of the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 as on
March 31, 2024 (i.e. Cut-off Date), to be held for the purpose of considering and if thought fit, with or without
modification, approving the scheme of arrangement (“Scheme”) amongst Haldiram Manufacturing Company
Private Limited (“Demerged Company-1” or “Petitioner Company-1), Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
(“Demerged Company-2” or “Petitioner Company-2”), Haldiram Marketing Private Limited (“Resulting
Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Petitioner Company-3”), Haldi Ram Products Private Limited
(“Transferor Company-1" or “Amalgamating Company-1” or “Petitioner Company 4”), HR Bakers Private
Limited (“Transferor Company-2” or “Amalgamating Company-2’ or ‘“Petitioner Company-5"), Haldiram Retail
Private Limited (“Transferor Company-3” or “Amalgamating Company-3” or ‘“Petitioner Company-6) and
Dreamcann Foods Private Limited (“Transferor Company-4” or “Amalgamating Company-4” or “Petitioner
Company-7") and their respective shareholders and creditors under the provisions of sections 230 to 232 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the other applicable provisions thereof and applicable rules thereunder.

In pursuance of the Order, further notice is hereby given that a meeting of Unsecured creditors of the Demerged
Company-1 (“Meeting”), will be held on Friday, March 28, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. at its registered office situated at
Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India, at which

date, time and place the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 are requested to attend the meeting.

Copies of the Scheme and of the statement under section 230 of the Act can be obtained free of charge at the
registered office of the Demerged Company-1 at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India. Persons entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may vote in

person.

Pursuant to the direction of the aforesaid order and in compliance with the provisions of Rule (6)(3)(xi) of
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 read with Rule 20 and 21 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Demerged Company-1 has provided the remote
e-voting from March 25, 2025 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) and end on March 27, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. (IST), for which the
Demerged Company-1 has engaged the services of National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) (“E-voting
Agency”) and ballot paper facility at the meeting.
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At the Meeting, the following resolution(s) will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, by the requisite
majority, under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act:

To consider approval of Scheme of Arrangement amongst Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private
Limited, Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited, Haldiram Marketing Private Limited, Haldi Ram
Products Private Limited, HR Bakers Private Limited, Haldiram Retail Private Limited and Dreamcann

Foods Private Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars and notifications issued thereunder, including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s)thereof, for the time being in force and subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association and subject to the approval of Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh (“NCLT”) and subject to such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory
and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be deemed
appropriate by the Parties to the Scheme, at any time and for any reason whatsoever, or which may otherwise be
considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed or imposed by the NCLT or by any regulatory or other
authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company-1 (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”), the Scheme of Arrangement
(“Scheme”) amongst Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited (“Demerged Company-1"" or
“Petitioner Company-1"), Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited (“Demerged Company-2" or “Petitioner
Company-2"), Haldiram Marketing Private Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or
“Petitioner Company-3"), Haldi Ram Products Private Limited (“Transferor Company-1"" or “Amalgamating
Company-1" or “Petitioner Company 47), HR Bakers Private Limited ( “Transferor Company-2” or
“Amalgamating Company-2° or “Petitioner Company-5"), Haldiram Retail Private Limited (“Transferor
Company-3" or “Amalgamating Company-3~ or “Petitioner Company-6") and Dreamcann Foods Private
Limited (“Transferor Company-4” or “Amalgamating Company-4” or “Petitioner Company-7”) and their

respective shareholders and creditors, which was circulated along with this Notice, be and is hereby approved.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to
this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to the Scheme
at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or
conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme or by any
authorities under law, including but not limited to passing of such accounting entries and/or making such
adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may
deem fit and proper, and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of Scheme, without
being required to seek any further consent or approval of the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1
or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the

authority of this resolution.”
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“ALSO RESOLVED THAT the Board may delegate all or any of its powers herein conferred to any Director(s)
and/ or officer(s) of the Company, to give effect to this Resolution, if required, as it may in its absolute discretion

deem fit, necessary or desirable, without any further approval from the Unsecured Creditors of the Company.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE Pursuant to the Order and in compliance of the provisions of Sections 108 of the
Act read with Rules made thereunder, the Company has provided the facility of remote e-voting prior to the
Meeting, using the services of E-Voting Agency as well as ballot paper facility during the Meeting so as to enable
the unsecured creditors to consider and if thought fit, approve, with or without modification(s), the Scheme by
way of approval of the resolution mentioned above. Unsecured creditors are requested to follow the procedure as
stated in the Notes for casting of votes by e-voting/ ballot paper. The remote e-voting module will be disabled by
E-voting agency, National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) after the end of remote e-voting period,

thereafter through physical ballot papers. Details of e-voting are as under:

Commencement of remote e-voting: March 25,2025 at 9:00 a.m. (IST)
End of remote e-voting: March 27,2025 at 5:00 p.m. (IST)
E-voting at the meeting March 28,2025

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Hon’ble NCLT vide its aforesaid Order has appointed Mr. L.N. Gupta,
Former Member, NCLT, as Chairperson and. Mr. O.P. Nagpal, Advocate as Alternate Chairperson of the said
meeting. The Hon’ble NCLT has also appointed Mr. K.V. Singhal, Company Secretary as scrutinizer to be the

Scrutinizer for the Meeting, including for any adjournment(s) thereof.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that as per the directions of the NCLT, the Notice to the relevant statutory
authorities in accordance with section 230(5) of the CA, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangement and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 shall be served in due course.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE the results of the Meeting shall be announced by the Chairperson within seven
working days of the conclusion of the Meeting upon receipt of Scrutinizer’s report and the same shall be displayed

on the website of the E-voting Agency at https://nsdl.co.in/.

The Scheme, if approved by the Unsecured creditors, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the NCLT and

such other approvals, permissions, and sanctions of regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

Dated: 22-02-2025

Place: Gurugram

For Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited
Sd/-

Rachit Dhingra
Authorised Signatory of the Demerged Company-1.



Notes:

In compliance with the Order of NCLT, the provisions of Section 230(4) read with Section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 and Rule 21 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Demerged Company-1 has provided the facility to its unsecured creditors to cast their
votes either by way of remote e-voting facility, prior to the meeting or by way of ballot paper at the venue

of the meeting.

In pursuance of Section 113 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”), the Institutional/Corporate unsecured
creditors (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are entitled to appoint authorized representative(s) to
attend the Meeting and to cast their vote through remote e-voting/ ballot paper at the Meeting. In this
regard, they are required to send certified copy of the latest board resolution/ authorization letter/ power of
attorney etc. authorizing their representative(s) to attend the meeting and vote on their behalf, through
ballot paper at the Meeting. The said resolution/ letter/ power of attorney etc. may be sent by them from
their official e-mail ID to the Demerged Company-1 at cs@haldiram.com not later than 48 (forty-eight)
hours before the time for holding the Meeting or the said resolution/ letter/ power of attorney etc. may sent
to the Demerged Company-1 at its registered office situated at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi
Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Only Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 as of the cut-off date i.e., March 31, 2024, may
attend and vote either in person or by proxy (a proxy need not be an Unsecured creditor of the Demerged
Company-1) or in the case of a body corporate by a representative authorized under Section 113 of the
Companies Act, 2013 at the meeting of the Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1. The
authorized representative of a body corporate which is an Unsecured creditor of the Demerged Company-
1 may attend and vote at the meeting of the Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 provided a
copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of the body corporate authorizing
such representative to attend and vote at the meeting of Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1,
duly certified to be a true copy by a Director, Manager, Secretary or other authorized officer of such body
corporate, is deposited at the registered office of the Demerged Company-1 not later than 48 (forty eight)
hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting of the Unsecured creditors of the

Demerged Company-1.

A person can act as proxy on behalf of not more than 50 (fifty) Unsecured creditors holding in aggregate,
not more than 10% (ten percent) of the total debt due to the Unsecured creditors of the Demerged
Company-1 whose meeting has been concerned. However, an Unsecured creditor holding more than 10%
(ten percent) of the total due to the Unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1, whose meeting has
been concerned, may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other

person or Unsecured creditor.

The form of proxy can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Demerged Company-1.
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All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

Unsecured creditors attending the meeting through in person or through authorized representative shall be
counted for the purposes of reckoning the quorum. Proxies shall not be counted for the purpose of counting

quorum.

An Unsecured Creditors or proxy or authorized representative, attending the meeting, is requested to bring

the duly completed and signed Attendance-slip.

Voting may be made through remote e-voting which will be available during the prescribed period before
the meeting (as given below) and through ballot paper which will be available during the meeting:

Commencement of remote e-voting: March 25,2025 at 9:00 a.m. (IST)
End of remote e-voting: March 27,2025 at 5:00 p.m. (IST)

The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by E-voting Agency for voting thereafter.

The facility for e-voting shall also be made available at the meeting. However, the Unsecured Creditors
who have already voted through the remote e-voting process before the meeting, will not be entitled to

vote again at the meeting.

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order had fixed the quorum for the meeting as 51% in number and in value
and in case the quorum is not present at the Meeting, then the Chairman shall adjourn the meeting for half
an hour. Thereafter, the quorum present post the first half an hour i.e., 30 (Thirty) minutes from the time

appointed for holding the meeting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum for the purpose of meeting.

Pursuant to the Order the notice of the meeting has been sent to the Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024 (“cut-off date™)
@) through electronic mode to the Unsecured creditors whose e-mail IDs are available with the
Demerged Company-1; and/or
(i1) through courier to the Unsecured creditors whose e-mail IDs are not available with the Demerged

Company-1.

All the Documents referred to in this Notice shall also be open for inspection by the unsecured creditors.
The unsecured creditors desirous to inspect these documents may send request from their official email ID
to the Demerged Company-1 at cs@haldiram.com. All unsecured creditors related communication may be
addressed to the Demerged Company-1 at its registered office situated at Haldiram — Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi — Jaipur Highway, Gurugram — 122001, Haryana.
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In case of any queries/grievances with respect to Remote voting, unsecured creditors may refer to the

Instructions to Remote e-Voting or contact Mr. Aman Goyal, Toll- free No.: 011-23353814(15), E-mail:
amang@nsdl.com.

The Notice convening the Meeting will be published through advertisement in Newspapers namely:
“Financial Express” in English Language, and “Danik Jagran” in Hindi Language both in Delhi and

Haryana Editions.

Unsecured Creditors whose name appears in the records of the Demerged Company-1 as on March 31,
2024, i.e., cut-off date, shall be entitled to attend the meeting and cast their vote by remote e-voting/ ballot

paper on the resolution set forth in this Notice.

Once the vote on the resolution has been cast by unsecured creditors, the unsecured creditors shall not be

allowed to change it subsequently or cast the vote again.

The Hon’ble NCLT vide its aforesaid Order has appointed Mr. L.N. Gupta, Former Member, NCLT, as
Chairperson and Mr. O.P. Nagpal, Advocate as Alternate Chairperson of the said meeting. The Hon’ble
NCLT has also appointed Mr. K. V. Singhal, Company Secretary to scrutinise the meeting, including for

any adjournment(s) thereof.

After conclusion of voting through ballot paper at the Meeting, the Scrutinizer will scrutinize the votes
casted during the Meeting and remote e-voting and submit his consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report to the

Chairperson of the Meeting or any other person authorized by the Chairperson.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

In compliance with the operating procedures (with appropriate modification, if required) set out in the applicable
provisions of the Act, read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and
the MCA circulars, as amended, the Demerged Company No. 1 is pleased to provide to its Unsecured Creditors
facility to exercise their right to vote remotely, using an electronic voting system (‘remote e-voting’) on the dates
mentioned under S.No.(4).

Those Unsecured Creditors, who will be present in the meeting and have not cast their vote on the resolution
through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote physically through
ballot paper.

The Unsecured Creditors who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the
meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. An Unsecured Creditor can opt for only single mode of
voting per EVEN, i.e., through remote e-voting at the meeting. If the Unsecured Creditors cast vote(s) by all
modes, then voting done through remote e-voting shall prevail and vote(s) casted at the meeting shall be treated
as “INVALID”.

The remote e-voting commences on March 25, 2025 at 09:00 a.m. (IST) and will end on March 27, 2025 at 5:00
p.m. (IST). The remote e-voting module will be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolution is casted by the Unsecured Creditor, he/she/it will not be allowed to change it subsequently. During
this period, Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company No. 1, as on 31% March, 2024, cut-off date, may cast

their vote by remote e-voting.

PROCESS AND MANNER OF REMOTE E-VOTING

The Unsecured Creditors should follow the following steps to cast their votes electronically.

1.

Open the web browser during the voting period and log on to the e-voting website:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.

Click on ‘Shareholders/ Members’ (Members here is being assumed as Unsecured Creditors for the purpose of e-
voting and Creditors need to click on this tab) to cast your vote(s).

Please enter USER ID as provided in Annexure A (to be circulated separately by NSDL to the respective
unsecured creditor).

Enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on ‘LOGIN”.

Please enter PASSWORD as provided in Annexure A (to be circulated separately by NSDL to the respective
unsecured creditor).

After entering these details appropriately, click on ‘SUBMIT’ tab.

Click on the EVEN of ‘HALDIRAM MANUFACTURING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED’ to vote.

On the voting page, you will see ‘RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION’ and against the same the option “YES / NO’
for voting. The option ‘“YES’ implies that you assent to the Resolution and option ‘NO’ implies that you dissent

to the Resolution. Select the option “YES’ or ‘NO’ as desired for casting your vote.
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Click on ‘RESOLUTION FILE LINK” if you wish to view the Notice.

. After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on ‘SUBMIT’. A confirmation box will be

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on ‘OK’, else to change your vote, click on ‘CANCEL’ and
accordingly modify your vote.

Once you ‘CONFIRM’ your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

You can also take print-out of the voting done by you by clicking on ‘CLICK HERE TO PRINT’ option on the

voting page.
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Before the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench

Company Application No. 192/2024

Connected with

Company Application (CAA) No. 29/CHD/HRY/2024

IN THE MATTER OF:

Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement
Amongst

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private
Limited having its registered office at Haldiram -
Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
having its registered office at Haldiram -Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.
Haldiram Marketing Private Limited having
its registered office at Haldiram -Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited having its
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

HR Bakers Private Limited having its registered
office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi
Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana,
India, 122001.

Haldiram Retail Private Limited having its
registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana, India, 122001.

Dreamcann Foods Private Limited having its

registered office at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula,

Demerged Company-1/ Applicant
Company-1
Demerged Company-2/ Applicant
Company-2

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/

Applicant Company-3

Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating

Company-1/ Applicant Company-4

Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating

Company-2/ Applicant Company-5

Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating

Company-3/ Applicant Company-6

Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating

Company-4/ Applicant Company-7



Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

[For the sake of brevity, the Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 are hereinafter collectively
referred as ‘“Demerged Companies”. Further, the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1,
Transferor Company-2 / Amalgamating Company-2, Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 and
Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 are hereinafter referred to as “Transferor Companies”/
“Amalgamating Companies” and Applicant Company-1, Applicant Company-2, Applicant Company-3,
Applicant Company-4, Applicant Company-5, Applicant Company-6 and Applicant Company-7 are hereinafier

referred to as the “Applicant Companies’’]

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3), 232 (1) AND (2) AND 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,

ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES., 2016 (“EXPLANATORY STATEMENT”)

A. MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY-1

This is an Explanatory Statement accompanying the Notice convening the meeting of the unsecured
Creditors of Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited for the purpose of their consideration and,
if thought fit, approving the proposed Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) amongst Haldiram
Manufacturing Company Private Limited (“Demerged Company-1” or “Petitioner Company-17),
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited (“Demerged Company-2” or “Petitioner Company-2"’), Haldiram
Marketing Private Limited (“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Petitioner Company-3”),
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited (“Transferor Company-1” or “Amalgamating Company-1" or
“Petitioner Company 4”), HR Bakers Private Limited ( “Transferor Company-2” or “Amalgamating
Company-2’ or “Petitioner Company-5~), Haldiram Retail Private Limited (“Transferor Company-3" or
“Amalgamating Company-3” or “Petitioner Company-6”) and Dreamcann Foods Private Limited
(“Transferor Company-4” or “Amalgamating Company-4” or “Petitioner Company-7”) and their
respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rules 3 and 18 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016
(hereinafter referred to as the “CAA Rules”), which provides for the demerger of demerged undertakings
of Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 with and into the Resulting Company and
amalgamation of Transferor Company-1 to 4 with and into the Transferee Company (more particularly
defined in the Scheme) in the manner and on the terms and conditions stated in the said Scheme. A copy
of the Scheme is enclosed as Annexure A.

Capital terms not defined herein and used in the Notice and this Explanatory Statement shall have the

meaning as ascribed to them in the Scheme.
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DATE, TIME, AND VENUE OF MEETING

Pursuant to the order dated January 03, 2025, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh (“NCLT”) in CA(CAA) No. 29/CHD/HRY /2024, this meeting of the unsecured creditors of
the Company (“Meeting”) is being held on March 28, 2025 is being held through physical mode for the

purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving the said Scheme.

PARTICULARS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY-1

1.

2
3
4.
5
6

10.

Corporate Identification Number: U74899HR1994PTC122349

PAN: AAACH3170K

Name: Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: June 02, 1994

Type of company: Private Limited Company

Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

Email ID: rachit.dhingra@haldiram.com

Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the

Demerged Company-1 as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
1,10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 11,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
1,01,78,266 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. 10,17,82,660

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.

Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Demerged Company-1 are listed: The
securities of the Demerged Company-1 are not listed on any stock exchange in India.

Nature of business of the Demerged Company-1: That the Demerged Company-1 is engaged in
the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers, exporters, buyers, sellers
and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads,
pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products,
wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and foods stuffs & fruits & vegetable pulp and their
products & preparation of every such kind, nature & description. The main objects of the Demerged
Company No.-1 as set out in Clause 3rd (a) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter-alia, as
under:

1. “To carry on the business of manufacture, assembler, fabricators, designers, erector,
commissioners and dealers of industrial Electronics process measuring, indicating recording
and control and precision instruments of all kinds such as temperature, P.H, frequency,
voltage, current, Liquid level, Conductivity, timing, pressure, speed counter, impulse and
concentration instruments.

2. To manufacture, assemble and fabricate, scientific, electrical, hydraulic and pneumatic,

electrical press parts electronic, thermal, sonic, ultrasonic, optical, surgical and surveying
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equipments, instruments and precision components of all kinds and descriptions such as
radar equipments, computers, electronic accounting and business machines, electronic
communication equipments, electronic control instrument and basic components.

To carry on the business(s) as buyers, sellers, importers, exporters, distributors agents,
brokers, factors stockiest, dealers and commission agents of':

a) All kinds of machineries, tools, jigs, mould, fixtures, gauges, appliances and
equipments, mechanical implements devices, lathes, shaping machines, drilling
machines, shearing machines, milling machines, cutting machines, press parts and
breaks, binding machines, all kinds of mechanical hydraulic presses, their
components and heavy machines.

b) All kinds of mechanical and pneumatic devices, hydraulic press mechanism
appliances and apparatuses.

To manufacture, process, design, fabricate, assemble, buy, sell, export and deal in custom
built sophisticated panels cabinets and micro precisions sheet metal, press tool components
and items of these metals meant for telecommunication electronic and engineering industries.
To manufacture and develop micro technologies in the fields of electronic, solor, automation,
acoustics, space, pollution control and to offer micro - technical and maintenance services
in general and to those intending to manufacture sheets metal machinery or equipments for
the industrial requirements.

To cany on the business as manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types of chip,
biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, milk preparation of all
kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products, wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and foods
stuffs &fruits & vegetable pulp and their products & preparation of every such kind, nature

& description.”

Name of the promoters of the Demerged Company-1 along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address
1. M/s Radhe Krishna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016
2. M/s Annapurna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016
3. Haldiram Snacks Private Limited Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi

Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road
Gurgaon, HR -122001

4. Haldiram Marketing Private Limited Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi

Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road
Gurgaon, HR -122001

5. Haldiram India Private Limited B-1/F-12, Mohan Co-operative Industrial

Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi-
110044
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6. Pankkaj Agarwal House No. 4/8, Shanti Niketan,
Chanakya Puri, New Delhi - 110021

7. Amit Aggarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

8. Anand Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

9. Ashish Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

10. Manohar Lal Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

11. Ritu Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

12. Umesh Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

12.  As on March 31, 2024, the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Demerged

13.

14.

15.

16.

Company-1 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Pankkaj Agarwal 00011384
2. Ritu Agarwal 00011462
3. Sanjay Kumar Gupta ASNPGI1257G
4. Ashish Agarwal 00011486
5. Anand Agarwal 00014112
6. Manohar Lal Agarwal 00290780
7. Prateek Tiwari 08895275

Details of the change of name of the Demerged Company-1 in the last five years: The Demerged
Company-1 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Demerged Company-1 in the last five years:

The Demerged Company-1 has changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further, w.e.f. June 07, 2024, as per order issued
by Regional Director (Northern Region), the Demerged Company-1 has shifted its registered office
from B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi
to Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana i.e. in the
State of Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Demerged Company-1 in the last five years: The Demerged
Company-1 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024
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19.
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The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Demerged Company-1 on May 29", 2024,

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company-1 as on March 31, 2024: The
Demerged Company-1 has nil secured creditors as on March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company-1 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 1970 (One Thousand Nine Hundred and Seventy) unsecured creditors having an
outstanding amount of Rs. 31,40,78,911 /- as on March 31, 2024.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on May 29, 2024, as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. Particulars Effect
No.

1. | Promoter In terms of clause 17 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company-1 as per the
share entitlement ratio as determined under the valuation report
obtained from the registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Demerged Company-1.

2. | Non-promoter Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the
shareholders Demerged Company-1
3. | Directors No effect, as the Demerged Company-1 will continue in

existence, therefore, the office of the Directors of the Demerged
Company-1 would not cease pursuant to the effectiveness of the

Scheme.

4. | KMP (Key Managerial | No effect, as the Demerged Company-1 will continue in
Personnel) existence, therefore, the office of the KMP of the Demerged
Company-1 would not cease pursuant to the effectiveness of the

Scheme.

5. | Secured Creditors No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 7 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Demerged
Company-1, pertaining to the demerged undertaking (more
particularly defined in the Scheme) shall become the liabilities of
the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company, therefore as the
secured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 shall become

secured creditors of the Transferee Company/ Resulting

Company.
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6. | Unsecured Creditors No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 7 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Demerged
Company-1, pertaining to the demerged undertaking (more
particularly defined in the Scheme) shall become the liabilities of
the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company, therefore as the
unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-1 shall become
secured creditors of the Transferee Company/ Resulting

Company.

7. | Depositors No effect, as the Demerged Company-1 has not accepted any

deposit under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. | Employee No effect, as pursuant to clause 13 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Demerged Company-1, pertaining to the demerged undertaking
(more particularly defined in the Scheme) shall continue to act as

employees of the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company

9. | Debenture holders No effect, as there is no debenture holder in Demerged Company-
1.

21. Net worth of the Demerged Company-1 as on March 31, 2024: INR 3,65,513.31 Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY-2

1. Corporate Identification Number: U15122HR2003PTC118711

2. PAN: AAFCA0665B

3. Name: Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited

4.  Date of Incorporation: September 16, 2003

5.  Type of company: Private Limited Company

6. Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India

7. Email ID: cs@haldiram.com

8. Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Demerged Company-2 as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
11,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,10,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
6,29,463 equity shares of Rs. 10/- Each 62,94,630

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.
9. Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Demerged Company-2 are listed: The

securities of the Demerged Company-2 are not listed on any stock exchange in India.
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Nature of business of the Demerged Company-2: The Demerged Company-2 is engaged in the

business of manufacturers, producers, dealers, buyers sellers, importers, exporters and agents milk,

soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese, ice cream, curd and other preparations of milk

cereals and lentils including flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads and confections

including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates and fruit and vegetable and other

products and preparation of every kind, nature and description related thereon. The main objects of

the Demerged Company-2 as set out in Clause III (A) of Memorandum of Association are as under:

1

“To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, dealers, buyers sellers, importers,
exporters and agents of milk, soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese, ice cream,
curd and other preparations of milk cereals and lentils including flour and dal, sweets, soya
sweets, namkeens, papads and confections including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts,
toffees, chocolates and fruit and vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind,
nature and description related thereon.

To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters
and processors of and dealers in milk, cream, butter, ghee, cheese, condensed milk, malted
milk, milk powder, skimmed milk powder, whole milk powder, ice milk, ice-cream, milk foods,
baby foods, infant foods, milk preparations of all kinds, breakfast foods, fast foods, instant
foods, cereal products, whether flakes, maize flakes and table delicacies and f ood stuffs and
provisions of all kinds.

To carry on the business of preservation, dehydration, freezing, freeze drying, canning,
bottling and packing of all or any of the produce and products mentioned in sub clause (1)
and (2) above and stuffs provisions and consumable materials of all kinds.

To carry on the business of commission agents, brokers, factors, consultants, representatives

»

and middlemen of all type of food products and food grains.’

Name of the promoters of the Demerged Company-2 along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address

M/s Radhe Krishna Trust J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

M/s Annapurna Trust J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

Haldiram Manufacturing Co Private Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi -

Limited Jaipur Highway, Gurugram-122001

Manju Devi Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

Anand Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

Amit Aggarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-

110016
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16.
17.

18.

19.
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7. Pankkaj Agarwal House No.:4/8,Shanti Niketan, Chanakya
Puri, New Delhi-110021

8. Umesh Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

9. Ashish Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

10. Manohar Lal Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

As on March 31, 2024 the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Demerged

Company-2 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Manju Devi Agarwal 00011430
2 Anurag Gupta 09698178
3 Ashish Agarwal 00011486
4. Anand Agarwal 00014112
5 Manohar Lal Agarwal 00290780

Details of the change of name of the Demerged Company-2 in the last five years: The Demerged
Company-2 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Demerged Company-2 in the last five years: The
Demerged Company-2 has changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further, w.e.f. February 08, 2024, as per order
issued by Regional Director (Northern Region), the Demerged Company-2 has shifted its registered
office from B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of
Delhi to Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana i.e. in
the State of Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Demerged Company-2 in the last five years: The Demerged
Company-2 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Demerged Company-2 on May 29", 2024.

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Demerged Company-2 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 2 (Two) secured creditors having an outstanding amount of Rs. 57,69,68,816/- as on
March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company-2 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 2725 (Two Thousand Seven Hundred and Twenty-Five) unsecured creditors having an

outstanding amount of 47,64,92,698 /- as on March 31, 2024.



26

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held

on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. No.

Particulars

Effect

1.

Promoter

In terms of clause 17 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company-2 as per the
share entitlement ratio as determined under the valuation report
obtained from the registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Demerged Company-2.

Non-promoter

shareholders

Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the

Demerged Company-2

Directors

No effect, as the Demerged Company-2 will continue in
existence, therefore, the office of the Directors of the Demerged
Company-2 would not cease pursuant to the effectiveness of the

Scheme.

KMP (Key
Managerial

Personnel)

No effect, as the Demerged Company-2 will continue in
existence, therefore, the office of the KMP of the Demerged
Company-2 would not cease pursuant to the effectiveness of the

Scheme.

Secured Creditors

No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 7 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Demerged
Company-2, pertaining to the demerged undertaking (more
particularly defined in the Scheme) shall become the liabilities of
the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company, therefore as the
secured creditors of the Demerged Company-2 shall become
secured creditors of the Transferee Company/ Resulting

Company.

Unsecured

Creditors

No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 7 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Demerged
Company-2, pertaining to the demerged undertaking (more
particularly defined in the Scheme) shall become the liabilities of
the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company, therefore as the
unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-2 shall become
secured creditors of the Transferee Company/ Resulting

Company.
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7. | Depositors No effect, as the Demerged Company-2 has not accepted any
deposit under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.

8. | Employee No effect, as pursuant to clause 13 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Demerged Company-2, pertaining to the demerged undertaking
(more particularly defined in the Scheme) shall continue to act as

employees of the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company

9. | Debenture holders | No effect, as there is no debenture holder in Demerged Company-
2.

Net worth of the Company as on March 31, 2024: INR 3045.86 Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

1
2
3
4.
5
6

10.

Corporate Identification Number: U74899HR1982PTC118712

PAN: AAACHO189A

Name: Haldiram Marketing Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: March 16, 1982

Type of company: Private Limited Company

Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

Email ID: cs@haldiram.com

Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the

Transferee Company as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
11,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each 11,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
5,95,229 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each 5,95,22,900

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.

Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Transferee Company are listed: The
securities of the Transferee Company are not listed on any stock exchange in India.

Nature of business of the Transferee Company: The Transferee Company/ Resulting Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers, expolters,
buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types of chip, biscuits, bakely
products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods,
cereal products, wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and food stuffs & fruit & vegetable pulp
and their products & preparation of evely such kind, nature & description. The main objects of the
Transferee Company/ Resulting Company as set out in Clause III (A) of the Memorandum of

Association are, inter- alia, as under:
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“To carry on the business of advertising contractors and agents, both outdoor and through
any media, particularly neon signboards, newspapers, magazines, radio, television, buses,
railway, carriages, hoarding etc. and to undertake all sorts of promotional activities
including managing and sponsoring of modelling and fashion shows, manufacturing and
trading of gift items and novelties.

To carry on the business of printers, publishers, decorators in connection with the general
advertising business and to do any other act out, any contract for the promotion, continuance
and advancement of the said business.

To market, develop, buy, sell, export, import, distribute and otherwise deals in bulbs, tube
lights, paints, plastic fitting and other material used in the installation and manufacture of
neon signboards, and market all kinds of apparatus, appliances, plants and material
employed by advertising contractors in their business and to sell, dispose of and use the same
for the purposes of the business of the Company.

To carry on the business of exports & import and to act as manufacturers, distributors,
dealers, wholesalers, retailers, stockists or sole selling agents of all kinds of mechanical and
engineering goods in all branches thereof, automobile goods parts, accessories, fashion
accessories, readymade garments, textile goods, electric goods (including neon signs),
refrigeration goods, part and accessories, leatherwear, leather goods, all kinds of chemicals,
Pharmaceuticals, food products, earthmoving and construction materials, machinery &
equipment, plastic ware, office equipment including stationery and book- racks.

To undertake and promote and co-ordinate all kinds of opinion polls, market surveys and all
kinds of statistical research studies.

To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types of chip,
biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, milk preparation of all
kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products, wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and food
stuffs & fruit & vegetable pulp and their products & preparation of every such kind, nature

& description.”

Name of the promoters of the Transferee Company along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address

1. Manohar Lal Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

2. Madhusudan Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

3. Anand Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

4. Umesh Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016
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5. Haldiram Snacks Private Limited Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi -
Jaipur Highway, Gurugram-122001

6. Haldiram Manufacturing Co Private Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi -

Limited Jaipur Highway, Gurugram-122001

7. M/s Radhe Krishna Trust J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

8. M/s Annapurna Trust J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

9. Ashish Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

10. Amit Aggarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

11. Pankkaj Agarwal House No. 4/8 Shanti Niketan Chanakya
Puri, New Delhi-110021

12. Sumitra Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

13. Amisha Agarwal House No. 4/8 Shanti Niketan Chanakya
Puri, New Delhi-110021

As on March 31, 2024 the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Transferee

Company is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Sumitra Agarwal 00011417
2 Amisha Agarwal 00011440
3 Sanjeev Yadav 08213458
4. Amit Aggarwal 00011400
5 Manohar Lal Agarwal 00290780

Details of the change of name of the Transferee Company in the last five years: The Transferee
Company has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Transferee Company in the last five years: The
Transferee Company had changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further w.e.f. February 08, 2024, vide order dated
January 12, 2024, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) shifted its registered office from B
-1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi to
Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana in the State of

Haryana.
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Details of change of objects of the Transferee Company in the last five years: The Transferee
Company has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Transferee Company on May 29", 2024

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 1 (One) secured creditors having an outstanding amount of Rs. 49,41,45,729/- as on
March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferee Company as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 2414 (Two Thousand Four Hundred and fourteen) unsecured creditors having an
outstanding amount of 71,73,62,537/- as on March 31, 2024.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. No. Particulars Effect

1. | Promoter Since the shares of the companies involved in the Scheme are
beneficially held by same set person, and the shares are to be
issued by the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company to the
shareholders of the transferor companies and demerged
companies are within the terms of valuation report obtained from

a registered valuer.

2. Non-promoter Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the
shareholders Transferee Company

3. | Directors No effect.

4. | KMP (Key | No effect.
Managerial
Personnel)

5. | Secured Creditors No. effect, as the secured creditors of the Transferee Company/

Resulting Company shall continue to be the secured creditors of

the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company.

6. | Unsecured No. effect, as the unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company/
Creditors Resulting Company shall continue to be the unsecured creditors

of the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company.

7. | Depositors No effect, as the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company. has
not accepted any deposit under the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.
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8. | Employee No effect, as the present employees of the Transferee Company/
Resulting Company shall continue to be the employees of the

Transferee Company/ Resulting Company.

9. | Debenture holders | No effect, as there is no debenture holder in Transferee Company/

Resulting Company.

Net worth of the Company as on March 31, 2024: INR 13,718.39 Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY-1

1
2
3
4.
5
6

10.

Corporate Identification Number: U15490HR1996PTC119135.

PAN: AAACH8461R

Name: Haldi Ram Products Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: August 29, 1996

Type of company: Private Limited Company

Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India.

Email ID: cs@haldiram.com

Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the

Transferor Company-1 as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
25,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
9,22,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 92,20,000

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.
Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Transferor Company-1 are listed: The
securities of the Transferor Company-1 are not listed on any stock exchange in India.
Nature of business of the Transferor Company-1: The Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating
Company-1 engaged in the business of exports and Imports of any kind, of goods which are permitted
by law, of any time and to carry on the business of importers, exporters, processor, packers,
commission agents, stockists, buyers and sellers in India or abroad of all types of food products,
namkeens, papads, sweets, pickles, syrups, raw and blended spices, all types of milk products and
preparations, soya products, toffees, chocolates etc. The main objects of the Transferor Company-1/
Amalgamating Company-I as set out in Clause III (A) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter
-alia, as under:

1. “To act as an export house and carry on business of exports and Imports of any kind, of

goods which are permitted by law, of any time.
2. To cany on business of Importers, exporters, processor, packers, commission agents,

stockists, buyers and sellers In India or abroad of:




b)

¢)

d)

32

All types of food products, namkeens. Papads, sweets, pickles, syrups, raw and
blended spices, all types of mlik products and preparations, soya products, toffees
and chocolates.

All types of food grains, rice, sugar, pulses, cereals and their allied products and
by products,- packed foods,- tea, coffee; dry fruits; fi-uit pulp, juices oil and'
vanaspati and other food products and articles. All types of seeds, floriculture, and
horticulture products.

Readymade garments and wearing apparels of every kind nature and description
and ail types of clothes of cotton, silk, woollen, knitwear, handloom, hosiery,
garments and all types of textile goods, sockiest material, Viscose; carpets, rugs
and matting of all types.

All type of utensils cutlery, artwares, antiques, handicraft, precious and semi-
precious stones, real and Immltatlon jewellery, ornaments and goods made of any
metal, brass, silver, gold, bronze, nickel,- steel, aluminium, Ivory and/or wood.
Leather and leather products, footwears, surgical and medical equipments,
electric and electronic goods and products, marble, granite and other stones In
any form, cements, cosmetics, to tolitories, rubber and plastics of all types and
forms, coir and Jute products, musical Instruments," sports goods etc. All types of
packing items.

All types of Engineering goods, Machine tools, hand tools, metals, alloys, nuts and
bolts, bicycles and accessories, automobile parts, steel and iron products, fastners,

metal scrap all type of machineries and parts thereof, hardware Items,

3. To carry on business of consultants, brokers, factors, socldest, agents and middle man

connected with export and Import. To provide consultancy. In export documentation and

handling laison jobs, arranging loans, quality upgradation and certification of quality.”

11. Name of the promoters of the Transferor Company-1 along with their residential address:

S. No.

Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address

1.

M/s Radhe Krishna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

M/s Annapurna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

Surya India Ltd. B-1/F-12, Mohan Co-operative Industrial
Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi -
110044

Haldiram Marketing Private Limited Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula , Delhi

Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road
Gurgaon, HR -122001

Haldiram Snacks Private Limited Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula , Delhi

Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road
Gurgaon, HR -122001
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6. Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private | Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula , Delhi
Limited Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road
Gurgaon, HR -122001
7. Madhu Sudan Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016
8. Umesh Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

As on March 31, 2024, the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Transferor

Company-1 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Umesh Agarwal 00011472
2. Satish Kumar Kaushik 05289545
3. Madhu Sudan Agarwal 00011316

Details of the change of name of the Transferor Company-1 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-1 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Transferor Company-1 in the last five years:

The Transferor Company-1 w.e.f. February 20, 2024, as per the order issued by Regional Director
(Northern Region) shifted its registered office from 19A Shivaji Marg, Najafargarh Road, New Moti
Nagar, New Delhi-110015 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi to Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur
Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana in the State of Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Transferor Company-1 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-1 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Transferor Company-1 on May 29, 2024

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferor Companyl as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 1 (One) secured creditors having an outstanding amount of Rs. 19,68,33,000/- as on
March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-1 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 2319 (Two Thousand Three Hundred and Nineteen) unsecured creditors having an
outstanding amount of 1,01,82,84,681/- as on March 31, 2024.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company-1 in their
meeting held on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment

of the report is reproduced hereunder:

S. No. Particulars Effect

1. | Promoter In terms of clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the

Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
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shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company- 1 as per
the share entitlement ration as determined under the valuation
report obtained from registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Transferor Company -1.

Non-promoter

shareholders

Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the

Transferor Company-1

Directors

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company -
1 shall stand dissolved and accordingly, the directors of the
Transferor Company-1 shall cease to be employee of the

Transferor Company -1.

KMP (Key
Managerial

Personnel)

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company-1
shall stand dissolved and accordingly, KMP of the Transferor
Company-1 shall cease to be KMP in the Transferor Company-1
and being employees of the Transferor Company-1 they shall be
employed by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

Secured Creditors

No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-1 shall become the liabilities of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company, therefore as the secured
creditors of the Transferor Company-1 shall become secured

creditors of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

Unsecured

Creditors

No effect Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-1 shall become the liabilities of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company, therefore, the unsecured
creditors of the Transferor Company-1 shall become the
creditors

unsecured of Resulting Company/ Transferee

Company.

Depositors

No effect, as the Transferor Company-1 has not accepted any
deposit under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,

2013.

Employee

No effect, as pursuant to clause 27 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Transferor Company-1 shall continue to act as employees of the

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

Debenture holders

No effect, as there is no debenture holder in the Transferor

Company-1.
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Net worth of the Transferor Company-1 as on March 31, 2024: INR 5976.15 Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY-2

1.

2
3
4.
5
6

10.

Corporate Identification Number: U15127HR2017PTC118713

PAN: AAECH1855P

Name: HR Bakers Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: May 15, 2017

Type of company: Private Limited Company

Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana, India, 122001.

Email ID: cs@haldiram.com

Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Transferor Company-2 as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 1,00,00,000

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-

up capital of the Company.

Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Transferor Company-2 are listed: The

securities of the Transferor Company-2 are not listed on any stock exchange in India.

Nature of business of the Transferor Company-2: The Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating

Company-2 is engaged in the business of manufacturers, bakers, producers, dealers, buyers, sellers,

importers, exporters and agents of milk, soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese, ice-cream,

curd and other preparations of milk, cereals and lentils including flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets,

namkeens, papads, and confections including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees,

chocolates, fruit and vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind, nature and

description related thereon. The main objects of the Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating

Company-2 as set out in Clause I1I (A) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter - alia, as under:

1. “To carry on the business of manufacturers, bakers, producers, dealers, buyers, sellers,
importers, exporters and agents of milk, soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese,
icecream, curd and other preparations of milk, cereals and lentils including flour and dal,
sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads, and confections including biscuits, cakes, breads,
pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates and firuit and vegetable and other products and preparation
of every kind, nature and description related thereon.
2. To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters

and processors of and dealers in milk, cream, butter, ghee, cheese, condensed milk, malted
milk, milk powder, skimmed milk powder, whole milk powder, ice milk, ice-cream, milk foods,

baby foods, infant foods, milk preparations of all kinds, breakfast foods, fast foods, instant
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foods, cereal products, whether flakes, maize flakes, and table delicacies and. food stuffs and
provisions of all kinds.

3. To carry on the business of preservation, dehydration. freezing freezedrying. canning,
bottling and packing of all or any of the produce and products mentioned in sub clause (1)
and (2) above and stuffs provisions and consumable materials of all kinds.

4. To carry on the business of commission agents, brokers, factors, consultants, representatives

and middlemen of all type of food products and food grains. "

Name of the promoters of the Transferor Company-2 along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address

1. Manohar Lal Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

2. Madhusudan Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

3. Ashish Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

4. M/s Radhe Krishna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

5. M/s Annapurna Trust J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

As on March 31, 2024 the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Transferor

Company-2 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Madhu Sudan Agarwal 00011316
2. Manohar Lal Agarwal 00290780
3. Ashish Agarwal 00011486

Details of the change of name of the Transferor Company-2 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-2 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Transferor Company-2 in the last five years: The
Transferor Company-2 had changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further w.e.f. February 08, 2024, vide order dated
January 12, 2024, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) shifted its registered office from B
-1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi to
Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana in the State of
Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Transferor Company-2 in the last five years: The Transferor

Company-2 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.
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Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024.

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Transferor Company-2 on May 29", 2024.

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferor Company-2 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has Nil secured creditors as on March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-2 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 11 (Eleven) unsecured creditors having an outstanding amount of 8,98,58,520/- as on
March 31, 2024.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. No. Particulars Effect

1. Promoter In terms of clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company- 2 as per
the share entitlement ration as determined under the valuation
report obtained from registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Transferor Company -2.

2. Non-promoter Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the
shareholders Transferor Company-2
3. | Directors Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company -

2 shall stand dissolved and accordingly, the directors of the
Transferor Company-2 shall cease to be employee of the

Transferor Company -2.

4. | KMP (Key | Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company-2
Managerial shall stand dissolved and accordingly, KMP of the Transferor
Personnel) Company-2 shall cease to be KMP in the Transferor Company-2

and being employees of the Transferor Company-2 they shall be
employed by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

5. Secured Creditors No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-2 shall become the liabilities of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company, therefore as the secured
creditors of the Transferor Company-2 shall become secured

creditors of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

6. | Unsecured No effect Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon

Creditors the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
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Company-2 shall become the liabilities of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company, therefore, the unsecured
creditors of the Transferor Company-2 shall become the
unsecured creditors of the Resulting Company/ Transferee

Company.

7. | Depositors No effect, as the Transferor Company-2 has not accepted any
deposit under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

8. | Employee No effect, as pursuant to clause 27 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Transferor Company-2 shall continue to act as employees of the

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

9. Debenture holders No effect, as there is no debenture holder in the Transferor

Company-2.

21. Net worth of the Transferor Company-2 as on March 31, 2024: INR 2051.84 Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY-3

1. Corporate Identification Number: U55209HR2018PTC118710

2. PAN: AAECH4952M

3. Name: Haldiram Retail Private Limited

4. Date of Incorporation: April 03,2018

5.  Type of company: Private Limited Company

6. Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana, India, 122001

7. Email ID: cs@haldiram.com

8. Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Transferor Company-3 as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,00,000

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.

9. Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Transferor Company-3 are listed: The
securities of the Transferor Company-3 are not listed on any stock exchange in India

10. Nature of business of the Transferor Company-3: The Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating
Company-3 is engaged to cany on the business of restaurants, cafe, food plazas, fast food joints,
refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners in India and abroad, further to cany on the business

of caterers & to open, establish, manage, Franchise Fast Food center, restaurants of all kinds and to
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commence and cany on the business of caterers both in door or outdoor including catering in farm
houses, banquets, clubs, schools, hostels and clubs and to own build, operate, manage, let out, lease,
sub-lease canteens, bakeries, confectioners, milk bars, sweet shops, ice cream shops, ice cream
parlors, poultry farms, piggery farms, dairy farms, cafeterias, refreshment rooms, taverns, flight
kitchens, caravan safaris, camping sites, inns and all other catering related facilities and activities
including entering into franchise and have collaboration with any local or foreign paiiy. The main
objects of the Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 as set out in Clause III (A) of the
Memorandum of Association are, inter -alia, as under:

1. “To carry on the business of restaurant cafe, food plazas, fast food joints, refreshment rooms
and bakers and confectioners in India and abroad.

2. To carry on the business of caterers & to open, establish, manage, Franchise Fast Food
center, restaurants of all kinds.

3. To commence and carry on the business of caterers both in door or outdoor including
catering in farm houses, banquets, clubs, schools, hostels and clubs and to own build,
operate, manage, let out, lease, sub-lease canteens, bakeries, confectioners, milk bars, sweet
shops, ice cream shops, ice cream parlors, poultry farms, piggery farms, daily farms,
cafeterias, refreshment rooms, taverns, .flight kitchens, caravan safaris, camping sites, inns
and all other catering related facilities and activities including entering into franchise and

have collaboration with any local or foreign party.”

11. Name of the promoters of the Transferor Company-3 along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address

1. Umesh Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

2. Amit Aggarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

3. Ashish Agarwal J-15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

4. Pankkaj Agarwal H. No. 4/8, Shanti Niketan, Chankya
Puri, New Delhi — 110021

12.  Ason March 31, 2024 the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Transferor

Company-3 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Pankkaj Agarwal 00011384
2 Umesh Agarwal 00011472
3. Ashish Agarwal 00011486
4 Amit Aggarwal 00011400
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Details of the change of name of the Transferor Company-3 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-3 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Transferor Company-3 in the last five years: The
Transferor Company-3 had changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further w.e.f. February 08, 2024, as per the order,
issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) shifted its registered office from B -1/F -12, Mohan
Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi to Haldiram - Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana in the State of Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Transferor Company-3 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-3 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Transferor Company-3 on May 29, 2024,

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferor Company-3 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has Nil secured creditors having as on March 31, 2024

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-3 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 2 (Two) unsecured creditors having an outstanding amount of 40,23,76,283/- as on
March 31, 2024.

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. No. Particulars Effect

1. Promoter In terms of clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company- 3 as per
the share entitlement ration as determined under the valuation
report obtained from registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Transferor Company -3.

2. | Non-promoter Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the
shareholders Transferor Company-3
3. | Directors Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company-

3 shall stand dissolved and accordingly, the directors of the
Transferor Company-3 shall cease to be employed in the

Transferor Company -3.
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4. | KMP (Key | Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company-3
Managerial shall stand dissolved and accordingly, KMP of the Transferor
Personnel) Company-3 shall cease to be KMP in the Transferor Company-3

and being employees of the Transferor Company-3 they shall be
employed by the Transferee Company.

5. Secured Creditors No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-3 shall become the liabilities of the Transferee
Company, therefore as the secured creditors of the Transferor
Company-3 shall become secured creditors of the Resulting

Company/ Transferee Company.

6. | Unsecured No effect Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
Creditors the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-3 shall become the liabilities of the Transferee
Company, therefore, the unsecured creditors of the Transferor
Company-3 shall become the unsecured creditors of the Resulting

Company/ Transferee Company.

7. | Depositors No effect, as the Transferor Company-3 has not accepted any

deposit under the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

8. | Employee No effect, as pursuant to clause 27 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Transferor Company-3 shall continue to act as employees of the

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

9. Debenture holders No effect, as there is no debenture holder in the Transferor

Company-3.

21. Net worth of the Transferor Company-3 as on March 31, 2024: INR (4,578.65) Lakhs

PARTICULARS OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY-4
Corporate Identification Number: U74140HR2004PTC118709
PAN: AACCD1476C
Name: Dreamcann Foods Private Limited

Date of Incorporation: August 18, 2004

1

2

3

4

5. Type of company: Private Limited Company

6. Registered Office: Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
7. Email ID: rachit.dhingra@haldiram.com

8. Details of Capital Structure: The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the

Company as of March 31, 2024, is as follows:

Authorised share capital: Amt. (In Rs.)
21,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,15,00,000
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Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Share Capital: Amt. (In Rs.)

20,05,005 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 2,00,50,050

Further, till the date of this notice there is no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-
up capital of the Company.

Name of the Stock Exchange where the Securities of the Transferor Company-4 are listed: The
securities of the Transferor Company-4 are not listed on any stock exchange in India.

Nature of business of the Transferor Company-4: The Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating
Company-4 is engaged in the business of producing, manufacturing, processing, preparing,
preserving, canning, refining of milk and milk bottles and buying . & selling & deal whether as
wholesalers or retailers or as exporters or importers or as principals or agents in all types of foods,
frnits, vegetables, oils , spices, meat products, dairy products, poultry products, canned and processed
foods, health foods, baby foods, diabetic foods, pulses, cereals, beverages, chocolates, breads,
confectionery products, chewing gums, toffees, dry fruits, nankeens, fast foods, grains, bakery
products, aerated mineral water and other food stuffs of every description for human consumption.
and to carry on the business of operating and managing restaurants, cafes, health cares, hotels,
banquets halls, beer & bar house, caterers, amusement park, recreation centres, sports facility,
gymnasiums and spas etc. The main objects of the Transferor Company-4 as set out in Clause I1I (A)
of Memorandum of Association are as under:

1. “To produce, manufacture, process, prepare, preserve, can, refine, milk, bottle, buy, sell and
deal whether as wholesalers or retailers or as exporters or importers or as principals or
agents in all types of foods, fruits, vegetables, oils , spices, meat products, dairy products,
poultry products, canned and processed foods, health foods, baby foods, diabetic foods,
pulses, cereals, beverages, chocolates, breads, confectionery products, chewing gums,
toffees, dry fruits, nankeens, fast foods, grains, bakery products, aerated mineral water and
other food stuffs of eve,y description for human consumption.

2. To carry on the business of operating and managing restaurants, cafes, health cares, hotels,
banquets halls, beer & bar house, caterers, amusement park, recreation centres, sports

>

facility, gymnasiums and spas etc.’

Name of the promoters of the Transferor Company-4 along with their residential address:

S. No. Name of Promoter Resident/Registered office address
1. Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private | Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi -
Limited Jaipur Highway, Gurugram-122001

2. Manohar Lal Agarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

3. Amisha Agarwal House No. 4/8 Shanti Niketan Chanakya
Puri, New Delhi-110021

4. Pankkaj Agarwal House No. 4/8 Shanti Niketan Chanakya
Puri, New Delhi-110021
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5. Amit Aggarwal J- 15, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi-
110016

As on March 31, 2024 the list of directors and Key Managerial Person (KMP) of the Transferor

Company-4 is as under:

S. No. Name of the Director DIN/PAN
1. Amisha Agarwal 00011440
2 Amit Aggarwal 00011400
3. Tarun Verma 08873205
4 Pankkaj Agarwal 00011384

Details of the change of name of the Transferor Company-4 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-4 has not changed its name of the Company in the last five years.

Details of change of registered office of Transferor Company-4 in the last five years: The
Transferor Company-4 had changed its registered office from B -1/H -3, Mohan Co -Operative
Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 to B -1/F -12, Mohan Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi
-110044, within the NCT of Delhi on June 1, 2020. Further w.e.f. February 08, 2024, as per the order,
issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) shifted its registered office from B -1/F -12, Mohan
Co -Operative Industrial Estate New Delhi -110044 i.e. in the NCT of Delhi to Haldiram - Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon- 122001, Haryana in the State of Haryana.

Details of change of objects of the Transferor Company-4 in the last five years: The Transferor
Company-4 has not changed its objects of the Company in the last five years.

Date of Board Meeting at which the Scheme was approved: May 29, 2024.

The directors who gave their assent/ dissent: The Scheme was unanimously approved by all the
directors of the Transferor Company-4 on May 29", 2024.

Amount due to Secured Creditors of the Transferor Company-4 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has Nil secured creditors as on March 31, 2024.

Amount due to Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company-4 as on March 31, 2024: The
Company has 76 (Seventy-Six) unsecured creditors having an outstanding amount of 14,47,50,301/-
as on March 31, 2024 (Cut-off date).

Disclosure about the effect of the Scheme on the material interests of Directors/ KMP etc.:
Kindly refer to the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held
on May 29, 2024 as annexed herewith and marked as Annexure-R. Relevant fragment of the report

is reproduced hereunder:

S. No. Particulars Effect

1. | Promoter In terms of clause 31 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall issue
shares to the shareholders of the Transferor Company- 4 as per
the share entitlement ratio as determined under the valuation

report obtained from registered valuer. Further, the beneficial
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holding of the companies involved in the Scheme is held by the
same set of shareholders, therefore, there is no adverse effect on

the shareholders of the Transferor Company -4.

Non-promoter

shareholders

Not Applicable, since there is no non-promoter shareholder in the

Transferor Company-4

Directors

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company-
4 shall stand dissolved and accordingly, the directors of the
Transferor Company-4 shall cease to be employed in the

Transferor Company-4.

KMP (Key
Managerial

Personnel)

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, Transferor Company-4
shall stand dissolved and accordingly, KMP of the Transferor
Company-4 shall cease to be KMP in the Transferor Company-4
and being employees of the Transferor Company-4, they shall be
employed by the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company.

Secured Creditors

No. effect, Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-4 shall become the liabilities of the Transferee
Company/ Resulting Company, therefore as the secured creditors
of the Transferor Company-4 shall become secured creditors of

the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company.

Unsecured

Creditors

No effect Pursuant to the terms of clause 21 of the Scheme, upon
the effectiveness of the Scheme, the liabilities of the Transferor
Company-4 shall become the liabilities of the Transferee
Company/ Resulting Company, therefore, the unsecured
creditors of the Transferor Company-4 shall become the
unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company/ Resulting

Company.

Depositors

No effect, as the Transferor Company-4 has not accepted any

deposit under the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

Employee

No effect, as pursuant to clause 27 of the Scheme, upon the
effectiveness of the Scheme, the present employees of the
Transferor Company-4 shall continue to act as employees of the

Transferee Company/ Resulting Company

Debenture holders

No effect, as there is no debenture holder in the Transferor

Company-4.

Net worth of the Transferor Company-4 as on March 31, 2024: INR (1205.92) Lakhs\
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RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN APPLICANT COMPANIES WHO ARE PARTIES
TO THE SCHEME

1.
)

()

3

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

Appointed Date
The Scheme shall be operative from the “Appointed Date”, i.e. April 01%, 2024 or such other date
as approved by the NCLT or any other competent authority.

Effective Date: As per Clause 4.13 of the Scheme, the effective date of the Scheme shall be as
follows:

Effective Date shall be the last of the dates on which certified copies of the order of Tribunal under
Section 230 to 232 of the Act, sanctioning this Scheme, is filed by the respective Companies with
their respective jurisdictional Registrar of Companies.

Provided that any reference in this Scheme to the date of "upon coming into effect of the Scheme"
or "upon the scheme becoming effective" or "effectiveness of the Scheme” shall mean the Effective

Date.

Rationale/ Benefits

The Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies are of the view that the proposed Scheme shall
have the following benefits:

The Companies, belonging to same group and having common promoters, are engaged in quick-
service restaurants ("QSR") business which includes setting up and maintenance of restaurants,
cafe, food plazas, fast food joints, refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners. Further, the
Companies are involved in opening, establishing, managing restaurants of all kinds and to carry on
the business of running banquets.

Now, in order to optimize and leverage the resources of all the Companies, the management
contemplates to upscale QSR business in one entity. Hence, the management of the Companies
have decided to consolidate the said QSR business of all Companies into the Resulting Company /

Transferee Company.

The said arrangement shall also result in following benefits:

i. The consolidation of QSR Business of Demerged Companies and Amalgamating
Companies with and into the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company will optimize
synergies, reducing overheads, better services to existing clientele, operational efficiencies
including efficiency in fund raising, productivity gains, harmonization of sales and
services channels, general and administrative cost reduction and productivity gains by
pooling of financial, managerial and technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills,
expertise, and logistical advantages thereby significantly contributing to economies of
scale and future growth, strengthening financial and competitive position of the Resulting

Company/ Transferee Company.
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il. The Scheme will lead to simplification of group structure by eliminating multiple

companies in similar business, thus enabling focus on core competencies.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key management personnel,
promoters, non-promoter members, creditors and employees of the Companies and the same would

be in the best interest of all stakeholders.

Consideration:
In terms of clause 17 read with clause 31 of the Scheme provided for the consideration to be issued

by the Transferee Company/ Resulting Company pursuant to the implementation of the Scheme:

In order to maintain the optimum capital structure in the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company
which shall be required to carry on the business, the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company has
decided to allot paid-up share capital to the shareholders of the Demerged Companies and
Transferor Companies aggregating upto Rs. 15,00,00,000/-, which shall be divided into 15,00,000
equity shares with a face value of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) per share in following
proportion:

“81.45% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/ Transferee

Company ,i.e, 12,21,803 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the shareholders of

the Demerged Company-1.

6.16% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/ Transferee
Company ,i.e, 92,381 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the shareholders of
Demerged Company-2

11.80% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/ Transferee
Company ,i.e, 1,76,969 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the shareholders of
TransferorCompany-1/ Amalgamating Company-1

2 equity shares out of total paid up share capital to be issued by Resulting Company/
Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating

Company-2

0.17% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/ Transferee
Company ,i.e, 2,520 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the shareholders of
Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3
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0.42% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/ Transferee
Company ,i.e, 6,325 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the shareholders of
Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4"~

(5) Pre and Post Scheme Capital Structure:

Pre-Scheme capital structure of the Applicant Companies is detailed in Clause 5.1 of the Scheme.

The authorised, issued and paid-up share capital of the Applicant Companies as on their respective

cut-off dates is as follows:

Company

Authorised Share Capital
(In Rupees)

Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital
(In Rupees)

Haldiram Manufacturing
Company Private Limited

(“Demerged Company-1”)

Rs. 11,00,00,000/- divided
into 1,10,00,000 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each

Rs. 10,17,82,660/- divided
into 1,01,78,266 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each

Haldiram Ethnic Foods
Private Limited

(“Demerged Company-2”)

Rs. 1,10,00,000/- divided into
11,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Rs. 62,94,630/- divided into
6,29,463 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Haldiram Marketing

Private Ltd (“Resulting

Rs. 11,00,00,000/- divided

into 11,00,000 equity shares

Rs. 5,95,22,900/- divided into
5,95,229 equity shares of Rs.

Company-17)

Company/ Transferee | of Rs. 100/- each 100/- each

Company”)

Haldi Ram  Products | Rs. 2,50,00,000/- divided into | Rs. 92,20,000/- divided into
Private Limited | 25,00,000 equity shares of Rs. | 9,22,000 equity shares of Rs.
(“Amalgamating 10/- each 10/- each

Company-1/  Transferor

Haldiram Retail Private
Limited (“Amalgamating
Company-2/  Transferor

Company-2”)

Rs. 10,00,000/- divided into
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Rs. 10,00,000/- divided into
1,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

HR Bakers Private

Limited (“Amalgamating

Rs. 1,00,00,000/- divided into
10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.

Rs. 1,00,00,000/- divided into
10,00,000 equity shares of Rs.

Limited (“Amalgamating

21,50,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Company-3/ Transferor | 10/- each 10/- each
Company-3”)
Decann Foods Private | Rs. 2,15,00,000/- divided into | Rs. 2,00,50,050/- divided into

20,05,005 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each
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Post-Scheme capital structure of the Applicant Companies is as follows:

Company

Authorised Share Capital
(In Rupees)

Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital
(In Rupees)

Haldiram Manufacturing
Company Private Limited

(“Demerged Company-1”)

Rs. 11,00,00,000/- divided
into 1,10,00,000 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each

Rs. 11,00,00,000/- divided
into 1,10,00,000 equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each

Haldiram Ethnic Foods
Private Limited

(“Demerged Company-2”)

Rs. 1,10,00,000/- divided into
11,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Rs. 1,10,00,000/- divided into
11,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each

Haldiram Marketing
Private Ltd (“Resulting

Transferee

Rs. 20,95,22,900/- divided
into 20,95,229 equity shares
of Rs. 100/- each

Rs. 20,95,22,900/- divided
into 20,95,229 equity shares
of Rs. 100/- each

Company/

Company”)

In terms of clause 32 of the Scheme, upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the authorised of the
Transferor Companies shall be clubbed and be added with the authorised share capital of the
Transferee company/ Resulting Company. Accordingly the clubbed authorised shares capital of the
Transferee Company/ Resulting Company shall be Rs. 16,75,00,000 /- divided into 16,75,000
equity shares of Rs. 100/- each, which shall be further, increased to Rs. 20,95,22,900/- divided into
20,95,229 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each.

The proposed Scheme is not intended to bring any beneficial effect or any material interest in any
manner to any person(s) who is/are for the time being directors, key managerial personnel of the
Applicant Companies involved in the Scheme except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in

the Applicant Companies.

The Scheme will be in the best interests of Applicant Companies and their respective shareholders
and creditors. The said Scheme will not adversely affect the rights of any of the shareholders and

creditors of the Applicant Companies in any manner whatsoever.

Effect of the Scheme of the material contract and Agreements entered into by the Transferor
Companies:
That in pursuant to the Clause 14 and 28 of the Scheme any contracts/ arrangements/ agreements/

writings to which Demerged Companies (pertaining to the Demerged Undertakings) and Transferor
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Companies are a party, subsisting as on the effective date, shall upon the effectiveness of the
Scheme, shall become effective in favour of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company and/ or

may be enforced by or against the Resulting/Transferee Company.

DETAILS OF APPROVALS / SANCTIONS/ NO-OBJECTIONS, IF ANY, RECEIVED OR
PENDING FOR THE SCHEME

Board Approval
The Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies approved the Scheme of arrangement in their

respective meetings held on May 29, 2024.

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE OF CONFORMITY OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN
THE SCHEME WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The respective statutory auditors of the Applicant Companies have confirmed that the accounting
treatments as specified in clause 18 and 33 of the Scheme are in conformity with the accounting

standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE APPLICANT COMPANIES

i. No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending against Applicant
Companies under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. No winding-up proceedings have been filed or are pending against any of the Applicant
Companies before the concerned Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 232(2)(b) of the
Act.

iii. that there are no pending litigation(s) against the Companies under Companies Act, 1956/ 2013,
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and Indian Penal Code, 1860.

(10) FILING WITH STATUTORY AUTHORITIES

The Companies undertake to intimate the jurisdictional Registrar of Companies and other statutory

authorities by filing necessary e-forms.

an

INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, following documents will be open for inspection by the

unsecured creditors at the registered office of the Demerged Company No. 1 on all working days (between

11:00 A.M. to 05:00 P.M.) except Saturdays, Sundays, and Public Holidays upto the date of the Meeting:

a.

Copy of the Order dated January 03, 2025 passed by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh
Bench, directing the convening and holding of meeting of unsecured creditors of the Demerged
Company-1;

Copy of the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies;

Audited financial statements of the Demerged Company-1 on March 31, 2024;
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d. Valuation report

e. Copy of Composite Scheme of Arrangement

f. Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Applicant Companies

g. the certificate issued by Auditor of the company to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any,
proposed in the scheme of compromise or arrangement is in conformity with the Accounting Standards

prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013;

After the Scheme is approved by the requisite majority of unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company-

1, it will be subject to the approval/sanction by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Based on the above and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme
will be of advantage to, beneficial and in the interest of the Company, its shareholders, creditors and other
stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and reasonable. The Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company-1 recommend the Scheme for approval of the Unsecured creditors. The Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel of the Demerged Company-1 and their relatives do not have any concern or interest,

financially or otherwise, in the Scheme except as shareholders, if so, in general.
For and on behalf of Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited

Dated: 22-02-2025

Place: Gurugram

Sd/-
Rachit Dhingra
Authorized Signatory Applicant Companies
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THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHANDIGARH BENCH (COURT-I), CHANDIGARH

CA No0.192/2024
and
CA(CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024

(15t Motion)

Under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules 3 and 18 of the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 and National
Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT AMONGST:

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Manohar Lal Agarwal, Director
Registered office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: U74899HR1994PTC122349
PAN: AAACH3170K
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
...Demerged Company-1/ Applicant Company-1

And

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Ashish Agarwal, Director
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: UI5122HR2003PTC118711
PAN: AAFCA0665B
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
...Demerged Company-2/ Applicant Company-2

And

Haldiram Marketing Private Limited

Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Sunil Jain, AGM Finance
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,

Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,

Haryana-122001, India

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)



P 20f 40

CIN No.: U74899HR1982PTC118712
PAN: AAACHO189A
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
....Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/ Applicant Company-3

And

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Umesh Agarwal, Director
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: U15490HR1996PTC119135
PAN: AAACH8461R
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
....Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1/ Applicant Company-4

And

HR Bakers Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Madhu Sudan Agarwal, Director
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: U15127HR2017PTC118713
PAN: AAECH1855P
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), C.R. Building, New Delhi
....Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-2/ Applicant Company-5

And

Haldiram Retail Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Pankkaj Agarwal, Director
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: U55209HR2018PTC118710
PAN: AAECH4952M
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
....Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3/ Applicant Company-6

And

Dreamcann Foods Private Limited
Through its Authorized Representative Mr. Rachit Dhingra, Authorized Signatory
Registered Office: Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
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Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India
CIN No.: U74140HR2004PTC118709
PAN: AACCD1476C
Income Tax Jurisdiction: Circle 10(1), New Delhi
....Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4/ Applicant Company-7

Order delivered on: 03.01.2025

Coram:HON’BLE MR HARNAM SINGH THAKUR, MEMBER (JUDICIAL)
HON’BLE MR UMESH KUMAR SHUKLA, MEMBER (TECHNICAL)

For the Applicant Companies: Mr. NPS Chawla, Advocate, Mr. G.S. Sarin, PCS

Per: Mr. Harnam Singh Thakur, Member (Judicial)
Mr. Umesh Kumar Shukla, Member (Technical)

ORDER

This is a Joint First Motion Company Application (hereinafter referred to as the
“Original Application”) filed vide Diary No. 01863 dated 03.06.2024 under sections
230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 3 and 18 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamation) Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred
to as the “CAA Rules”) and other applicable provisions of National Company Law
Tribunal Rules, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as the “NCLT Rules”) by Haldiram
Manufacturing Company Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Demerged Company-1” or “Applicant Company-1”), Haldiram Ethnic Foods
Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “‘Demerged Company-2” or
‘Applicant Company-2”), Haldiram Marketing Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Applicant
Company-3”), Haldi Ram Products Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Transferor Company-1” or “Amalgamating Company-1” or “Applicant Company-

4”), HR Bakers Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor
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Company-2” or “Amalgamating Company-2° or “Applicant Company-5”),
Haldiram Retail Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor
Company-3” or “Amalgamating Company-3” or “Applicant Company-6”) and
Dreamcann Foods Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Transferor
Company-4” or “Amalgamating Company-4” or “Applicant Company-7”)
(hereinafter Applicant Company 1 to 7 collectively referred to as the “Applicant
Companies”) in relation to the Scheme of Arrangement amongst the Applicant
Companies (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”), which provides for the
demerger of demerged undertakings of Demerged Company-1 and Demerged
Company-2 with and into the Transferee Company and amalgamation of Transferor
Company-1 to 4 with and into the Transferee Company. The said Scheme is attached
as Annexure A of the Original Application. In the Application, it was prayed for
dispensing the requirement of convening the meetings of Equity Shareholders,
Secured and Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies; to direct the Applicant
Companies to jointly serve the notice of the Application to the Statutory Authorities
(Regional Director, Registrar of Companies, Official Liquidator, and Income Tax
Authorities) and to direct them to file their report(s)/ affidavit(s) within 30 days from

the date of receipt of the notices.

2. The registered offices of all the Applicant Companies are situated in Gurgaon,
Haryana. Therefore, the Applicant Companies lie within the jurisdiction of this

Tribunal.

CA No. 192/2024

3. This Tribunal, vide its Order dated 26.07.2024, directed the Applicant

Companies to file the unaudited provisional financial statement as on 31.03.2024
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along with its reconciliation with the lists of Shareholders and Creditors and an
affidavit with evidence that the Share-Holders, who have not given their consent has

been issued notice and they did not respond thereto.

4.  In compliance of the above Order, Applicant Companies, vide Diary No. 01863/3
dated 30.08.2024, filed an additional affidavit, which was taken on record vide this
Tribunal Order dated 30.08.2024. Since there was change in the prayer clause of the
Application in the affidavit, Ld. Counsel for Applicant Companies was directed to file
an Amended Application in consonance with the affidavit dated 30.08.2024 including

the amended prayers clause.

5. In compliance of the above Order, CA N0.192/2024 has been filed to place on
record the Amended Application, which was taken on record vide this Tribunal Order
dated 30.08.2024. Accordingly, CA No0.192/2024 stands allowed and disposed of
accordingly and the Application originally filed by the Application Companies has been
replaced with the Amended Application filed with the CA No0.192/2024. Since the
Amended Application is without Annexures and is in continuation with the Original
Application, Annexures contained in the Original Application has also been

considered in dealing with the Amended Application

CA(CAA) No0.29/Chd/Hry/2024

6. In the Amended Petition, the Applicant Companies have prayed for (i)
Dispensing the requirement of convening the meetings of Equity Shareholders and
Secured Creditors of the Applicant Companies; (ii) Dispensing the requirement of
convening the meetings of Unsecured Creditors of Applicant Companies 5, 6 & 7; (iii)
Convene the physical meeting of Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Companies 1,

2, 3 and 4 at a date and place decided by the management of the respective
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companies; (iv) Direct the Applicant Companies to jointly serve the notice of this

Application to the Statutory Authorities namely Central Government through Regional
Director (Northern Region), Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Registrar of Companies,
NCT of Delhi and Haryana, Official Liquidator at New Delhi and Concerned Income
Tax Authorities having jurisdiction on the Applicant Companies to file their

report(s)/affidavit(s) within 30 days from the date of receipt of the notices.

FACTS OF THE CASE

7. The facts of the case, as stated in the Amended Application, are summarised

below:

() The Demerged Company-1 is a private limited company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in NCT of Delhi, on June
02, 1994, under the name and style of ‘JAJ Manufacturing Company
Private Limited’. Its name was changed, w.e.f. September 4, 1996, from
‘JAJ Manufacturing Company Private Limited’ to its present name i.e.
‘Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited’. As on March 31, 2024,
its Authorized Share Capital is Rs.11,00,00,000/- divided into 1,10,00,000
equity shares of Rs.10/- each and Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Share
Capital is Rs.10,17,82,660/- divided into 1,01,78,266 equity shares of
Rs.10/- each. Subsequent to March 31, 2024 there has been no change in
its share capital till the date of filing of this Application. It is engaged in the
business of manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers,
exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and
all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees,
chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products,

wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and foods stuffs & fruits &
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vegetable pulp and their products & preparation of every such kind, nature

& description. The main objects, as set out in Clause 3rd(a) of its

Memorandum of Association are as under

“1. To carry on the business of manufacture, assembler, fabricators, designers,
erector, commissioners and dealers of industrial Electronics process measuring,
indicating recording and control and precision instruments of all kinds such as
temperature, P.H., frequency, voltage, current, Liquid level, Conductivity, timing,
pressure, speed counter, impulse and concentration instruments.

2. To manufacture, assemble and fabricate, scientific, electrical, hydraulic and
pneumatic, electrical press parts electronic, thermal, sonic, ultrasonic, optical,
surgical and surveying equipments, instruments and precision components of all
kinds and descriptions such as radar equipments, computers, electronic accounting
and business machines, electronic communication equipments, electronic control
instrument and basic components.

3. To carry on the business(s) as buyers, sellers, importers, exporters, distributors
agents, brokers, factors stockiest, dealers and commission agents of:

a. All kinds of machineries, tools, jigs, mould, fixtures, gauges, appliances and
equipments, mechanical implements devices, lathes, shaping machines, drilling
machines, shearing machines, milling machines, cutting machines, press parts
and breaks, binding machines, all kinds of mechanical hydraulic presses, their
components and heavy machines.

b. All kinds of mechanical and pneumatic devices, hydraulic press mechanism
appliances and apparatuses.

4. To manufacture, process, design, fabricate, assemble, buy, sell, export and deal in
custom built sophisticated panels cabinets and micro precisions sheet metal, press
tool components and items of these metals meant for telecommunication electronic
and engineering industries.

5. To manufacture and develop micro technologies in the fields of electronic, solar,
automation, acoustics, space, pollution control and to offer micro — technical and
maintenance services in general and to those intending to manufacture sheets
metal machinery or equipments for the industrial requirements.

6. To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers,
importers, exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens
and all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees,
chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products, wheat
flour, maize flour and table delicious and foods stuffs & fruits & vegetable pulp and
their products & preparation of every such kind, nature & description.”

(i) The Demerged Company-2 is a private limited company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on September 16, 2003,

under the name and style of ‘Aesthetic Garments Private Limited’. Its
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name, w.e.f. March 05, 2012, was changed from ‘Aesthetic Garments

Private Limited’ to its present name i.e. ‘Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private
Limited'. Its registered office was shifted from NCT of Delhi to the State of
Haryana w.e.f. February 08, 2024, vide order dated January 12, 2024,
issued by Regional Director (Northern Region). Presently, its registered
office is situated at Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India. As on March 31 2024, its
Authorized Share Capital is Rs.1,10,00,000/- divided into 11,00,000 equity
shares of Rs. 10/- each and Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital
is Rs.62,94,630/- divided into 6,29,463 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Subsequent to March 31, 2024, there has been no change in its share
capital till the date of filing of this Application. It is engaged in the business
of manufacturers, producers, dealers, buyers sellers, importers, exporters
and agents milk, soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese, ice
cream, curd and other preparations of milk cereals and lentils including
flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads and confections
including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates and
fruit and vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind,
nature and description related thereon. The main objects, as set out in

Clause IlI(A) of its Memorandum of Association are as under:

“1. To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, dealers, buyers sellers,
importers, exporters and agents of milk, soya milk, its products and preparations,
cheese, ice cream, curd and other preparations of milk cereals and lentils including
flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads and confections including
biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates and fruit and vegetable
and other products and preparation of every kind, nature and description related
thereon.

2. To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, buyers, sellers, importers,
exporters and processors of and dealers in milk, cream, butter, ghee, cheese,
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condensed milk, malted milk, milk powder, skimmed milk powder, whole milk
powder, ice milk, ice-cream, milk foods, baby foods, infant foods, milk preparations
of all kinds, breakfast foods, fast foods, instant foods, cereal products, whether
flakes, maize flakes and table delicacies and food stuffs and provisions of all kinds.

3. To carry on the business of preservation, dehydration, freezing, freezedrying,
canning, bottling and packing of all or any of the produce and products mentioned
in sub clause (1) and (2) above and stuffs provisions and consumable materials of
all kinds.

4. To carry on the business of commission agents, brokers, factors, consultants,
representatives and middlemen of all type of food products and food grains.”

(i) The Resulting Company is a private limited company incorporated under
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi on March 16, 1982,
under the name and style of ‘Champion Advertising and Marketing Private
Limited’. Its name w.e.f. February 20, 1992, was changed from ‘Champion
Advertising and Marketing Private Limited’ to its present name i.e.
‘Haldiram Marketing Private Limited’. Its registered office was shifted from
the NCT of Delhi to the State of Haryana w.e.f. February 8, 2024, vide
order dated January 12, 2024, issued by Regional Director (Northern
Region). Presently its registered office is situated at Haldiram-Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-
122001, India. As on March 31, 2024, its Authorized Share Capital is
Rs.11,00,00,000/- divided into 11,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each
and Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.5,95,22,900 divided
into 5,95,229 equity shares of Rs. 100/- each. Subsequent to March 31,
2024, there has been no change in its share capital till the date of filing of
this Application. The Resulting Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers, importers, exporters,
buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types
of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees,

chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products,
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wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and food stuffs & fruit &
vegetable pulp and their products & preparation of every such kind, nature
& description. The main objects, as set out in Clause llI(A) of its

Memorandum of Association are, inter- alia, as under:

“1. To carry on the business of advertising contractors and agents; both outdoor and
through any media, particularly neon signboards, newspapers, magazines, radio,
television, buses, railway, carriages, hoarding etc. and to undertake all sorts of
promotional activities including managing and sponsoring of modeling and fashion
shows, manufacturing and trading of gift items and novelties.

2. To carry on the business of printers, publishers, decorators in connection with the
general advertising business and to do any other act out, any contract for the
promotion, continuance and advancement of the said business.

3. To market, develop, buy, sell, export, import, distribute and otherwise deals in bulbs,
tubelights, paints, plastic fitting and other material used in the installation and
manufacture of neon signboards, and market all kinds of apparatus, appliances,
plants and material employed by advertising contractors in their business and to
sell, dispose of and use the same for the purposes of the business of the Company.

4. To carry on the business of exports & import and to act as manufacturers,
distributors, dealers, wholesalers, retailers, stockists or sole selling agents of all
kinds of mechanical and engineering goods in all branches thereof, automobile
goods parts, accessories, fashion accessories, readymade garments, textile
goods, electric goods (including neon signs), refrigeration goods, part and
accessories, leatherwear, leather goods, all kinds of chemicals, Pharmaceuticals,
food products, earthmoving and construction materials, machinery & equipment,
plastic ware, office equipment including stationery and book- racks.

5. To undertake and promote and co-ordinate all kinds of opinion polls, market surveys
and all kinds of statistical research studies.

6. To carry on the business as manufacturers, producers, processors, dealers,
importers, exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets, namkeens
and all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads, pastries, nuts, toffees,
chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products, wheat
flour, maize flour and table delicious and food stuffs & fruit & vegetable pulp and
their products & preparation of every such kind, nature & description.”

Clause 9 of the Memorandum of Association of Resulting Company, allows
the company to amalgamate with other companies. Clause 9 is being

reproduced hereunder:

9. subject to Sections 230 to 240 of the Companies Act, 2013 to amalgamate with any
other company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the
objects of the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.
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(iv) The Transferor Company-1 is a private limited company incorporated

under the Companies Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi on August 29, 1996, under

the name and style of ‘HRB Impex Private Limited’. Its name w.e.f. March
10, 1999, was changed from ‘HRB Impex Private Limited’ to its present
name i.e. ‘Haldi Ram Products Private Limited’. Its registered office was
shifted from the State of Delhi to the State of Haryana w.e.f. February 20,
2024, vide order dated January 12, 2024, issued by Regional Director
(Northern Region) Presently, its registered office is situated at Haldiram-
Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road,
Haryana-122001, India. As on March 31, 2024, its Authorized Share
Capital is Rs.2,50,00,000/- divided into 25,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each and Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.92,20,000/-
divided into 9,22,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. Subsequent to March
31, 2024, there has been no change in its share capital till the date of filing
of this Application. It is engaged in the business of exports and Imports of
any kind, of goods which are permitted by law, of any time and to carry on
the business of importers, exporters, processor, packers, commission
agents, stockists, buyers and sellers in India or abroad of all types of food
products, namkeens, papads, sweets, pickles, syrups, raw and blended
spices, all types of milk products and preparations, soya products, toffees,
chocolates etc. The main objects of the Transferor Company-1 as set out
in Clause Il (A) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter-alia, as

under:

1. To act as an export house and carry on business of exports and Imports of any kind,
of goods which are permitted by law, of any time.

2. To carry on business of Importers, exporters, processor, packers, commission
agents, stockists, buyers and sellers In India or abroad of :
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a. All types of food products, namkeens. papads, sweets, pickles, syrups, raw and
blended spices, all types of milk products and preparations, soya products,
toffees and chocolates.

b. All types of food grains, rice, sugar, pulses, cereals and their allied products and
by products; packed foods; tea, coffee; dry fruits; fruit pulp, juices oil and'
Vanaspati and other food products and articles. All types of seeds, floriculture,
and horticulture products.

c. Readymade garments and wearing apparels of every kind nature and description
and ail types of clothes of cotton, silk, woollen, knitwear, handloom, hosiery,
garments and all types of textile goods, upholstery material, viscose; carpets,
rugs and matting of all types.

d. All type of utensils cutlery, art wares, antiques, handicraft, precious and semi
precious stones, real and Imitation jewellery, ornaments and goods made of any
metal, brass, silver, gold, bronze, nickel; steel, aluminium, Ivory and/or wood.

e. Leather and leather products, foot wears, surgical and medical equipments,
electric and electronic goods and products, marble, granite and other stones In
any form, cements, cosmetics, to toiletries, rubber and plastics of all types and
forms, coir and Jute products, musical Instruments," sports goods etc. All types
of packing items.

f. All types of Engineering goods, Machine tools, hand tools, metals, alloys, nuts
and bolts, bicycles and accessories, automobile parts, steel and iron products,
fasteners, metal scrap all type of machineries and parts thereof, hardware ltems,

3. To carry on business of consultants, brokers, factors, stockist, agents and middle
man connected with export and Import. To provide consultancy. In export
documentation and handling liaison jobs, arranging loans, quality upgradation and
certification of quality.”

Clause 22 of the Memorandum of Association of Transferor Company-1,
allows the company to amalgamate with other companies. Clause 22 is

being reproduced hereunder:

22. Subject to the provisions of Sections 391 to 394 and 394A of the Companies Act,
1956, to amalgamate or to enter into partnership or into any arrangement for sharing
profits, union of interest, co-operation, Joint venture or reciprocal rights with any
person or persons or company or companies carrying on or engaged in the main
business of the Company

(v) The Transferor Company-2 is a private limited Company incorporated
under the provisions of the Act, 2013, under the name and style of ‘HR
Bakers Private Limited’, on May 15, 2017, bearing No.
U15127HR2017PTC118713. Its registered office was shifted from NCT of

Delhi to the State of Haryana w.e.f. February 08, 2024, vide order dated
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December 23, 2023, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region).

Presently, its registered office is situated at Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana,
India,122001. As on March 31, 2024, its Authorized Share Capital is
Rs.1,00,00,000/- divided into 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.1,00,00,000/- divided
into 10,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. Subsequent to March 31,
2024, there has been no change in its share capital till the date of filing of
this Application. It is engaged in the business of manufacturers, bakers,
producers, dealers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters and agents of
milk, soya milk, its products and preparations, cheese, ice-cream, curd and
other preparations of milk, cereals and lentils including flour and dal,
sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads, and confections including
biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, fruit and
vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind, nature and
description related thereon. The main objects of the Transferor Company-

2 as set out in Clause 11l (A) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter

“1. To carry on the business of manufacturers, bakers, producers, dealers, buyers,
sellers, importers, exporters and agents of milk, soya milk, its products and
preparations, cheese, ice-cream, curd and other preparations of milk, cereals and
lentils including flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets, namkeens, papads, and
confections including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates
and fruit and vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind, nature
and description related thereon...

2. To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, buyers, sellers, importers,
exporters and processors of and dealers in milk, cream, butter, ghee, cheese,
condensed milk, malted milk, milk powder, skimmed milk powder, whole milk
powder, ice milk, ice-cream, milk foods, baby foods, infant foods, milk preparations
of all kinds, breakfast foods, fast foods, instant foods, cereal products, whether
flakes, maize flakes, and table delicacies and. food stuffs and provisions of all kinds.

3. To carry on the business of preservation, dehydration. freezing freeze-drying.
canning, bottling and packing of all or any of the produce and products mentioned
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in sub clause (1) and (2) above and stuffs provisions and consumable materials of
all kinds.

4. To carry on the business of commission agents, brokers, factors, consultants,
representatives and middlemen of all type of food products and food grains.

(vi) The Transferor Company-3 is a private limited company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, in NCT of Delhi, on April
3, 2018, in the name and style of ‘Haldiram Retail Private Limited’. Its
registered office was shifted from NCT of Delhi to the State of Haryana,
w.e.f. February 08, 2024 vide order dated December 23, 2023, issued by
Regional Director (Northern Region). Presently, its registered office is
situated at Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon,
Basai Road, Haryana, India, 122001. As on March 31, 2024, its Authorized
Share Capital is Rs.10,00,000/- divided into 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs.
10/- each and Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Share Capital is
Rs.10,00,000/- divided into 1,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Subsequent to March 31, 2024, there has been no change in the share
capital of Transferor Company-3 till the date of filing of this Application. It
is engaged to carry on the business of restaurants, café, food plazas, fast
food joints, refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners in India and
abroad, further to carry on the business of caterers & to open, establish,
manage, Franchise Fast Food center, restaurants of all kinds and to
commence and carry on the business of caterer both indoor or outdoor
including catering in farm houses, banquets, clubs, schools, hostels and
clubs and to own build, operate, manage, let out, lease, sub-lease
canteens, bakeries, confectioners, milk bars, sweet shops, ice cream
shops, ice cream parlours, poultry farms, piggery farms, dairy farms,

cafeterias, refreshment rooms, taverns, flight kitchens, caravan safaris,
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camping sites, inns and all other catering related facilities and activities

including entering into franchise and have collaboration with any local or
foreign party. The main objects of the Transferor Company-3 as set out in

Clause 11l (A) of the Memorandum of Association are, inter -alia, as under:

“1. To carry on the business of restaurants, cafe, food plazas, fast food joints,
refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners in India and abroad.

2. To carry on the business of caterers & to open, establish, manage, Franchise Fast
Food centre, restaurants of all kinds.

3. Tocommence and carry on the business of caterers both indoor or outdoor including
catering in farm houses, banquets, clubs, schools, hostels and clubs and to own
build, operate, manage, let out, lease, sub-lease canteens, bakeries, confectioners,
milk bars, sweet shops, ice cream shops, ice cream parlours, poultry farms, piggery
farms, dairy farms, cafeterias, refreshment rooms, taverns, flight kitchens, caravan
safaris, camping sites, inns and all other catering related facilities and activities
including entering into franchise and have collaboration with any local or foreign

party.”
Clause 9 of the Memorandum of Association of Transferor Company-3,

allows the company to amalgamate with other companies. Clause 9 is

being reproduced hereunder:

9. subject to Sections 230 to 240 of the Companies Act, 2013 to amalgamate with any
other company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the
objects of the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.

(vii) The Transferor Company-4 is private limited company duly incorporated
under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956 on August 18, 2004. Its
registered office is presently situated at Haldiram-Village Kherki Daula,
Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana, India-122001. As
on March 31, 2024, the Authorized Share Capital is Rs.2,15,00,000/-
divided into 21,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and Issued,
Subscribed & Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs.2,00,50,050/- divided into
20,50,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. Subsequent to March 31, 2024,
there has been no change in its share capital till the date of filing of this

Application. It is engaged in the business of producing, manufacturing,
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processing, preparing, preserving, canning, refining of milk and milk bottles

and buying & selling & deal whether as wholesalers or retailers or as

exporters or importers or as principals or agents in all types of foods, fruits,
vegetables, oils , spices, meat products, dairy products, poultry products,
canned and processed foods, health foods, baby foods, diabetic foods,
pulses, cereals, beverages, chocolates, breads, confectionery products,
chewing gums, toffees, dry fruits, namkeens, fast foods, grains, bakery
products, aerated mineral water and other food stuffs of every description
for human consumption. and to carry on the business of operating and
managing restaurants, cafes, health cares, hotels, banquets halls, beer &
bar house, caterers, amusement park, recreation centres, sports facility,
gymnasiums and spas etc. The main objects, as set out in Clause IlI(A) of

its Memorandum of Association are as under:

“1. To produce, manufacture, process, prepare, preserve, can, refine, milk, bottle, buy,
sell and deal whether as wholesalers or retailers or as exporters or importers or as
principals or agents in all types of foods, fruits, vegetables, oils , spices, meat
products, dairy products, poultry products, canned and processed foods, health
foods, baby foods, diabetic foods, pulses, cereals, beverages, chocolates, breads,
confectionery products, chewing gums, toffees, dry fruits, nankeens, fast foods,
grains, bakery products, aerated mineral water and other food stuffs of every
description for human consumption.

2. To carry on the business of operating and managing restaurants, cafes, health
cares, hotels, banquets halls, beer & bar house, caterers, amusement park,
recreation centres, sports facility, gymnasiums and spas etc.”

i.Clause 9 of the Memorandum of Association of Transferor Company-4,
allows the company to amalgamate with other companies. Clause 9 is

being reproduced hereunder:

9. subject to Sections 230 to 240 of the Companies Act, 2013 to amalgamate with any
other company of which all or any of their objects companies having similar to the
objects of the Company in any manner whether with or without the liquidation.
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(viii) The certified copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of

Applicant Company-1 to 7 are annexed as Annexure-C2(Colly.),

Annexure=D1(Colly.), Annexure-E1(Colly.), Annexure-F1(Colly),

Annexure-G1(Colly.), Annexure-H1(Colly.) and Annexure-12(Colly.)

respectively of the Original Application.

(ix) The certified true copy of the audited financial statements for the financial
year ended March 31, 2023, and provisional financial statements for the
period April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 of Applicant Company-1 to 7 are

annexed as Annexure-C3(Colly.), Annexure-D2(Colly, Annexure-E2

(Colly.), Annexure-F2(Colly.), Annexure-G2(Colly.), Annexure-H2(Colly.),

Annexure-12(Colly.) of the Original Application.

(X) The salient features of the Scheme are set out, summarily, hereunder:

a) The board of directors of the Applicant Companies are of the view that the proposed
Scheme shall have the following benefits:

The Applicant Companies, belonging to same group and having common
promoters, are engaged in quick-service restaurant (“QSR’) business which
includes setting up and maintenance of restaurants, cafe, food plazas, fast food
joints, refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners. Further, the Companies
are involved in opening, establishing, managing restaurants of all kinds and to carry
on the business of running banquets.

Now, in order to optimize and leverage the resources of all the Companies, the
management contemplates to upscale QSR business from one entity. Hence, the
management of the Companies have decided to consolidate the said QSR
business of all Companies into the Resulting Company / Transferee Company.

The said arrangement shall also result in following benefits:

i. The Consolidation of QSR Business of Demerged Companies and Amalgamating
Companies with and into the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company will
optimize synergies, reducing overheads, better services to existing clientele,
operational efficiencies including efficiency in fund raising, productivity gains,
harmonization of sales and services channels, general and administrative cost
reduction and productivity gains by pooling of financial, managerial and
technical resources, personnel capabilities, skills, expertise, and logistical
advantages thereby significantly contributing to economies of scale and future
growth, strengthening financial and competitive position of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company.
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ii. The Scheme will lead to simplification of group structure by eliminating multiple
companies in similar business, thus enabling focus on core competencies.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key
management personnel, promoters, non-promoter members, creditors and
employees of the Companies and the same would be in the best interest of all
stakeholders.

b) The Appointed Date of the Scheme is April 01, 2023;

c) "Effective Date" shall be last of the dates on which all the conditions and matters
referred to in Clause 38 of Part E have been fulfilled or waived in accordance with
this Scheme and applicable laws.

Provided that references in this Scheme to the date of "upon coming into effect of
the Scheme" or "upon the scheme becoming effective" or "effectiveness of the
Scheme" mean the Effective Date;

d) Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date and
subject to provisions of the Scheme, all property(ies), being movable or immovable,
tangible or intangible, intellectual property rights belonging to the Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies and rights,
tittes and interest therein, if any, shall pursuant to provisions of section 232(4) of
the Act be transferred to and stand vested in the Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company;

e) All statutory licenses including but not limited to permits, quotas, approvals,
permissions, incentives, business certifications and all other registration certificates
issued to Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor
Companies under applicable laws and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or
conferred upon or held or availed of by and all rights and benefits accrued to or
which may accrue to Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and
Transferor Companies shall, pursuant to provisions of section 232(4) of the Act be
transferred to and stand vested in and be available to Resulting Company/
Transferee Company.

f) All secured and unsecured liabilities, loans, borrowing, whether (long-term or short-
term), including liabilities of every kind, nature and description, whether present or
future, of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor
Companies shall also be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to be
transferred to and stand vested in, without any further act, instrument or deed, to
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company pursuant to provisions of section 230 to
232 of the Act;

g) All suits, actions and other proceedings including legal and taxation proceedings
(before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal or any court) by or against
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies
pending and/or arising on or before Effective Date shall be continued and/or
enforced by or against Resulting Company/ Transferee Company;

h) All inter-company transactions, inter-se between the Demerged Undertaking of the
Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies or inter se between Demerged
Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies and
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company including but not limited to any loans,
advances due or outstanding, agreements or memorandum of understanding
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executed between the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and
Transferor Companies and Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall stand
cancelled as on Effective Date and shall be of no effect;

i) All staff, workmen and employees who are in employment of Demerged Undertaking
of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies on Effective Date shall
become staff, workmen and employees of Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company with effect from Appointed Date on the basis that:

(i) their employment shall be deemed to have been continuous and not been
interrupted by reasons of the said transfer; and

(i) terms and conditions of their employment after such transfer shall not in any
way be less favourable to them than those applicable to them immediately
preceding the said transfer;

j) The Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Companies and Transferor
Companies shall, with effect from Appointed Date and up to and including Effective
Date, carry on its business and other incidental matters for and on account of and
in trust for Resulting Company/ Transferee Company;

k) The demerger and amalgamation of Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged
Companies and Transferor Companies with and into Resulting Company/
Transferee Company shall be accounted as per "Pooling of Interest Method"
provided under the Indian Accounting Standard 103 as prescribed under Section
133 of the Act, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as may be amended from time to time.

[) Upon the Scheme coming into effect and with effect from Appointed Date, the
authorized share capital of Transferor Companies as on Effective Date shall stand
transferred to and be added with the authorized share capital of Transferee
Company, without any liability for payment of any additional fees (including fee
payable to Registrar of Companies, except as may be required as per the
applicable provisions of the Act) or stamp duty. The consent of shareholders of
Transferor Companies to the Scheme shall be sufficient for the purpose of effecting
amendment in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of
Transferee Company and that no further resolution(s) under sections 13, 14 and
61 of the Act and any other applicable provisions of the Act would be required to
be separately passed nor any additional registration fee etc. be payable by
Transferee Company. However, Transferee Company shall file the amended copy
of its Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association with the Registrar of
Companies within a period of 30 (Thirty) days from the Effective Date and the
Registrar of Companies shall take the same on record in terms of clause 19 of the
Scheme;

m) Upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the Transferor Companies shall be
dissolved without following the process of winding up; and

n) The Scheme is and shall be conditional upon:

a. The Scheme being approved by the respective majorities of the Members and/
or creditors of the Companies as required, if any and as may be directed by the
Tribunal,
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b. Obtaining the sanction of the Tribunal or such other competent authority by the
Companies under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Act.

c. The certified or authenticated copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this
Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the
Companies.

0) In order to maintain the optimum capital structure in the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company which shall be required to carry on the business, the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company has decided to allot paid-up share
capital to the shareholders of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies
aggregating up to Rs.15,00,00,000/-, which shall be divided into 15,00,000 equity
shares with a face value of Rs. 100/- (Rupees One Hundred only) per share in
following proportion:

“81.45% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/
Transferee Company i.e, 12,21,803 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to
the shareholders of the Demerged Company-1.

6.16% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/
Transferee Company, i.e., 92,381 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to
the shareholders of Demerged Company-2

11.80% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/
Transferee Company ,i.e, 1,76,969 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to
the shareholders of Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1

2 equity shares out of total paid up share capital to be issued by Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company to the shareholders of Transferor Company-2/
Amalgamating Company-2

0.17% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/
Transferee Company, i.e., 2,520 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the
shareholders of Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3

0.42% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resultant Company/
Transferee Company ,i.e, 6,325 number of equity shares of Rs 100 each to the
shareholders of Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4~

(xi) A copy of valuation report obtained from Mr. Harish Chander Dhamija,
Registered Valuer No. [IBBI/RV/03/2018/10088 specifying the
consideration for the proposed Scheme is annexed as Annexure B of the

Application.

(xii) The Board of Directors of the Applicant Companies at their respective
board meetings held on May 29, 2024 have approved the Scheme. The
certified true copy of the board resolution of the Applicant Companies 1 to

7 are annexed as Annexure-C4, Annexure-D3, Annexure-E3, Annexure-
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E3, Annexure-G3, Annexure-H3 and Annexure-I3 respectively of the

Application.

(xiii) The certificates have been provided by P. R. Kumar & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N, a statutory auditor of the
Companies certifying that the accounting treatment given in Clause 18 of
the Scheme is in compliance with the accounting standards prescribed by

the Central Government under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv) The affidavit by the respective authorised signatories of the Applicant
Companies in respect of section 230(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
deposed by the authorized signatory of the Applicant Companies is

attached as Annexure-J(Colly) of the Application. It is stated in the affidavit

that:

a. That all the material facts-relation to the Applicant Company, such as the latest
financial position of the Applicant Company, latest auditor report on the
accounts have been attached,;

b. That there is no investigation or proceedings pending against the Applicant
Company or any of its director;

c. The there is no reduction contemplated in the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement;

d. That there is no scheme of corporate debt restructuring involved in the
Composite Scheme of Arrangement; and

e. The valuation report issued by the registered valuer as required in the scheme
is attached to the company application.

(xv) No investigation or proceedings are pending under the provisions of the
Act against any of the Applicant Companies, except the litigations in the
ordinary course of business. In this regard, respective affidavits of the
authorized signatories of the Applicant Companies are annexed as

Annexure K (Colly) of the Application.

(xvi) No proceedings are pending for inspection/investigation under the

Companies Act, 1956/2013, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999
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and the Indian Penal Code, 1860 against any of the director(s) of the

Applicant Companies.

(xvii) The proposed merger does not require prior approval of the Competition
Commission of India (hereinafter referred to as the “CCI”) under the
provisions of Sections 5 and 6 of the Competition Act, 2002, as the
proposed merger does not cross the limits or thresholds prescribed by the
CCI, moreover the proposed merger is also excluded vide notification
dated March 07, 2024, bearing no S.0. 1131(E). In this regard, affidavits
by the authorized signatories of the Applicant Companies showing the non-
requirement of obtaining approval of CCI are attached as Annexure- L of

the Application.

(xviii) The Scheme does not provide for any corporate debt restructuring with any

of the secured and unsecured creditors of the Companies.

(xix) The Scheme is not intended to grant any material benefit, if any, to the
directors of the Companies except to the extent of their shareholding, if

any, in the Companies.

(xx) No prejudice will be caused to anyone if orders are made and/or directions
are given as prayed for. The sanctioning of Scheme will be for the benefit

of Companies and their respective shareholders and other stakeholders.

(xxi) The Demerged Company-1 as on March 31, 2024, has 10 Equity
Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of

the Act, therefore, it has prayed to dispense the meeting of its Equity
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Shareholders. The copy of the list of its Equity Shareholders as on March

31, 2024, certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm
Regn. No. 003186N and the copies of their consent affidavits are attached
as Annexure-B and Annexure | respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxit) The Demerged Company-2 as on March 31, 2024, has 8 Equity
Shareholders and all equity shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its equity
shareholders. The copy of the list of its equity shareholders as on March
31, 2024, certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm
Regn. No. 003186N along with the copy of their consent affidavits are
attached as Annexure-C and Annexure-J respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxiii) The Transferee Company, as on March 31, 2024, has 11 Equity
Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its equity
shareholders. The list of its Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2024,
certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No.
003186N along with the copy of their consent affidavits are attached as
Annexure-D and Annexure-K respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.
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(xxiv) The Transferor Company-1, as on March 31, 2024, has 6 Equity

Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its equity
shareholders. The list of its Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2024,
certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No.
003186N along with the copy of their consent affidavits are attached as

Annexure-E and Annexure-L respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xxv) The Transferor Company-2, as on March 31, 2024, has 2 Equity
Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Equity
Shareholders. The copy of the list of its equity shareholders as on March
31, 2024, certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm
Regn. No. 003186N along with the copies of their consent affidavits are

attached as Annexure F and Annexure-M respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxvi) The Transferor Company-3, as on March 31, 2024, has 4 Equity
Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Equity

Shareholders. The list of its Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2024,

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)



Pa? 5 of 40

certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No.

003186N along with the copies of their consent affidavits are attached as
Annexure-G and Annexure-N respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxvii) The Transferor Company-4, as on March 31, 2024, has 2 Equity
Shareholders and all Equity Shareholders have given their consents to the
Scheme and have also waived the requirement of convening their meeting
for considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of
the Act, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Equity
Shareholders. The list of its Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2024,
certified by PR. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No.
003186N along with the copies of their consent affidavits are attached as
Annexure-H and Annexure-O respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxviii) The Demerged Company-1 has no secured creditors as on March 31,
2024, accordingly, the meeting of secured creditors of the Demerged
Company-1 is not required to be convened. The copy of certificate issued
by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N
certifying that as on March 31, 2024, the Demerged Company-1 has no

secured creditors is annexed as Annexure- B and Annexure | respectively

of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xxix) The Demerged Company-2 has 2 Secured Creditors, having an
outstanding amount of Rs. 57,69,69,816/- as on March 31, 2024 and both
the Secured Creditors holding 100% of total outstanding debt have given

their consent to the Scheme, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting
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of its Secured Creditors. The list of its Secured Creditors as on March 31,

2024, certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn.
No. 003186N along with the copy of their consent affidavits are attached
as Annexure-C and Annexure-J respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxx) The Transferee Company has 1 Secured Creditor, having an outstanding
amount of Rs.49,41,45,729/- as on March 31, 2024 and the said sole
Secured Creditor holding 100% of total outstanding debt has given its
consent to the Scheme, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of
its Secured Creditors. The list of its Secured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn.
No. 003186N along with the copy of their consent affidavits are attached
as Annexure-D and Annexure-K respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxxi) The Transferor Company-1 has 1 secured creditor, having an outstanding
amount of Rs.19,68,33,000/- as on March 31, 2024 and the said sole
Secured Creditor holding 100% of total outstanding debt has given its
consent to the Scheme, therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of
its Secured Creditors. The list of its Secured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, duly certified by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm
Regn. No. 003186N along with a copy of their consent affidavits are
attached as Annexure-E and Annexure-L respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxxii) The Transferor Company-2 has no Secured Creditors as on March 31,

2024, accordingly, the meeting of its Secured Creditors is not required to
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be convened. The certificate issued by P. R. Kumar & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N certifying that as on March 31,
2024, it has no secured creditors is annexed as Annexure-F and Annexure-

M respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xxxiii) The Transferor Company-3 has no Secured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, accordingly, the meeting of its Secured Creditors is not required to
be convened. The certificate issued by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N certifying that as on March 31,
2024, it has no Secured Creditors is annexed as Annexure-G and

Annexure-N respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xxxiv)The Transferor Company-4 has no Secured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, accordingly, the meeting of its Secured Creditors is not required to
be convened. The certificate issued by P. R. Kumar & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N certifying that as on March 31,
2024, it has no Secured Creditors is annexed as Annexure-H and

Annexure-O respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xxxv) The Demerged Company-1 has 48 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.7,79,08,137/- and none of its
unsecured creditors has given their consent. Therefore, it is prayed to
convene the meeting of its Unsecured Creditors as on March 31, 2024, for
considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024, certified by
P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N has
been attached as Annexure-B and Annexure-| respectively of the affidavit

dated 30.08.2024.
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(xxxvi)The Demerged Company-2 has 289 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,

2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.39,13,90,831/- and none of its
unsecured creditors has given their consent. Therefore, it is prayed to
convene the meeting of its Unsecured creditors as on March 31, 2024, for
considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024, duly certified
by P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N,
is attached as Annexure-C and Annexure-J respectively of the affidavit

dated 30.08.2024.

(xxxvii) The Transferee Company has 308 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.48,20,18,067/- and none of its
Unsecured Creditors has given their consent. Therefore, it is prayed to
convene the meeting of its Unsecured creditors as on March 31, 2024, for
considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024, certified by
P.R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N, is
attached as Annexure- D and Annexure K respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxxviii) The Transferor Company-1 has 331 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.57,18,71,736/- and none of its
Unsecured Creditors has given their consent. Therefore, it is prayed to
convene the meeting of its Unsecured creditors as on March 31, 2024, for
considering and approving the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 of the
Act. The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024, certified by

P. R. Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N, is
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attached as Annexure-E and Annexure-L respectively of the affidavit dated

30.08.2024.

(xxxix) The Transferor Company-2 has 11 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.8,98,58,520/-, out of which 4
Unsecured Creditors representing 99.99% of the total outstanding amount
of debt of its unsecured creditors have given their consent to the Scheme,
therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Unsecured Creditors.
The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024 certified by P.R.
Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N along with
the copies of their consent affidavits are attached as Annexure-F and

Annexure-M respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xI)  The Transferor Company-3 has 2 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.40,23,76,283/-, out of which 1
Unsecured Creditor representing 99.97% of the total outstanding amount
of debt of its Unsecured Creditors has given their consent to the Scheme,
therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Unsecured Creditors.
The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024 certified by P.R.
Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N along with
the copies of their consent affidavits are attached as Annexure-G and

Annexure-N respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xli) The Transferor Company-4 has 76 Unsecured Creditors as on March 31,
2024, having an outstanding amount of Rs.14,47,50,301/-, out of which 2
Unsecured Creditors representing 96.14% of the total outstanding amount
of debt of its unsecured creditors have given their consent to the Scheme,

therefore, it is prayed to dispense the meeting of its Unsecured Creditors.

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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The list of its Unsecured Creditors, as on March 31, 2024 certified by P.R.

Kumar & Co., Chartered Accountants, Firm Regn. No. 003186N along with

the copies of their consent affidavits are attached as Annexure-H and

Annexure-0O respectively of the affidavit dated 30.08.2024.

(xlit) The Applicant Companies have furnished the details of the Equity

Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors as follows:
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8. In compliance with this Tribunal vide order dated 26.07.2024, Applicant

Companies, vide diary no. 01863/3 dated 30.08.2024, filed the following documents:

(&) Unaudited provisional financial statements as on March 31, 2024 of the

Applicant Companies;

(b) Updated list of equity shareholders, secured and unsecured creditors as on

March 31, 2024 of the Applicant Companies; and

(c) Reconciliation statements with the liabilities side of the provisional financial
statements as on March 31, 2024 of the respective Applicant Companies with

the respective list of equity shareholders, secured and unsecured creditors

(d) Consent affidavits from the concerned equity shareholders, secured and

unsecured creditors.

9. In the hearing held on 04.10.2024, this Tribunal directed the Applicant
Companies to file the consolidated table regarding the group structure including the
name of shareholders, percentage of shareholding and meetings which are stated to
be dispensed with/ convened along with the audited balance sheet as on 31.03.2024

and Ld. counsel for the petitioner agreed to issue notices to FSSAI and CCI.

10. The Applicant Companies, vide diary no. 02869/3 dated 14.10.2024 filed the
Compliance Affidavit the Audited Financial Statements as on March 31, 2024 of the
Applicant Companies No.1 to 7; Copy of the details of Beneficial Owners and Trustees
of the respective trusts as on March 31, 2024; Copy of the Notifications in regard to
Competition (Criteria for Exemption of Combinations) Rules, 2024 and Consolidated
table depicting group structure shareholding pattern of the Applicant Companies as

on March 31, 2024 as below:

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS

11. Since this Application is for seeking order for dispensation/ convening of the
meetings of Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the
Applicant Companies, the analysis has been restricted to that and other issues would
be analysed at the time of the Second Motion Company Petition of the Applicant

Companies.

12. The registered offices of following Applicant Companies have recently been
changed from the State of Delhi to State of Haryana in the recent past as shown in

the Table below:

Applicant Company Date

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited: Demerged Company-2/ Applicant Company-2 |08.02.2024

Haldiram Marketing Private Limited: Resulting Company/ Transferee Company/|08.02.2024
Applicant Company-3

Haldi Ram Products Private Limited: Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-|20.02.2024
1/ Applicant Company-4

HR Bakers Private Limited: Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-2/|08.02.2024
Applicant Company-5

Haldiram Retail Private Limited: Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3/|08.02.2024
Applicant Company-6

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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Therefore, we feel it appropriate for issue of notices to Statutory Authorities
having jurisdiction, where the registered offices of the above Applicant Companies
were situated before change, and publication of notice in the newspapers having wide
circulation in the State, where the registered offices of the above Applicant

Companies were situated before change.

13. It is noted that the Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 do not
have object clause providing for its demerger in its Memorandum of Association.
Further, the Transferor Company-2 does not have the object clause providing for
amalgamation with other company. The Applicant Companies are directed to clarify
the same or get their Memorandum of Association modified at the time of Second

Motion Company Petition.

14. The Applicant Companies are directed to file pre-merger and post-merger net
worth certificate of the Demerged Company-1, Demerged Company-2 and Resulting

Company duly certified by tJustice (Retd.)he Statutory Auditor of the Company.

15. The Applicant Companies are directed to file furnish the Master Data as well as
the list of pending litigation, enquiry, investigation etc. at the time of Second Motion

Company Petition.

16. The Appointed date, as mentioned in the Application is 01.04.2023; however the
Scheme shows the same as 01.04.2024. The Applicant Companies are directed to

clarify the same in the Second Motion Company Petition.

DIRECTIONS

17. Accordingly, the directions of this Bench in the present case are as under:

l. The meetings of the Equity shareholders of all the Applicant Companies

are dispensed with keeping in view the shareholding and ownership

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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pattern and the fact that the consents of all the Equity Shareholders as on

31.03.2024 as per the lists of Equity Shareholders certified by the
Chartered Accountants vide its certificates dated 29.08.2024, have been

received by way of Affidavits.

.  The meetings of the Secured Creditors of Demerged Company-1, and
Transferor Companies-2, 3 & 4 are dispensed with keeping in view the fact
that there are Nil Secured Creditors as on 31.03.2024 as per the list of
Secured Creditors certified by the Chartered Accountants vide its

certificates dated 29.08.2024

lll.  The meetings of Secured Creditors of Demerged Company-2, Resulting
Company and Transferor Companies-1 are dispensed with keeping in view
the fact that the consents of all of their Secured Creditors as on 31.03.2024
as per the list of Secured Creditors certified by the Chartered Accountants
vide its certificates dated 29.08.2024, have been received by way of

Affidavits.

IV. The meetings of Unsecured Creditors of Transferor Companies- 2, 3 & 4
are dispensed with keeping in view the fact that the consents of more than
90% in value of their Unsecured Creditors as on 31.03.2024 as per the list
of unsecured Creditors certified by the Chartered Accountants vide its

certificates dated 29.08.2024, have been received by way of Affidavits.

V. The meetings of the Unsecured Creditors of Demerged Company-1,
Demerged Company-2, Resulting company and Transferor Company-1 be
convened as prayed for, on such date, time and venue either personally/
physically or through video conferencing with facility of remote e-voting, as

decided by the Chairperson with the consent of Alternate Chairperson and

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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Scrutiniser, subject to individual notices of the meetings being issued. The

guorum of the meetings shall be 51% both in number and value of the

Unsecured Creditors of the respective companies. The proxy(ies) will not

be counted for the calculation of the quorum for the above meetings.

VI. In case the required quorum as noted above for the meeting of the
Unsecured Creditors is not present at the commencement of the meeting,
the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 minutes and thereafter the persons

present and voting shall be deemed to constitute the quorum.

VII. Mr. L.N. Gupta, Former Member, NCLT, Mobile N0.8130585511 Email id:

Ingupta50@amail.com is appointed as the common Chairperson for the

meeting to be called under this order. An amount of RS1,50,000/- (Rupees

One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) be paid for his services as the Chairperson.

VIIl. Mr. O.P. Nagpal, Advocate, Address: House N0.200, 1%t Floor, Munirka
Enclave, New Delhi-110067 Mobile No0.9810853454, Email id:
onagpal@yahoo.com is appointed as the common Alternate Chairperson
for the meeting to be called under this order. An amount of Rs.1,00,000/-
(Rupees One Lakh Only) be paid for his services as the Alternate

Chairperson.

IX. Mr. K.V. Singhal, Company Secretary, Address: House N0.399, Sector 12-
A, Panchkula, Mobile N0.9914030030, Email id: kvsinghal@gmail.com is
appointed as the common Scrutinizer for the above meeting to be called
under this order. An amount of RS.75,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five

Thousand Only) be paid for his services as the Scrutinizer.

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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X.  The fee of the Chairperson, Alternate Chairperson, Scrutinizer and other

out-of-pocket expenses for them shall be borne by the Applicant

Companies Jointly.

Xl.  The individual notices of the above meetings shall be served, to all the
Unsecured Creditors (all the persons/ entities having liabilities except
Secured Creditors of the respective Applicant Companies on the basis of
Audited Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2024) of Demerged Company-1,
Demerged Company-2, Resulting company and Transferor Company-1
through registered post or speed post or through courier or e-mail, 30 days
in advance before the schedule date of meeting, indicating the day, date,
place and time as aforesaid, together with a copy of the Scheme, copy of
explanatory statement with Valuation Report and any other documents, as
may be prescribed under the Act, in the same manner as the notices shall
be served to various authorities as per Section 230(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. It is clarified that the
notice of meetings published in the newspapers will not be deemed to be

the notice to the Unsecured Creditors.

Xll. The Audited Financial Statements of Applicant Companies as on
31.03.2024 and the provisional accounting statement on a subsequent
date in terms of Section 232(2)(e) of the Act be also circulated for the

aforesaid meetings.

XIll. Along with the notices, the Applicant Companies shall also send,
statements explaining the effect of the scheme on the creditors, key

managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter members, etc. along
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with the effect of the scheme on any material interests of the Directors of

the Company or the debenture trustees if any, as provided under sub-

section (3) of Section 230 of the Act.

XIV. That the Applicant Companies shall publish an advertisement with a gap
of at least 30 clear days before the aforesaid meetings, indicating the day,
date, place and the time of the meetings as aforesaid, to be published in
“Financial Express” (English Language, Delhi and Haryana Edition) in
English language and “Dainik Jagran” (Hindi Language, Delhi and Haryana
Edition) in Hindi language. The fact about change of the registered offices
of the Applicant Companies 2 to 6 in February, 2024 be also mentioned in
the advertisement. It be stated in the advertisement that the Copies of the
Scheme, Explanatory Statements etc. are required to be published
pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act. The advertisement shall also
indicate that the explanatory statement required to be furnished pursuant
to Sections 230 & 232 can be obtained free of charge at the registered
office of the Applicant Companies. The Applicant Companies shall also

publish the notice on their website, if any.

XV. It shall be the responsibility of the Applicant Companies to ensure that the
notices are sent under the signature and supervision of the authorized
representative of the company on the basis of Board resolutions and that
they shall file their affidavits in the Tribunal at least ten days before the

date fixed for the meeting.

XVI. Voting shall be allowed on the “Scheme” through electronic means which

will remain open for a period as mandated under Clause 8.3 of Secretarial

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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Standards on General Meetings to the Applicant Company under the Act

and the Rules framed there under.

XVII. The Scrutinizer’'s report will contain his/ her findings on the compliance to

the directions above.

XVIII. The Chairperson shall be responsible to report the result of the meeting to
the Tribunal in Form No. CAA-4, as per Rule 14 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 within 7
(seven) days of the conclusion of the meeting. The Chairperson would be
fully assisted by the authorized representative/Company Secretary of the
Applicant Company and the Alternate Chairperson. The Scrutinizer will
assist the Chairperson and Alternate Chairperson in preparing and

finalizing the report.

XIX. The Applicants Companies shall individually and in compliance of sub-
section (5) of Section 230 of the Act and Rule 8 of Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 send
notices in Form No. CAA-3 along with copy of the Scheme, Explanatory
Statement and the disclosures mentioned in Rule 6 of the “Rules” to (i) the
Central Government through the Office of the Regional Director, Northern
Region, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi; (ii) the Registrar of
Companies, Delhi and Haryana; (iii) the Official Liquidator (attached to
Punjab and Haryana High Court); (iv) the Official Liquidator, New Delhi (v)
the Income Tax Department in the respective circle/ward where these
Companies are assessed or through the nodal office by mentioning the
PAN number of the Applicant Companies as well as Income Tax

Department, Delhi (vi) Competition commission of India, New Delhi (vii)

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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Food Safety and Standards Authority of India (FSSAI), New Delhi (viii)

Authorities to whom the Statutory dues are payable as per audited financial

statements as on 315t March 2024 of the Applicant Companies, and (ix)
such other Sectoral Regulator(s) governing the business of the Applicant
Companies, if any, stating that report on the same shall be sent to this
Tribunal within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt of such notice
and copy of such report shall be simultaneously sent to the applicant
companies, failing which it shall be presumed that they have no objection
to the proposed Scheme. The fact about change of the registered offices
of the Applicant Companies 2 to 6 in February, 2024 be also mentioned in

the notice.

XX. The Applicants Companies shall furnish a copy of the Scheme free of
charge within one day of any requisition for the Scheme made by any

Creditor entitled to attend the meeting as aforesaid.

XXI. The authorized representative of the Applicant Companies shall furnish an
affidavit of service of notice of meetings and publication of advertisement
and compliance of all directions contained herein at least a week before

the proposed meetings.

XXII. All the aforesaid directions are to be complied with strictly in accordance
with the applicable laws including forms and formats contained in the Rules
as well as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Applicant

Companies.

18.  With the aforesaid directions, First Motion Application stands allowed by giving

liberty to the Applicant Companies to file Second Motion Petition in accordance with

CA No. 192/2024 and CA (CAA) No. 29/Chd/Hry/2024 (1% Motion)
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Rule 15 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016. A copy of this order be supplied to the learned counsel for the Applicant
Companies, who in turn shall supply a copy of the same to the Chairperson, Alternate

Chairperson and the Scrutinizer immediately.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Umesh Kumar Shukla) (Harnam Singh Thakur)
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)

January 03, 2025
Reet
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91 Annexure-B
COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT e ,.r"_;
AMONGST ] 58
HALDIRAM MANUFACTURING COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
HALDIRAM MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED
AND

HALDI RAM PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED
AND
HR BAKERS PRIVATE LIMITED

AND

HALDIRAM RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
AND

DREAMCANNFOODSPRIVATELIMITED
AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

PREAMBLE

This composite scheme of arrangement (hereinafter referred to as '"Scheme" and more

particularly defined hereinafiel) is presented under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as "Act" and more
particularly defined hereinafte, read with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 including any amendments, modifications, alterations, etc., thereto

from time to time, ifany, for:

1. Demerger of the Demerged Undertakings (more particularly defined hereinaftel) of
Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited ("Demerged Company-1"") and
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited ("”Demerged Company-2") with and into
Haldiram Marketing Private Limited ("'Resulting Company/ Transferee Company') with

effect from the Appointed Date (more particular defined hereinafter); and

amalgamation of Haldi Ram Products Private Limited ("7Transferor Company-JI
Amalgamating Company-1'), HR Bakers Private Limited ("Transferor Company-2/
Amalgamating Company-2'), Haldiram Retail Private Limited ("’Transferor Company-
3/ Amalgamating Company-3') & Dreamcann Foods Private Limited ("'Transferor
Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4") with and into Resulting Company/

11.
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Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date (more particudar defined
hereinafier). Further, this Scheme also provides for the dissolution of the Amalgamating
Company-1, Amalgamating Company-2, Amalgamating Company-3 & Amalgamating
Company-4 without winding up.

(For the sake of brevity, the Demerged Company-1 and Demerged Company-2 are
hereinafter colleciively referred as *“Demerged Companies”. Further, the Tramsferor
Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1, Transferar Compamy-2 / Amalgamating
Company-2, Trangferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3  and Transferor
Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 are hereinafier referred o as “Transferor
Companies”! "Amalgamating Companies” and Demerged Companies, Transferor
Companies ard Trongferee Company are hereinafier collectively referred as the
“Companies ")

BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES

Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited ¢“Demerged Company-1"} is a
private limited company incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956
(“Aef, 1956"), in NCT of Delhi, on June 2%, 1904, under the name and style of *JAJ
Manufacturing Company Private Limited". The Demerged Company-1 w.e.f. September
4, 1996, had changed its name from *JAJ Manufacturing Company Private Limited’ to its
present name 1.2, ‘Haldiram Manufactuning Company Private Limited’.

The Regional Director (Northern Region) vide its arder dated May 29, 2024 has approved
the shifting of registered office of the Demerged Company-1 fiom B-1/F-12, Mohan Co-
operative Industrial Estate, Mathura Road, New Delhi, India-110044 to Haldiram - Village
Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India. The
board of directors of the Demerged Company 1 vide its board resolution has duly noted
the same. The Demerged Company 1 has filed the requisite e-forms INC 28 and INC-22
vide SRN AAB207665 and with the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi &
Haryana and thus, has given due effect to the shifting of registered office to Gurgson,
Harvana. However, masier data of the Demerged Company 1 as maintained by the
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana is yet to be updated.

The Demerged Company-1 is engaged in the business of manufacturers. producers,
pracessors, dealers, importers, exporters, buyers, sellers and agents of all types of sweets,
namkeens and all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products, papads, pasiries, nuts, toffees,
chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods, cereal products, wheat flour,
maize {lour and table delicious and foods swifs & fruits & vegetable pulp and their
products & preparation of every such kind, nature & description.

Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited (“Demerged Company-2") is a private limited
company incorporated under the provisions of Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi, on September
16%. 2003 under the name and style of ‘Aesthetic Garments Private Limited”. The
Demerged Company-2 had w.e.f. March 5, 2012 had changed its name from ‘Aesthetic
Garments Private Limited” to its present name e ‘Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private
Limited".
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The Demerged Company-2 vide order dated January 12, 2024, issued by Regional
Diirector (Northern Region) shified its registered office from NCT Delhi to the State of
Haryana we.l February 8 2024, Presently, the registered office of the Demerged
Comapny-2 is situated at Haldiram -Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001, India.

The Demerged Company-2 is engaged in the business of manufacturers, producers,
dealers, huyers sellers, importers, exporters and agents milk, soya milk, its products and
preparations, cheese, ice cream, curd and other preparations of milk cereals and lentils
including flour and dal. sweets. sova sweets, namkeens, papads and confections including
biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts, toffecs, chocolates and fruit and vepetable and other
products and preparation of every kind, nature and description related thereon. CIN of the
Demerged Company-2 is U15122HR2003PTC118711.

1.3 Haldi Ram Products Private Limited (“Transferer Company-I/ Amalgamating
Company-1") is a private limited company incorporated under the Act, 1956, in NCT of
Delhi on August 289, 1996, under the name and style of “HRB Impex Private Limited'.
The Transferor Company-1/Amalgamating Company-1, had w.e.f. March 10, 1999 had
changed its name from 'HRB Impex Private Limited® to its present name i.c. 'Haldi Ram
Products Private Limited’.

The Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1 vide order dated January 129,
2024, issued by Regional Director (Northem Region) shified its registered office from the
state of Delhi to the State of Haryana w.e.lf. February 20, 2024, Presently, the registered
office of the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1 is situated at Haldiram -
Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basal Road, Haryana-122001,
India

The Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1 is engaged in the business of
exports and Imports of any kind of goods which are permitted by law, of any time and to

carry on the business of importers, exporters, processor, packers, commission agents,
stockists, buyers and sellers in India or abroad of all types of food products, namkeens,

papads, sweets, pickles, syrups, raw and blended spices, all types of milk products and
preparations, sova products, toffees, chocolates ete. CIN of the Transferor Company-1/
Amalgamating Companv-1 15 U15490HR1996PTC1 191 35.

1.4 HR Bakers Private Limited (“Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-2") a
private limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Act, 2013, in NCT of
Delhi, on May 15, 2017.

The Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-2 vide order dated December 23,
2023, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) had shifted its registered office from
NCT of Delhi to the Siate of Haryana w.e.f February 8, 2024, Presently, the registered
office of the Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-2 is situated at Haldiram -
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Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Harvana,
India, 122001 |L| L{]

The Transferor Company-2/Amalgamating Company-2 is engaged in the business of
manufacturers, bakers, producers, dealers, buyers, sellers, importers, exporters and agents
of milk, sova milk, ite products and preparations, cheese, ice-cream, curd and other
preparations of milk, cercals and lentils including flour and dal, sweets, soya sweets,
namkeens, papads, and confections including biscuils, cakes, breads, pastries, nuts,
toffees, chocolates, frut and vegetable and other products and preparation of every kind,
nature and deseription related thereon. CIN of the Transferor Company-2/Amalgamating
Company-2 is U1512THR2Z01TPTCI1 18713,

1.5 Haldiram Retail Private Limited " Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-
3") is a private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Act, 2013, in
NCT of Delhi, on April 3, 2018 in the name and atyle of *Haldiram Retail Private
Limited".

The Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 vide order dated December 23,
2023, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region), had shified its registered office
from NCT of Delhi to the State of Haryana w.c.f February B, 2024, Presently, the
registered office of the Transfarar Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 is situated at
Haldiram - Village Kherki Daula. Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Baszai Road, Haryena,
India, 122001.

The Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 is incorporated to earry on the
business of restaurants, cafe, food plazas, fast food joints, refreshiment rooms and bakers
and eonfectioners in India and abroad, further 1o carry on the business of caterers & o
apen, establish, manage, Franchise Fast Food center, restaurants of all kinds and to
commence and carry on the business of caterers both indoer or euidoor including catering
in farm houses, banguets, clubs, schools, hostels and clubs and 10 own build, operate,
manage, let-out, lease, sub-lease canteens, bakeries, confectioners, milk bars, sweet
shops, fce cream shops, ice cream parlors, poultry farms. piggery farme, dairy farms,
cafeterias, refreshment rooms, taverns, flight kitchens, caravan safaris, camping sites,
inns and all other catering related facilities and activities including entering into franchise
and have collaboration with any local or foreign party. CIN of the Transferor Company-
3/ Amalgamating Company-3 is US5209HR2018FTC118710.

1.6 Dreamcann Foods Private Limited (“Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating
Company-4") is a private limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Act,
1956 in NCT of Delhi on August 18, 2004, under the name ard style of *Dreamcann
Immigration Consultants Private Limited". The Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating
Company-4, had w.ef March 21, 2005 had changed its name from ‘Dreamcann
Immigration Consultants Private Limited’ to ‘Dreamcann Foods Private Limited",

The Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 vide order, dated December 08",
2023, issued by Regional Director (Northern Region) had shifted its registered affice from
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the NCT of Delhi to the State of Harvana w.e £, February 8, 2024, Presently, the registered
office of the Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 is siteated at Haldiram -
Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road, Haryana-122001,
India.

The Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 is engaged in the business of
producing, manufacturing, processing, preparing, preserving, canning, refining of milk
and milk bottles and buying & selling & deal whether as wholesalers or retailers or as
exporters or importers or as principals or agentz in all types of foods, fruits, vegetables,
oils , spices, meat products, dairy products, poultry products, canned and processed foods,
health foods, baby foods, diabetic [oads, pulses. cereals, heverages, chocolates, hreaclsf.
confectionery products, chewing gums, tofTees, dry fruits, nankeens, fast foods, grains,
bakery products, aerated mineral water and other food stuffs of every description for
human consumption. and to carry on the business of operating and managing restaurants,
cafes, health cares, hotels, banquets halls, beer & bar house, caterers, amusement park,
recreation centres, sports facility, pymnasiums and spas etc.CIN of the Transferor
Company-#/ Amalgamating Company-4 is U74140HR2004PTC118704. The Transferor

Company-4 is a whelly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company-1.

Heldiram Marketing Private Limited (“Resulting Company/Transferee Company™), a
private limited company incorperated under the provisions ol Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi
on March 16, 1982, under the name and style of *Champion Advenising and Marketing
Private Limited’, The Resulting Company/ Transferee Company had w.e.f. February 20,
1992, changed its name from ‘Champion Advertising and Marketing Private Limited’ to
its present name i.c. 'Haldiram Marketing Private Limited”.

The Resulting Company/ Transferee Company vide order dated January 1 2th 2024, issued
by Regional Director (Northern Region) shifted its registered office from the NCT of
Delhi to the State of Harvana w.e.f February 8, 2024. Presently having its registered
office situated at Haldiram -Villape Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basa

Road, Haryana-122001, India.

The Resulting Company/Transferee Company is engaged in the business of
manufacturess, producers, processors, dealers, importers, exporters, buyers, gellers and
agents of all types of sweets, namkeens and all types of chip, biscuits, bakery products,
papads, pastries, nuts, toffees, chocolates, milk preparation of all kinds, breakfast foods,
cereal products, wheat flour, maize flour and table delicious and food swulls & fruit &
vegetable pulp and their products & preparation of every such kind, nature & description,
CIN of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company is UT4899HR1982PTC118712.

2. PURPOSE & RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

2.1 The Companies, belonging o same group and having common promoters, arc engaged in

quick-service restaurant (“QSR™) business which includes setting up and maintenance af
restaurants, cafe, food plazas, fast food joints, refreshment rooms and bakers and
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confectioners. Further, the Companies are involved in opening, establishing, managing
restaurants of all kinds and to carry on the business of running banguets. 1 L,/EEJ

22 Now, in order to optimize and leverage the resources of all the Companies, the
management contomplates to upscale QSR business in one entity. Hence, the management
of the Companies have decided to consolidate the said QSR business of all Companies
inin the Resulting Company / Transferee Company.

2.3 The said arrangement shall also result in following benefits:

(i} 'The consolidation of QSR Business of Demerged Companics and Amalgamating
Companies with and into the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company will
optimize synergies, reducing overheads, better services to existing clientele,
operational efficicncics including cfficiency in fund raising, productivity gains,
harmonization of sales and services channels, general and administrative cost
reduction and productivity gains by pooling of financial, managerial and fechnical
resources, parsonnel capabilities, skills, expertise, and logistical advantages theraby
significantly contributing 1o economies of scale and future growth, sirengthening
financial and competitive position of the Resuling Company/ Transferee

Company.

(i1}  The Scheme will lead to simplification of group structure by ehiminating multipls
companies in similar business, thus enabling focus on core competencics.

Further, there is no adverse effect of this Scheme on the directors, key management
personnel, promoters, non-promoter members, creditors and emplovees of the
Companies and the same would he in the best interest of all stakehalders.,

In view of the aforesaid, the Boards of Directors of the Companics have considered and
proposed the Scheme {as defined fereingfier) for the benefits of the stakeholders of all the

Companies. Accordingly, the Boards of Directors of the Compeanies have formulated this
Scheme pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 1o 232 and other relevant provisions of

the Acl (ox defined hereinafer} and risies made thereunder.,

3. PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part A deals with definitions used in the Scheme, interpretation and sets oul the share capital
of the Companies.

Part B, inter-alia, deals with transfer and vesting of assets, liabilities, profits or losses, legal
proceedings, employees constituting part of the Demerged Undertakings (as defined
hereinafer) of the Demerged Companies, consideration, accounting treatment, etc. for the
demerger of Demerged Companies with and into the Resulting Company /Transferee Company.
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T 'l Uy

Part C, inter-alia, deals with the transfer and vesting of assets, liabilities, profits or losses, legal
proceedings, employees constituting business of the Amalgamating Companies, consideration,
accounting treatrment, ete. for the amalgamation of Amalgemating Companies with and into the
Resulting Company /Transferee Company.

Part D deals with the miscellaneous provisions applicable to this Scheme.

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

4.6
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PART-A

DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL

DEFINITIONS
In this Scheme, unless nconsistent! repugnant with the subject, context or meaning
thereof, the following expressions shall have the meaning as set cut herein below:

“Accounting Standards™ means applicable Accounting Standard as notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder and generally accepted
accoumting principles, including any statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof

B Act” or “the Act™ means the Companies Act, 2013, the rules and regulations made there
under as applicable, and shall include any and all statutory amendment, modification{s)
or re-enactmeni(s) thereof from time to time;

*Amalgamation™ means amalgamation of the Amalgamating Companies with and into
the Resulting Company /Transferee Company on a going concern basis in terms of the
Scheme fus defined hereinafier)=;

“Appointed Date” for the purpose of this Scheme means Apnl 01, 2024,

“Board of Directors™ or “Board” means and includes the respective Board of Directors
of the Companies, or any committee constituted by such Board of Directors for the
puposes of the Scheme;

“Contract” means any contract, agreement, arrangementd, lender, memorandum of
understanding, engagement, purchase order, license, guarantee, indenture, note, bond,
loan, lease, commitment other arrangement. understanding or undertaking, whether

written or oral;

“Demerged Company-17 means the company as defined under clause 1.1 ol this
Scheme;

“Demerged Company-2" means the company as defined under clause 1.2 of this
Scheme,
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4.9 “Demerged Undertaking-1" means the QSR business of the Demerged Company-1 to
be transferred to the Resulting Company on poing concem basis on and from the
Appointed Date. Without prejudice to the generahty of the above, the Demerged
[Undertaking-1 shall mean and include:

() all assets pertaining to (SR Division of the Demerged Company-1 of every kind,
nature and description including movable & immovable property, tangible or
intangible assets, including banquets run by the company, Intellectual Property
Rights computers and accessories, software and related data, leaschold
improvements, building on tenanted premises, plant and machinery, offices, capital
work-in-progress, vehicles, fumiture, fixtures, office  equipment, electrical
appliances, investments, cash and cash equipment's and accessions pertaining te QSR
Business of the Demerged Company-1;

(b All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, approvals, consents,
Cngagencnts, arrangements, activities, operations, approvals granted by the
Governmental Authorities and all other privileges and benefits of every kind, if any,
nature and description whatsoever relating to the QSR Business of the Demerged
Company-1;

) all debrs (whethar secured or unsecured) including but not limited to long-term and
short-term borrowings, trade payvables, frede creditors, long-term and short-térm
provisions, deferred tax liabilities, bank limits including but not limited to cash credit
limits, working capital limits, current liabilities {including contingent liabihities),
duties and obligations of the QS Business of the Demerged Company-1 of every
kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever aceruing or arising out of, and
all loans and borrowings raised or incurred and utilized for its businesses, activities
and operations, if any, pertaining to QSR Business of the Demerged Company-1 and
shall also include all other liabilities of whatsoever nature, amounis of which are
categorized as general or multi-purpose borrowings of the Demerged Company-1 to
be transferred to the Resulting Company.

The broad details of the asset and Liabilities compriging of the Demerged Undertaking-
and figures appearing corresponding to the assets and liabilities as appearing in the
finaneial statements of the Demerged Company-1 s at November 30, 2023, are described
in Schedule-1 pnnexed hereto.

4,10 “Demerged Undertaking-2" means the QSR business of the Demerged Company-2 to
be transferred to the Resulting Company on going concern basis on and from the
Appointed Date. Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Demerged
Undertaking-2 shall mean and include:

() all assets pertaining to QSR Division of the Demerged Company-2 of every kind,
nature and description including all existing movable properties, tangible or intangible
assets. including banguets run by the company, Imellectual Property Rights,
computers and acccssorics, software and related data, leasehold improvements,
buildings on tenanted premises, plant and machinery, offices, capital work-in-
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progress, vehicles, fumitare, fixtures, office equipment, clectrical appliances,
investments, cash and cash equipment's and accessions pertaining to QSR Business I 'L/I é,‘
of the Demerged Company-2; :

(b} All agreements, rights, contracts, entitlements, permits, licenses, approvals, consents,
engagements, arangements, activitics, operations, approvals granted by the
Governmental Authorities and all other privileges and benefits of every kind, if any,
nature and description whatsoever relating to the QSE Business of the Demerged
Company-2;

(c) all debts (whether secured or unsecured) including but not limited to long-term and
shori-lerm barrowings, trade payables, trade creditors, long-tenm and short-term
provisions, deferred tax liabilities, bank Hmits including but not limited to cash credit
limits, working capital limits, current liabilities (including contingent liabilitics), cash
credit, duties and obligations of the QSR Business of the Demerged Company-2 of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever accruing or arising out
of, and all loans and borrowings raised or incurred and utilized for its businesses,
actrvities and operations, if any, pertaming to QSR Business of the Demerged
Company-2 and shall also include all other Liabilitics of whatsocver nature, amounts
of which are cateporized as general or multi-purpose borrowings of the Demerped
Company-2 to be transferred to the Resulting Company.

The broad details of the asset and liahilities comprising of the Demerged Undertaking-2
and figurss appearing corresponding to the assets and liabilities as appearing in the
linancial statements of the Demerged Company-2 as at November 30, 2023 are described
in Schedule-2 annexed hereto.

4,11 “Demerged Undertakings” means the Demerged Undertaking-1 and Demerged
Undertaking-2, collectively.

4.12 “Demerger™ mieans the transfer of the Demerged Undertakings, on going concern basis,
by way of demerger to the Resulting Company/Transferee Company in terms of the
Scheme (as defined heretnafier).

4.13 “Effective Date” shall be the last of the dates on which certified copies of the order of
Tribunal fas defined hereinafier) under Section 230 to 232 of the Act, sanctioning this
Scheme, is filed by the respective Companies with their respective jurisdictional Registrar
of Companies {as defirned hereinafter)

Provided that any reference in this Scheme to the date of “upon coming into effect of the
Scheme” or “upon the scheme becoming effective™ or “effectiveness of the Scheme™ shall
mean the Effective Date.

4.14 “Income Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961 {including the rules and regulations
made thereunder), and shall include any siatutory modification(s), re-enaciment{s) or
amnendment(s) thereof from time to time.
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“Intellectual Property Rights” or “*IPR™ means, whether registerzd or not in the name
of or recognized under Applicable Law(s) as heing intellectual property of Demerged
Companies (related o the Demerged Undertakings) and Transferor Companies, or in the
nature of common law rights of Demerged Companies (related to the Demetged
Undertakings) and Amalpamating Companies, all domestic and foreign (a) trademarks,
service marks, brand names, internel domain names, websites, online web portals, trade
names, logos, trade dress and all applications and registration for the foregoing, and all
goodwill associated with the foregoing and symbolized by the foregoing; (b) confidential
and proprietary information and trade secrets; (c) published and unpublished works of
authorship, and copyrights therein, and registrations and applications therefore, if any,
am all renewals, extensions, restorations and reversions thereol, (d) computer sofiware,
programs (including source code, object code, firmware, operating systems and
specifications) and processes; (e) designs, drawings, sketches: (f) tools, databases,
frameworks, customer data, proprietary information, knowledge, any other technology or
know-how, licenses, software licenses and formulas; (2) ideas and all other intellectual
property or proprietary rights; and (h) all rights in all of the foregoing provided by
Applicable Lawi(s).

*Law™ or “Applicable Law™ means any relevant statutes, notifications, by-laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, rule of common law, policy, code, directives, ordinances,
schemes, notices, treatics, judgement, decree, approvals, erder or instructions enacted or
issued or sanctioned by any Governmental authority fas defined hereinafier), having the

force of Law and as applicable to the Companies.

“Tribunal® or “NCLT" means the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at
Chandigarh.

“Governmental and Registration Authority™ means any relevant Central, State or local
govemment, legislative body, regulatory oradministrative authority and shall also inclode
any court, tribunal, quasi-judicial body, regional director, registrar of Companies, official
liquidator, income tax authority and any other governmentsl/ scmi-govermmental
authority having jurisdiction over the Companies.

“Registrar of Companies,” or “ROC™ means the Registrar of Companies, National
Capital Territory of Delhi and Harvana,

“Remaining Undertaking-1" means all the undertaldings, businesses, activitics, assets,
lizbilities and operations of the other than the Demerged Undentaking-1.

“Remaining Undertaking-2" means all the undertakings, businesses, activities, assets,
liahilities and operations of the ather than the Demerged Undertaking-2.

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this composite scheme of
arrangement in its present form as submitted to the Tribunal or this Scheme with such
modification(s), if any, as may be made by the Members and the Creditors of the
Companies or such modification(s) as may be imposed by any Covernmental authority
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and/ or directed to be made by the Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme and as accepted
by the respective Board of Directors, Members and Creditors of the Companies, ] L{?

4.23 “Transferor Company-1" means the company as defined under clause 1.3 of the
Scheme.

4.24 “Transferor Company-2" means the company as defined under clause 1.4 of the
Scheme.

4.25 "Transferor Company-3" means the company as defined under clause 1.5 of the
Scheme.

4.26 "Transferor Company-4" means the company as defined under clause 1.6 of the
Scheme.

4.27 “Transferee Company™ or “Resulting Company™ shall have the meaning as ascribed to
it in Clause 1.7 of this Scheme.
INTERFRETATION

Terms end expressions which are used in this Scheme but not defined herein shall, unless

repugnant or contrary o the conlext or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed
to them under the Act and if not defined therein then under the relevant Applicable

Law(s). In this Scheme, unless the context otharwise requires:

1. referenices w0 “persons™ shall include individuals, body corporates (wherever
incorporated ). unincorporated associations and parinerships,;

ii. heading, sub-heading and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall not affect the
construetion or interpretation of this Scheme;

i the term "Clanse”™ refers o the specified clause of this Scheme;

. references to one gender includes all genders;

v any phrase introduced by the terms "including”, "include”, "in particular’ or any similar
expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words
preceding those terms;

vi. waords in the singular shall include the plural and vice-versa;
vii. Part B and Part C of the Scheme shall take effect simultaneously; and

viii. reference lo any legislation, statute, regulation, rule, notification or any other provision
of law means and includes references to such legal provisions as amended, supplemented
or re-enacted from time to time and any reference o a legal provision shall include any
subordinate legislation made from time to time under such a statutory provision.
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3. CAPITALSTRUCTURE

M=
5.1 The share capital of the Companics as at March 31, 2024 is as under:
Company | Authorized Share Capital Issued, Subscribed and
(In Rupees) Paid-up Share Capital

(In Rupees)
Haldiram Manpufacturing | Bs.  11,00,00,000/- divided | Rs. 10,17,82.660/~ divided
Company Private Limited | into 1,10,00,000 equity shares | inte 10178266  equity
{(“Demerged Company-1") | of Rs, 10/- cach shares of Rs. 10/- each

Haldiram Ethnic Foods | Rs. 1,10,00,000- divided inlo | Rs. 62,94,630/- divided into
Private Limited | 11,0000 equity shares of Rs. | 6.29,463 equity shares of Rs.
{"Demerged Company-2") | 10/- each 10/~ each

Haldi Ram  Products | Rs. 2,50,00,000/- divided inta | Rs. 92,20.000/- divided into

Private Limited | 25,00,000 equity shares of Rs. | 922 000 equity shares of Rs.
A malgamating 10/- each 110/- each

Companp-1/  Transferor

Company-1"}

HR  Bakers  Private | Rs. 1,00.00,000/- divided mto | Rs.  1,00,00,000/- divided
Limited (“dmalgamaring | 10,00,000 cquity shares of Rs. | into 10,00.000 equity shares
Company-2"  Transferer | 10{- cach of Rs, [V~ each
Company-27) A

Haldiram Retail Private | Rs. 10,00,000/- divided into | Rs. 10,00,000/- divided into
Limited (“Amalgamating | 1,00,000 equity shares of Bs. | 100,000 equity shares of
Company-3/  Transgferor | 10/-cach Rs. | O¥- each

Company-3")
Dreameann Foods Private | Rs. 215,000,000/ divided inte | Re.  2,00,50,050/- divided
Limited (“Amalgamaring | 21,50,000 equity shares of Rs. | into 20,035,005 equity shares
Company-4/  Transferor | 10/- each of Rs. 10/- each
Company-4")
Haldiram Marketing | Rs. 11,00,00,000/- divided | Rs. 5,95.22 900/ divided
Private Ltd {“Resulting | into 11,00,000 equity shares | into 5,%3.229 equity shares
Comparyy’ Transferee | of Rs, 100/~ each of Rs. 100/- each

Company”)

Subsequent to March 31, 2024 and till the date of approval of this Scheme by the respective
Boards of the Companies, there is no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-
up share capital of the Companies.
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5.2 ltis expressly clarified that untilthis Scheme becomes effective, the Companies are free to |
alter their anthorized. igsued, subscribed, paid-up share capital, shareholding pattern by any
manner including but not limited to further issuance of shares, shares wansfer, as may be
required lor their respective business requirements, subject to the necessary approvals from
their respective Hoards and shareholders.

VAN
Wi

FART B

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, PROFITS OR LOSSES,
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, EMPLOYEES CONSTITUTING PART OF THE
DEMERGED UNDERTAKINGS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANIES,
CONSIDERATION, ACCOUNTING TREATMENT, ETC. FOR THE
DEMERGER OF DEMERGED COMPANIES WITH AND INTO THE
RESULTING COMPANY 'TRANSFEREE COMPANY

6. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS

6.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date gnd
subject to the provisions of this Scheme including in relation to the mode of transfer or
vesting, all property(iss), being immovable and movakle, tangible or intangible, pertaining
to the Demerged Undenakings of the Demerged Companics including but not hmited 1o,
land and building, furniture and fixtures, leasehold improvements’ premises, building on
tenanted properties, investments, motor vehicles, office equipment, bank balances, bank
accounts in the name of Demerged Companies pertaining to respective Demerged
Undertakings, remitlances in lransit, bank deposits against bank guarantees, interest
accrued on deposits, security deposits (whether current or non-current), capital advances,
prepaid expenses, deferred costs (whether ewrent or non-current), cash and cash
equivalents, interest receivable, trade receivables (including trade receivables from the
related parties), unhilled revenue (including unbilled revenue from the related parties),
outstanding loans and advances (short-term and long-term), if any, recoverable in cash or
in kind or for the value to be received including but not limited fo loans and advances 1o
suppliers, vendors, customers, stafT, employees, others, balance with Governmental and
Registration Authorities, prepaid expenses (current and non-current) fixed assets including
building on tenanted propertics (other than Land and Buildings), inventories inchading
goods in transit, finished goods, advances, advance income tax, income tax receivables,
service tax credit receivables and refunds, deferred tax assets (whether current and non-
current), Goods and Service Tax (“GST™) credits and refunds, receivables, including
refunds from Govemmental and Registration Awthorities, capital advances, trade
recetvahles, accrued interest, other eurrent and non-current assets, contribution to gratuity
fund, permits, approvals, authorizations, telephone connections, telex, facsimile
connections and installations, utilitics, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions,
funds, benefits of all agreements that are in force on the Effective Date and all other
interests, benefits, any other permits, approvals or authorizations under the applicable
provisions of the Applicable Law{sﬂnthar assets such as computer software and hardware,

For Halgiram Manufacturing Company P, Lig, Ror Hzr'[:iira.m Eli'micl.FuDds Pui. le. S o Haldiczan Matk iing PrivaLe Limis-
J_H.II - '}T‘:ﬁ 1.,.“a.LP_|I_\:,_-‘|!';" ﬂ".‘h,'i-"'-"'—' .:_:r‘.r"‘".’-fr""
5 . . E‘ i. :Is-'._!"r!—-h' . i . i
hulhorized Signatory Au F\S :
X SumiE LT d
ram Producls Pvt. Lid, c or Hardiram Refail Privala Li ke

aln ing Tﬁjﬁ(&wjﬁl‘g o M‘i
|

P



6.2

104

routers, all types of fumiture and [xtures, vehicles (whether free from charge or
encumbered), office equipment, all types of lending contracts, benefit of any security
arrangements, reversions, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, consents, licenses,
registrations, contracis, agresments, engagements, arrangements of all kind, rights, titles,
interests, benefits, easements, if any, and privileges of whatsoever nature and wherever
situated belonging 1o or in the ownership, power or possession and in control of or vested
in or granted in favour of ar enjoyed by the Demerged Companies constituting the part of
Dremerged Undertakings (herefnaffer referred to as "'Said Assers-1") and all documents of
titles, receipis and easemenis in relation thereto or improvement, all rizhts, covenants,
centinuing rights, titles and interest in connection with Said Assets-1, including control on
the Said Assets-1, shall, unless otherwise agreed between Demerged Companies and
Resulting Company (Transferee Company specifically, be transferred to and shall stand
vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and stand vested in Resulting Company
[Transferce Compeny in the mods and manncr as prescribed in this Scheme on a going
concern basis pursuant to provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act and all other
applicable provisions of the Act and pursuant to the orders of the Tribunal er any other
appropriate authority or forum, if any, sanctioning the Scheme, without any further act,
instrument, deed, matier or thing so as 1o become on and from Appaointed Date, Said Assets-
| of the Resulting Company /Tranaferee Company'.

Without prejudice 1o the above, the IPR and Said Ascets-1 constituting part of Demerged
Undertakings of the Demerged Companies, it any, belonging to the Demerged Companies
shafl stand transferred to and vested and be deesmed to be transferred 10 and vested in the
name of the Resulting Company /Transferee Company without any further act, instrument
or deed. The relevant authoritics shall take on recard such tronsfer of [PRs wherever

requited pursuant to the approval of the Scheme.

Without prejudice to the above, in respect of the Said Assets-1 pertaining the part of
Demerged Undenaking of the Demerged Companies, including cash and bank balances, as
are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of being transferred
by delivery or possession or by endorsement and/or delivery, the samc shall stand
transferred to the Resulting Company /Transferee Company upon coming into effect of this
Scheme and shall wpon such transfer become Said Assets-1 of the Resulting. Company
fTransferee Company with effect from the Appointed Diate.

As far as transfer and mutation of immovable propertics, Whether freehold or leasehold or
tenanted, including but not limited to land and building peraining to the Demerged
Undertakings of the Demerged Companies. arising pursuant to the approval of the Scheme,
shall be given effect to by execution of separate instrument of conveyance, including bul
not limited to deeds of conveyance or deed of assignment of lease or novation of the lease
agreements by the Transferee Company with the respective land owners, as the case may
e, executed on or after the Effective Date, in favour of the Transferee Company/ Resulting
Company. The Transferee Company, for the purpose of payment of stamp duty, shall assign
the value for transfer of such properties, which will be equivalent to the value as appearing
in the books of the Transferor Companies or market vaiue of such property basis the circle
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rales announced by the concerned revenue authorities in the State in which such immovable
property situates, whichever is higher, notwithstanding the provisions conceming the share
exchange ratio as provided in the Scheme. The execution of such conveyance, post
approval of the Scheme, shall be deemed to considered as an integral part of the Scheme.

Upon coming inta effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
statutory licenses including but not limited to permits, quotas, approvals, permissions,
clesrances, incentives, comsents and authorization orders and all other business
certifications and all other regisiration certificates issued to the Demerged Companies
under the Applicable Law(s) including but not limited to Shops and Commercial
Establishments Act of the respective states where the establishments of the Demerged
Companies are situated, -Emplovees Provident Fund and Miscellancous Provisions Act,
1952, Centract Labour (Regulations and Abolition) Act, 1970, Emplovees State Insursnce
Corperation Act, 1948 and’or Gratuity Act, 1972 and pension and/or superannuation fund
or benefits and any other funds or benefits created by the Demerged Companies for the
employees, any subsidies, concessions, grants, special reservations, rights, claims, leases,
tenancy rights, liberties, banefits under applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, no-
objection certificales, penmissions, approvals including but not limited 1o (letter of
permission related 1o bonded premises registration-cum-membership certificates, consents,
quotas, rights, entitlements, certificate of importer-exporier codes, allotment letters for
importer exporter codes, trade mark licenses including application for registration of trade
mark, licenses including those relating to privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and
description of whatsoever nature and other benefits or privileges, if any (hereinafter
referred io &s “Said Rights and Interests™), enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of
and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to Demerged Companics,
shall, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable
provigions of the Applicable Law({s), for the time being in force, without any further act,
instrument or deed, upon the Scheme becoming effective, be and stand transferred to and
vested in and’ or be deemed (o have been transferred to and vested in and be available to
the Resulting Company /Transferee Company 50 as to become on and from the Appoirted
Date, Said Rights and Interests of Demerged Compunies relating to the Demerged
Undertakings, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent
permissible under the Applicable Law(s) for the time being in force and shall be duly and
appropriately mutated or endorsed by the concerned Governmental and Registration
Authorities therewith in faveur of the Resulting Company /Transferee Company.

TRANSER AND VESTING OF LIABILITIES

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
secured and unsecured liabilities, borrowings (long-ferm and shori-term), incloding
lishilities of every kind. nature and deseription, whatsoever end howsoever arising, whether
present or future, including contractual liabilities, guarantees (long-ferm and short ferm),
security deposits received, loans (inchewding loan from related parties which includes
interes! accrued), cmting:nhr]inhiliﬁex, non-trade pavables, trade pavables, retention
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money, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipments, creditors of other fixed
assets, letters of credit, etc., if any, stattory habilities/dues fwhether disputed or
undisputed), any kind of commitment or any other advances received (whether disclosed
oF undiseiosed), duties, term loans from banks and financial institutions, book overdrafts,
loan and advances (whether fong-term or short term) from banks, customers, revenue
received in advance, statutory dues payable, government dues for taxes, contribution to
provident fund, labour welfare funds, wade payables (including dues from related parties),
short terms borrowing from the related parties, supplier credits, dues of micro and small
enterprises, siaff and other creditors, dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises, employee benefit payable, others employees costs, long term or short term
provisions, advance [rom customers, provisions fwhether clvent or RoR-curreni)
including provisions for tax, gratuity, leaves benefits, expenses payable, deferred tax
liabilities, taxes, GST pa:,'ab[es anel ubligati-::ns ol Demerged Companies, constituting the
part of Demerged Undertakings, other current and non-current liabilities, if any, along with
any charge, encurnbrance, lien or security thereon, if any, and those arising out of
proceedings of any nature (hereinafter referved fo as “Said Liabilities-1") shall also bz
transferred o and vested in or be deemed to be transferred to and stand vested, without any
further act, instrument or deed in the Resulting Company /Transferee Company pursuant
to provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Act
and other Applicable Law(s) so as to become said Liabilities-]1 of Resulting Company
fTransferee Company and further, it shall not be necessary o oblain separate consenl of
any third party or any person who is a party to any coniract or arrangement by virtue of
which such the said Liahilities-1 may have arizsen and are to be transferred to the Resulting
Company /Transferce Company.

7.2 All loans raised and utilized or incurred as part of the said Liabiliics-1, if any, by the
Demerged Undertakings of the Demerged Companies anylime afier the Appointed Drate,
but prior tn the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested with the
Resulting Company /Transferee Company without any further act or deed.

7.3 The borrowing limits, il any, of the Resulting Company /Transferse Company shall,
without any further act or deed, stand enhanced by an amount being the aggregate of said
Liahilities-1 of the Demerged Undenakings of the Demerged Companies which are being
transferred to the Resulting Company /Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme and
the Resulting Company /Transferce Company shall not be required to pass any separate
resoiutions or comply with any provisions of the Act, in this regard.

74 Itis clarified that =o far the said Assets-1 of the Demerged Companies are concemned which
have the security or charge, encumbrance or lien, if any, relating to securing the Said
Liabilities-1 or any other obligations of Demerged Companies constituting part of the
Demerged Undertakings, shall, without any further act or deed continue 1o relate to such
said Assets-1 after the Effective Date in the name of the Resulting Company /Transferee
Company and shall not extend to any other assets of the Resulting Company (Transferee
Company. Howewver, it is expressly clarified that any such security or charge or
encumbrance or lien shall not hErmtﬁred to as security in relation to any assets of the
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Resulting Company /Transferee Company, save to the extent as may be guaranteed or
warranted by the terms of the existing security arrangements to which the Demerged
Companies isa party and consistent with the joint obligations assumed by them under such
arrangement or otherwise as may be agreed o by Board of the Resulting Company
{Transferee Company.

Resulting Company /Transferee Company, wherever required at its own cost, shall take all
steps as may reasonably be necessary to enter into new or amended loan or security
agreements or instruments and the like as may be necessary with the lender, such that the
Resulting Company /Transferee Company shall assume sole responsibility for repayment
of borrowings. -

With effect from the Effective Date and until such time the names of the bank accounts of
the Demerged Companies related to the Demerged Undertakings are replaced with that of
the Resulting Company /Transferee Company, the Resulting Company /Transferce
Company shall be entitled to operate the sastmg bank accounts of Demerged Companies
perizining 1o the part of Demerged Undertakings, in so [ar, as may be necessary. The banks
shall alse allow and honour cheques or other bills issued in the name of the Demerged
Companies on and from the Effective Date.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding that vesting
of movable sssets constituting the part of Demerged Undertakings of the Demerped
Companies with the Resulting Company /Transferee Company oceurs by vire of this
Scheme itself, the Resulling Company /Transferee Company, at any time upon coming into
effect of this Scheme, may execute deeds of confirmation or other writings or arrangements
with any party to any contract or arrangement or memorandum of understanding to whach
the Demerged Companies are parties, who specifically requires any such document
mentioned above, on the Effective Date, as may be nacessary to be executed in order to
give formal effect to the above provisions, The Resulting Company /Transferee Company
shall under the provisions of this Scheme and/or subject to necessary approvals require
under the Applicable Law(s) be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on
behalf of the Demerged Companies to carry out or perform all such formalities or
compliance, refermred o above,

TRANSFER OF PROFITS, INCOMES, LOSSES AND EXPENDITURE

All profits or incomes including inlerest on deposits with banks, interest income efc.,
accruing or arising to the Demerged Companies as constituting part of Demerged
Lindertakings or loss or expenditure (including the effect of taxes, if any) to the Demerged
Companies as constituting part of Demerged Undertakings on and any time after the
Appointed Date shall, for all purposes, be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the
profits or incomes or loss or expenditure as the case may be of the Resulting Company

fTransferce Company.
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§.2 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and as per the provisions of Section 72A and other
applicable provisions of the Tneome Tax Act, all aceumulated business and tax losses and
unabsorbed depreciation related to the Demerged Undertakings of the Demesged
Companies shall be transferred to the Resulting Company /Transferee Company. It is
expressly clarified that all the accumulated business and tex losses and unabsorbed
depreciation as are transferrad, shall be eligible to be camried forward ond set off in the
hands of the Resulting Company /Transferee Company in terms of the applicable
provisions of the [ncome Tax Act,

9. COMPLIANCE WITH INCOME TAX ACT

Part B of this Scheme complies with the conditions relating to “Demerger™ as specified
under Section 2(19AA) of the TT Act. If any term or provision of this Scheme is found or
interpreted to be inconsistent with the said provision at a later date including resulting from
any amendment of Applicable Laws or for eny ather reason, whatsoever, then the
provisions of such amended section(s) of the IT Act or any other Applicable Law shall
prevail and this Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply
with conditions contained in Section 2{19AA) of the IT Act or any other Applicable Law,
as may be amended from time o time. Such modification shall, however, not affect other
parts of this Scheme.

10, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

10,1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions and other proceedings including
legal and taxation proceedings (belore any statuiory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal
or any court or arbitral body), if any, by or against the respective Demerged Companies
pertaining to the business of Demerged Undertakings pending and/for arising on or before
the Effective Date shall be continued and‘or be enforced by or against the Resuling
Company/Transleree Company as effectuslly and in the same manner and extent as it the
same has been instituted and/or pending andlor arising by o against the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company. All risks and benefits associated with such legal and
taxation proceedings shall be given effect to on and from the Appointed Date, upon

coming inta effect of this Scheme.

10.2 It is expressly specified that the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company undertakes to
have all legal or other proceedings initisted by or against the respective Demerged
Companies pertaining 1o the business of Demerged Undertakings as referred above, and
the same shall be trensferred to its name and shall have the same continued, prosecuted
and enforced in its name.

11. INTER COMPANY TRANSACTIONS

11.1 Without prejudice to the above provisions. upon the Scheme becoming effective and with
effect from the Appointed Date, all inter-company transzctions between the Demerged
Companies and the Resulting Company /Transferee Company, as pertaining o the
Demerged undertakings. including but not limited to:
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a) any loans, advances, payables, shareholding, investments and other obligations
(mcluding any guarantees. letters of credil, letiers of comfort or any other
insirument or arramgement which may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever
Jormy which are due or cutstanding or which may become due at any time in fiturs:
ar

b) any agreement’'memorandum of understanding, executed amongst the aforesaid
Companies which are due or outstanding or which may become due at any time in
future,

shall stand cancelled as on the Effective Date and shall be of no effect and the Demerged
Companies and the Resulting Company /Transferee Company shall have no fimhcf
obligation outstanding in that behalf.

TREATMENT OF TAXES

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes,
duties, cess pavable by the Demerged Companies (ineluding wnder the Income Teax Acl,
Custams Aet, 1982 or any other Applicadle Lows), accromng and relating to the Demergad
Companies in respect to the Demerged Undertakings from the Appointed Date onwards,
including but not limited to advanee tax payments, tax deducted at source (“TDS™), tax
enllected st source (“TCS™) minimum alternate tax ("WIAT™) any refund and interest due
thereon on any credits, claims and exemptions shall, for all purposes be treated as advance
1ax paymenis, TDS, TCS, MAT, any refund and interest due on any such credits, claims
and exemptions or refunds, as the case may be, of Resulting Company /Transferee
Company .

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company/Transferee Company is
permitted to file or revise the retumns of the respective Demerged Companies including
but niot limiting to TDS return, sales tax/value added tax returns, service tax retums, GST
returns and all other relevant retums filed with the Govemmental Authorities for the
period either price to the Appointed Date andfor period commencing on and from the
Appointed Date, to claim refunds and interest due, if any thereon, credits, exemptions
pursuant to provisions of this Scheme, notwithstanding that the time period prescribed for
filing' revision of such retum may have elapsed.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, all unavailed credits, claims and exemptions, any
refunds, interest due thereon, benefit of carried forward losses and other statutory
benefits, if any, in respect of income tux (including buf not limited fo TDS, TCS, rax
collected af source, advance 1ax, book and tax fpsses eiv.), cenvat, customs, value added
tax, sales tax, service tax, GST etc. to which the respective Demerged Companies are
entitled to, prior to the period of the Appointed Date, shall be available to and vest in the

Resulting Company /Transferee Company, without any further act or deed.
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124 TDS, service tax, GST, if any, deducted by andfor charged to the Resulting ! f_;{?—
Company/Transferee Company under the Income Tax Act or any other statute for the -
time being in force, in respect of the payments made by the Resulting
CompanyTransferee Company to the Demerged Companies on account of inter-company
transactions, assessable for the peried commencing from the Appointed Date shall be
deemed to be the advance tae/ service tax/ GST ete. paid by the Resulting Company
Transferee Company and credit for such advance tax/ service tax/ GST etc. shall be
allowed to the Resulting Company/Transferes Company notwithstanding that centificates
or challans for advance tax/ service tax/ GST elc. being in the name of the Demerged
Companics and not in the name of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company. Upon
this Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company/Transferee Company s
permitted to file and’ or revise tax returns of the Demerged Companies (including bui not
limited to income tax returns, withholding tax retvns, TDS certificates, sales lax returns,
value added tax retirns, service lax refurns, GST refurny and olher tax returns) for the
period commencing on and from the Appointed Date, to claim refunds and interest due,
if any thereon, credils, exemplions pursuant to provisions of this Scheme,
notwithstancing that the time period presenbed for filing/ revision of such return may
have elapsed.

12.5 Without prejudice to the generality of aforesaid, any concessional or statutory forms
under applicable tax laws, or lncal levies issved or received by Demerged Companies, if
any, in respect of period commencing from the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be
izsued or received in the name of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and
benefit of such forms shall be allowable to the Resulting Company/Transferee Company
in the same manner and to the same extent as would have been available 1o respective

Demerged Companizs.

12.6 The Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, if
required under the Applicable Law(s), at its own cost, for the record of concerned
Governmental and Registration Autharities who shall take them on file. The Resulting
Company/Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execute any such
writings on behalf of the Demerged Companies in order to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Demerged Companies.

12.7 All the expenses incurred by the Companies in relation lo the Armangement as per the
terms and conditions of this Scheme, including stamp duty expenses, il any, shall be
allowed as deduction to the Resulting Company/Transferes Company in accordance with
Section 35D of the Income Tax Act over a period of 5 years beginning with the previous

vear in which this Scheme becomes effective.

12.8 Any refund under tax laws due to Demerged Companies which is pertaining to their
Demerged Undertakings conseguent 1o the assessments made on Demerged Companies
and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding
Appointed Date shall belong to and be received by Resulting Company/Transleres
Company. The concerned Governmental and Registration Authorities shall be bound te
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transfer to the account of and give eredit for the same to Resulting Company/Transferee .
Company upon the passing of the orders on this Scheme by the Tribunal upon relevant rf:'g
procl and documents being provided to the said authorities.

12.9 The income tax pertaining to the Demerged Undertakings, if any, paid by the Demerged
Companies on or afier the Appointed Date, in respect of income assessable from that date,
shall be deemed to have been paid bv or for the benefit of the Resulting
Company/Transferes Company. The Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall,
after the Effective Date, be entitled to file the relevant returns with the Governmental and
Registration Authorities concerned for the period after the Appointed Date
notwithstanding that the period for filing such return may have elapsed. Further, Resulting
Company/Transferee Company shall, after the Effective Date, be entitled to revise the
relevant returns, if any, filed by the Demerged Companies for any year, if so necessitated
or consequent io this Scheme, notwithstanding that the time preseribed for such revision
may have elapsed.

13. EMPFLOYEES
13,1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme:

a)  All staff, workmen and employees, if any, who are in employment of Demerged
Companics and are pertaining to their respective Demerged Undertakings on the
Effactive Date shall become the staff, workmen and employees of the Resulting
Company/Transferce Company with effect from the Appointed Date on the basis
that:

(i) their employment shall be deemed to have been continuous and nol
interrupted by reasons of the said transfer; and

(ii} the terms and conditions of their employment after such transfer shall
not in any way be less favorable 10 them than those applicable 1o them
immediately preceding the said transfer.

b} Tt is expressly provided that as far as provident fund, employee state insurance plan
scheme, gratuity schemefrusts, leave encashment, superannuation scheme,
compensated absences, unavailed leave scheme or any other special scheme(s) or
fund{s) or trust{s), provisions for benefits created or existing, if any, for benefit of
staff / workmen ¢ employees of the Demerged Companies and are pertaining to their
respective Demerged Undertakings is concemned, upon coming info effect of the
Scheme, the Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall stand substituted for the
Demerged Companies for all perposes whatsoever, related to the administration or
operation of such scheme(s) or fund(s} or trust(s) and intent that all rights, duties,
powers and obligation(s) of the Demerged Companies in relation to such scheme{s)
or fund(s) ar trust(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company. It is clarified that
the employment of employees of the Demerged Companies will be treated as having
heen continuous for the purpose of the aforesaid scheme{s) or fund(s) or trusi(s)
ineluding for the purposes of payment of any retrenchment compensation and other
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terminal benefits. The Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall file relevant i
intimations with the concerned Governmental and Registration Authorities who shall ] f.:? 2 ’;'f
take the same on record and endorse the name of the Resulting Company/Transferee

Company for Demerged Companies. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, all
contributions to such scheme(s) or fund(s) or trust(s) created or existing for the

benefit of such employees of the Demerged Companies pertaining to the Demerzed
Undertakings shall be made by the Resulting Company/ Transferse Company in
accordance with the provisions of such scheme(s) or fund(s) or trust(s) and
Applicable Law({s).

14, CONTRACTS, DEEDS, RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

14.1 Subject to other provisions contained in this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, lease deed. rent
agreements, understandings, bonds, guarantees, agreements, instruments and writings and
benefits of whatsoever nature pertamning to Demerged Undertakings to which Demerged
Companies arc a party and is subsisling or having effcet on Effective Date, shall upon
coming into cHect of this Scheme, shall remain in full force and elfect against or in favor
of Resulting Company/Transferes Company and may be enforced by or against Resulling
Company/Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of Demerged
Companies, Resulting Company/Transferee Company had been a party thereto or
bencficiary or oblige thereto or thercunder, without any further act or deed.

14.2 Withoutl prejudice to the generality of the foregeing, it is clarified that upon this Scheme
becoming effective and with effect from Appointed Date, all consents, agreements,
permissions, all swatutory or regulatory licences, contractual licenses, cerfificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities, power of attorney given by, issued to or
executed in favour of Demerged Companies and which are pertaining to its Demerged
Undertakings or any Instrument of whatsoever nature including various incentives,
subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges pertaining to Demerged
Undertakings pranted by any Governmental or Registration Authorities or by any other
person and enjoyed or availed by Demerged Companies shall stend tramsferred to
Resulting Company/Transferee Company as il the same were originally given by, issued
to or executed in favor of Resulting Company/Transferee Company and Resulting
Compary /Transferee Company shall be hound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
duties thersunder and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available 1o Resulting
Company/Transferee Company. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, schemes,
special status and other henefits or privileges pertaining to Demerged Undertakings
granted by any Govermnmental or Registration Authorities or by any other person, or
availed by Demerged Companies are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available
to Resulting Company/Transferse Company on the same terms and conditions as
applicable to Demerged Companies as if the same had been allotted andfor granted andfor
sanctioned and/or allowed to Resulting Company /Transferee Company.
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143 All resolutions pertaining to Demerged Undertakings of Demerged Companies which are 6’
valid and subsisting on Effective Date, shall confinue to be valid and subsisting and be I '-(-:;'
considered as resolutions of Resulting Company /Transferce Company and if any such
resolutions have any upper monetary or any other limits imposed under provisions of the
Act, then the said limits shall apply mutatis mutandis to such resolutions and shall
consiitute the aggregate of the said limits in Resulting Company /Transferee Company.

15. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE

15.1 With effect from the Appointed Date, and upto and including the Effective Date, the
activities of the Demerged Undertakings shall be subject to control of the Roard of
Resulting Company/Transferee Company and Demerged Companies shall be deemed o
carry on all their businesses and other incidental matters pertaining to the Demerged
Undertakings for and on aceount of and/ or in trust for and/ or on behalf of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company with reasonable dilipence and due business prudence in
the same manner as carried before and shall not without the prior written consent of the
Resulting Company /Transferee Company, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or
otherwise deal with or dispose of any ol such said Assets-1 or such said Rights and
Interesis or IPR and their business undertaking(s) or any pan thereof, save and except that
Demerged Companies are permitted to continue to carry on the business of the Demerged
Undertalings in the ordinary course of business or to take any other decision, as expressly
permitied by the Resulting Company.

15.2 With effect from the Appuinted Date, and upto and including the Effective Date, all
profits and cash aceruing to or losses arising or incurred (including the effect of taxes, if
any thereon), by the respective Demerged Companies pertasining to the business of
Demerged Undertakings, shall for all purposes, be treated as the profits/ cash, taxes or
losses of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company.

153 The Demerged Companics shall not vary or alter, except in the ordinary course of their
businesses or pursuani to any pre-existing obligations undertaken prior to the date of
approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of Companies, the terms and eonditions
of employment of any of their employees, nor shall they conclude settlement with any
union or their employess except with the written consent of the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company.

16. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

16.1 Where any of the Said Liahilities-1 pertaining to Demergad Undertakings of Demerged
Companies, as on the Appointed Date, transferred to the Resulting Company/Transferce
Company have been discharged by the Demerged Companies after the Appointed Date
and prior o the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on
account of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company.
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16.2 Without prejudice to anything mentioned above or anything contzined in this Scheme, (
transfer and vesting of all employvees, contracts, legal proceedings etc. of the Demerged ! o H
Companies pertaining to the Demerged Undertakings as per this Scheme shall not affect
any transactions or proceedings already concluded by the Demerged Companies on or
before the Appointed Date or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end
and mient that the Resulting Company/Transferce Company sccepts and adopts all acts,
deeds, matters and things made, done and executed by the Demerged Companies as acts,
deeds, matters and things made, done and executed by or on behalf of the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company.

16.3 All the Said Lisbilities-1, incurred or undertaken by the Demerged Companies after the
Appoanted Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised, used,
incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of the Resulting Company/Transferes Company
to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon the coming into effect
of this Scheme and pursuant to provisions of Sections 230 t0 232 and any other applicable
provisions of the Act, shall without amy further act, instrument or deed be and stand
transferred to and/or vested in and/ or be deemed to heve been transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and shall become Said Liabilities-1 of
the Resulting Company/Transteree Company.

16.4 All such profits or incomes arising from the disposal or transfer of the Said Assets-1 of
the Demerged Undertaking of Demerged Companies, if any, afier the Appomted Date and
hefore the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been incurred or earned for and on
behalf of the Transferee Company.

17, CONSIDERATION

17.1 Upon coming into effect of the S¢heme, and in consideration of demerger of Demerged
Undertakings of the Demerged Companies with and into the Resulting Company
[ Transferee Company, the Resulting Company /Transferee Company shall, without any
firrther act or deed and without any further payment, allot its shares 10 the shareholders of
respective Demerged Companies in the proportion to their sharcholding 2s on the Record
Date based cn the entitlement ratio which each company syuny have as per the valuation
report obtained from Mr. Harish Chander Dhamija,” Registered Valuer No.

[RBIRV/03/2018/10088 as per the details given in Para 17.2 below.
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In terms of the valuation report the entitlement ratio is as under: ] é /

“B1 43% of total paid-up share capital to be tssued by Resulting Company! Transferee
Company ie 12,21,803 number of equity shares of Resulting Company’ Transferee
Company of Rs 100 each shall be issved 1o be shareholders of the Demerged
Company-1

6.16% af folal paid-up share capital to be ivsued by Resulting Company’ Transferee
Company te. 92,381 number of equity shares of Resuiting Company’ Transferee
Company of Rs, 100 each shall be issued to be shaveholders of the Demerged

Company-2. "

In order to maintain the optimum capital struciure in the Resulting Company/ Transferea
Company which shall be required to carry on the business, the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company has decided to allot paid-up share capital to the shareholders of the
Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies aggregating to Rs. 15,00,00,000/-,
which shall be divided into 1 5,00,000 equity shares with a [ace value of Rs. [00/- (Rupees
One Hundred only) per share. The said capital shall be allotted to the shareholders of the
Demerged Companies and Transferor Companzes in proportion to their shareholding in
the respective companies based on the entitlement ratio determined in the aforesaid
valuation report and in Para 17.2 above, afier giving effect to the cancellation of shares
on account of cross-shareholding between the Companics.

No share shall be issued in respect of fractional entitlements, if any, by Resulting
Company/Transferee Company at the time of issue and allotment of shares. [n case of any
shareholder’s holding in Demerged Companies is such that the said sharcholder becomes
entitled to a fraction of shares of the Resulting Company/Transferce Company, the
Resulting Company/Transferce Company shall round off the said enfitlement 1o the
nezrest integer and allot shares aceordingly.

The shares to be issued and allotted by the Resulting Company/Transferee Company in
terms of this Scheme shall be subject Lo the provisions of Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company and shall rank pari-passu for
dividend, voting rights and for all other benefits and in all other respects;

The issue and allotment of shares, pursuant to Clause 17.1 above ig an integral part of this
Scheme. The approval of this Scheme by the members of the Transferee Company shall
be desmed o be due compliance with the provisions of sections 42 and 62 and other

applicable provisions of the Act.
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183, ACCOUNTING TREATMENT ! (Ej s
In the books of Haldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limited, Demerged
Company 1

18.] Upen coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Demerged Company | shall reduce the book value of all assets and liabilities
including reserves pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, as identified by the
Board of the Demerged Company 1, and the same shall be transferred to the
Resulting Company and aceounted for as per the applicable Accounting Standard as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder and
generally accepled aceounting principles. ineluding any statulory medifications or
ve-enactments thereof.

18.2 The difference, if any, between the book value of all assets and liabilities including
reserves perlaining o the Demerged Undertaking, as identified by the Board of the
Demerged Company 1, shall be transferred and accounted for in the books of the
Demerged Company | in terms of relevant provisions of applicable accounting
standards,

In the books of Haldiram Ethnic Fonds Private Limited, Demerged Company 2

18.3 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date,
the Demerged Company 2 shall reduce the book value of all assets and liabilites
including reserves pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, as identified by the
Board of the Demerged Company 2, and the same shall be transferred 1o the
Resulting Company and accounted for as per the applicable Accounting Standard as
preseribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules made thereunder and
generally accepied accounting principles, including any statutory modifications o
re-enactments thereof.

18.4 The difference, if any, between the book value of all assets and including reserves
liahilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, as identified by the Board of the
Demerged Company 2, shall be transferred and accounted for in the books of the
Demerged Company 2in terms of relevant provisions of applicable accounting

standards.

the books of ing Com '

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the demerger of the Dememged Companies with
and into the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall be accounted for as per
“Pooling of Interest Method" provided under the Appendix C of “Indian Accounting
Standard (lnd AS) 103 for “Business Combinations of entities under common control”
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, as notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as may be amended from time to time.
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18.3  All the assers ineluding intangible assets. pertaining to the demerged undertakings |
of the Demerged Companies, as appearing in the hooks of the Demerged Companies ’ é‘ *?1
and Habilities of the Demerged Companies including reserves, if any, pertaining to
the demerged undertakings of the Demerged Companies, shall stand transferred in
the books of account of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company at their
existing carrying amounts and in the same form as appearing in books of accounts
a5 on the appointed date, in accordance with Ind AS103.

18.6 The identity of the reserves pertaining to the demerged undertakings of the
Demerged Companies shall be preserved and shall appear in the finencial statements
of Resulting Company/ Transferee Company in the same form in which they
appeared in the financial statements of the Demerged Companies and it shall be
aggregated with the comresponding balance appearing in the financial statements of
Resulting Company’ Trans{eree Company, in accordance with Ind AS 103

18.7 Inter-company balances and dues (pertaining to the demerged undertakings of the
Demerged Companies), if any, between the Demerged Companies and the Resulling
Company/ Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and covresponding effect shall
be given in the books of accounts and records of the Resulting Company/ 1ransferes
Company for the reduction of any assets or liahilities, as the case may be.

18.8 The difference between the camrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
Demerged Undertaking as recorded by the Resulting Company after considening
effect of Clause 18.5 and Clause 18.6 shall be recorded in terms of the applicable
accounting standards.

18.% Incase of any differences in the accounting policies between Demerged Companies
and the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed
by the Resulting Company! Transferse Company shall prevail and the difference
will be adjusted in the books of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company as per
applicable accounting standard.

19. REMAINING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANIES

19.1 The Remaining Business of the Demerped Companies and all the assets, properties,
rights, liabilities and oblipations thereto shall continue 1o belong 0 and be vested in
and he managed by the respective Demerged Companies and the Resulting
Company shall have no right, ¢laim or obligation in relation to the Remaining

Business of the Demerged Companics.

19.2  All legal, Taxation and other proceedings whether civil or criminal (including before
any statutory ot quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) by or against the Demerged
Companies under any statute, whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may
be institated at any time thereafier, and in each case pertaining to the Remaining
Undertaking of the Demerged Companies shall be continued and enforced by or
against the Demerged Companies after the Effective Date. The Resultmg Company
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shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation te any such legal or other { =
proceeding against the Demerged Companies. r 2 b

a

19.3 With effect from the date of approval of this Scheme by the Board of Directors of
the Demerged Compunies and the Resulting Company and up to, including and
beyond the Effective Date, the Demerped Companies:

i shall be deemed w have been carrying on and to be carrying on all the
business and activities relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Companies for and on itz own behalf

(i} all profits aceruing to the Demerged Companies thereon or losses arising or
incurred by it relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged
Companies shall for all purposes be treated as the profits or losses, as the
case may be, of the respective Demerged Companies; and

Gy all assels and properties acquired by the Demerged Companies in relation to
the Remaining Business of the Demerged Companies on and after the
Appointed Date shall belong to and continwe to remain vested in the
Demerged Companies,

FPART C
TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, PROFITS DR LOSSES,
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, EMPLOYEES CONSTITUTING BUSINESS OF THE
AMALGAMATING COMPANIES, CONSIDERATION, ACCOUNTING TREATMENT,
ETC. FOR THE AMALGAMATION OF AMALGAMATING COMPANIES WITH AND
INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY/ TRANSFEREE COMPANY

0. TRANSFER AND VESTING OF ASSETS

20.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appeinted Date and
subject to the provisions of this Scheme including in relation 1o the mode of transfer or
vesting, all property{ies), being movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, belonging
o the Amalgamating Companies including but not limited to properties, plant and
Machinery, furniture and fixtures, land and building, motor vehicles, office equipment
(whether freehold, leaschold, leave and licensed, right of way, tenancies and'or
otherwise), hank balances, bank accounts in the name of Amalgamating Companies,
remittances in transit, bank deposits against bank guamniees, inferest accrued on deposits,
security deposits (whether currenl or noo-cumrent), capital advances, prepaid expenscs,
deferred costs (whether current or non- current), cash and cash equivalents, interest
receivable, trade receivables (including trade receivables from the related parties),
ivesiment made in the shares, debenture or any other instruments issued by other
company, government, local authorities (including subscription made in the capital of any
partnership firm). unbilled revenue (including unbilled revenue from the related parties),
outstanding loans and advances (short-term and long-termy, if any, recoverable in cash or
in kind or for the valoe to be received including but not limited to loans and advances to
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suppliers, vendors, customers, staff, employees, others, balance with Governmental and
Registration Autherities, prepaid expenses (current and non-current), fixed assets,
inventories including goods in transit, finished goods, edvances, advance income tax,
income tax receivables, service tax credit receivables and refunds, deferred tax assets
(whether current and non-current), Goods and Service Tax (“*GST™) credits and refunds,
receivables, including refunds from Governmental and Registration Authorities, capital
advances, trade receivables, accrued interest, other current and non-current assets.
coninbution to gratmty fund, permits, approvals, autherizations, telephone connections,
telex. facsimile connections and installations, vtilities, eleciricity and other services,
reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of all agreements that are in force on the Effective
Date and all other interests, benefits, any other permits, approvals or anthorizations under
the applicable provisions of the Applicable Law(z), all past and present investments, if
any, including but not limited to investment in quoted and unquoted shares and other
securities of all descriptions of any corporate, mutual funds etc., other assets such as
computer software and hardware, routers, all types of furniture and fixtures, vehicles
(whether frechold or encumbered), office equipment, all types of lendmg contracts,
benefit of any security ammangements, reversions, powers, authorities, allotments,
approvals, consents, licenses, registrations, coniracls, agreements, engagements,
arrangements of all kind, rights, titles, interests, benelits, easements. if any, and privileges
of whatsoever natire and wherever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the
Amalgamating Companies (hereinaffer referred to as "Said Assers-2") and all
doecuments of titles, receipts and sasements in relation thereto or improvement, all nghts,
covepants, coptinuing rights, titles and interest in connection with Said Assets-d,
meluding control on the Said Assets-Z, shall, unless otherwise agresd between
Amalgamating Companies and Resulting Company/ Transferee Company specifically, be
transferred to and stand vested in andior be deemed 1o be transferred to and stand vested
in Resulting Company! Transferee Company in the mode and manmer as prescribed in
this Scheme on a going concemn basis pursuant to provizions of Section 230 10 232 of the
Act and all other applicable provisions of the Act and pursuant to the orders of the
Tribunal or any other appropriate authority or forum, if any, sanctioning the Scheme,
without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become on and from the
Appointed Date, Said Assets-2 of the Resulting Company! Transferce Company.

Without prejudice 1 the above, the IPR and Said Assets-2 of the Amalgamating
Companies, if any, shall stand transferred 1o and vested and be deemed to be transferred
to and vested in the name of the Resulting Company/|ransferee Company without any
further act, instrument or dead

Without prejudice to the above, in respect of the Said Assets-2, forming pan of the
Amalgamating Companies, including cash and bank balances, as are movable in nature
or incorporeal property or are otherwise capable of being transferred by delivery or
possession or by endorsement andfor delivery, the same shall stand transferred 1o the
Resulling Company /Transferee Company upon coming into effect of this Stheme and
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shall upon such transfer become Said Assets-2 of the Resulling Company /Transferee
Company with effect from the Appointed Date.

As far as the transfer and mutation of immovable properties, whether frechold or
leasehold, including but not limited to land and building pertaining to the Amalgamating
Companies, ansing pursuant to the approval of the Scheme, shall be given effeet to by
cxecution of separate instrument of conveyance, including but not limited o deeds of
conveyance or deed of assignment of lease or novation of the lease agreements by the
Transferes Company with the respective land owners. as the case may he, excouted on or
after the Effective Date, in favour of the Transferee Company/ Resuling Company. Tha
Transferee Company, for the purpose of payment of stamp duty, shall assign the value for
transter of such properiies, which wall be equivalent to the value as appearing in the books
of the Transferor Companies or market value of such property basis the circle rates
announced by the concemned revenue authorities in the State 1 which such immoveble
propeety situates, whichever is higher, notwithstanding the provisions concerning the
share exchange ratio as provided in the Scheme. The execution of such convevance, post
approval of the Scheme, shall be deemed to be considered as an integral part of the
scheme.

Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
statutory licenses including but not limited o permits, quotas, approvals, permissions,
clearances, incentives, consents and authorization orders and all other business
certifications and all other registration certificates issued to the Amalgamating
Companics wnder the Applicable Law(s) including but not limited to Sheps and
Commercial Establishments Act of the respective states where the establishments of the
Amalgamating Companies are situated, Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952, Contract Labour (Repulations and Abelition) Aet, 1970,
Employees’ State Insurance Corporation Act, 1948 andfor Grawity Act, 1972 and
pension and/or superannuation fund or benefits and any other funds or benefits created
by the Amalgamating Companies for the employees, any subsidies, concessions, grants,
special reservations, riphts, claims, leases, tenancy rights, libertics, benefits under
applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act. no-objection certificates, permissions,
approvals, registralioncum-membership certificates, consents, gquotas, rights,
entitlements, certificate of importer-exporter codes, allotment letters for importer exporter
codes, trade mark licenses including application for registration of trade mark, licenses
including those relating to privileges, powers, fecilities of every kind and description of
whatscever nature and other benefitz or privileges, if any (hereinafter referred to as “Said
Rights and Interests™), enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of and all rights and
henefits that have accrued or which may accrue to Amalgamating Companies, shall,
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable
provisions of the Applicable Law(s), for the tirne being in force, without any further act,
instrument or deed, upon the Scheme becoming effective, be and stand transfzrred to and
vested in and! or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be available to
the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company $o as to become on and from the Appointed
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Date, Said Rights and Interests of Amalgamating Companies , effective and enforceable r éi‘;’
on the same terms and conditions to the extent permissible under the Applicable Law({s)

for the time being in force and shall be duly and appropriately mutated or endersed by the

concernied Governmental and Registration Authorities therewith in favour of the

Resulting Company/ Transferee Company.

Z1. TRANSER AND VESTING OF LIABILITIES

21.1 Upen coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
secured and unsecured liabilities, borrowings (long-term and short-term), including
liabilities of every kind, nature and description, whatsoever and howsoever arising,
whether present or future, including contractual liabilities, guarantees (long-term and
short term), security deposits received, loans (including loan from related parties which
includes interest accrued), contingent lisbilities, non-trade payables, trade pa}rabtcé.
retention money, payables for purchase of property, plant and equipments, ereditors of
other fixed assets, letters of credit, etc., if any, statutory lizhilities/dues (whether disputed
or undisputed’, any kind of commitment or any other advances received (whether
disclosed or undisclosed), duties, term loans from banks and financial institutions, book
overdrafts, loan and advances (whether long-term or short term) from banks, customers,
revenue received in advance, statutory dues payable, povernment dues for taxes,
contribution o provident fund, labour welfare funds, trade payables (including dues from
related parties), shornt terms borrowing from the related parties, supplier credits, dues of
miero and small enterprises, staff and other creditors, dues of creditors ather than micro
and small enterprises, emplovee benefit pavable, others employees costs, long term or
short tenm provisions, advanee from customers, provisions (whether current or non-
current) including provisions for tax, gratuity, leaves benefits, expenses payable, deferred
tax liabilities, taxes, GST payables and obligations of Amalgamating Companies | other
current and non-current liabilities, if any, along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or
security thereon, if any, and those arising out of proceedings of any nature (heretnafier
referved to as “Satd Linbilities-2") shall also be transferred to and vested in or be deemed
0 be transferred 1o and stand vested, without any further act, instrument or deed in the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company pursuant to provisions of Sections 230 1o 232
of the Act and all other applicable provisions of Act and other Applicable Law(s) so as to
become said Liabilities-2 of Resulting Company/ Transferee Company and further, it
shall not be necessary 1o obtain separate consent of any third party or any person who 1s
a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Said Liakalities-2 may
have arisen and are to be transferred to the Resulting Company’ Transferee Company,

21.2 All loans raized and utilized or incurred as part of the Said Liabilines-2, if any, by the
Amalgamating Companies anytime after the Appeinted Date, but prier to the Effective
Date, shall be deemed to be the loans raised, utilized or incurred for and on behalf of the

R’:H-Ulﬁ.tlg Company/ Transferee Company.
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21.3 The borrowing limits, if any, of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall, (PL/‘
without any further act or deed, stand enhanced by an amount beng the aggregate of aid l’ v, f
Liabilities-2 of the Amalgamating Companies which are being transferred to the
Resulting Company/Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme and the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company shall not be required to pass any separate resolutions or
comply with any provisions of the Act, in this regard.

21.4 It is clarified that so far the said Assets-2 of the Amalgamating Compantes are concerned
which have the security or charge, encumbrance or lien, if any, relating to securing the
Said Liabilities-2 or any other obligations of Amalgamating Companies , shall, without
any further act or deed continue 1o relate to such said Assers-2 afier the Effective Date in
the name of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and shall not extend to any
other assets of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company. However, it is expressly
clarified that any such sccurity or charge or encumbrance or lien shall not be cntered to
as security in relation to any assets of the Resulling Company/Translieree Company, save
10 the extent as may he guaranteed or warranted by the terms of the existing security
arrangements to which the Amalgamating Companies is a party and consistent with the
joint oblizations assumed by them under such arrangement or atherwise as may be apgreed
to by Board of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company.

21.5 Resulting Company Transferce Company, whesever required at its own cost, shall take
all steps as may reasonably be necessary to enter into new or amended loan or security
agreements or instruments and the like as may be necessary with the lender, such that the
Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall assume sole responsibility for repayment
af horrowings.

21.6 With effect from the Effective Date and until such time the names of the bank accounts
of the Amalgamating Companies are replaced with that of the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company, the Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall be entitled to
operate the existing bank accounts of Amalgamaling Companics, in so far, as may be
necessary. The banks shall also allow and honour chegques or other bills issued in the name
of the Amalgamating Companies on and from the Effective Date.

21.7 Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding that vesting
of moveble and immovable properiics of the Amalgamating Companies with the
Resulting Company/Transferee Company occurs by virtue of this Scheme itseff, the
Resulting Company/Transferee Company, at any lime upon coming into effect of this
Scheme, may execule deeds of confirmation er other writings or arrangements with any
party to any contract or arrangement or memorandum of understanding to which the
Amalgamating Companies are parties, who specifically requires any such document
mentioned above, on the Effective Date, as may be pecessary to he executed in order to
give formal effect to the above provisions. The Resulting Company/Transferee Company
shall under the provisions of this Scheme and/or subject 1o necessary approvals require
under the Applicable Law(s) be deemed 1o be authorized to execute any such writings on
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behalf of the Amalgamating Companies to carry out or perform all such formalities or
compliance, referred to above. l __,] .

21, PROFITS, INCOMES, LOSSES AND EXPENDITURE

22,1 All profits or incomes including interest on deposits with banks, interest income elc.,
accruing or ansing to the Amalgamating Companies or loss or expenditure (including the
effect of laxes, if any) to the Amalgamating Companies on and any time after the
Appointed Date shall, for all purposes, be treated and be desmed 1o be and acerue as the
profits or incomes or loss or expendifure as the case may be of the Resulting
Company/tansferee Company.

22.2 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and as per the provisions of Section 72A and
other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act all accumulated business and tax
losses and unabsorbed depreciation of the Amalgamating Companies shall be transferred
to the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company. It is expressly clarified that all the
accumulated business and tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation as are transferred, shall
be eligible to be camied forward and set off in the hands of the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company in terms of the applicable provisions of the Income Tax

Act.

23. COMPLIANCE WITH INCOME TAX ACT

23.1 This Scheme complies with the conditions relating to “amalgamation™ as specified under
Section 2{1D) and section 47 and all other relevant provimons of the Income Tax Act. If
any terms and provisions of these Scheme are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with
the said provisions at a later date, including resulting from an amendment of Applicable
Law(z) or for any other remson whatsoever, then the provisions of such amended
Section(s) of the Income Tax Act or any other Applicable Law(s) shall prevail and this
Scheme shall stend modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with
conditions contained in Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act or any other Applicable
Law, as may be amended from time to time. Such modification shall, however, not affect
other parts of this Scheme.

14. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

24.1 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions and other proceedings including
legal and taxation proceedings (before any statutary or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal
or any court or arbitral body), i any, by or against the Amalgamating Companies pending
and/or arising on or before the Effective Date shall be continued andfor be enforced by or
against the Resulting Company/Transferee Company as effectually and in the same
manner and extent as if the same has been instituted and/er pending andfor arising by or
against the Resulting Company/Transferee Company. All risks and benefits aszociated
with such legal and taxation proceedings shall be given effect to on and from the
Appointed Date, upon coming into effect of this Scheme,
S Haldram Maorkeling Private Limited
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24.2 It 1s expressly specified that the Resulting Company/Transferee Company undertakes o
have all legal or other proceedings initiated by or against the Amalgamating Companies
as referred above, be transferred to its name and shall have the same continued, prosceuted
and enforeed in its name ' ‘:J /

15. INTER COMPANY TRANSACTIONS

23.1 Without prejudice to the above provisions, upon the Scheme becoming effective and with
effect from the Appointed Date. all inter-company transactions between the
Aimalgamating Companics and the Resuliing Company/Transferee Company, including
but not limited to:

a) any loans, advances, payables, shareholding, investments and other obligations
fincluding ame guarantees, lefters of credit, letters of comfort or amy other
instriment or arrangement which may give rise o a contingent lability in whatever
Serm) which are due or outstanding or which may become due at any time in future;
ar

b} any agreement'memorandum of understanding, executed amongst the aforesaid
Companies which are due or outstanding or which may become due at any time in
future,

shall stand cancelled as on the Effective Date and shall be of no effect and the
Amalgamating Companies and the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall have
no further obligation outstanding in that behall.

26. TREATMENT OF TAXES

26.1 Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, all taxes,
duties, cess pavable by the Amalgamating Companies (including under the Income Tax
Aet, Customs Act, 1962 or any other Applicable Laws), accruing and relating 1o the
Amalgamating Companies from the Appointed Date onwards, including but not hmited
to advanee tax pavments, tax deducted at source (“TDS™), tax collected at source ("TCS™)
minimum alterate tax (“MAT™) any refund and interest due thereon on any credits,
claims and exemptions shall, for all purposes be treated as advance tax payments, TDS,
TCS, MAT, any refund and interest due on any such credits, claims and exemptions or
refunds, as the case may be, of Resulting Company/ Trensferee Company.

26.2 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company/Transferee Company is
permitted to file or revise the returns of the Amalgamating Companies including bul not
limiting to TTIS renim, sales tax/value added tax returns, service tax returns, GST returns
and all other relevant returns filed with the Governmental Authorities for the period either
prior to the Appointed Date and/or period commencing on and from the Appointed Date,
to cloim refunds and interest due, if any thereon, credits, exemptions pursuant to
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provisions of this Scheme, notwithstending that the time period prescribed for filing/ r-"}
revision of such return may have elapsed. [ =T 2._

46.3 Upon this Scheme becomang effective, all unavailed credits, claims and exemptions, any
refunds, interest due there on, benefit of camied forward losses and other statutory
benefits, if any, in respect of income tax (including bui not limited te TDS, TCS tax
colfected af source, advance tax, book and tax losses efc. ), cenvat, customs, value added
tax., sales tax, service tax, GST ete. to which the Amalgamating Companies is entitled to,
prior to the penod of the Appointed Date, shall be available to and vest in the Resulting
Company/! Transferee Company, without any further act or deed.

2604 TDS, service tax, GST, if any, deducted by and/or charged to the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company under the Income Tax Act or any other statute for the time being i
force, in respect of the payments made by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company
to the Amalgamating Companies on account of infer-company transactions, assessable
for the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall be deemed to be the advancs
tax/ service tax/ GST cte. paid by the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and credit
for such advance tax/ service tax’ GST etc. shall be allowed to the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company notwithstanding that certificates or challans for advance tax/ service
tax! GST ete. being in the name of the Amalgamating Companies and not in the name of
the Resulting Company/Transferee Company. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the
Resulting Company/ Transferes Company is permitted to file and/ or revise tax returns of
the Amalgamating Companies (mcluding but not limited to imcome lax refurns
withhalding tax returns, TDS cerilficates, safes tax returns, value added fox returns,
service fax refurns, ST returns and other tax returns) for the period commencing on and
from the Appointed Date, to claim refunds and interest due, if any thereon, credits,
exemptions pursuant to provisions of this Scheme, notwithstanding that the time period
prescribed for filing/ revision of such return may have clapsed.

26.5 Without prejudice to the genzrality of aforesaid, any concessional or statutory forms
under applicable tax laws, or local levies issued or received by Amalgamating
Companies, if any, in respect of period commencing from the Appointed Date shall be
deemed to be issued or received in the name of the Resulting Company/ Transferse
Company and henefit of such forms shall be allowable o the Resulting Company/
Transferce Company in the same manner and to the same extent as would have been

available to Amalgamating Companies .

26.6 The Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, if
required under the Applicable Law(s), at its own cost, for the record of concerned
Governmental and Registration Authorities wha shall take them on file. The Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execule any such
writings on behalf of the Amalgamating Companies in order @ carmy out or perform all
such formalities or compliances referred to above on part of Amalgamating Companies.
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26.7 All the expenses incurred by the Companies in relation to the Amalgamation as per the

26.8

7.

271

terms and conditions of this Scheme, meluding stamp duty expenses, if any, shall be
allowed as deduction to the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company in accordance with
section 350D of the Income Tax Act over a period of 5 vears beginning with the previous
year i which this Scheme becomes effective.

Any refund under the tax laws due to the Amalgamating Companies consequent o the
assessments made on the Amalgamating Companies and for which no credit is taken in
the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall belong to and
be received by the Resulting Company/Transferee Company. The concemed
Governmental and Registration Authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of
and give credit for the same to the Resulting Company/Transferse Company upon the
passing of the arders on this Scheme by the Tribunal upon relevant proof and documents
being provided to the said authorities,

EMPLOYEES
Upon coming inta effect of this Scheme:

a) All stafl, wockmen and employees, if any, who are in employment of the
Amalgamating Cempanies on the Effective Date shall become the stall,
workmen and employees of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company with
effect from the Appointed Date on the basis that:

(i) their empleyvment shall be deemed to have been continuous and not
mterrupted by reasons of the said transfer; and

{ii) the terms and conditions of their employment aficr such transfer shall
not inany way be less favorable to them than those applicable to them
immediately preceding the said transfer.

b) It iz expressly provided that as far as provident fund. employee state insurance
plan scheme, gratuity scheme/trusts, leave encashment, superannuation scheme,
compensated absences, unavailed leave scheme or any other special scheme(s)
or fund(s) or trust(s), provisions for benefits created or existing, if any, for
henefil of staff / workmen / employees of the Amalpamating Companies is
concemed, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company shall stand substituted for the Amalgamating Companies
for all purposes whatsoever, related to the administration or operation of such
scheme(s) or fund{s) or trust(s) and ntent that all rights, dutics, powers and
obligation(s) of the Amalgamating Companies in relation to such scheme(s] or
fund(s) or trust(s) shall become those of the Resulting Company/Transferce
Company. It is clarified that the employment of employees of the Amalgamating
Companies will be treated a5 having been continuous for the purpose of the

92
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aforesaid scheme(s) or fund(s) or trust(s) including for the purposes of payment li.r:J_ L}

of any retrenchment compensation and ather terminal benefits. The Resulting
Company! Transferce Company shall file relevant intimations with the
concerned Governmental and Registration Authorities who shall take the same
on record and endorse the name of the Resulting Company/ Transferes Company
for Amalgamating Companies. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, all
contributions to such scheme(s) or fund(s) or trustis) created or existing for the
benefit of such employess of the Amalgamating Companies shall be made by
the Resulting Company’ Transferee Company in accordance with the pravisions
of such scheme(s) or fund(s} or trust{s) and Applicable Law(z).

18. CONTRACTS, DEEDS, RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

28.1 Subject to other provisions contained in this Scheme, all coniracts, deeds, lease deed, rent
agreement, understandings, bonds, guarantees, agreements, instruments and writings and
henefits of whatsoever nature, if any, to which any of the Amalgamating Companies 1s a
party and are subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date, shall remain in full force
and effect against or in Tavour of the Resulting Company/Transferse Company and may
he enforced by or against the Resolting Company'Transferee Company as fully and
effectually as i, instead of Amalgamating Companies, the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company had been a party thereto or beneficiary or oblige thereto
or thereunder, without any further act and deed.

28.2 Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarificd that upon this Scheme
becoming cffective and with effect from the Appomnted Date, all consents, agreements,
permissions, all statutory or regulatory licences, certificates, insurance covers, clearances,
suthorities, power of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Amalgamating Companies or any instrument of whatsoever nature including various
incentives, subsidies, schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or
pveiled by any of Amezlgamating Companies ., granted by any CGovemnmental and
Repistration Authority, or by any other persen, shall stand transferred 10 the Resulting
Company! Transferee Company as if the same were originally given by, issucd to or
executed in favour of the Resulting Company/Transferes Company and the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and
dufies thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the
Resulting Company/Transferes Comypany.

28.3 All resolutions of the Amalgamating Companies which are valid and subsisting on the
Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions
of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any
upper monetary or any other limits imposed under provisions of the Act, then the said
limits shall apply mutatis mutandis to such resolutions and shall constitute the aggregate
of the said limits in the Resulting Company/Transferee Company.
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1 il
29. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE | q o

29.1 With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date, the
activities of the Amalgamating Companies shall be subject to control of the Board of
Transferor Company and Resulting Company/Transferee Company shall be deemed o
carry on all their businesses and other incidental matters for and on account of and/ or in
trust for and’ or on behalf of the Resulting Company/Transferee Compeny with
reasonable diligence and due business prudence in the same manner as carried before and
shall not without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company/Transferez
Company, alienate, charge, mortzage, encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of any
of such said Assets-2 or such said Rights and Interests or IPR and their business
undertaking(s) or any part thereof, save and except that Amalgamating Companies are
permitted to continue to earry on thair business in the ordinary course of business or to
take any other decision, as expressly permitted by the Resulting Company/Transferee

Company.

202 All profits and cash aceruing to or losses ansing or incurred (including the effect of taxes,
if any therson), by the Amalgamating Companies shall for all purposes, be treated as the
profits/ cash, taxes or losses of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company.

29,3 The Amalgamating Companies shall not vary or alter, except in the ondinary course of
their businesses or pursuant to any pre-existing obligations undertaken prior to the date
of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of Amalgamating Companies, the
terms and conditions of employment of any of their employees, nor shall they conclude
settlement with any union or their employees except with the written consent of the
Resulting Company/ Transferee Company,

30. SAYING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

30.1 Where any of the Said Liabilities-? of Amalgamating Companies, as on the Appointed
Date, transferred o the Resulting Company,/Transferee Company have been discharged
by the Amalgamating Companies after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed 1o have been for and on account of the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company.

302 Without prejudice to anything mentioned above or anything contained in this Scheme,
tansfer and vesting of all emplovess. contracts, legal proceedings etc. of the
Amalgamating Companies as per this Scheme shall not affect any fransactions or
proceedings already concluded by the Amalgamating Companics on or before the
Appointed Date or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent
that the Resulting Company/Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds,
matters and things made, done and executed by the Amalgamating Companies as acts,
deeds, matters and things made, done and executed by or on hehalf of the Resulting

Company! Transferee Company,
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30.3 All the Said Liabilities-2, incurred or undertaken by the Amalgamating Companies after
the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised,
uged, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of the Resulting Company/Transferee
Company to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon the coming
into effect of this Scheme and pursuant to provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and any other
applicable provisions ef the Act, shall without any further act, instrument or deed be and
stand transferred to and/or vested in and’ or be deemed to have been transferred 10 and
vested in the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and shall become Said Liabilities-
2 of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company,

30.4 All such profits or incomes arising from the disposal or transfer of the Said Assets-2 af
the Amalgamating Companies, if any, afler the Appointed Date and before the Effective
Date shall be deemed o have been incurred or earned for and on behalf of the Transferee

Company.
3l. CONSIDERATION

31.1 Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, and in consideration of amalgamation of
Transferor Companies with and inte the Resulting Company /Transferee Company, the
Resulting Company /Transferce Company shall, without any further act or deed and
without any further payment, aliot its shares (o the shareholders of respective Transferor
Companies in the proportion to their sharcholding as on the Record Date based on the
entitlement ratio which each company have as per the valuation report obtained from
Wr. Harish Chander Dhamija, Registered Valuer No. IBBI/RV/D3/Z018/10088 as per the
details given in Para 30.2 below.

31.2 In terms of the valuation repont the entitlement ratio 15 as under:

“ 1 1. 80%4 of ioval peid-up share capital 1o be iseued by Resulting Comparny’ Trangferee
Company i.e. 1,76,269 number of equity shares of Resulting Company! Transferee
Company of Rs. 100 each shall be issued fo be shareholders of the Transferor
Compamny-J

2 equity shares owt of total pald-up share capital to be issued by Reswiting Company/
Transferes Company 1o be shareholders of the Transferor Company-2.

0.17% of total paid-up share capital to be issued by Resulting Companys’ Transferee
Company Le. 2520 mumber af equity shaves of Revulting Company’ Transferee
Company of Rs. 100 each shail be isswed to be shareholders of the Transferor

Compan-3.

0.42% of total poid-up share capital o be issued by Resulting Company/ Trangferee
Company ie. 6325 number of equity shares of Resulting Companyy’ Transferee
Company of Rs. 100 each shall be issued to be shareholders of the Transferor

Compary-4. "
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In arder to maintain the optimum capital strociure in the Resulting Company/ Transferes
Company which shall be required to carry on the business, the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company has decided tw allot paid-up share capital to the shareholders of the
Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies aggregating to Rs. 15,00.00.000/,
whach shall be divided into 15,00,000 equity shares with a face value of Rs. 100/~ (Rupzes
One Hundred only) per share, The said capital shall be allotied to the shareholders of the
Demerged Companies and Transferor Companies in proportion to their shareholding in
the respective companies based on the entitlement ratio determined in the aforesaid
valuation report and in Para 31.2 above, after giving effect to the cancellation of shares
on account of cross-sharcholding between the Companies.

The shares to be issued and allotted by the Resulting Company/Transferse Company in
terms of this Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Resulting Company/Transferee Company and shall rank pari-passu for
dividend, voting rights and for all other benefits and in all other respects;

The issue and allotment of shares, pursuant to Clause 31.1 below is an integral part of this
Scheme. The approval of this Scheme by the members of the Resulting
Company/Transferee Company shall be deemed to be due compliznce with the provisions
of scctions 42 and 62 and other applicable proviaions of the Act.

CLUBBING OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

As an integral pan of the Scheme, upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the authorized
share capital of Amalgamating Companies, as on the Effective Date, shall stand clubbed
and be added to the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company, as on the
Effective Date, without any further act or deed. The fee, if any, paid by Amalgamating
Companies hefore the Effcctive date on its Authorized share capital shall be set-off
against any fee payable by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company on increase in
Authorized Share Capital consequent upon coming into effect of this Scheme.

It is hereby clarified that the consent of the members of the Resulting Company
Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be sufficient for purposes of effocting this
amendment in the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the
Resulting Company/Transferee Company and that no further approvals or resolutions
under Sections 13, 14 and 61 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be
required to be separately passed, nor any additional registration fee, stamp duty, ete., be
pavable by the Resulting Company/ Transferse Company. Further for this purpose, the
filing fees and stamp duty, if any, already peid by the Amalgamating Companies on its
authorized skare capital shall be utilized and applicd to increased authorized share capital
of the Resulting Company! Transferee Company and shall be deemed to have heen s
paid by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company on such combined zuthorized share
capital. Further, the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall pay such fecs/ stamp
duty, if any. on the authorized share capital 50 increased after amalgamation.
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32.3 Pursuant to this Scheme, the Resulting Company/ Transferez Company shall file the | _
requisite forms’ documents with the RaC, if any, for alt=ration of itz authorized share 1 j;‘ﬂ

capital.

32.4 For the avoidance of doubt, it is herchy clarified that if the authonzed share capital of the
Amalgamating Companies or the Resuliing Company/ Transferee Company undergoes
any change, eiher as a consequence of any corporate action or otherwise, then the
authorized share capital to be specified in Clause V of the Memorandum of Association
of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company with effect from the Effective Date shall
automatically stand modified 1o take inte aecount the effect of the change.

33. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the amalgamation of the Amalgamating
Companies with and into the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall be accounted
for as per “Pooling of Interest Method” provided under the Appendix C of “Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 for “Business Combinations of entities uwnder
common control ™ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, as notificd under the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2013, as may be amended from time to
time.

331  All the assets including intangible assets in the books of the Amalgamating/ Transferor
Companies and liabilities of the Amalgamating' Transferor Companies including reserves,
il any, shall stand transferred in the books of aceount of the Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company at their existing carrying amounts and in the same form as appearing in books of
accounts as on the sppointsd date, in accordance with Ind AS103.

332  The identity of the reserves pertaining 1o the Amalgamating/ Transferor Companies, shall
be preserved and shall appear in the financial statements of Resulting Company/ Transferee
Company in the same form in which they appeared in the financial statements of the
Amalgamating’ Transleror Companics and it shall be aggregated with the eorresponding
balance appearing in the financial statements of Resulting Company/ Transferes Company,
in accordance with [nd AS 102,

33.3 Inter-company balances and dues, if any, between the Amalgamating’ Transferor
Companies and the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall stand cancelled and
corresponding effect shall be given in the books of accounts and records of the Resulting
Company! Transferee Company for the reduction of any asscts or ligbilities, a5 the case
rmay be.
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334 The value of all investments, il any, held by the Transferee Company in the Transferor —
Companies shall stand cancelled pursuant to amalgamation. ‘l F 'flf

335  The surplus/deficit, if any arising after taking the effect of clause 33.1, clause 33.2 and
clause 33.4 after adjustment of clause 33.3 shall be trarsferred in terms of the applicable
accounting standards.

33.6  In case of any differences in the accounting policies between Amalgamating/ Transferor
Companies and the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company, the accounting policies
followed by the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall prevail and the difference
will be adjusted in the books of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company as per
applicable accounting standard.

PART D
MISCELLANEOQUS FROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE PART B AND PART C
OF THIS SCHEME

34, DISSOLUTION ©OF TRANSFEROR COMPANIES) AMALGAMATING
COMPANIES

34.] Pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, the Amalgamating Companies shall, without
any further act or deed, stand dissolved without following the process of winding up.

35, UTILISATION OF LAMINATION AND PACKAGING MATERIAL FOR
MANUFACTURED PRODUCTS PURSUANT TO THE SCHEME BECOMING
EFFECTIVE

35.1 In this regard, it is expresshy stated that the inventory of packaging and laminating material
lying with the Demerged Companies, which penains to the Demerged Underlakings and
the Amalgamating Companies, including but not limited to corrugated’ sweet boxes,
laminates and/ or all other kind of packing material as required for packing of products
mentioned in mentioned in Schedule-3 forming part of the Demerged Undertakings and
the Amalgamating Companies will be allowed to be utilized by the Resulting Company/
Transferee Company until such inventory is exhausied by the Resulting Company/
Transferes Company in its ordinary course of business.

16. CHANGE OF NAME OF THE RESULTING COMPANY/ TRANSFERLEE
COMPANY

16.1 As an integral part of the Scheme, upon the coming nto effect of this Scheme, the name
of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company shall stand changed w "HALDIRAM
RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED" or such other name as may be decided by the Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company/ Transferee Company and approved by the
concerned RoC.
£ Hadiram Markeiing Private Limited
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The approval and consent of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferee Company
shall be deemed to be the approval of shareholders by way of special resolution under
section 13 of the Act for change of name of the Transferce Company as contemplated
hereit and shall be desmed to be sufficient for the purpose of effecting the amendments
10 the memorandum of association and articles of association of the Transferee Company
in relation to the change of name of Transferee Company in accordance with provisions
of the Act, The sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT shall be deemed and no further
resolution(s) would be required to be separately passed to be complying with the
provisions of the Act for the purpose of effecting the change in name of the Transferes
Company. Needless to mention that the Transferee Company shall reserve the aforesaid
name or such other name as may be decided by the Board of Director by [iling Reservg
Unigue Name (RUN) form or such other forms as may be prevailing &t the time of
approval of the Scheme by the NCLT and shall file all requisite forms and retumns with
the RoC.

RE-CLASSTIFICATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

As an integral part of the Scheme, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Companies proposed to be transferred to the
authorized share capital of the Transferse Company aggregating to Rs. 5.75,00,000/
{Rupees Five Crores Seventy Five Lakhs only) divided into 57,50.000 equity shares of
Rs. 10/ each fully paid up shall stand re-classified into 5,75.000 equity shares of Rs.

100/ each.

The approval and consent of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Transferor
Companies shall be deemed to be the approval of sharcholders by way of special
resolution under section 13, 14 and 61 of the Act for re-classification of its authorized
equity share capital as contemplated herein and shall be deemed 1o be sufficient for the
purpose of effecting the amendments in the memorandum of gssociation and articles of
association of the Transferse Company in accordance with provisions of the Act. The
sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT shall be deemed and no further resalution{s) would
be required to be separately passed to be complying with the provisions of the Act for
the purpose of effecting such re-classification and clubbing of authorized share capital of
the Transferor Campanies with the autharized share capital of the Transferee Company.

APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL OR SUCH OTHER COMPETENT
AUTHORITY

The Companies shall with all reasonable dispatch, make all necessary applications ancl’
ar pefitions under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as may
be pecessary) 1o the Tribunal, for senctioning the Scheme and for dissolution of the
Amalgamating Companies without winding up under the provisions of Law and obtain
all approvals as may be required under Law.
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39. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME l g ‘1'

39.]1 The Board of each of the Companies may assent to any modifications/ amendments
including withdrawal/ termination of the Scheme or 1o any other conditions or limitations
that the Tribunal or any Governmental and Registration Authorty or sharcholders or
Board of the Companies may deem it to direct or impose or which may otherwise ba
considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by their respective Boards. Each of the
Companies shall authorize their respective Boards to take all such steps as may be
necessary, desirable or proper to resalve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by
reason of any directive or order of the Tribunal or any Govemmental and Registration
Authority of any other competent authority or otherwise howsoever arising out of or by
virtue of the Scheme and/or to give effect to and to implement the Scheme, in part or in
whole, and/or any matter concerned or connected therewith.

39.2 Further, it is clarified that the initial consent of the shareholders and creditors (borh
secured and unsecyred) of the Companies to this Scheme shall in itself be deemed to be
sufficient to authorize the operation of the abovementioned clause of this Scheme and any
subsequent alteration would not require a fresh note of consent from such shareholders
and creditors.

40, CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
40.1  This Scheme iz and shall be eonditianal upon and subject to the following:

2. The Scheme being approved by the respective majorities of the Members and/ or
creditors of the Companies as required, ifany and as may be directed by the Tribunal;

b. The Scheme being approved by the regulatory authority(ics) as may be applicable
and required under any applicable act and rules;

¢, Obtaining the sanction of the Tribunal or such other competent authonty by the
Companies under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act; and

d. The certified or authenticated copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this
Scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the

Companics.
41, EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVAL

41,1 1In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred in the Scheme not being
obtained andfor complied with andfor satisfied, this Scheme shall stand revoked,

cancelled and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior
thereto as is contemplated hersunder or as to any rights and/ or liabilities which might
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have arisen or scerued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or
waorked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law.

In the event of revocation of the Scheme, no nights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue
to or be incurred inter se 1o the Companies or their respective shareholders or creditors or
employees or any other person save and exeept in respect of any act or deed done prior
thereto as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has
arisen or accrued pursuant thersto and which shall be governed and be preservec or
worked oul as is specifically provided in the Scheme or in accordance with the applicable
laws and in such case, each company shall bear its own costs unless otherwise mutually

agreed,

The Board of Directors of the Companies shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme prior
to the Effective Date.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXFENSES

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (xave as
expressty provided) of the Companies arising out of or incurred in connection with and
implementing this Scheme and matters incidental thereta shall be bome by the Resulting
Company/ Transferee Company.
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Schedule -1 I ﬁ 3

Schedule of Assets and liahilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking-1

Particulars As at November 30,
2023
()SH Business
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
Properly, Plant and Equipment 47.81,56,966.00
Capital Work-in-Progress 2,1945.423.00
Investment Property 41546 367.00
Other Intangible Asscts 2,73,891.00
Intangible assets under development 1.83.41.706.00
Financial Assels
- Investments 402 76,85.966,00
- Other Financial Assets 4,22,16,194.00
Deferred Tax Assets (MNet) 1?&&_,@55?1:”]
Current Assets !
Inventories 5.31,96.475.00
Financial Assets
- Trade Receivables 5,57,26,912.00
- Cash and cash squivalents 1,32.23,242.00
- Loans 20.78.40,000.00
- Cither Financial Assets 314.14.975.00
Cther Cumrent Assets 2,90,59,261.00
TOTAL ASSETS S15, 14 50, O 0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Other Equity 401,85 86,038.00
E LIABILITIES
" Non-Current Liahilities
Provisions 4,70,45,247.00
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings G4 50,00,000.00
- Trade and Other Pavables _ .
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 20,77,761.00
and small enterprises
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- Other Financial Liabilities 10,39,99.484.00 [ 5; L;f
Orther Liabilities 2.46,27.308.00 i '
Provisions 1,01.51,117.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 515,14,90,044.00
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Schedule of Assets and liabilities pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking-2

Schedule -2

oA
V1

PARTICULARS As at November 30, 2023
QSR Business

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sharcholders” funds

a) Share Capital M

b) Reserve and Surplus 32,41,20,415.00

Non-current liabilities

a) Long-term bormowings 33,4333.334.00

b} Dther Long-Term Liabilities 37,21,992.00

c) Long Term I'rovisions

53249,831.00

Current liabilities

a) Shorl Term Bomowings

35,46,43.2%1 .00

b] Trade Payables

A total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
Enterprises

B) tolal outstanding dues of ereditors ather than micro
enterprises and small enterprisss

39,75,14,289.00

¢) Other Current Liabilities

6.16,56,266.00

d) Short Ternn Provisions

1,06,15,547 00

Total 1,55,78.54,T65.00
SETS

Egé ;gggsgt ﬂﬁﬂl&
a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
1) Property, Plant and Equipments §5.05,34.780.00
i) Intangible Assefs 43 R R28.00
iif) Capital work-in-progress 61,39,789.00
iv) Intangible Assets under Development £5,03,000.00
b} Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 00,45 387.00
¢) Long Term Loans and Advances 11,23,02,341.00
Head Cxfice
g.:urrnnt assels
#) Inventorics 7,19.13,114.00
b) Trade receivables 21,51.80,319.00
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¢) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.33,80,271.00 %
d) Short Term Loans and Advances 8.54,68,936.00 F i A
Total 1,55,78,54,765.00
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Schedule
[ Tiems Packaging in the name of "[Name of the ﬁ
Company]”
All sweets boxes! packing material used in Haldiram Manufacturing Compary Privare
gweets/ other [ood products. Limited

All sweets boxes/ packing matenal used in Haldiram Products Private Limited
sweets/ other food products.
All sweets boxes! packing material used in Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited
sweets/ other food products.
All sweets boxes/ packing material used in Dreamcann Foods Private Limited

sweels! other food praducts. ) o I
All packing material used in food products. HR. Bakers Private Limited
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Valuason Report
for
Composite Scheme of Armangement
Amnoggst
Haldiram Manufacturing Company Privsee Limited
and
Haldiram Eshaie Foods Private Limited
and
Haldiram Marketing Peivate Limited
and
Haldi Ram Products Private Limited
wrvd
HR Bakers Private Limited
and
Habdiram Retail Private Limited
and
Dieamcann Foods Privets Limited
amd
Their respective Shareholders and
Credies
Undex Sccticn 230 0o 232 of The
Companies Act, 2013

Preparcd By

Harish Chanser Dhatis
FCA, ACS, IP and Registered Value
Registzred Valwer-Secunities or Financial Asssts

IBBI /RV/03/2018/10088
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Priwate & Confidential
FAAEROE! 37/44 West Punjabi Bagh
CHANDER Mew Dielhi 110026
DHAMIJA IBBI/REV/03/2018/ 10088
Registered Valuer SFA Mohile 9818427033
email 1D: harishdhamijaS T gmailcom

FCA, ACS, [P and Registered Valuer

Date: 20 May 2024
PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL

To,

Bozrd aof Dhrectots Boazd of Directors

Haldirsrn Manufacturing Company Private Limited HR Bakers Private Limited

Haldirar — Village Kherki Daola, Delhi [sipur Highway, Haldiam - Villige Kherkl Dauli, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basai Road, Gurgaon -122001, Haryana Gurgaon, Basu Road, Gurgaon -122001, Haryana

EBourd of Directors Board of Directors

Haldiram Ethmic Foods Private Limived Haldiram Fetarl Frivate Limined

Haldiram = Village Kherkd Daula, Delhi Jaipur Highway, Haldiram - Villgge Fherki Daols, Delhi Jaipur Highway,
Gusgaon, Basai Read, Gurgaon -122001, Haryara Curgeon, Basal Boad, Gurgaon -122001, Haryena

Bioaed of Directne Board of Directers

Haldirsrn Markoting Private Lirmited Diteasneans Foods Pevate Linited

Haldiram — Village Kherki Daula, Delhi Jaipor Highesy, Haldieem — Village Bheri Daola, Delhi Jaipor Highweay,
Gurgaon, Basal Road, Gurgaon 122001, Haryuna Gurgaon, Besad Rowd, Gragmon 122001, Haryana

Board of Disectoes

Hald Ram Products Povate Limited

Halfiram — Villge Kherki Daala, Delhi Jarpur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basal Rosd, Gurgaon 122001, Flarrana

Sibjeer Recommendation of “Share Exchange Ratio /Share Entitlernent Ratio® for the proposed “Composite
Echeme of Arrangernent”
Dlear Sirs,

We refer to the enpagement letters with the ul!l:l:l.':j_p;ﬂ!l:' { S Ve T o ""-l-'-‘-"::l.‘l!hr:lt'il'l the Haldiram
Manufacturing Company Provate Limdted, Halditan Ethnie Foods Private Limited , Haldieam Marketing Private

Page 1




190

Privame & Confidential

Limited , Haldi Ram Products Privare Limited , HR Bakers Private Limited , Haldiram Retail Private Limited and
Dreamcann Foods Privase Limized {rogether sefer w i “Companies™ /"Client” Jhave requested us to conduct relative
valuation , on a going conceen basis , in connection with propased Composite Scheme of Arrangement , pursaant to
the provisions of Sections 230 1o 232 and other provisions of the Companics Act 2013 /Rules and to recommend the
“Share Exchange Ratio /Share Entitlements Raro™ .

INTHOBLCTIHON MACEREISND Y INTENDED SR

It haz been informed by the management of the “Companics™ that there & o proposed Composite Scherme of
Arranyrement under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other spplicabie provisions of the Companies Act,
213 /Rukes , for

{ Demerger of the Demerged Undertakings (more particularly defined hereinafrer) of Haldiram Manufacrusing
Company Private Limited ("Demerged Company-17) and Haldim Ethnie Foods Private Limired ("Demetged
Company-2") wich and into Haldirm Marketing Private Limited [ Resulting Compary,’ Transferee Company”) with
effect from the Appointed Date

anid

(@i} Amalgamation of Haldi Bam Products Privatz Limited ("Transferar Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-17),
HR Bakers Private Limited (*T'ansferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Compeny-2', Haldiram Rerail Pavase Lirndted
("Transfesor Comspany 3/ Amalgamating Company-37) & Deeamcann Foods Prvase Limited “Transferos
Company-4,/ Amalgemating Campany-4"} with and intw Resulting Compeny/ Transferes Company with effect from
the Appointed Date,

Demerped Undetraking-17 shall means the QSR business of the Demerged Company-1 to be transferred to the
Resulting Company on geing concern hasis on and from the Appointed Date and Demerged Usdestaking-2" shall
means the (3R business of the Demerged Company.2 i be transfemed to the Resultng Company on ging concern
basis on and from the Appainted Dare. This is together referred as “the Transaction™. As per the draft Scheme of
Arrangement, a]l-l.hl:ac undermakings /companics belongs o same group and having commeon promoters. Our report
can cnly be used for above mentioned intended wse.

SRIFE AND PURTGSE O THIS BEMGR]

Cengidedng the aforesaid background, the underslgnad has besn appointed to secommend the “Shate Bnttlements
Ratio". As per the scope of work, we have to conduct the valuadon of "Diemerged companies, Undertakings”,
“Transferor / Amalgamating companies” and “Transferee Company” in complance with the provisions of Section
230 o 252 and other applcable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and %o provide the relative valustions and
also to recommend the "Share Enotlements Ratio” on proportonate basis | for the paoposad Composite Scheme of
Arrangement.  Accordingly, we have conducted the relative valunton of Trnsferor Companies, Demenred

Undertukings and Tonsferss Company.
Page 2
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This valustion seport s our deliverables to the above cagigements.  This vabation seport 15 subject to the sope,
sssurnptiona, caveats, imitatons aed disclamers deralled hersinafier. As such the wilisticen report Is ve be read in
sotality, and not i part, in conpncion with relevant documents geferred o theresn,

o e o By e W G o b 1 1 e

A S PR B R E GO B

31 Haldiram Manufsceosing Company Povare Limited ("Demenged Compry-17] 8 a privan lEmdbed company
incorporated under the provisons of Companses Act, 1956 {“Acr, 1956, i NCT of Dethi, on 3 June 1984, sndes
the name and style of JA] Manuficturing Company Private Limited’, The Dremerged Company-1, with effect from
4 September 1996, had changed its name from JA] Menufaceuring Company Prvare Limited” e ity present aame
i.c. “Haldizam Manufactusing Comgany Private Limited",

The Ragiural Directar (Northern Reglon] vide f oeder dated May 29, 2024 has approved the propossd shifting of
ragiatesed office of the Demerged company Company-1 from B-1/1-12, Mohen Gu-tiperative Industrsl Earse,
Aathuars R, Mew Diedhi, Indis-110044 to Haldiram -Villsge Kherki Daub, Delhi Jeipar Highway, Gueggon, Basal
Pk, Haryans-122001, Indis, The hoand of direcsors of the Demerged Company 1 vide it bawatid repalution has duly
aoted the s, The Demerged Conpany 1 has filed the requisite «forms INC 28 vide SRN AAXNTEGS with the
Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhd & Haryena and thus, has glven die effect to the shifting of regstered office
o Gurgaon, Haryann However, Master datn of the Demesged Company 1 a5 mzintaned by the Regstmr of
Companies, NCT of Delli & Hapana is yer w be updaterd Considering the eforesaid, the manggement of the
Dremerged Company 1 ks duly considered that the prisdiction of the Demerged Campany 1 fusr the parpose filing
rhis juint compiy pglicetion shall also be wih the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribuanal, Chandigarh Banch.

The Demesged Company-1 i8 engaged in the business of manufacrurers, producees, prcessors, dealers, mporers,
exprrters, buyers, sellers and agenes oF sll pes of sweets, sambkeens and all grpes of chip, hiscaits, bakery proaducts,
papads, pastrica, s, teffess, chocolates, milk prepacation of all kirvds, breakfase fonds, ceresl prodfucts, wheat fouwr,
matze Pous and wble delicous and foods steffs & Frubs & vegetsble pulp and thelr products & prepatation of every
such kind, nanere & descripricn.

12 Haldizam BEthnic Foods Private Limited {Demerged Company-2") is a private Emited company incorparted
under the provisins of A, 1956, in NCT of Delhi; on 16 Septemler 2000 under the aase and aryle of At hehe
Garments Privare Limited’. The Demesnged Company-2 had with effect fom 5 March 2012 had changed ire noma
from *Acsthedc Garments Prvate Lisnled' to s present tanse ie, ‘Haldiram Ethnic Poods Privare Limited",

The Demetged Company-2 vide arder dared 12 January 2024, issved by Regional Directaz MNorthern Regsan) shified
is registered office from MCT Delbi to the Srate of Harpuoa w.ef 3 Pebraary 2024 Presently, the registesed office
of the Demerged Compnny-2 is sinsted st Haldimm -Village Kherkt Dok, Dielhi Jaipar Highway, Guogaon, Bai
Road, Harpana-122001, India

Tlve Diernerged Company-2 is engagerd in the busines of muanubecninces, procuecers, dealers, buyees selless, importers,
exporters 2nd agents milk, sora milk, #is prodects and preparstions, cheess, o cream, curd ond ocher propamiins
of miilke cereak 2nd lentls inchding four and dal, swests, sopa socers, ramkeens, papads and confeetiuns mekading
bincuits, cakes, bresds, posries, mats, toffeer, choeohites and Fruit and vogetable and orker products and prepatation
af every kind, rwtare und description pelated theeeon, Corposate Ideanifiension Mumber of the Demerged Compangy -
2ia U131 ZZHRZEN TUIINTIL.
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3.3 Haldi Ram Produces Privace Limited {*“T'ransfesor Company-1/ Amalgamaring Company-17) is i private limited
conpany incorporated under the Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi an 29 August 1996, under the mame and style of HRB
Impex Private Limited”, The Transferor Company-1/Amalgamating Company-1, had wich effect from 10 Masch
1995 had chaaged its name from ‘HRB Impex Private Limited” 1o its present mame e ‘Haldi Ram Products Private
Limied'.

The Transferor Compuny-1/ Amalgimatiag Company-1 vide order dated 12 Janusry 2024, issued by Regional
Diirector (Mortheen Region) shifted i registered office from the state of Delhi o the Stae of Haryans with effect
from 20 Pebroary 2024, Presently, the regstered office of the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-T &
situated at Haldiram -Village Fherki Dagla, Delhi Jupur Highway, Guegaon, Basai Road, Harpans-122001, Indis,

The Transferor Company-1,/ Amulgamating Company-1 & efgaged in the business of exports and Imports of any
kind of goods which are permiltted by bw, of any tme and to carry on the business of imparness, exporiers, processor,
packers, commission agents, stockises, buyers and sellers in India or abrond of all types of food products, namkeens,
papads, sweets, plekes, syrupe, raw and Blended spices, all types of milk produces and preparations, sopa products,
woffees, chocolates ete. Corporate ldentification Mumber of the Transferor Company-1/ Amalgemeting Company-
1is U1 5490HR1996PTC119135

3.4 HR. Bakers Private Limited ™ Transferor Compuny-2/ Amalgarmsting Company-2") a provate limited Company
incorporited under the provisions of the Act, 213, in NCT of Delld, on 15 May 2017,

The Transferor Company-2/ Amakgamating Company-2 vide order dated 23 Decermber 2023, fssued by Regional
Disector (Northem Region) bud shifted it reglitered office From NCT of Delh to the Sute of Haryana with effece
from # February 2024. Presendy, the segisered office of the Transferor Company-3/ Amalamating Company-3 is
sitanted ar Haldizam -Village Kherki Daula, Dxelhi Jaipur Highway, Gurgaan, Guigon, Bassi Road, Hatyana, [ndia,
122001,

The Travsferor Company-2/Amalgamating Company-2 is engaped in the bosiness of manofacturess, hakers,
peodducers, dealees, bayers, seliers, importers, exporters and ageits of milk, sora milk, its products and preparations,
chewse, ice~cream, eusd and othes prepacations of milk, ceresls and lentils inchading flour and dal, sweets, soys sweets,
namkeens, papads, and confections including biscuits, cakes, breads, pastries, mus, toffees, chocolates, frair aad
vegetable and other products and prepamtion of every kind, nsture and desenpton related therean. Corporate
ldentificaion Number of the Transferor Compsny-2/ Amalzamating Company-2 is U15127HR201 TFTC1 14713,

43 Heldimm Remil Private Limited ("Transferor Compasy-3/ Amalgamating Company-3") s a privace limited
company incorporated under the provisions of the Aer, 2013, in NCT of Dehi, on 3 Apdl 2018 in the seme and
style of *Haldiram Reeail Peivate Limited',

The Transteror Company-3/ Amalgamatiag Company-3 vide order dated 23 December 2023, iasued by Regonal
Director (Morthern Region), had ghified its regussered office from NCT of Delhi to the Stace of Haryana with effect
from 8 Febroary 2024, Presently, the registesed office of the Transferar Company-2/ Amalgamaring Company-2 5
situated st Haldiram -Village Khetki Dacla Delhi Jaipur Highumy, Gurgaos, Baend Road, Haryass, Tndia, 122001,

The Transferor Company-3/ Amalgumaring Compasy-3 is incomporated carry on the business of restauranes, eafe,
Food plizas, fast foud juints, refreshment rooms and bakers and confectioners in Tndis and sbroad, further o carry
on the business of caterers & 1o open, establish, manage, Franchise Fast Fond centre, restearants of all kinds 2od to
ecrmmence and casry on the business of caterers both indoor or ourdoos inclading catering = farem howses, banqueds,
chebs, schools, hostels and clubs and to cwn build, operate, marage, ket-out, lease, sub-lease canteens, bakeries,
confectioners, milk bars, sweet ehops, ice crenm shops, ice cream padouss, powltey farms, piggery Farms, dadey farma,
cafeteriss, refreshment rooms, wmvemns, flight kitchers, caravan safagis, camping sites, inns and all other eatering
Pagre 4
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related facilities and activities including entering into franchise and have collsboration with any bocal ar for=ign parme,
Corporate.  Identification  Number of the Transferor Compuny-3/ Amalgamating Company-3 s
LI55209HR201EPTC118710,

36 Dyeamvesnn Poods Privare Limoted " Transfesnt Company-4/ Aralgarmeting Company-4 is pervate limised
Cenpany incotpocated under the provisions of the Act, 1956 in NCT of Delhi on 18 Awprust 2004, under the nams
#nd stfle of Tireamesnn Immigation Consuliants Private Limited”, The Teansferar Company-4/ Amalgamating
Compeny-4, had with effecr from 21 March 2005 had changed its name from *Dreamcsnn Immigeation Consultants
Prvate Limited” to 'Divcamcann Foods Privats Limited”,

The Traneferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company-4 vide order, dated § December 2023, isseed by Regional
Directar (Nesthern Regon) had shified its registered office from the NCT of Delhi to the Stace of Haryana with effect
From 8 Febraary 2024, Presently, the registered office of the Transferor Company-4/ Amalamating Company-4 is
situsted &t Haldiram -Village Kherld Diula, Delld Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Bassl foad, Haryana-122001, Tndia,

The Transferor Company-4/ Amalgamating Company4 & engaged in the busincss of producing, manuficruting,
procesging, preparing, preserviag, canning. refining of milk and milk bottles and buying & selling & deal whether s
wholesslzrs oo retallers or 28 exporters or imponters or as principals or ggents in all types of foods, Fraits, vegetables,
cils , spices, meat products, dairy produces, pouliry produees, eanned and processed foods, health foods, baby foods,
daberic foods, pulses, cereals, beverages, chocolates, beaads, confectioneny produgis, chewing pums, 1offees, dry fruits,
nankeens, fast foods, grains, bakery produces, serated minersl water and other food stuffs of every deseription for
humin sonsumption. and to carry on the business of epesating and managing restavrants, cafes, health cares, haotzls,
binquess halls, beer & bar house, carerers, amusement patk, recresticn ceneres, sparts facility, gymnasums and spas
etc. Corporate Idemtificarion Number of the Transferor Company-4/ Amalgumating Company-d s
U74140FR2004PTCH ET09. The Transfiror Company-4 &5 & wholly coned subsidiary of the Demerged Company-1

3.7 Haldiram Matketing Private Limited (“Resulting Company,/Transfesee Company™), 4 privae lmited company
incorporated under the provisions of Act, 1956, in NCT of Delhi on 16 March 1982, under the name and siyle of
‘Champion Advestising and Marketing Private Limited”, The Resulting Company, Transfezer Company had with effect
trom 20 February 1992, changed its mme fom ‘Champion Advertising and Marketing Privare Limited" to its present
narne i.e. ‘Haldirsm Marketing Private Limited',

The Resalting Company/ Trarsferce Company vide ordee dared 12 Janoary 2024, issued by Remonal Dineceor
(Morthen Regioa) shifted its registersd office from the NCT of Delhi o the Swate of Haryans with effect from §
Febraary 2024, Presently having is repistered office sivaated or Haldiram -Village Kherki Dauls, Delld Jaipur Highway,
Gurgaon, Basal Road, Harpsoa-122001, India,

The Resulting Company/ Transferes Company is engaged in the business of manefacturers, producers, processors,
dealers, imporiers, sxporters, buvers, gellers and agents of ull types of sweets, nambkeens and all types of chip, biscuits,
bakery products, papads, pastrics, nuts, toffees, chocolstes, milk prepamtion of all kinds, breakfust foods, ceresl
products, wheat flour, maitze four and table delicious and food stuffs & fruit & vepemble pulp and their producrs 3
prepamation of evesy suweh kind, naturc & descipdon, Corposase Identdficaton Number of the Regulting
Company,/ Transferes Company is UT4899HR19RZPTC1 18712
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The Companies, belonging to same group and having commeon promocers, are engmed i guick-scovice restaurang
("SR} business which includes setting up and maintenance of restauranis, cafe, food plazss, fast fod joing,
tefreshment rooms and bakers and confectioness. Further, the Companies are involved in opening, establishing,
manRging restaurants of all kinds and to carry ua the business of ninnirg banquets,

Nore, in order to ootmize and leverage the resources of all the Comparies, the mangement eontemplates to upecale
QSR business in one enuty. Hence, e management of the Companies have decided to consolidate the said ISR
business of all Companies into the Resubring Company / Tiansferee Company, 30 November 2023 is cansidered as
the “Viluation Dare”,

Detmerged Comparses

Upen coming into cffect of the "Composite Scheme of Armangement” and in consideration of demezger of Dememed
Undestaldngs of the Demesged companies with and inro the “Transferce Company™, the “Transferes Company” based
on “Share Encitlemente Ratio™ may dllot i equisy shares on o proportionate basis w ech oquity shareholder of the
Demesged Comparnies.

Amalgamating companies

Upeca coming inta effect of the Schene, and in consideration of amalmmarion of “Amslgamarng Compantes™ with
afd inte the "Transferee Company™ the “Transferee Company” based on “Share Entitlements Ratio™ miy allot its
equity shares on a propomionare basis to each equity slarcholder of the “Amalgamating Companies™,

PARTICULARS OF THE DRI TR AR (1M 3 MOVEMHBER 2024

Directors of Heldiram Manufacturing Company Private Limised

SMNo. | Name of Ditcctor DTN Dicaigmtion Dare of Appaintment
1 | Mr. Packaj Agarwal 00011364 Managing Direcios NN
2 | Mr. Manohar Lal Agarwal OOZH0780 Dircetor 17.12.1954
3 | Mz Anand Agarwal w0411z Direcror 01.06.1999
4 | Mr. Ashish Agarual 00011486 Ditector 01.07.2006
5 | M Ritu Agarwal 00011462 Director 01022020
6 | M, Prareek Tiwar 0B395275 Disecior 01.10.2020

Page & D,
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Directoes of Haldiram Ethnic Foods Privare Limitad

195

SNo. | Name of Director DIN Diesignation [ Date of Appointment
1 | Mr. Manoher Lal Agareal | DOZ9G7ED yT——— 19.01.2012
[ 2 [ M Anand Agarwl 00014112 Direcior 09.01.2012
3 | Mz Ashish Agarwal 0011486 Director 01.05.2M2
4| Ma Manj Devi Agarwal B0011430 Dicector 01082014
5 | Mt Anumg Gupts 09694178 Director 06.08.2072
Diirectoes of Haldirsrs Products Private Limited
5 No. | Name DIN Designation | Date of Appointment
1 [ Mr. Madhu Sudan Agarwal 00011316 Managing Director 15.03.1997
2 | Mr. Umesh Agarwal 00011472 Whele dime Directos 01072008
3 | Mr Satish Kumar Kanshik (5260545 “Directoe 01.07.2019
4 | Mz Vijay Mangla DO505005 Directar 2122021
Drizecrons of HR Bakers Private Limited
5. No. Niie DIN Dhesiacie ﬂﬁL
1 | Mr. Madhu Sadan Agarwal 00011316 Disector 15.052017
2 | Mr. Manohar Lal Agarwal 0029078 Dhrectar 15.05.2017
3 | Mr. Ashish Agarwal 0011486 Diirecsor 15.05.2017
Bl
Mk Page 7
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Drrectors of Haldiram Retad Prvate Limited
5. Mo, Masne DN Desigration ﬁpf::lt:;im
1 | Mr Ashish Aparwal DO 1446 Drrecior (3.04. 2018
2 | Mr. Umesh Agarwal 00011472 Direcior 03042018 |
3 | Mr. Pankksj Agarwal 00011384 Dhirector U/3.04.2018
4 | Mr. Amit Aggarwal 000 1400 Director (B.04. 2115
Directors of Dresmcann Foods Privase Limited
& Mo MName DN Deesigration EPE::;‘:ZM
1 | My Pankkaj Agaras] D00 1384 Director 27072014
2| Mr Amit Aggarwnl 00011400 Driseczur 11.06.2020
3 | Mt Tarun Verma 0BET3205 Dirextor 04.02.2023
4 | Ms Amisha Agarwal 00011440 Dhirector 01.10.2022
Directors of Haldirnm Markesing Private Limited
. Dute of
& No. | Mame DN [Dresignaton —_—_
1 | Mr. Manchar Lal Agarual OCEZ907ED Director 22.02-1992
2 | Mz Amit Aggarwal 00011400 Managing Direcros | 01-06-1999
3 | Ma. Sumdtra Agarwal 00011417 Whale time Director 01-10-2005
4 | Mx Amisha Agacwal 0001 1440 Director 01-04-2016
5 Mr. Ssnjeev Yuday 08213458 Diirectue 0400 2018
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OF THE COMPARITES

The Share Capital of the Companies a5 at 30 November 2023 i a5 unden

Company

Aurthosized Share Capiral

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up
Share Capital

Haldiram  Manulfacturing
Company Peivare Lipnited

Ba. 1710000000 diwided into 1,10,00, 0N
equity shares of Bs. 10 each

Rz 1017E2660 divhkdsd b
1,01 78,266 equity shares of Ra 10

eaxch

Haldiam Ethaie Foods
A

Rs. 1,100,000 divided inea 11,010,000
equity shares of Rs. 10 esch

Ha 0, M,630 dinded into 6,29 463
copaity shares of Ra, 10 each

Haldi Ram Products Privaie
Licaited

Rs. 250,00000 divided into 25,0000
hr.l.l.qrt}ln.m:-n-fm lﬂ:m;h

Ras, 92 20,000 divided inoo 9,238 000
equity shares of Ra. 10 each

HE Bakers Privare Limited

Rs. 10000000 divided imto 10,0000
equity shares of s, 10 sach

Bs. 10000000 diwvided into
10,000 equity shares of Rs, 10
exch

Haldirzm  Hetzil Provae
Limnires]

s, 1000000 divided into 100,000 equity
whores of Hs. 10 =ach

Bs 1000000 divided ineo 1,00,000
cquity shares of Bs, 10 each

Dreamcann Foods Privae

Re Z1500,000 divided mto 21,50,000
cquity shares of Ka, 10 each

Bs. 200,50, 050 divided e
L5, 00% equatyshares of Re. 10
ach

Rs. 110000000 divided into 11,00,000
equity sharcs of Rs, 100 each

Rs. 5,953,122 %00 divided into
595,228 equity shares of Ra, 100

ench

The detsils of shareholdess of the mmp-aniu 44 o 30 Mowember 2025 ane summarised belorss

Haldisam Manufacraring Cormpany Privane Lirmdted

4 MNo. | Name Mo of shares % of Sharcholkding
1 | M/s Radhe Krishna Trust 54.74,119 53.18%
2 M/ Annapusna trust 36,01,489 25.56%
i Mz Panlckaj Agreraral 0000 (35%%
4 Mr Amie Apgraronl I 35,000 0.34%%
T | Mr Anand Agrwl 35,000 0,547
§ | Mr Ashish Agarwal 4.53,750 F46%
7 M Urnesh Agarwal 4,53.730 & 6%

FPage &
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Haldiram Snacks Provate Limited 10,08,326 091 %
Haldirarn Marketing Private Limited 13,166 0.72%
10 Haldiram India Privare Litrieed 3,666 0:04%
Total 1,01,78,266 1007
Haldirarm Exhnie Foods Private Limited
8. Mo, | Name Mo of Shares % of Shareholding
1 M /s Radhe Krishoa Truse aanran 3365
2 M/s Annspurna thist 180,443 2B6T%
3 Mr Anand Agarom! 10000 15005
4 | Mr Pankka) Agarwal 10,001 149%
5 Mr Amit Apgarwal 10,000 1.56%
G Mr Umsh Agarwsl 20,001 3.18%
© 7| Haldiram Snacks Privare Limited 1 0.00%
B | Haldiram Marketing Private Limited 1 000
Haldiram Manufacoasing Co  Pr
e | N e 59,152 9.40%
Lirmited
MLE. i i & s P
10 Equipmsen Warchowsing  Private T G
Lirmieed
Tol 6,20 463 100%
Haldiram Products Private Limeted
5 Mo Marme Moo of Shases Pmnm_ge of Shares
1 Sl-'ll'jﬂ_ Indea Limited 93,600 10L1E%
2 L %*Hmmﬂ Megufncicing Company Pvate 45,500 495%
3 Haldirem Sracks Provete Limited 45 600 4.95%
4 Haldiram Maorketing Private Limited 454600 4.95%
5 M/s Radha Krishos Truse 350,400 3583%
& M/s Annapurna Trost 361,200 39.17%
Taenl 023 000 100
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HE Bakers Private Limited
5.No. | Name of Shereholden: Mo of Shares Percentage
1 | M/s Radhe Krishra Trus 547,000 54.70%
2 | M/s Annapuens Trust 4,53,000 45.30%
Total 10,0001, 00 fLE
Haldiram Retsl Private Limited
5. Mo Mame of Sharcholders Ten., of Shares Percentage
1 | Mr At Aggsrwal 25,000 25.00%
2 Mr. Umcsh Agarwal 25 000 25.00%
3 Mr. Ashish Agnrwal 25, 004 25.00%
4 M. Pankks) Agarwal 25 000 25.00%
Totl _ 100,000 100%
Dresmcan Foods Private Limited
SHMo. | MName of Shareholdors Mo of Shares Percentage
1 Haldirem Manufsctunng Company 005,004 100.00%
Private Limited .
Mr. Muncshar Lal Agaranl-Momines of
i Haldiram Manufacuring Company Private 1# ¥
Limited * |
Haldmatn Marketing Privame Limited
3. Mo, | Mamc Mo, of Shares Percentage of Shares
1| Mr, Manohar Lal Agarwal 17,000 ZA6%
2 Mr, Madbu Sudan Agareal 3,300 (155%
3 Mr. Anand Agarowal 30000 (.535%
% | Mr. Umesh Agarwal 18,702 247
5 M/s Badhe Krishns Trast 213,262 35.93%
i M/s Annapums Trost 39,303 B.60%
T | Mr Amit Aggarwal 25,000 4.20%
§ | M Ashish Agarwal 250 1397
) Mr Pankka) Agarwsl 26,73 4 495
10| Haldiram Seacks Private Limited 103,576 1740%
Haldiram Manufacrecing Company Private
1 Litvised 1.0, 5040 | 17.56%
Total 5,095,239 100

Page 11
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71 Retail Inflation: In April 2023 Inteerations] Monetmty Fund {IMF) refeased its Warld Eeonomic Outlouk seport,
in which it has tevised its forecast fior India's retail inflation and growth rate for the fiscal year 2024-25. The IMF
now expects India's retail inflagon wo be at 4.9% for the fscal year 2023-24 and 4 4% for the fiscal yesr 2024-25

9.2 Gross Diomestic Prodoce The Intemational Meoetary Fund (IMF) has eevised India's Gross Domestic Product
{GIP} growth fotceast for the fnancial yesr 2023-24, lowering it by 20 beasts points v 5.9 percent. This lavest forecast
is slightly bebow the Reserve Bank of Lodia's projection of 6.4 pereene. The INF has also revised lts growth forecst
fot India for the fscal year 2024-25, lowering it 1o 6.3% from the eatlicr projecton of 5.8% that was made in January
2023,

As per this report India rermaine the fastest-growing economy in the world, despite a significant drop n growth rae
projections from 6.8% in 2022 to 5.9% m 2023, In contrxst, China's growth eate is projected to be 5.2% in 2023 and
45% in 24, againat a growth rate of 3% in 2022.While India’s growth rate projection for the next fiscal year has
been lowersd, it is etill higher thar most other major economies in the workd,

81 Indizn food secviees sector

The Indian Food services seetor has been in 4 consistent growth phase since the last decace, owing w0 various fectors
such us grester penetration of crganised food chains, rpid urbanisstion, highes disposable incomes, intemet
penctration, growing popularity of online delivery, greater frequency of eating out and o poung working population
smong others. Like many sectors in India, the food services sectar is akio being deiven by its millennial population

(15-34 years).

8.2 Indin QSR sector
Quick Sarvice Resuarans

Quick Service Restaurants, (J5R, offers food that does not require moch ome for preparztion and would be served
instantly, Most of the tme, the cheing even offer beverages and drinks thar complement the food items, Chacke
Service Restaurants ape the chain models, Mest of the resturants are estblished whese the footfall remains
mazimmam, that {5 why these Q$Hs are neas (o movie thestre o shopping malls. To reduce cooking time, the food
itesns are prepared centrally in the kitchen. The last step of heating and assembiing the food and another assortment,
such as sances and dips, will be done on locasion. It is the only way the restaurant serves the food In & Fster way,

The (SR market in India bas grovwn siyrificandy in tecent years. It has been o gain in the market ghare from the
unorganised sectot owing to & natard shift in consamer prefesences toward reasonably priced, easlly aceessibk and
hygienic meals. Additionally, the robust omaichannel neranrks Bke deive-thru, on-the-go, web applications and
oeline pastnerships with delivery aggregators allowed the {J5Hs to reach ot 1o their customers anywhere, aoytime.
This trend collectively bed to a faster and betier secovery of the QSR chain sectoe.

Page 12
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As stated abeave thers has been a higher preference for hygiens and contactless defivery. This angurs well for food
companies invessed in wechnology ss faster adoption of technalogy in customer engagement has allowed
establishments 1o serve their cuspmers better theough fasser and contacless delivery, Bexible payment options and
attractive offers,

3.3 Croowih dervers -OSR

Miurket Dynamics: Market dynamics are forces that impact the prices and behaviours of Indias Quick Service
Restaurants Markee stakeholders. These forees create pociag signsls which result from the changes in the supply and
demand eurves fior a given product or service. Forces of Magker Dynamics may be refated t0 macro-econamic and
micro-sconomic factors. Thete are dynamic market forces other than prics, demand, and supply. Human emotions
can also drive deciatons, influence the markat, aril creane price-sigriaks, i
Evolving consumes behaviour In the rocent past there has a significant shift in consumer prefesences towards quality,
hygiene and safery. Digital penetraion has led 1w increased adoption of new channels aad customer intesfaces,

Furtherrooee, cost-conscicusness and regional taste preferences are leading 1o higher demund for relevant menu
opticns. The structural changes in consumes behavigur led to a massive shift in the marker strochere, a3 the organised
muarket grew more than the uncrgised market and onlfine ordering charmnels as envissged grew at 3 much fastes
pace than offline channeld propelling the growth in ddivery and takesway channels,

Grerwth of the young population: Iadia has & popaladon with more then 50 per cent ander 25 years and moee than
65 pex cent under 35 years, India’s sverage age in 2020 is 29 years, compared to China's sverage age of 37 years and
Japan's average age of 48 years. Young adalo (1835 yoas) cnjoy eating cut and even consder fast food to be
delecmble, and they spend a significant amoant of their income on it People in dhis age range are ideal customers
frar the QSR chain which makes the prowth of this sector more significant. People expect their food to arive quickly
when they vigit o restaurant.

Rising ineome levels: India’s per capirs net national income (at cusrent prices) for 2022-23 stands at INR 172,000,
accarding to estimates from National Stetistical Office NSO, The access to greater disposible income would Jead
b more frequent discretionany spending such & cating out and ordering m. Moreover, affordabric real estate prices
hove tliowed QSRS fo venmre beyond metros and penetrase smaller towns and cities.

Urbasisation: As of 2020, around coe-third of India's popolation was likely bving m cites, By 2031, 75% of India’s
nathomal income is expected to come from cities.,

Online delivery: Daling ordering windows have been enhanced with the time. Now ver-11 and tier-IT citizs will
have the same comfort and privilege. The quick-service restaurunt 16 expanding its busness, and even third-party
vendors have spread their base in Indis, There has been a huge boost in the online food delivery secror. It can lso
be eald that wies-fiendly delivery apps and wch-srmbled merwocks Have migaeeei] (e grsai fod 055 sCgmcn
Alternate channels: Restaurants are offesing and promoting services in alternate channels such as dove-thn, online
delivery, appe, go and takeout, The populaniy of these channels has helped boost consumption,

Page 13 _blﬂ. >
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84 Industry Report-QSR

India's Quick Service Resmnrants Market can be segmented based on Service Type and Cutlet) by Service Type,
the market s classified into Self-Serviced, Assisted Self Serviced and Pull Serviced (ifjby Outlet, the markes is
clagsified ineo Single Chadet and Franchise Chain.

s per Besearch and Marker, India's Quick Service Restaurants Markes b catimated w be USD 16,72 Bo in 2023
ard is expecred wo reach USD 32.22 Bn by 2028, growing at o CAGR of 14.2%

o VU SN R P B E

The distribation and we of the Valuation Repert is restricted to the Client and w approprste authorities m
conniection with comphances of the meuirements of stues 43 stajed abuve, i requized. The Valuation Repore
ghall not be distributed to puizide partics 1o obiain coedic or for any other purposcs. Possession of this rzport docs
not caEry with it the r.igh'th Fuhlil:u.l:inn. of all ar Pﬂ.rl:nfi.t,nu-: may it be pttl'.l'iﬂﬂd 10wy thisd parties othee than
in commection with required fudiclal procedares. We do oot assume any labdbity, obligatan of acesuntability to any
unanthorized third-party users of this report under any droumstances,

I IDENTITY OF TEEVALUPER AND ANY OTHER EXPERTS /VALDERS INVOHLNVED

Mame of the Valoer Harish Chander Dhamija

Addsess of the Values 37744 West Punjabi Bagh, New Delhi 110025
Contart Demil TB18427033

Email address harsbed barmdja 57 (E@gmindl com

Qualifications FCA, ACS, IP and Registered Vafuex-SFA

IBET Registration Mo IGRL/RY /03, 201841 0088
Independence and Disclosure of lnsetest The undwlgnudisauj‘mdcpmdmtﬂhm There i 0o

eonthicr of interest. I iz ferther stated dhet nerther the
andergigned noe the relaives [associates sre relited or
asgociaied with the companics

Any other experts /valuers involved Mr. Ramn Dev Garg Registered Valuer - Land &
Baildicg heving IBBl  cegistoaton  oummber
BRIV OESZ01 10809 amd o Aasllabh Ieilocal
Repistered Valoer - Plant and Machinery having TBBE
repismation number-IBBL/RY,/11/2021 /13986 have

been iovulved i the Viluadons.
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OF ATPOINTAEST, VALUATION TIATE AN IATE O REPORT

Particulars Dharess)
Dhage of Appointment of Yaluer by the respective
Hoard of Directors
Hildsram L;Emuﬁtuuiug Company  Private 25 March 2024
Lirnited
Haldarum Ethnic Foods Privare Limined 25 March 2024
Haldiram Marketing Private imited 25 March 2024

[ Flald: Ram Prodacts Priverse Limited 25 March 2024

| HR Bakers Private Limited 25 March 2024
Haldirarm Retail Prvate Limired 25 March 24
Direamcann Foods Prvate Limited 25 Murch 2024
Waluation date 30 Movember 2023
Date of the Valuation Report 24 May 2024

INSFECTIONS AND INVESTIGA TIOMS LANEDIETARL M

Web Site of Ministry of Cotporate Affairs (MCA) visited to carry out the inspections of various documents filed
by the Companses as considered necessary in eonneetion with perfosmance of cur dutes.

4T O ST AR ITAR DS FOA T Crse i T

131 International Valuations Standasds issued by International Valnations Standards Couned have boen followed
mchuding the following specific aandacds:

W5 1M Beope of Work
IV5 102 Inwestigations and Comglianice
IV5 103 Reporting

IVS 14 Bases of Vale

Page 15
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VS 105 Vahistion Approaches and Methods
TVS 200 Business and Business Interest
TVS 210 Intangible Asset
TV5 500 Financeal Instrements
13.2 Vakuation Base  and Premise of Vahe

Valation Base: Valuation base means the indication of the type of value being used in #n engagement
Differen: Valuaton hases leads o different conchisions of Value,

Considering the purpose and natare of proposed “Scheme of Armngements' we have considered Fair value as
the waluatiom bases.

Prermise of Valee: Premise of value refers oo the conditions and circummstances how an assetis deployed. Based
an purpose of valuation, we hove consdered Golng Coneern Value for Undestakings / Companies being
vaheed, as the Premizes of Value,

123 Relurive Valuaticn

In mansactions of the namare of () merger or smalpmation of compandes or (i) mesger or demerger of business
undertakings, the consideration & often discharged primarily by issue of secunitics in the nature of equity of the
acquirer or wansferee entity with reference m an exchange mtio, considering the relative values.

uch relative valuss are genemlbly artved at by applying an sppropriste valuaton spproaches. If o combinadon

of waluaton approaches or methodologies is adopted, sppeopnat: wilghtapes are ssslgned 1o areive ara single
wabae, Relative values are usually derived by using similas valuation approaches, methodologies and weightages.
Use of differing methodolsmes or approsches may be justfied in some circumsinees.

In the present case, we have determined the Valaton independentdy but on a relative basis , and without
considering “the ‘Transsction” by applying the spproprate valuadon approaches and methods a8 descobed in

MNATURE ASTYSOUREHS OF DATA ISNPORM AT DISTTLE AT EECEY ™

The valwstion exescise is based on the following informatinn which has been received from the managements and
infoemation available in the public domain and have been relied upon by us

i, Audited Financial Statements (Buhince Sheet and Profic & Loss Sratements) of Demerged Companies,
Amalzamsting Companies and Resulting Company for the Anancial years ended 31 March 2021 31 March
2022 and 31 Mageh 2023

ii, Urandited Provisional carved oot Financial Statements of Asssts and Liahilives of Demerged Undertakings
as on 30 Movemnber 2023 along with Estirmated Financials Seatements of Demerged Undermkings for the

Page 16
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period feom 1 December 2023 to 31 March 2024 and Projected Financisls for a period of nexe 5 financial
veare From 2024-25 po H)28-29,

Provigional Financisl Smtements of Haldi Ram Products Povare Limited, Amalpamating Company 1, for
the period from 1 Apell 2023 1o 30 Movember 2023, Petimared Financials for the perod from 1 December
Z23 rr 31 Muaoch J024 and Projected Fitandals for o period of next 8 financial pears from 2024-25 m
H2B-Z5,

Urnanadited Provisional Financia! Statements of HE Bakers Povace Limited | Amalpamating Company 2, a3
on 30 November 2023

Unaudited Provisional Financial Statements of Habdiram Betail Prvase Limited, Amalgamating Company
3, a8 an 3] November 20123,

Provisional Finaneial Statements of Dresmeann Foods Private Timited, Amalgarmaring Comparny 4, for the
period from 1 April 2023 to 30 November 2023, Estimated Financials for the period from 1 December
2023 po 31 Mareh 2024 and Projected Financizls for o period of next 5 pears from 2024.25 to 20830,
For Valeation of Plant and Machinesss, Electrical Fittings, Farnitere and Fistute, Offlos Equuiptmants and
Computer of HRE Bakers Privare Limited, Amalppmanng Company 2, a5 on 3 Sovember 2023, the
Vabuation Repost isucd by M. Ashish Mitml Registered Valuer - Plant and Machinery Regiscraton
rnumber-THBI/RY /11/20@1,/1 3980,

For Valustion of Land & Bullding of Haldiram Retmil Privete Limited, Amalgamating Company 3, as on 30
Movember 2023, the Valuation Repom issued by Mr, Ratan Dev Garg Regismred Valuer - Land & Building
Regrstration number IBBT/RV /0272019, 10829,

Draft Composite Scheme of Arangement under Sections 230 - 232 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Crhier Sources of information —Dhaa aveilable ar Peblic Domain

The busineas and Fundamental factoes that affect its earning-gencmting copability including strengarhs,
wealnesser, opportunity and thrests anabyde have been enalyted.

Orther relevant details regarding the companies such as their history, past and present activitics,

Food Industry Reporrs have been amlysed and co-related with the financial projections provided by the
munagement and whese ever requited, have also been normalised.

W'e have obtained explnations and information considered necessary to our exercise from the exeoutives
and representatves of the Companses.

The Companies have heen provieed with the opporminine to review the doaft valuaton report {exchiding
the Fair Value) for this sngapgerment, as part of oor smndard practice, o make sure that the Bomal
insccurmcies /omissions are avelded In oor Final Valuation Reporct.
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PHOVCERDERES- AL P TED TN GARBY TG OTET T HE ASSPGNEME R

i Receipt of proposal for determination of  Fair Valuations for the purposs of propossd Comgposite
Scheme of Arrangemen:
i Discossion with the management and scceptance of the propoaal,

1k Receipt of Intimation aboot appointment and acceptance of propossl.
.  Providing the checklist for required information, documenits and financial statements,
v Receipt of informadon, decoments, Besnocial propections as pes the checklst

vl  Collection of additonal documents and ohtining thie valuation reports from other experts
for Land 8 Buidings and Plant & Machineries, a5 detsiled in our report,

vii  Performing analysis to evaluate all inputs and assumptions and their appropriateness fos the
waluation purpose and apphication of appeoprate Valuation Approaches snd Methods.

vl Finalizarion of Valoaton and “Skare Entitlements Rara®,

APPROACHES AMND SEPMIODE OF VALLIEA TN

16.1 For the purpose of valarion, generally following approsches can be considered, namely

*  Darker Approach

o Income Approsch
®  Cost Approach
6.2 Market Appruach

The market approach provides an indicaton of value by eomparog ehe asset with ideniieal or comparable {that
is similar) assets for which price infommarion & available, Thete are two common merhods ender Marker

Appeoach

Comparable Transsctions Method
“The comparable tmanssctions method, also known as the guideline tansactions method, utilises information on
tmnsactions involving assets that are the same or similar to the subject aset to ardve at an indication of value.

Guideline publicly-traded comparble method
The guideline publicly-treded methed wtilises information on publicly-traded comparables that are the same or

sgmiflar to the subject asset fo arrive 2t an indication of value,

e
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We have not come aceoss any identical or comparable transaction(s). Purther the " Demerged Undertakings/
Companies™ onder consideration are privare limited companics of divisions of privae Emited compunics.
Therefore, in the absence of identical or comparable transsctions and publicly traded comparables, the maret
appeaoch has not been consddered for the purpose of Relative Valkmtions,

16.3 Income Apptoach

{ijValaoon under Income Approach & dependent upon the fitture free cash flow. The valuation can be done
by applying Fres Cash Flow for Firm (FCFF) ot Free Cash Flow for Equity (FCFE). The projected cash flows
are ussd with smtstcal n:cl‘u‘:iquu-Djatmmﬁurmum the reflecoon of wme valpe gfmnr.}' and wagous dali
irwalved.

{if)Discounted Cash Flow Methed {DCF)

In case of Free Cash Flow for Frm, DCF method uses the furare free cash fiows of the company discounted
by weghted average cost of eapital (WACC). DCF method is a strong valuaton tool as it concentrates on
eash generation potential of a business, This method is based on the capability of & company to generae csh
flors in the future. The free cash Bows are projected for 3 discreste period and then discounted at appropriate
discount rate that reflects o company”s cost of capital and risk associated with the cash flow it peneranes,

{ii) Application of Income Approach

‘The income approach should be applied and afforded significant weight under the fallowanr crocumstinces:
{a) the income-producing abiliey of the assee is the critical element affecting valae and/or (b reasonable
projections of the smount and ommg of fiture income are svailable for the subject agset, but there are few,
if any, redevant marker comparsbies

In the cugrenr “Transaction” ;| Haldisen Manufacturing Company Povate Lindeed, HMCPL, Haldiram
Etheic Foods Privare Limited, HEFPL, Haldi Ram Products Povate Limeed, HPPFL, Haldirem Markeong
Private Limited HMPL and Dircameann Foode Povate Limited -DFPL are actively eagaged i operating
activites including ER sctivities and the proposed demenges of undertshkings famalrmmations would be on
gakng cancem basis.  In these cases, the income producing ability of the assets are cotcal, Purther the
manggement has provided the reasonable finaacial projections of these companies. Based on the analyus, we
hive considered appropoate to apply Income Approach through DCF medhod using Free Cash Flow for
Firm for valuation of these aboine srared demerged nndermkings and amslgrmadng oom panies,

) DCF method analysis is based on the following clements given under the bead "Valumtion Methodology'.

rli:T' Page 19 M-
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Valuation Methodology
L] Projectons for explicit forecast period of five vears
. Selection of Risk-Free Rare
* Computsten of Equity Risk Premiuen
» Determination of Market Volatility theough computation of bem
. Assessments of Company Specific Risk Premium
L Compatation of Apptoptate Discount ate
® Determinarion of Tesminal Values at the end of the explicit forecsst pedod throogh Goedan
Girowrth Method
- Applhying the discouns rate to the forecasted fiare cash flow and the terminal vakue
= Addition of Mon-Cperating Aseets
. Sanity checks
{m) DCF Method:
DCF method is surnmarised belras

Free Cazsh Flow from Firm -FCFF

The valugticn has been done based on estimared and  projected financils fos the period from | December
2023 to 31 March 2029, Free Cash Flow has been computed after considering the capex and  working

capital,

The projections provided by the managements have been snalysed and normalised whese-ever e
congidered approposte. It has been informed by the mansgpement shat the “Demesped Undermkings and
Amilgamating Campanies® have o sgnificane contingene lishiliries. Hence no adjustments ars sought to
ke made on this account

(k¥ Terminal Value

The Terminal Value Le, the present value of o poing concern beyond the period tw infinity has been
camprated by applying Gordon Growth Method ood Considering the perpetusty growth at 3%,

(c) Weighted Average Cost of Capital -WACC
Pant I': Computation of Cost of Equity Capital:

Cost of Bquity Capital has been computed as per Modifed Capital Assets Prcing Model,

e
e e i,
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Cost of Bquity Capital = Fisk Free Rate Rf + Bets (Equity Risk Prermium) +/- Company Specific Risk
L]
p‘l‘El'l'EI'l:l:m.

Rf = 7279 % -Yield on 10 Years (GOI Bonds Source hetps:/ fin.investng.com,/rates-bonds, india-10-
year-hond-eld-histomcal-data

Beta -represents the volutlity in the stock market

Bema =1.06 Source: Professor Demodaran for Restaurant and Dirming

The Levered beta has been computed for the respective companics by applying dee fallowing  fammula
Levered Betn =Unlevered Beta * {14(1-Tax Rare) *D/E} where D is Debrand E is Equity  Cagital

Exquity Risk premium has been computed at 3.35.% based on CAGH of 10.63% for S&P BSE Sensex
over 1 period of kst 3 years.

The spedfic compaty sk 15 desenbed as “unsystematic risk™, This sk measures the uncertainty of
returns adsing from charscierstics of the Ewdustry sid the individual company. It is necessary to compare
the fArmncisl analyeis of the company o the ndusery financial analysis and Gnally, to sescss sddidonal
eompany specific rizk based on the financial analysss of the company. A thorough analysis of the
company's tisk ratios and how they compare with industry norms can help denrify these compaey-specific
risks.

Gererlly, the mote diversified 4 company is in terms of products, customer base, grographic loeatians,
etc., the kess the sk compared o other companies. . Such factors often include key-man issues and
management depth and compeence On the basis of financial analysis of these “Undertakings
/Cotnpanies™ and assessment of SWOT analyss, impact of sdditonal positive and negative or negative
factors have been considered, Company Specific Risk bas been computed and considered ot 4% for
Haldsruen Masubacturing Company Prvate Limited 5% for Haldi Ram Products Private Limited, 7% for
Haldiram Marketing Private Limited, %% Dresmcann Foods Privare Limiosd snd 10 % for Haldizam
Etlnic Foods Peivare Limited.

Part [1: Foemala for Computabon of Cost of Diebe
Cost of Debt (1-Tax Rare)

The Income Tax Rate has been considered ar 25.17 %

Bt -
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Par IIL: Formuala for Calculadon of WACC

WACE = Cost of Equity * E/(DD+E) + Cost of Debt * D/ (D+E) where I is Diebt and E is Equity Capital
WACC has been compused for the compandes by considering the above formula 2t 14.83%, 15.13%, 14.64%and
17.29 % and 15.68% for HMCPL, HEFPL, HPPL DFPL and HMPL respectively.

Mid-Year Comvention: In the Mad-Year comvention, it is sssumed that the company”s cash flows acrive hal feay

throngh sach yess/pesiod sther than at the end of yeor/petod. Under DCF method, while compuatation of
present value of free cosh flow we bove considered the concept of Mid-Year Comventon.

{d) Haldi Ram Products Private Limited has made the investments is the queted shases, Muual Funds , Angle Funds

=}

and preference shares . The quosed poces as on the date of valuation kave been considered for Bsted shares,
For Investments in Mutosl Funds, we have relied upon the confirmatons and the Investmant in Venture Fands
and Angel Fands. NAV has been eongidered based on the Provision Financials of the respective fuads. . Par
valuation of prefesenee ghares we have analysed the latest financials of the companies and considered dhe cost
of invesrmnents i preference shates as fair vahoe for the purpose of valuation,  (Refer Anaesore I10)

Dhiscount for Lack of Markembility DLOM and Discount for Lack of Contral DLOC

While conducting fair valungong, where ever appropriate, we have apelied DLOM (@ 20 %, Fuarther, a5 per the
*Compaosite Scheme of Armngement™ there would not be any change in the contol. hence Discount fior Lack
of Control bag not been considered as appropriate.

The resultans company 18 holding the equity shanes repeesenting 0.72% and 4.95% shareholding in HMCPL and
HFPL. While computing the Fair Vatustion for the purpose of allorment of the ghates | the valoaton
corresponding 1o-above mentoned sharchaldings has been excheded. The workings for Yaluagons of HMOPL,
HEFPL, HPPL DFPL and HMPL as per Discounted Cash Flow Method are placed a0 Aanexures T, T, 111, VI
and YII sespectively.

164 Coat Approach

16:4.1 The cost approach provides an indicatan of value using the cconomic principle that 9 buyer will pay no
mose for an asset than the cost oo obmin an asser of equal wiility, whether by purchase or by construction,
uribesa wndue Hme, Inconvenience, dik, or other fuctoes are involved,

This approach provides an indication of vaboe by ealenlating the {f) cusrent replacement ar (1) reproduction
cost of an asset and making deductions for physical detenoration and all other relevant forms of obsoleseence.

Based on discusslon with the management, 1t was concluded that as in the case of HR Bakers Private Limised
amvd Habdiram Retail Private Limited, the management is not able w rasombly crimate the finre growth
prospects And cashfiow from the operations and have not provided us the fnanchl projections of these two
companied. Hence, Income Approach cannot be adopted For celative valuation of these companies.  As stased
abone, in the absence of market comparalle ransactions, publicly tracled comparables, the Marker Appouech
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hass ot applied for vahuston of HR Bakers Privare Limited and Habdiram Rerail Private Limited, In thess cases
it has been considered appropriate to apply Cost Approach, for eompusation of fair value of HR Bakers Peivate
Limited and Haldiram Retil Prvate Lirndted as detailed below .

Privase & Confidential

I -Fair Valoation of HR Bakes Privais Limdted

Valuation of HR. Bakers Private Limited as per Cost Replacement Method hat been conducted, As per Cost
Repiacement Method, the equity value of HR. Bukess Private Limited has been detezrmined ot Neguéive (Rs Six
hundred Minety T lace and Eighty Eight thousand), (Megative Bs 692,88 Lacs) . There are two sharehobders
of HR Bakers Privare Limited. Thercfore, for the purpose of compatation of propertion for allomments of shares
by transferes company, it is recommended that “Transferee Company™ to allot one equity share to each of it
shaseholder of HR Bakers Private Limited.

Vahsation Report dated 25 April 2024 issued by Ms. Ashish Mital Regisered Valuer - Plant and Machinery
{IBBI registration munber- TBEL/RV/11,/2021 /13966) for HR Bakers Privare Limited has been considered and
relied upon.  The demiled workings with notes are placed at Annexuse IV

1T -Fair YVaboatson of Haldimm Beotsl Privare Limied

The working for Valuaton of Haldiram Retsil Private Limired as per Cost Replacement Method are placed at
Anaexure V. As per Cost Beplacement Method, the Equiry Value of Haldieam Retnil Private Limited has been
computed at Bs 133,88 Lacs.

Note: Valuadon Report dated 2 April 2024 isued by Mr. Ratan Drev Grarg, Registered Valuer - Land & Building
having segistrution number [BB1/AY,/02/2019/10839, has conduced the valuation of Lend & Building of
Haldiram Retail Prvste Limiced has been considered and refied upon.

VATEATION STERAATRY

The Fair Valoation of the Demenged Undertakings, a3.on 30 Naversber 2023, has been sommarnised beloar

Company Book Valwe as on 30 | Fur Value as on 30 November Reference
MNovermnber 2023 of | 2023 of the Demeged
Demerged Undermkings
Undermakings in | in Rs/Lacs
Bs/Lacs
Haldirnm  Manufacruring 40185.89 G4822 468 Annexore 1
Haldiram  Ethmc  Foods 524120 A9(8. B3 Annexang IT
Privare Limired
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The Fair Vahiasion of the Amalgamating Companies, as on 3 November 2023, has been summarised below:

Company ‘Equity Share Capital and | Fair Beuity Value as on 3 | Reference
Free Reserve & on 30 | November 2023
November 2023 of Amalymmsting Companies
As per Books of in Rs/Lacs
Amalgamating  Compadnies
in Re/Lacs
Haldi BRam Products 6244.93 D403 59 Anneware 1T
Privaee Limited
'HR  Bakers Prvare 67217 [692.88) Anncware [V
| Limited
Haldiram Retil Prvase 7.1 13358 Annexure W
Limited
Direasmennn Foods (535,05 3608 Amneware W
Private Limied

The Fair Valuation of the Teansfesee Company, as on 30 November 2023, has been sumemasised below:

Compaty Equity Share Capital and | Pair Equity Valuc as on 30 | Relerence |
Free Reserve Novemnber 2023 of Transferes
1 on 3 MNevember | Compuny in Bs/Lacs
0
A= per Books of
Trunsferes Company in
Es/Lacs
Haldiram Marketing Private TT1247 1168443 Annemoure VI
Limited

RESTHICT HY NSO TSEOF THES RETORT

This reporr hus been prepared for the pusposes stated hesein and should not be relied upon for any other
putpose. Our client 15 the ualy authorized wser of this repor and & restriceed for the purpose indicated o the
engagement better. This reseriction does not precleds the client from providing 4 copy of the repaote o thind -
party advisors whose roview would be consistent wich the intended wse. We do not ke any sesponsihility for
the unauthorized use af this reporn,
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i SIGNITICANTASSEMPTIONS, CAVEATS, LIMETATIONS AND  DISCELATMERS

This Vahation Report has been isswed on the specific request of Company for dereemining the Share
Entitlements Ratio on propamionate basis for the said proposed Composite Scheme of Amangement in
sceordunee with the Companies Act, 2013 ard Rules thereof. This Report Is prepased exclasively for the
sbove stated purpose and muast not be copled, disclosed or ciroulated or referred o in costespondence or
diecussion with any other party. Meither this report noe it content may be sed for any ather purpose
without ouf prior whiten conseant.

The determination of Fair Vilsation is not a science. The conelusion arrived ot in many cases will, of
necessty, be subjective and depends on the exercise of individual judpements, There is, thetefore, no single
undisputed Fair Value . While the undersigned has provided the opinion on the share exchange ratio based
on infornstion svalable and withan the scope of engagement, others may have different opinion.

The responsibility for the fnalisation of “Share Entidements Ratio/Share Bxchange Ratio™ is of the Board
of Diirectors who should rake into account other factoss such as their own amessments of the proposed
demetger and mesger gansaction and inpuss of other advsors,

The mansgement and representatives warmnied o the undersigned that the information ther sapplicd is
complete, accurate and true and correct w the best of their knowledge. We have relied upon the
Hepresentations of the Management concerning the financial and other information relating o proposed
Composite Scheme of Arrangement. We shall not be lisble for any loss, damages, cost ar expenses
arising from Fraudulent gets, misrepresentstions, ar willful default on part of the companses, their

directors, employes o agents,

We have relied on dara from external sources to conclade the Fair Valuation. These sources are believed
to be reliable and therefore, we assame no Eability for the wath or accomcy of any dat, opinions or
escimates furnished by others that have been used in this analyss, Whese we have relied on data, opinions
or cstimates from external sources, ressonable care bas boen tken 1w cnsure that such dam has been
carrectly extracted from those sources and or reproduced in it proper form and context,

While the seope of work has involved an analysis of Anancal nformation and sccounting reconds, our
engagement does not inclade en sudit in sccordance with penerally accepeed auditing standards of the
slivnt oxisting business reeords, Accondingly, the anderigned azsumc no responsbilny and make no
sepresentations with respect o the seoaracy or completeness of any informagion provided to us Our
report is subjece w the scope and linititons dewsiled hereinafier. As such the repart Is to he read in toeslity,
and pot in parts, in conjuaction with the relevant documents referred 1o herein and in the contest of the

putpose for which it is made.
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The undersigned assumes that the “Undertakings and Companies™ fully comply with relevant laws and
regulations applicsble in all their arcas of operations and unfess otheraise stated, and that these
“Undeftaldngs and Companies™ would be managed in o competent and sesponsible manner. Further,
except as specifically stated wo the contmry, this repost has given oo consideraton to maters of regalamcy
nature, tax natore and legal noture, inchuding issues of legal dtde and compliance with Jocal lows, and
Etigartions and other contingent hiabilities thar are not recorded in the audited and provisional Anandal
sratements of the companies and demesged undettnkings.

Thiz repore does not look inw the busises and commerdial resrons behind the proposed Composiee
Scheme of Arrangement. Similasly, it does not addiess the relative mens of the proposed scheme as
compared with any other altettutive business transaction or other alternative or whether or act such
alternative could be achicved or are availlable

An analysis of such nature is nocessanly based on the prevailing stock matker, financial, economic and
other conditions in general and indusry wends in partdealsr 25 in effect on and the information made
wailable to us 25 of, the date Iereof, Bvents occurning after the daie hereof may affect this repors and the
assumpiions used in prepanng it and oe do not assume any obligaton w update, rovise or reaffinm this
Hepost.

The undersigned don't have present or planned fumre interest in the Company and the fee for this
Valation Report & not contingent wpon the walues reported herein. The Share Entitlements Ratio on
propordonate basis , containted herein is not intended o represent the value ind proportion at any time
other than the date that is specifically stated in this Report.

The undersigned owe responsihility to Board of Directors of client companies, under the terme of the
engagement lenter. The undersigned would not be Gable for any losses, clabms, damages or lsbilities arsing
ot of the actons taken, omissions cr advice given by any wther sdvisor to the companics. In no even,
the eodersigned woald be liable for any loss, damages, cost or cxpenses arising in any way from fraundulent
acts, misrepresentations of willful defanlt on part of the companies, their directors, employees ar ageats.
We do nor accept any liability 1o any third party in relation to isseance of this report

_bk.
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The Fair Valaton of "Demerged Undertkings -1" of Haldiram Manufacrodng Company Private Limired, “Demenged
Undertzkings -2 ™ of Haldirsm Ethnic Foods Private Limited and Faie Fepity value of Haldi Ram Products Peivate Limnited
{"Trensteror Company-1/ Amalgamatissy Company-1") ,HR Bakers Private Limited ("Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating
Cotapaay-2") , Haldirnm Reenil Privare Limiced {“Transferor Companr-3/ Amelgamering Company-F7) Drcamean Foods Privatc
Lirited (*Transferor Company—4/ Amalgamating Company-4") and Haldiran Masketing Privare Limited iResalting Company,/
Transfesee Company ) by applying the appropoase valuation approaches snd methods have been determined and the summary
of Recommended “Share Entitlements Ratio /Propomion ™ along with the recommended rumber of squity shates 18 ghven
beforw:

Company Haldicam I';i:mlfa-:m:ing Company
| _ Privae Limited (“Demerged Undertaking -1
Dreseription Fair Walue of | "Weight Fair Valae =
“Demerped weight
Undestaking 1"
Rs/Lacs
Market Approach A MA MNA
Incame Approach GAOTZ AR 00 452364
| Cost Approach MA A A
Hedasrve Valuation in Rs /Lacs GRS
Wearkings are given in Aanceure Number Annesie |
Resaltunt Company is recommended tor allot its exquity
shares in the Propertion (%) 81.45%
Resultant Company s to allot Number of Equity Shares to 1221808
the shareholders of Demerged Company 1

Dl
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Company o Haldiram Erhnic Foods Privare
Lenited (" Denerged Undermbing -2")

Deseription Fair Valoe of Weighe Fair Vakuz x

HDemened weight

Undertaking 2"

Rs/Lacs
Market Approach NA NA NA
Eome Approach A8 B3 100 408,83
Cost Approach DA NA NA
Felative Valuation in Rs /Lacs 49018.E3
Workings ae given I Annexure Number prer— ,
Resultant Company is recommended to allot its Bruity 1 6%
ghares in the Proporton (%)
Resultant Comgrany is to allot Number of Equity Shases to the 92,381
sharcholders of Demerged Company 2

NA = Not Applied
Company Haldi Ram Products Prvate Landied
*Transferor Company-1,/
Amalgamanng Company-17)

Deescription Fair Equity Value Weight Eairy Value x

Rs,/Tacs Weight
Marker Approach MA NA NA
Incame Appeoach Fa03 59 T00% T403.59
Cost Approach MNA NA NA
Rehitlve Valmtion i Rs /Lacs 43,59
Workings are given in Anncxare Number Annexure [T

11.80%

Besulant Company is eecommended o allot its equity
shares in the Proporton (%)

Rosultnt Cornpany is o allot Number of Equity Shates tw the
shusebodders of “Transferor Company-1/ Amalamating

1,;7a el

Page 26




o

217

Private & Confidential
Company S IR Biakers Privete Limited
(“Transferor Company-2/
Amalgamaing Company-27)
Drescripton Fair Eepity Valoe | Weight Bepiny Vahse ¢
Raflacs Weight
Matleer Approach HA MA WA
Inmme Approach MA BA A
Cott Appeouch Megutive G Negtive
Relaioe Vatustion MNegative
Wartkings are given in Annesors Nomber Anneware IV
Resulunt Company is recommencled re allos its exuity sharcs to the Vinldiremy Marketing Private Limited (Resultant Compeny) may
shuseholders of “Tranaferor Compary-2/ Amalgamating Company-27| conssder m allot its “One equity shase of Rs 100 each fully paid up
each of the sharshnlders of HR Bakers Prvate Limdted" Le. In tosd 2
number of equéty shares may be sllomed.

Company Haldi Rarn Retoils Private Linited
(“Traesferor Company-3/ Amalgamating Compary-3")

Descriptinn Fair Bquity Valus Weight Eqaity Velue x
Ra/Lacs Wight

Market Approach A NA NA

Encoree Apgrocach A ™A BA

Coit Approach 13568 00 13358

Bedative Valmtion In Rs Lacs 13188

Woddngs are given in Anneware Mumler dnncwure ¥V

Resulmnt company & reeommended to allot shares in the 0.7

Propartion (s}

Resaltant Company is to allor Number of Equity Shares to the 2520

shareholders of “Transferor Company-3/ Amalgamating

Company-3

NA = Not Applied
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(“Teanskcror Company-4, Aalgaenating Corpany 4
Drescripton Fair Ecpaity Weight Valie x
Value welght
Fis/Lacs

Marlet Approach MA MA MA

Trmme Approach 23606 100 3608

Cast Approach HA NA NA
| Rehnve Valuation In Ra /Lac 336.08

Workings are gimen in Anacware Number Anpexure V1

Resubtant Company is recommended o sllor shares in the 42

Proportion (%)

Resulant Company is to allot Namber of Equity Shares to 4325

thet sharchalders of “Tmnsferor Company-4/

Amakpmating Company-4

A = Mot Applied
Company Hsldirmm Murketing Privare Limited
{Resulting Company/ Transferee Company)
Description Fair Eqpaty Value Weight Value x
He/Lacs welght

Marke: Appraach NA NA NA
Income Approach 1168443 100%% 1166443
[ Cost Approach B A NA

Rehaive Valuation In Bs /Lacs 1168443
‘Workings are given in Annexune Number Anpezure VIT

Resultet Company 15 recommended to allot Marnber of MNA

Ecgpuity Shares to its shascholders

NA = Net Applicd

Note: As pes the proposed Composite Scheme of Arrangement, in otder to maintsin the optimum capétal structure in the
Resulting Company,” Transferee Conpany which shall be required mo carry on the business, the Resulting Company/ Transferes
Company bas decided to ssue paid-up share capital o the sharebolders of the Demerged Companies and Transferor Companiss
aggregating to Re 15,00,00,000 (Rs Fifieen Croze) which ghall be divided into optimum 15,00,000 (Fifteen Lacs) equity sharss
with 1 face vahee of Re 100 (Rupees One Hendred only) per shase, referred as “Optimuom Share Capital ™.

B o
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In light of the above und on the consderstions of all the relevsne factor and circumetanees, read with Cavents | Limitation:
arad Disclaienees , it is recommended that Haldiram Marketing Povate Limited may issue its equity shares of Rs 100 cach
fully paid up to the shareholders of (i) Haldicam Manufucoering Company Privave Limited [Demerred Company-1"), (ii)
Halditam Ethnic Foods Private Limited"Demened Compsny-27) and w0 the shareholders of amalgomating companies
() Haldi Ram Prodoers Private Limited (~Ttansteror Company-1/ Amalgamaring Company-17) (i) HR Bakers Privare
Limied {"Transferor Company-2/ Amalgamating Company-27) (i) Haldicam Rewil Prvate Limited (“Transferor
Cotnpany-3/ Amalgamating Company-3"} and (iv) Deamcann Foods Private Limited (“Transferor Company-4/
Amalgzmating Company-47) in  the maonet/ propottion computed bassd on the their respective valiatone | as
derermined in the vahusrion sepost .

Tt is recommended thar

“81.45% of total paid-up share capital to be issaed by Resulting Company)/ Transferer Company Le. 12,21 803 number of
couity shames of Resulting Company/ Transferce Company of Rs. 100 esch os fully paid wp gmay be issued o the
shareholders of the Demerged Company-1.

6.16% of weal paid-up share capetal to be issaed by Resulting Company/ Transferes Company Le. U2 381 number of equity
shares of Resulting Company/ Teansieses Company of Re 100 cach as fully paid up | Ry ke issued o the shareloldets

of the Demerged Company-2."

“11.B0% of total paid-up share eapital to be issued by Resultng Company, Transferre Company i.e 1,76,96% number of
couity shares of Resultng Company, Transferee Company of Re. 100 each as fully pod up , may be issued to the
gherehalders of the Transferor Company-1.

2 Number of equity shares of Rs. 100 each s fully peid up , may be issued by Resolting Company/ Transferee Company
tovthe charsholders of the Trnsferor Company-2.

0.17% of tedal pasd-up share capétal to be issucd by R:!u]l:i.llﬁ Cnd'npnﬂ:,r.-" Transferee Company te 2 5M) number of squicy
ghares of Resuiting Company/ Transferce Company of Ra. 100 cach as fully paid up , may be ismued to the sharcholdees
of the Traosferor Company-3

0.42% of total peid-up share capital to be issued by Resulting Company/ Teansferes Company i.e. 6,325 number ol exquity
shires of Resulting Company, Transteree Company of Rs. 100 cach as fully paid up , may be issued o the shancholders
of the Trnsferor Company-4.™

Respectfully Submimed
) r'“‘“ﬂ

r) -“" Harish H‘I
Harish Chander Dh 'ﬂ Chander ||

i\ Dhamija .-'.E:-'Il.llu

. 4 T .

Regisration No IB /032018, 10088 M}rﬁ’
Drates 29 May 2024
Place : Mew Dl
UDIN 2408241 0BRIUIWT7252
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Valwtion ¢f Demerged Undertaking - (SR Business of Haldiram Manuficturing Company Private Limited " Demetged
Company-17), as on 30 November 2023, is summarised below: Amount in Rs/Lacs

Part | Valuation of Demerged Undertaking QSR Business as per DCEF method

1 Drecamber
23w 51
Farticulars : March 24 H24-25 20251 24-27 HZT-2H 829
Estireased Projected Progected Projected Projected Projecud
Prodit After Tax N
(L7408 108291 123608 1355, 1607 492 1794 63
fidd Dheprecistion
21085 Tah.55 756,62 75574 T L8 TODLAS
Al Ingerest (1-
Tax)
Less: Capex 200,00 52500 S90.00 619,00 48,40 578,24
'.I'..En:i"rnﬂ.lr.lg
Capisal (2058.39) 21,46 24.13 2593 792 2990
| Free Cash Fow for N
Firm 1854.55 130800 1374.57 150567, 143268 178754
Dhscount Factar 18] 0ag 07R T 159 sl
Present Valoe PV of
Free Cash Flow
For Fierm BCFF - 16513y 116117 106385 1017.70 Ge0LER 916.15
Camalative PV of
FCFF over discrese [
period TG
Add: Temninal
Value o per GEM T445.00 Mot 1
ise Valog 1842025
Ada Cazh and Cash
Equivaleat 13223
Lazs: Dieba Wil
Bquity value befure
D¥ncoune for lack of
Mirkerabilivy
DLOM 1455248
DILOM @ 20% 201048
Faz Valor of
Dietrvetyged
Undepakings
HMCPL (exchuding
thee Valuarion of jis
Properties ancd
Tnvestncnts) 176471599 |
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Bdote 1 Tesminal Value ag per Gosdon Goowth Method -GGM

221

[ Particulars Terminal Vakie Re [Lacs
Free Cash Free for Pinm-FCFF Teominal Yesr 1787.54

[ WACE e 1483%
Perpewity growth % 3.00%
WACC %PWw groth, 11.83%
Terminal Value 15562.16
Discount Paceos .48
Present value of Tesminal Value 443,00

Past 11 Fair Valuation of Properties
Farticniars Fair Vahe Bs/Lacs
Fair Value of propesty held for sales (nee of Capital Gain Tax ) 10820.26 Note 3
Less Above considerntion used to pay off loans (9 5000 MNote ¥
Add: Fair Valoe of Investment Properties 3935.00 Mo 4
| Fair Value of Propertics 5306.26

Motz 3 Property Held for Sales: As on the dase of valution, the company was having immovable propemy situaged
at Villuge Kherki Danla, Delhi Jaipor Higiamy, Gusgacn, Basai Road, Gurgaon -122001, Haryana heid for sale, In
the month of December 2023, the Haldiram Manufactoring Company Peivate Limited has old the gaid snmovable
prapertas with other fixed nssets having book vake of Ts 531.81 Lacs for a consideration of Rs 10820.26 Lacs
resulting in @ boolk profit of Rs 1028845 Lacs. The capital gnin tax has been compured 25 per Income Tax Act 1961,
Bevause of carried forwarded long-reem losses, the company has set off its entire capital gain max liability against the
carried forward losses. Ot of these proceeds the company has prid off its kan Labikties of Rs %450 Lacs.

NMote 4 Investment Properties: Property of Haldisem Manufacnusing Company Private Limited situated at F12 Blod:
No B-I Mohan Cooperative Trxdustrial Bstare, Mathurs Road, New Delhi. been given on Rent. Therefars, the Fair
Marker Value of this property hos been considered based on valustion comducted by Mr Katon Dev Gagg IBEIL

Page 33

.U




222

Private & Confidentil

Registered Valuer, As per their ssport dated 2 Apell 2004 the fuir value of this property has been valued at Rs
3935.00 Lacs, :

Part [11 Far Vahe of Invesments o Sheres Muonin] Pand

[ Fuir Value of Investments Amount in Bs/Lacs
Fiir Value -Group Co Invesmments excloding investments in Dhreamcann being
considered separately as “Transferor Company 4/ Amaknmatng Company 47 147877
Fiir Value -Other Than Group Co Invesments +6966.73 |
Total - 44455

Falt Yaluztion of the Investments in HPPL, HEPPL, HMPL and DFPL have been considdered based aan the vahatdon
artived by using appeoptiate methods a3 swted in this repore. The company has also made the nvesmments in the
quoted shares a8 well as in preference shares of the companies. The lasest quoted prices have been considered i the
valuation, DLOM has been considened @20% wherever appropriate for arriving a1 Fair Valoe of the Investments.

Summary < Fair Value of the Demerged Undenaking-HMCPL

Fair Valse of EMCEL l Amount in Bz Loes

" Panl | Fuir Vahue of Demerged Undermkings HMCPL (excluding

Vilustion of its Froperties and Investnents -considered

sepanately) 11641.99
Fair Value of Propesties 5305,26

Part 11

Part 11 | Fair Vahie of Invvestments excheding investments i Direameann
Foods, being considered 25 “Transferor  Company

4/ Amalpamating Company 47 #54435.50
Fair Valoe of the Demerged Undermking HMCPL incleding Properties
and lovestments 65392,75
Sharcholding % of Resulmnr Company is HMCPL 0.72%

Proportionate Value of Above smied shareholdings in Demenged
Undertaking HMCFL 470.07

Fair Valoe of the Demerged Undertalong HMCPL excluding the above
computed propotiomte vilue H922.68

Page 34
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Valuation of Demerged Undermking /CSR Business of Halditam Ethinic Foods Peivate Limited ("Demerged Compary-2")

a8 on M) Movember 2023 a8 per DCF Method, is summarised below: Aumouns in RsfLacs
Past I Valuation of Demerged Undertking / QSR Business a5 per DCF method
Particulars Dec@wd | 202425 202526 Hh2e-27 2778 2028-20
Blarch 2024
Estnased | Projecied Projected Projeeted Projected Profected
Frofit After Tax (226,66 32068 4IR11 ) 133057 184405
Auld Diepaeriaton a0 Sy 214534 254100 I95TAT 192519 1890 89
Adld Teerest (1-tax 1756 396,86 30985 S0 AT 205 54 Bo2h
eate)
Loas Capex HUG9E 1T I0L00 169400 172764 Tmaz0 1T
Loss "Werking capial 570 14.95 20,66 2829 3612 4373
Fres Cagh Flow for |
Firm FCFF (14787 108,59 1127.94 137648 16634 1989 40
DHeeount Fectar
LR .69 [ sy 058 1|
Present Valwe PV of -
Free Cash Flow (144443 07539 BTi20 2347 R B 100685
For Fien FCFF
Cammlatee PY of
PCEF over disorere #0601.75
pexiod
Add Termiral Value as Mot 1
per GG T2E
Enterprize Value
12571989
fdd Cash and Cash
Esuiwlens L3540
Lesx Dkt
Tl 77
Equity Valur Before
Diiscount for lack of 613402
farket DTOB
DLOM @20%
123714
45018, B3
Page 35
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Mote 1 Terminal Vialae as per Gordon Growth Method-GGM

224

Teszrrinal Valee Re [/ Lacs

Fartiealzre
Free Cash Free for Firm-FGPF Termital Year 108940
[ WACC % 15.1%
Perpetuty growth % 3000
WACC % Perpetuity growth T, 12.15%
Termiral Valoe 16895 46
Discount Factor 0.47
Present valne of Terminal Value w0724
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Valuadon of Haldi Ram Products Private Limited (“Transferor Company-1/ Amalgamating Company-1'7) as on 30
Movember 2023 a5 por DOF Method, is summadsed belos -

Purt I Valuation of Demerged Undernking / QSR Buginess as per DCF method

Amourt in P/ Lacs

1 Drecin 31
DCE Method March 24 HI2a=13 226 2E6E-ZT H27-28 HRE-2Y
Estimated Projected Projected | Projecied | Projecied | Projecied
Profit After Tax 146.57) 1433.67 169749 1969 48 Z260.02 258213
A Depuc'ul:i.nn 53034 T0E2 50 2311 2114 88 2224 TH F339094
Interest (T-cax
TasE] @5 108.45 9761 87ES TG TL16
Less Capex 410,00 313,00 2334.00 249647 267031 Zh03.18
Leas Warking
Capital 18,27 #1.58 93.18 11050 13412 15549
Freix Cash Flow
fiot Firm-FCFF 1.55 120504 136603 1565.24 1 Ta%.42 203456
Present Value
Factoe 098 R 078 068 ey 052
Present Value IV |
of Frea Cash Flow
For Fiem PCTFF 1.51 1075.35 107890 105279 104206 105113
Cumudatiee PY of
FCFF over
dasezete period 5311.74
Add Tarminal
Walue as per GGM BHES.9T7 | Mo
Enterprise Value 13997, 71
Add (Cashy and
Cash Equivalent 176.50
Less: Dieht 2200
Equity Value
Oihier than
lpvestments 1214261
“DLOM Dusincss 2428.52
Fair Valuz of the
Demerged
Undenaking
HFPL T4 !
b, .
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Note 1: Terminal Valoe as per Gordon Geowth Method

Pariculars Tornmal Yalue Rs /Lacs
Free Cash Free for Fiom-FCFF Terminal Year 2034.56
WACC % 14 64%
Perpemity growth % 3.00%
| WACC %-Perpetuity growsh T 11.64%
Terminal Waloe 18001.35
Driseenme Factar 048
Present value of Terminal Value B685.97

Part 11 Fair Yaloe of Invesmments in Shares

S Mo | Iovestments in Shares Ampant in B [Lacs
1 Cruoted Shares /Mutoal Fonds/ Angel Fand 16043
2 Preference Shares -Unguoted 1835
3 | Fair Value of Investments (1+2) 178.78

Haldi Rem Products Private Limimed bas made the irvestments in the qeoted shares, Mutual Fands |, Angle Fands and
preference shares . The latest quoted prices have been considesed for listed shares. For Investments in Mutual Funds, we
have relicd upon the confirmations and the Investment in Venture Funds and Angel Funds, NAY has been considered
based on the Provision Financiale ef the reapeetive funds. . For valwition of preference shares we hove wnalpsed the latest
finanvcials of the companies and considered the cost of investments in preference shares as fair valee for the porpose of
vakianoo.,

Sumunary of Vahwtion -HPPL Amount in Bs /Lacs
Pert 1 Fair Value of the Demerged Underraking HPPT. -
Excluding the value of Investments ST400
Part [T Fair Valuation of Investments in Shares 17874
Tomal Fair Equity Yalue of HPPL YJBPLET
ihuﬁnﬂlng%nfmﬂulmm Company is HPPL 4.95%
Proportonate Valee of above stamed shareholdings of Resultan:
Company in HFPL 439,28
| Fair Vahae of the HPPL ﬁtdl.l.d.l.nﬁ the above nl:url]:lub:d proporaonate
| value DA03.59
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Equity Vabation of HR Bakers Private Limited (*T'mansferor Company-2/ Amalgmmatng Company-2") a5 on 3
Mevember 2023 as per Cost Methed | i summarised below ;

Amoant in RafLacs

As ar ¥ November 2023

Particulars A3 per Provissonal Fair Value us per Cost | Rervasks/Reference /Basis

U Financials Replacement Method

Moa-Corrent Asiets

Property, Flant and 2BGR 2255 Noce 1

Equipments

Inmaagilsle Assets- 14.58 Nil Note 2

| Busness Right -

Deferred Tax Assets 163.57 163.57 Based on management certainty and
of shout the mature of benefie of
curried forwatd of the losses, no
adjustments have been considened
in arriving at the fair valuation.

Long Term Loans and EXCT] LT ] Based o balince

- StatEments

Imvcntorecs (Lo 0.64 Inwventory of Raw Materinl Pacling
Material and Stores and Spares -st
finir value

Trade Receivable 1.0 1.09 Brased an conifirmuiton,

Cash and Cash 3.37 357 Based on Bank statement and

Equivalents Becondliaton

Shont Term Loans and 3108 31.09 Based on reconcilintion of GST and

Aadvanees  and  ocher other seeonnts

st

Toml Asscs 246,93 23522

Liskilirica

Long-Teom Liabilides - .36 (.56 Bascd on Confirmaton -amount of

Oeher Secamnty Deposit Received

Long Term Provisions {135 0.as Frovisions oowands Gramxy e,

Short Term Botrowings BB BB0.00 Loans from Related Partics as per
recomncilianons and confirmatons

Trade Payables 11.66 11.85 Trade Creditors with age analysis

Oher Carrent Liabilices 2653 206,55 Staturosy Liabilities -as per Breakup
and recancilmaton

fabili 1510 91910

Equity Value of HR BTLIT) (692 EH)

Bakers Prvare Limited

aa per Cost Replacement

Meshod
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Mote 1- Valuation of Plant and Machineries of HR Bakers Private Limited has beeni eondicted by Mr. Ashish Mital

Registered Valuer - Plant and Machinery - Regiseration mumber-IBBI/RY/ 11/2021 /13988 The Valuation Report dasmd
25 April 2024 issned hvj‘ Mir, Askish Biceal Begiseered Waluer has been reled opon.

Mote 2 -The company HR Bakers Pyt Lid entered into Franchise Development Agresment, a5 Franchisee, on 10 July
2017, with LA Societe Animatrice De LA, &5 Panchisor, 1 Company incosporared in France for developing the Brioche
Doree brand and the franchisee nerwork i the specified termritory of India for the Products such s Salads, Bread,
Sandwiches, Pizzas, Desert. The Agreesent is having a validity of 9 years, iz, up to 9 July 2025, The Company has paid
Frnchisee Fees, shown under Business Right as Intangdble Asset and s per sccounting policy the deprecistion has been
charged. As per the terms of agreement the royalty is also payable to Franchisor,

Methods of Viluation of Intangihle Assets

As gtated above thar there are three principal spprosches of valuation. In the absence of active market for Intengible
assers, the market approach is not conssdered for valuation of Business Right. The Cost approach does not capture the
futare benefits, therefose, cost meshod ks also not comsidesed as appropriate method, Further as per IVS 210 the income
approsch i8 the most common method spphed to the valuation of intangible assers incheding the "with” and "with-gat™

method, which is frequently used o value intangible assets inclading franchiss sgreements.

In the present caze, Franchise Development Agreement is a Non-Exclusive Agreement. Non-Transferable covering
apecificd tearitery of India for the Products such a5 Salads, Bread, Sandwiches, Plems, Deserr, The Apreement is having
a validity up to 9 July 2026. In the past the company has not been able to generate operating profits. At the same time
reasonable prejected fnancial of the company are not provided & us. Hense, Ingome Approach cannot be adopred for
the present valuation exercise. In view of above stated pammeters, such s non -cxclusive, non -trunsferable snd company
is ot yet able ® generate profs from its operative revenue, we have, therefore, consldered valoe of Business Right, as
on 30 November 2023, through Franchise Development Agreement ar Nil for the purpose of computstion of Fair
Bquity Valus of HR Bakers Private Limited.
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Equity Valuation of Haldiram Retal Prvate Limited, (Transferor Contpany 3 / Amalpamating Company-3), as per

229

Cost Heplecement Method is summarized beloss Amoont in Its/Lacs
As A As At
I Nowember 2023 | 30 November 2023 Hemarks /Reference /Basis
Panticulars
As pes Provisional | Fair Valoe as per
Financisls Cost Replacernent
Method
ASSETS
Freshold Land & Building 3g5e.m 412000 Far Value of Frechold Property as
per Valustion Report -Refer Noe 1
Capital Work In Progress 058 L5 Pook walue is considered as Far
Value
Dicforred Tax Assems (Ner) 0,11 0,11 Book value is considered a3 Fair
|'|":th:
Loans and Advanees 2.54 254 Eu:d. an
cofismation/ Reconoliation
et
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.13 513 Pased  on  confirmation/Bank
fleconriliasen statement
Cithier currcnt assct 9508 95.08 Mdvence tax  sod  Recovershle-
lafed paries
TOTAL ASSETS 4062446 423344
LIABILITIES
Borrowning from Bank 308417 3417 Based  on confirmation/Bank
ilizticn stamment - Teem Loan
m Banks
Botrowing from Related 993,75 99375 [Based o
Parties I T— -
peatement -Borowing from Related
Farties
Trade pavables 11.64 11,54 Hased o
confirmation Reconcliaton
EREEITIEN
Total Lishilies 40BS.54 408550
Equity Vakue of HEPL in Rs 2710 133.38 [Towml Assets minus Toral Liakilites
{ Laes
Page 41

_bl.




Private & Confidential

230

ot 1- Valoation of Land and Building of Haldiram Retsil Privare Limited has been conducted by Mr. Batan Dev Gty
Registered Valuer - Land & Building having registration numbes IBBI/RV/02/2019/10839, The Valuation Report dated
2 Aprl 2024 iseved by Mr. Ratin Dev Gatg Rogistered Valwer hag boen relied upon,

Equity Valnation of Dreameann Foods Private Limited ("Transfercr Campany-4¢ Amalgnmasing Compary-4") as on 30

Movemnber 2023 as per DICF Method, #= sumenansed below 1 Armoune in Bs/Lace
Fartculars IDec 2310 31 | 2024-25 225-25 2026-27 20ET-Z8 Z28-29
Iarch 2024
Estimated | Projected Projected | Projected Projected Projecied
Peafie Afer Tax
(034 | (109.04) (112.71) (38.28) 154,57 266,19
Add Depreciation
416 1647 16.96 1716 17.25 1732
Audd = Interest (1-
Income Tax) 2883 04,79 101,22 105.00 93.75 7125
Les Working Capisal 1579 4452 5.0 .77 0.28 1145
Lem Cape 10.00 17.50 17.75 17.80 17.86 1793
Free Cash Flow fos
Figm FCFF 35,44 (19,900 (18.37) 5831 278,55 325,38
Discoant Factos 097 01,68 0.75 064 0.54 046
“Tresent Valne PV of
Free Cash Flow for
Firm FCFF 57.43 (17.42) {13.71) 3711 151,15 150.55
Curmuolative Present
Value of FCFF over
discrete pesiod 145,11 B
Add Terminal Value 100210 Moge 1
Add Presene Value of
Income Tax benzfit dae
o unabsorbed losses 142.93 Mote 2
Enterprise Valur 148014
Less Diebot 107EAD
Add Cash and Cash
Equivalent B30
Equity Value before 420,10
Discouant for Lack of
Marketability DLOM
DLOM (@20% B402
- Page 42
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Ecquity Vahue of DFPL
after DLOM 336,08

Note 1 Terminal Value a3 per Gordoa Growth Method -GGM
Particuars Tetmiral Value Amount in Rs, Lacs
Free Cash Free for Firm-FCFF Teeminal Year 325.38
WACE % 17.20%
Perpetuity growth % 3.00%,
WACK % Perpetuity growth % 1429%,
Tetmiral Value 1345.63
Discount Factor 0.43

| Present value of Terminal Value TO0Z10

Mote 2 -Casried Forward of Losses

The company has assessed carried forward business losses snd unabsorbed deprecintion. In the projecied francials, the carsicd
forward Iosscs have been mssumed 1o be set off against the projected profits for the period up to finaneisl yesr 2028-20 The
saving in the tax lshility due to estimared balance in the carriad forward losses has been computed and the present value of
this income txx benefit has been considered in equity valestion of the compary.

ML
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Valuation of Haldiras Marketing Prvate Limited {"Resultsnt Company/ Transferee Company’™) 2s an 30 Novemnber 2023 a5

per DCF Method, is summarised below: Amount in Rs/Lacs
Part I -Fair Hauity Valoe of HMPL (mcluding the valustion of Investments)
1Dec 23 00 | 2024-25 2025 26 2627 0NFT-28 B2%.20
DCF Mettund 31 March
HMPL 224
Estimated Projected Pmjected |  Projected Progected Projected
Profit After Tax 12567 117430 1643.00 95 37 260045 3002.55
Add Deprecistion (4242 £255.31 21 55,69 219,52 221475 M
Interest (1-Tax
rate] 13210 m 20072 195,75 T2.45 1.47
| Leas Capex 63000 203000 2105.00 2115.00 2116.00 216,00
Less Warking
Capital (413.53) 45087 L2435 43521 T16.96 BIT.ZT
Free Cash Flow
for Fiem FCFF T3 T2 1321 .45 150000 1740.33 HE5.10 231200
Discount Factos L9H 089 077 0,66 nsy 4%
Present Valoe of
Free Cash Floa
| far Firm FCEF TL02 117042 11448.55 1151.93 117583 114365
Currnalative
Present Value of
FCFF ovex
disctere period G505
Value 23 per GGM B639.27 | Mote |
| Enterprise Value 15140.77
Add Cash 358,38
Legs Debe GA%E.
Fair value of
Business before
DRzeonnt for lack
wf Markcrabilicy
DLOM Q24215
DLOM (@ 207
1E48.43
Fair Hoquity Value
of HMPL
I:tll:hlﬂixg ihe
valnation ok
Investosenes 739370 |
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Maote 1: Tesminal Valoe as per Gordoa Growth Method-GGM

“Particulars Terminal Value Re /Lacs
Frec Cash Froe for Fiom-FUFF Terminal Yesr 2312100
WACC % 15.68%
Perpewity growth ¥ 3K
WACC %v-Perpemity growth % 12.58%
Terminal Valae 1878249
| Discount Factor 145
Present walue of Terminal Value B39 2T

Part 11 -Fair Vahee of Investments
§ No [nwestments in Shares Fair Value of [rvestrents in Re/Lacs

1 [rwesrments in Shares -Group Companies Mote 3 437175
- Investments in Shares -Lissed Shares Mot 4 18.98
Townl 14+2 420075

Mote 3 1Fair Valoation of Tnvestments in Sheres of Group Compatics

Fair Vahation of the Investments in Haldiram Snacks Prvate Limited has been made on the basis of actal eransaction of sales
of i cotiee shascholding, which took place in March 2024, The capital gain t1x lishilities have been rednced from the sals

consideraton

The fair valuation of investnents in group compandes namely Haldiram Products Private Limited and Haldicam Manafsctaring
Private Limited have been compared bused on the valustion srmived by using appropriste methods 2¢ stated in this repor.

Note 4 Fair Valution of Inveitments in Listed Companics

The Fair Valandon of investmens i quomed shares has been done based on Bwest available market price. The sdjustments for
DLOM have been applied where ever considered sppropriate,

Summary of Valuatioa of Haldiram Marketing Private Limited-HMPL

Summacy | Dwscription Amount In Ra/Lacs
Par 1 Fair Equity Value of HMPL (excluding the
valuation of Tnvestments T383. 70
Pac I1 Fair Value of Invesonents 429073
Total Fair Equity Value of HMPL 11684.43
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CodM Gatdanne Deve opment Area. Wau daoraeanio wlarg, S tamime O LGTE Anta
T=t =91 |11V IRERE B uil prhwmaif3 pradmanin

[HCGEPEMOGENT AUDITOR S AEFORT

Tio Thie Members of
HALDIRAM MANMUFACTLURIMG COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED

gepai op the angif of Sapgaione Financial Statemeants

dparig

e Dawve  Aaodibed Brae Ao l"rIF:IHII'I.I'ill'a srandalisre Andnoial sftdiements of Heldl ram
MAnUTACTUPBG Coarnpiby Frigane LniEaa oorne Company s SmeCch COmprise e
Zalanoe Sheet gx ol March 31, 2024, and ke slandalcne statemnsnt of peaflt 2no 1ess
snclading wlher comoretensive o ncome | sbandaiond siale e 1t af chamges in =ailky 30
siarement of casp ficmws for cmo wear Ehen coaes, aed oooces o the stanaaione fimancal
seateTant:  ncuding A summary A SgRificanT  Acoounting  CONCIEs  And JEner
2xplanatory infarmat cn

nocur apirenn AR 0 rhe DeST GT QL0 INTArmarion anad gooadamg o e BXplanartans
Jieen Thoas, the atoresad standalome hinancla, statemante e Fhe inkrormakion rEqLHrEI:'
by the Cnmipames oot F013 a3 anended [ “the AcH™ im the manner a0 equired and
e w Toue and fan wiew i conftorm cy it thie Dndhian dccownating Standards orescr bed
Ay el 100 ol Thed Lo pekad wpl e IR ArrpAan@s [ InmEn accelnring HTandacis )
Sules, 2015, g amended, thereaf ("Ind 85" and afbeer gecaanting pe nciples genarally
acoeobed 1 [ndia, of the aiaie of affairs of the Comoany as at March 31, 2024 s orofit
ANA nENer COMArERECSIVE INCAME CRANGES N AqUIry and 15 Casn fows Tir-rie wear

ended cn that dake
Basts for geinen

wie Condudted awr audlt of the standalons hnancial statements ‘0 accordance wikth the
Ftancards an Auditing (5450 socclfied wnder secton 1430100 of the A Jur
spv s be oy anda those SA. @ dorliter cdeseriizerd e Fle agcd.bor's, Besicraitn e
foar BB il of the standalone Riaancial Statermoenls Soofind at dgr orepart W gre
independent of the Company in accordancs with “he Code 2% Ethics” issued by Ehe
inabiknis of Chariered facaantanis of India (TCAT) rogecher witn the ethical reauiremenis
TNaT arg r@l=sanT [0 OUF ApCil ~F The STANARMN e TINARCIE | STACE MENTE UNOEr CNa Aravisions
b the Ach oand Lhe Ruoles thereondes, ard we have tultlilled our Jther elcal
raspensibibties 0 dccordance »wbh these regurermcis and the [CA0s Code of Efhics
e palewe rhar “ha audit evidence we nave ontainen s sufflcent and appropriace o
I}F-:l'u"lljF‘ 1 basi= tar our Qpinon an tha skandalore hnanoal statements
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The Campany's Boapd 2f Diredtors is resoonsible for e athor mlfarmiation, Thi othor
ormation cormpises Chrectors” Reprel el ring Fhe armegures PRerean, But dars mat

LU L LA L IETTE DRl STl T TS AT GU T AUQIEar 5 Ml CHerear . Suen arner
wrermannn ek gdpe-Cla0 LD Be mane Svdilable toous after the dote of Lhis audiior s report

Ul gipinn en e sbaodlaione linancial statemenis does not cover Lthe other information

AT ST 0 Tl expresi any rorm ar 3550rance COnciusion fharaar

In comnecticn wich oui audit af rhe standalang finanoal sfatements. our responsipihby
L2 2ad I'.II—_' L =r IIFL!IIII:II.II.'!II dFId 111 I'JLIIIII'=| WL L SILIET WWrOIErL T I.hl'_' L'll.'hl:l ERICIriridLILad
15 MATEFIANY INSAnNSISEENT @il (NS TR N0E ] STATEITENTS OF Jur < 1aWI RIS GOTHH L0 1Y he
audit o7 arharwse Apears o be materiglly misscated

vihier wE rEan rne repnn Mennonen apoye IF we oonciude thal chere 5 8 marera
Merbatemant tharslin we are requirad to communicats the matter o thosa chargerd
sith governance. A5 the other nformatlon s net made avadable 1o 05 a5 at the date of

chiz auditors reoaii. we nawe nofbero fc renari 1 this reaard

Hazponsiniy of Mapnagement for the Standalong Financial $talaments

The "n-mp-:-n'.,.' § Famd of [iractors e FRSpOR|DlE For Che PATTEFS SFATAC 1N Senind1 | 1a|l'| i
of Bhe fetoenbh raspeck be the preesaratioh of these standatone Tienarcial statermerLs Lhat
oeee 2 Trlie and far wicwr af Bhe Nnancgal pasibicn. flnancial perfarmance incladino cther
o chcrsive o e cchanges noeguiCy ond casi does of Che Campany o aoosrdance
AN ArC aocaunTing prinfiples genarglly accapread no lndia, Iindilaaing tneg rnaiEan
Sccounting Standards (Lnd &%) specehed Lnder Sechign 133 of The Aok read weth the
Zompanize | Indian AcCaunimg mtandapds, Byles A015. a5 anended Cheraol

Fps cespansgibilly alse includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records
accirrdance qich Ehe orowisiana of the &ct for sa‘eguarding of the asseis of the Coimpany
and rer preEveEncing 2N aetecting Maeds and ofher aeregulacilies;  Selecnon g
xhcat-nn oF gpprogoghe seccuanting palicies; making judgrments o estimates thin
arg reatonadle and oradeni; and desian. molemeabieon and ma ntenance of adeoaueke
mernal HAANCiAl Crnirals, ThAr Wera oparaning effectivaly for ansunng the aouracy ang
completerese at the accounbing records, relesant B the pregargthion and presentation
of the atandalcne franclal statements that dive 2 true and fair view and are free from
ImATET A rFussiAtnmeEni  whether due e frand or &rmor

[0 oresanna e sbAtdGdiee LonAnc il alAanisrreet =, e’ |'-1.-|r|ﬁg|:rr'1|:-r'||: <ACRTE  [HEAFCE S0
LITECna s prs r'Fl-ﬂljﬂl'lf.lhli'- fl_':.r .hl;b"'i'\_l-f.l\_.;lnr! Lk € r1-|'||'_|an':‘r ] ablllhrl P ocorsbinnngn Ay o ;r"qg
CONCETT, DSCICS g, 4% applicabie, matters re ated (o going Soncern and using the going
confers basis al aocounting unlese the Board of Qurectoirs either intends to lguidate Che

Canmppar ool Ll ocease operalidns. or has na r=al sl ALENIALYE LIAL L L %l

Thase Boare of Cerectors arc also ||-_-~_-.|_|u||-_-:iu!ﬂ._h[_ Bis=Eing the Comodny 5 [inaocial

oy -.. I 1
Fesmariing process .'f e
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Cul obecoves are to obkam 1=annnAde afsuance aboub «hather e stapdaiona
Mmaniial stabernents 45 o whale ara Treg from TOterlal miizstai&rnent, whother 4z ()
fraud O 2rar, and Fooissue 3n auditare 2Rart that wneodes our opincen, Reasonable
ASSUlance o Qe lewer of assurance, but | not @ guarantee that an audit conducted
'oARLRraAnIe With SAs Wil abwavs astect @ material misstatement when It exists,
MISELAERMENs Lan Arrse from Traud or errar and are considerad material if, Ineividually
DFon the aggregare, hey could casuitalily be expected to influence tha aconomic
UBCISIGAE OF usars tzlkan ad Lhe pasis af then standalone financral statemancs

S5 part of an awuis i Acordancs with S4%, we sxeroise Erotezzwnal jedgment ard
feentam proressianal sSKeELcIsn “hrouamour Fhe audil, W afso

oo lderofy and assess she s of Madlerlal misstawerronT of rhe chang dlore financial
SLAL=IneEres, SWether Jue bo fraud o errar. aesrgn and perfeom audil araceriures
FEsponzve [0 Lthose cisks. and oBrgm audd Gvidence Lhat s sufficrent and
SRPFOMTIERe LD orowiie 3 02§ '0r 2ur opinicn The risk of nor aetecting 3 materigl
fHAsialemem resiting roid fraud s higher then for one rEg._.'l;iﬂg from ermar @s
Rud may nvaive callusion frrgery jptentional OmIssEians. misreprasantatinns,

irthe avarride af intarnar contral.

Qbtan an understanding of nisrnai COnErof releva il to The audl i order =p
MESION gudit pracedunes that ars APPreRrlate in the circermsiances . Under saction
CRATI M0 of the Aot me aie A5 CESOOnsinie o BRErEEsIng Aur oplidcn on
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TMancial sletemants in pidee anag e aperating effecliveness t sucn cantrols

o Evaiudie pRe Aaporoprizfeness of aLtounbing pofCes used and Lhe i easorabieness
aF ALcounting estimaies and reratad AisClGsUres Jtiade by Management and Baoard
of [hirectars

ancluce on the auoroonaieness i Management and Board of Directnrs wse af
12 ATy SOncert DASE At actaunting and, based an fhe Audit enicelce obtal fed
whether a marepal uncerkamby exists reanRE toevents or condiions that may
A0 Dghcant doubt or (e LLarmadny = abelity te Conlinue aw - QoG Cancer)
If e condlude thal A mgleriar WICETERinky wwisls, we 3re required bo diae
AlECNDICG o AU Bodtore repoit bo the Telane] sclosdes o ke standaianr
marcalstatements or, i such disciosures are i Adequale. o modidy our apinien
Jur cenclusns gre ugsea on the D evide e wraneg Ip 0 Lhe daka af cur
aLchba~'s report Howevar, future svenis or “anditlons may Chuge the Company
L tease {0 contlhiue as a aning canesrn

* Lvoluate the syverall prosentsbon -rUrture and content of the standainne
financial statemants inciuding tha ostiosures, and whether (ae EraAnA lone
financial stabernents repregsent the doderly ng. transaction:s ano auvents 0 g
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WWE SO OnICaTE WIRR § s charged wilh governande regarding M TREr MATIer:
the granned scope and liming of the audt and signitirant audit findings, includirg ams
= anifieant deficigincis in internal conommi rhar we e nbiby g our Sudit

R Al nroce s Tharggd wwilh governance wilh o statemnment that we have Cor e e
T tleant 8th cal requorements regarding indepRndence ana o cammuonicats etk
“hemm all relaticon ships and oifier matteds that may reasonapiy oe chowght Eo beqr an aui
mndependence, angd winera dupiicdmie, rRIEarea Salvguards,

KEpory on Dener Legal aod Reguialery Reuuirem encs

S reniiieid By fhe Companmes cayaienrs Feaport) Drder, 2020 ["the Order)
I=EUEL Ly Lil oaniral Lovernment of ndia in terms of sub-saction 711 of seaiian
L3 of e Al we give in the " Annesdré'A’™ 3 stabement o ene MMATE e
speched o parsgraphs 3 and 4 of the Doder coocpe exrent pplicable

o b TROLITET Oy SeChior 143000 of bhe Act. basec on ou- audit we repare cnar

[u’ Mg Bavw soraht and omainea ail e wfarmation and explanations whch
ie Fhe sest of aur knowledge and belief were necessary for the curpase
“f aur andil

ikl [0 Gur aiamian. praoper oeaks of account 38 coquired oy law have been
Lopy oy rthe Lompany =0 far as it appears Fragir our exdiminalion of fnoge
beaks, sxcepl for the nallers statec |0 paracgrapn ¢ [)iwi] balow, e
reparfing wnder Bl 110G at the Companies (Audit 398 Aoditors! Bigles.
Alia

the standalong balance sheel Lie awai=imen, of arolt ano ipss nnciuding
Ot CamiurEmensice 1 GIme ], CNBR RTamaaloneg changes 1 eguiky and the
adlndione starement 01 cazh fows dealt with by this Beood are in
greermant wilh [he books ol account;

i’ N DU agnar, the afaresalo standalone Dnadcial skabements cop 1oly with
e Arcounbrg Standaras speafied sider Section 143 of the A0t reag
#th 1he Comiparees [(Indion Acoouning  Stanoarge) Bylec 0158 ai
aniedlen . che el

= tnthe gasis of the writken recresentations recuwved fram rma mireckors a5
G Alal March, 2024 4nd raken on recaee By the Board of Directors, ngro
ntoThe direcrarg i msqualitied as o 31st Maech, 2024 from nenng
Appointed 3¢ 2 director 0 térms of Section 164 2 af the Acr;

f The medification reianng Lo the malntenance of accownts and acher
Mallers connectied therewdn are as sratec norne Jaragraph o) above
on reparting under section 14371 3170] of Lthe Acc and paragraph 2411w}
Aclies an reporticg under Ruale 11ig) of the Compames Jaudin and
AHuoiears ! Koles 2014

.

_onkd L 3




191

Y g #
l.:ir- L}E { ,Efﬁ-’l"ﬂf{fﬁ- Comimuatcns Sheet

1ol Witk fEspact 1o fhe A0eUACy OF TR nrernal FINSNCIED CORCEIE foar
hoarcizl reporiing wobh Peterence fo hinancipl statemants of Che Cormpany
-0 e Sperating eMackiveness af such conlrols, refér 16 awr separobe
Foiwr o CBrsarg = BT Lo oy rewon L

(RN SECTIGn 10 ar The Laripar fes &eT 5 ol Appheanie am gRe FrerdTe Lirmeted
Soripanics, Rones repork under section 137 (1460 of the Companies Aot
2013 E el reawrced

il ik respeck oo bhe other matkere to 0 incuaded in Che Sodikors Eeport
ir accardance witt Rule 11 of cthe Companigs (audit and Adaitors) Bules,
2014, pe amended. (0 ol emiian and e che Best of our infeormatmon and
ACCOrING i CNE e¥RIANACIONS JIVEn [ Us

L Ihe Company has disclased Choe lmpack of pending hblgatiors as an

117 Marcr FOE oar 115 Trmanicial postigr in s sbar dalone finencial
ALALETET S Fesfesr  PEOIEs D1, 3% fre (0 SLArTAKINE  fianiria
A ments

1k Mhe Company did not have any fong-tenm concracts  inciuding
ABFYATIVE SORCFAMTS FOF WARICH TRAFE WAare Aary MATera Mmresssanis

oa5es a5 ab 31 ™March Z(ld4

A Hhe e wess e s arnoc s webicl waeces resgooren Fa ke Fransior ned B kb

TS EOucEtren grid Frotscion Fused by ree Conmipeany

i a. lhe Management has representad thak, to the besl of lis
wcrwiienme An:d e el mo funds have Deen advdnoesi or
Daned ar Pvasfed |aiffar e DoFFowad Thfas Or Share
froeniarn o0 ary alher sources or Kind of ‘unds) by the
Connpany o oo onoany ather perasons or onlibies  nciuding
fara qn ancities inrermeniari|es ” WITH “NE LInOErsramoing,
whather racordecd n '.I"'Itll"g ar :I‘li"'ll!rl.'.ll!EEr that fthe
rmtermediary shali, directly of ingdwestly land or invest n
caf Frin ETL T R A T orRiliog  elerEiTNeR i Ay mAmner
WAATSOEYEr Oy ar on JEnA T 07T T “:nl'rlpf'nj-' |I'|.|I|:I|TI€|EE
tllE"IE'rIEIa"IEE-_I ar pFD'-'II:lE' ary gua 'anl:EE, EEELIFI[} or the
like an benalf of the Jditimate SBeneficiaries.

iR The Management hos recreseried Lhat, o tne be:st of its

Enowienage 3nag pader, no fUNOs Mawe DEen RECEIVED [

Corapany Trom amy persona ae enbities, incloding forcidn

cokitics  ["Funding  Parbies ) with  the  onderstanding,

AanElNar rEcoraed n wricing ar omnegnase N3l 1ha

Zompany skhall directly or indirectly, eBnc ar ineest in okher

-.-{'\_- * aersons an entliies wentfied wany mannes whaisoewar by
}" a on o pepgft  of  The  Funding  Parmes  Cuigmace
Seneflclaries™] ar procafe any QuBrantes, secarily or Lhe

ke wirn rrFrAll Al e dilirnmace mearrsineiarms;
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o Rased on e gudit grocedures perfermed that mngue been
LU sluE 2d di=2daillidulie dlid dUIdUlIdLE= [ [RA] =

CIFUMSIaNCES NOTning Nas COome 10 GpF ngrjce TRET Jis
coused Jz to beligve that the representations urdor sub-
Clause (¥ ar anc i (B, centai 2y makerAal oy

STACrBMmMEenr
" Mhe Cormpany ey G0l declared or oaid dividend during bhe vear

vl, Basied on our exarmination whick ncluded test checks, &xoapl far
Lhe mstances mentmoned belos, the company has psed Sap
wccounting sctbwara fo- mamtalmng b5 poaks of acoownt wh.ch has
g feature of recording awdit trall Legil [og) facillty and the same
has operabed thropghcut The gaar for afl releviant Cransactions
eoordad nohe software

o Thepavroll seftwane, coink of sales software for recerding sales
A %R ousiness ai ouklet level and mastes data management
wens used for maintenance and updating of masier data A
sopeClive docounting safivimaire usel v ine cinnpdny din o
idwe A audif dail ieaiure eoAoler 4|u1-:¢_-|;||,||-lr||_|}r | e s
i AT AT P SreeG r IrAnSACTInns recoraen WIrnin rnase
AEHTHIL =7 rwAre 5 for (e whnnle waar Alsn. aunit 7rail reatures
|.-||'i||'|_'|,' wis nail cnabied ar che oaranacse 1\Pvel o g gy 1gra
ChAnGES for the Aaccaunting Snmuane (5en Tor Mamtaining [ne
nanks O” aoinlnrs

Furlher for e periads where eudif frail (edl: lgg) fagillty was enahied
and operated throughout the yvear for the respective afcounting
softwars, we did 18 coire acroas ary nstance ol audit trail feature
oeEind tamperaed with duriog fhe course 27 o audit

FOF MM KN BN L,
“harkered Accountante
S Aeg, o OGO=LEaR

¥ -
.\"\.

b e b I:::I
4L |c:_?

T Mew Lelh. {PRABHASH KUMAR THA}

Liare M Serptemnber, A2 Partmgr
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Annexure- & [0 e Inaapandant Suditor's Report

Raterred ra aaranraph *ounder the heading of "Report on Other Lecal anc
Regqulatary Fequirerment” of cur repart of sven date]

nl

[c

Ld;

Lo

[y al

L
A
1;:;_
o

Ly The Lompoany has maintained proper recards showing full
particulars,  mcludimg  guantiacve decafs  @od  sitoancn of
prooe by, Plarnn ama Fql._:pmenr

= The cormpary  has maintained proper  records  showing Tl
particilars af Intangible assets

hE Lampahy Bas g regular programme of pheyesical verification of s
property, plaat and equipment including cight of use asseis | uader whirh
Ehe mssels are abhysically warified in 4 DRAHSEO Manner gver 3 pariog of
FIreE years, WRICh I Dur OPpinon s reasonsble Favng sagand ECothe gize
ab The LarmJany and nature HF 1w gsset=. In acoordance wltn Chis
pragramme, certain prapetty . 2lant and 2ooioment [ nciuding ngind of ose
aszels | were venified during Che yesr and no matanan discrepane e apre
PEE e AR SUCE WeFRITIc AL e

According te the information and cacianatren given Lo us ane oo fhe oacis
af cur examinatian of recargs ar she Campany fRe TiIRe Jeeds ot all
Immavaie araperries ather than arcpertias wners the Campany is the
fesses and [he leate ggreements arg dily ewsciled In fsyodr of the
lezmee] are held 0 e name of the Company

Accoriing To ke ntarmatian and skplaraticns given to us and i Che
bazis oF aur examinaiun of the ecdrds of the Company, Ehe Carmpany
higs reb revaived s prigeery, pidn And #nopmane Do cgding Figne af use
A55BTS | o INLanaiple 3550%s or both during the ¢eatr

According to thg ifermalivn and explanations given [ 0% ang o ohe
basie of aur eiarmnatinn ool [he rECOMS nf TR 1‘pmgar|.-,- tfre are no
praceedings (ninaled or pending aganst the Zavipany fér holding apsy
pename properly under the Profubibion of Szrami Prooerty Transackions
20 128E and rules mage Chiersarder,

The tnwantory Nas beer okvsicaly venifiad by the Maragemnent during
The ye3r 1h ayr ppivon tha frequency of such verification is reasgiable
ANG Jraceaunes  angd o Coperdge  as  followad By maEnageienl o were
aporopriaie ko giscrepancies were nanced af ganicalinn beswasn e
ohw=ical siocks and rhe back -eoords cnat wers 0% of miore 0 BRE
gggregace for earct class of nventory

A5 disciose n Wote WNG-45(¢] to the financml stateiments, the Comoany
nas B sanchionea warking capikal limit in excess of Bupees {ive <rores
T aggregace rom Bakk Aunng the year an the bass at security of current
assein of (e Campany. Tne quamery relgrafslatoments fled by the
Sameany wikh sech banks are nob i oagresament wain rRe Dok of
socounts al the Company and the detalls are as foilows

Conkg. 2
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=
‘Be. In Lakhs]
Ouarter ending Jaiue az | walue a=  per | DifTerence
per  nocks | Guarierly
of aeaunts stakement
subrnifted wath
cnaers
Jurde A, 2023 2278 3R 1T af [ETA M|
Seomemner 300 225 22T R 2315 2 01,99
Clesrearpaer 31 204 L - ] _§I15 -1 12,011
PMarcin A1 207 FOLE a2 2:65% 30 ‘-:'::I'lﬁ 9

3L radigines by the mid nagen eng “he differences are Focagse Ehe
staterments Fleg wwith e lencers e based on Fnancial statements
preparad onoarovisional basis, seclusion of certain corrent assels a3nd
AUTIOCY ALOTOrs

Curing the ysar the Campany has proviced oans, ddvaiices in Lo
nature of loens and grovided quaranies 10 swasidiaics and olher parties
15 Fnllws

| Particulars Loans Sugranteas

$R=. Ly [R5 !n
LakKrns| Ilaﬁﬂi;

Adgieaatie an o gramted

provideo

Subsidigres 12500 Nil

1ITmere - rhl

Bamnce gurstanging 35 30 pIanca

mrel data owd of e anove cazes

Subsichiaries. 1 328 44 il

Ot niesrs 18, 13240 L1, 500,00

Lroour apetednt, And accordmg Lo Fha m*armation and adplanabons greens
fra 14 A& INUESFmEnNT mMane, JUIrARTas 9iylaed. and tarms and
onditen- af e orani af Al ibe loans ann QuaranTes EEOVIAED ANRE OIS
facic, nob oreadicial to the rceresi of the Do rany

In respecl af lpan:s granted to companies, [hare s Ao S-fl‘l_r_'DIJL: ol
TEPAYMENT nAs Deer sOpwaled. L nas xesn explamned (o us thal lgan s
TERaYAa On 0EmMAanNag. Hewever, [Ne g 15 SSnadu e of payrment 9 inberast
Ntz LRI ST B LR reripiy of INCEFast are nar requiar. Tne oetalls
af Lz exbend af delavs are aiver neiiw:

. {* "
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i
{rs. [N Lakis)
MName of Entity & Mo nt Due are Extent | Remacks.,
ar I any
d=iay
(Days)
| Thardigarh Sweets
| Limited 135 45 | 31-02-2023 4ra
| Sl plehoalth Soods
FPriviabe _imirged B+.21 | 31-33-2023 254
Lrearmeann Foad
lrivace Liveres 4047 | 31-03-2623 187
m [ Fraen e
Sriwal e Limited 1.25 ] 41-D3F-2023 L7a
Liharmienura & umai
WA G ey 1229 | 31-Ga-2023 L1
Lhapimendra amar T
Varshney A9 ] Fi-03-2023 1a 7 | rerovered
Chandigarh Sweets T -
rmi bed A7.05 | 31-032-2024 AL | recoverss
arfplunealth Foogs
Hrivara L miten 1,23 ] 31-03-2024 74
“1.02 Fragn Weg Mot
Frivaie Llimited G 84 | 31-03-2124d 181 | recavered
SAaLrAy “raqing
ATl Dy i E3 31-0A- 2024 =
Fach Crpital Fuise: ek
250 ed | 31-03-20034 igl | recovered
Sunccalus Sorai T
Frivate Lumigesd 285 | Z1-03- 2424 11 | recoveran
vardn Lnd Jstries L i= 11-1%- ) 2a L

Extent o aeay tonsidered uptc the date of signing of balance shes

T lmere ai2 og armreunts af oan Uraneeed 1o CRmMpanies wnien are overdse
Far migre than nemety 3aws, as b has eer EARNAINN ] [ S CNAT Ao emand
5 made Ly (he Comparny regardifd dpayment of 0an, foweysr e
:ﬂmpa"":l" e oyendug amiolnh of interest a= | baran._.-._- sSNeel dale G-
per Lne nTarmarrch goevan to us and an Ehe Basis of records made available
to us, the Company has raken reasaonable steps for rocovery of overdue
AUl ar neeresic THO oprans ol The gyeroe samounk ot mteregt are

Jiven el
{Rs. [n1akh=}

Mo, af rincloal nterest | Toea Bermarks
11 Armcunt Uverdag reerdue if A
Jpard IS
o el i 106005 160,05
i The Campany nas ner granteq sry can which has Tallen due curing the

year. Funther, s fresh oans wera geanten ta sme party o seflle Hhe
cverdue [aans

Cankd . 4
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Mhe Cainpany has grancad 10ans rF adwafituy 0 the nature of lcans, §hich
s repavable on demmand. The detans of INe 1Dans are Jven 5ol

fHa i akhs,

Particulary all Parties | Prarmaiers | Relarned
Fart'es

Lggragate amaunt of |oansy
AavaNCeEs 10 nalure pi lpans
‘Repavanie an aemand (&) 11,281 a3 | My 7931 .40
“Bugr @ el does nne S pecity i L] M

Ay Lerms or pericd of
repayment (B

Totsl (54 B L2361 .40 | Hil =
Hercentags of lgns! alvances 59.375%
monatere ¢ loany 1o the cotal

L R b

maar apimion gnd a'"'.:ﬂ"'l.-'ll'lg Lo thes mformartion ard E}{ﬂlaﬂatlﬂr"'\_-i gi".u'E'I'I T
J5. thet MIFILAMTY FIA% COMplien wien Tne 2Fowsians ol section 1HS and 156
af Ll Ack, with resoect [ Tres inAans granced, INVESRTMENTS mads and
Juarantee oF aecyriky niver

roour opimon and aceaedm e Ehe nformacion and gspianalion given
us, the Campany has nil avceoled F0Y AIBULSIS OF LT 1% A amaunT
Pehch s LEErT LLRMSIQarel as JeEBmMBEd ARQnsiT 'WITh o Che mearnng ")
SECCIONS S and Sbotthe act and the Dompanies (Acceptance of Degpoity |
Enle 2914 (as amended’. Accardeoiv. rl-=|'_|-;1r|'in; nnde- cianss 0w Gf the
Cirdwer s nat apphicanie ra rne :l'!r'r'lpf'lﬁ':,-'

According  to the  nformation  and  axplaration  orowidsg Eyv  trha
managerenl, fhe company re nol engaded in prudoctian of any wuch
aoCads ar arension oF anty sudh Sereices lur which the Central Gowernment
has prescrined parboylpes ralating to Jtilizaban oF materia! or labour ar
Ciiwr Rerms of cost. Hence, ne prewismcns M section L4S[1E af by
Comivaues AcCt 2073 a0 Pelatian o mainmenance ar CORC FECcOrds o nok
appsy Lo Che Comipany

ACCGrANMG Lo the records ol the Caiioaiy esaned Ly us and i
nformation and explanaklans given B0 us o cur Qoinion TRe Cornany 15
generaly egular in depositing te ungispuied slatubory dues including
Good: and Serace Tax, prowident fund, emnlovees skbafe insurance
INCore-TAN, Sales-Lay service Faw Jdaty SF customs, dubky of excise, value
dAcleletnl [, CESS anad Alyy grher malenal =statukery dues, a5 apelicable, with
[g1= AEE G AL AUTARCITdeS

Lriomaing [0 thanfermation and explanations ghven 10 us. e undisputed
cavable oo espect of Goods and SErwre Taw provwident Fur, B POy
ATAEE IMSIIFANTRE  INCOME LA SAl0s Lax serrce tax, duby of custams, duty
ar @mde. walua adden Fad, cess 3nd other material stafybaey ducs were
nearrears oz at 31 Maech, 2024 for g pericfl of e Chan sis menins
frarn bthe date they Decanme pavabie il Meka

Lonid, 3
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Sccording ko the informaticn sxplanations Given o us, Hhere are o doos
of Goodes and Fervice Tax, prowvdent fund, employeas’ skate insdarance,
IPCOIMB-CAA . SEles baa, servica tay, duby of custorns, duby of exclse . valle
ﬂddh‘d Lol 25N Al ':J'.'hl.'i'l “HALET 1Al :.I;,rll_l,.ll_l;jlr"l JUES W'IICT TIAYHE Ol THEe]
denesited o accounl of By dispule except the Fohowing:

Mg o Macure Fenod In Farum AMmounc in
Tne aQr ues WHIChH [ha wrrarg dispute
Statye o Mok disgute |5 [As. in
raiaias pending Lk
Finganes Serv'ce Fr 201t 12 Comm|ssione 73 RO
Aol 1554 [ o Fy 201%- of Ceniral
1E Take-
Flear o Service Py 2016-17 | Sommissiane FTL
Aol 1994 lan o June af Centrdl
201 Tases
ST Aci GET w 2RITF i3] A5 44
Ll Ry Ay “Marcn 02a
COST aci GET iy 2757 BICTEY| =
217 flareh 2024
CGET At | BET luly 2017 10 | CoOmmussiane 15,47
el Marh 073 I CerirrAl Tax

adrecrding to the mmtormabcr and sxplanabians yiden b ws angd on the

baziz of our ezamination of the records of the Company. (e Comoany
hias not surrendered or discigsed any Dansaclions, previausiy wrrecorded
d% WICJFE 1 Cie Douks oof ACCULTEE, i FNn JAx A%NSBEEMBATS UMNOBT IFE
Incore Taw 407 1991 g5 onecome during Fhe eear. Accordingly, khe
redquberments 1o repal on Sladse A[viiil of the Order is not applicable o

Lo Larminarny

according to the infarmation and caplanations given o us and on the
Ga=iz of edarunatien of records of the Company
defariin 10 fhe repavment of oan or CAFFA L O I TS 3EYeTen L ol
nterest *harean to any lfendar

the l§:|:|||||.|=|r|'|.I A= o

H':':':.IJI:' relx Lo fie HITITErIr AN &ro BPapglanalfans Igl'.l'-F!l'I > Us anad anh fhg
asls Ol Jur cxdrroanaton of Bhe records gF tne Company, the Compary
lids nol been declared a wikful defaulter by any Gank Gr FInancial insiitu b

GF G oyerTrinent o government aubhonky

Bl ] e B
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According bo the anfarmation A @xn ananans Jwen o ug 300 Baged on
DUF EXATNINATIAN 0 e records of the Comparny, fransactions with the
reslzfed partes are In compllanos wicth Section 147 angd 188 of the Act
wihore applicable and detals of Suca transactiaons Pas Besn diseinged in
Lhi :sbandaione finanoial siatermencs ac ragueres 0y e apphcakle
ACCOL AR STAN A

Based are nformation #rd salgnalions proyiced o 1s and our andit
procedunss 0 our afenlage, the Compainy es an inleinar audii h.:,-'l_-..'Lul-_llll
commeansurare el the size and nature Of [ts Dusinoess,

A fiawe Lansidelen) (Fes niemal auair FEpOrs o7 (e CopAny ssued b
thie dabs for Che period under aodit

G reen arec according Go o nlormaltion and esplanations glven 1o us.
[ Company Ras nol entersd ko any non-casn transacticns with its
Airechas or gurrsas CoNnNectad roots dFETORS A Hare s requIrament *o
reporl on clowse Fixw i af the Jrdoer v ok ARRICAME 0 TNE Company

the _ampary & ot roguered o be registered wnder section 45-14 of the
Hasares FaNk ol Llndia oot 19348 accachrgly, clawses 30w Wal of the
Clrenetr are 0ot &390 anie

“he Company e nob requiied I Be Frgisieren onoer seeTian -8 of fhe
Feserve Bank o [ndia Bcl, 1934, Sccordingly. clauses 3wxviiial of the
arder 15 ngl applfcable

The Company 12 not & Caora [pvestment Cempany (CIC) a5 defined an the
recpdalreny made by fhe Begesis Bapk of Indis &ccn reengly  Clause
v W) of the ider ic nof arelicahia

accardimg boointormigtion and explanaticns grgvided (0 us, Cier s w oore
MeSslenl cormpany within Che Graug (as deflaed in the Care [nveatieiil
Ompanies JHeneye G40k Lirechions, 201687, conseguoently, clauss
_:!IJIC'-'I 14l : car | I:Ir-ﬂ-Er 15 NaT app”[‘.anle

[he Coirpany has oot mcuired rasn osses o the curreni and o The
ey preceaing financlal pear

FTherr 1ds een na resignaiion of e sCaluiery Aurdiiors rurinn tne year
died mecnrrfingly ragquIramant oo Fepaet oh Slause A0al) of the Urdaer s
Ot applicable te bhe Canmpany

tﬁﬁ:‘i@ Cantd. B
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R Accordig o che infarmanen ano ExANANI0oNs grran o us and o4 the
na=s or The Nhancegd| ratics. ageing and sspecled dabes of realisgfon of
Imancial assets and gayment 2F (inanceal iabililies, ofher o naean
accompanylig the flnancial btﬂLl—.‘IIIt‘IIL.‘lI LT ENwIEage OF CNe -ﬁgam it
Citeclin s and indnagement pians and Dasen o0 sur sxaminaticn of [9e
Evi0ence supporlng NE assumptlens, nothing has come Lo b afienno-
wlich Caunes ws to beleve thak die maceral wooe [AdlILy BEISLS 2% BF e
dafe ol tho it repon tha che Zompany = nat capanie 3F meeting ts
Patuhies pasting ab the date of balance sheset as and shen ey all due
withln = period of are year 'rom the balance sheer dale. We howewa
abate thal Lhis is not an assu-ance as 1o Ehe furure wapility oF the
Tinmpany Ve Farmner sIETE That our maperbing & based an the Tacks up to
the Aatue af the aydit “2port and we neither give any guararloe nar ary
A%bumance that alf haldities falling due within a peried af nne vear fram
Lhe Dalance sheer naie. will ger discnarged oy ohe Company as and when
Thew rail aiye

[ | Im our Spinien and according o rhe iormacan ann FE[ A NACIANE 0
C um, EREre anc oo UASEROT 3oLt under sub-seckion (5] of Sectlon L35
AT ne ach pursuant [Dognyw grglect, Accordingly clauses 30xx(al and
iwai(b) of the Order are vk dpdiicable.

Foir P. K. KUMAR & Co.

CharFarad Acc I ATanrs

Firm keg Nou: DO31B6N o7
ow

Flace - Mew Delhl fPRABHASH KUMAR JHA e

[xate s aeprembor, 2249 PHrtne
LAUL L B B Far [~

9
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w



200

Arinmzure~BE iuv the Indaeoenoent Auoitor = ﬂq:purr

(Refericd o paragrapn (2P wngar tne hagoing oF CReport an Othor Legal and
Zequiatary Reduirdrment of our report of even date)

Report on tha Intarnal Flnanclal Controld wider Clause (17 oF sub=-section 3 af
Saction 143 of the Campanlés Act, 2013 [ "the Act’™

WS AV A0 80 CRe Inegrngd refgnd gl gl egls owar f|r\.ar||:|.]l rEFDrnng |:||' Haldir-ﬁm
Hauulan:turlng Eumpnnu' Frivare Limitesn | Bne I'_'nmpany ] A5 or Marcn 31, 2024 00
sciunchicn walh owr audil of the standaiane fiv2rnes starements i the ormpany for rne
wedl aided ar thal Llatﬂ:

Managament's Respansibility for Entarial Financial Contruis

The Campany's mandycnmnl = responsiols for estacbisa ny gl I IMCAN NG IR rna|
ITETNET HHIrels  UAsSenl an e InTerngl control aver Tinancial rEpD’I'ﬂg Srtena
estabftshed By the Comoany consldering the essentinl companents of nlermal coatrod
stated in the GQuidance Meote an Audil af Internal Finandian Tanirais Twear Sinancigi
Rrparting ssuen my [he Inshrgte of Charteran adcountants of ndia [TCAL). These
respansibilmes include the desian, mplementation o maintenance of adeguate
nternal financial contrls that wels ouerating affectively Foi ensoring the aiderny anid
glficient conduct of s Hsiness, mowoing  adberence o0 Company's JoICIES, [He
SATEQLAFDIAT BF 0% assels, the grevention and datectgr of raods amd arrgrs, Ehe
JcCiracy and comafeteness of the scocunhbing records, and the Dmely oreberdbiuen of

ielable financial mfermalion. g eguireo e FE LR THES G 2013

Audiiors’ Ruspansioiiicy

Uugr rasoonsimlity 5 B0 express an apinion an che Company's inl:érnal financtal gonkrals
cwar finangial -'irr:-l:lrhr-g w Y refErence (o Ehess starndalone fimancial statements rased
HEJ R Ny aI.JHII |‘I|H;,' CONALETEQ QU aUQIc 10 accargancs '.n‘-'l'|"|'| 'II'|'||EI 1;I||ﬂaﬁce Nﬂ[f‘l I:pl'l l.'.'l'un”‘ n"_|r
inTerng Dinangm! Controls ower Fmancal f2eporbing (the “Suldance Nate'™ and the
Slancurds on Auditing, as spgclfied nder sectron 1430100 of Lhe Coampanies Act, 2013,
L e eaienil el ilid hll;.' LU Al UL B FILEFTEA D (ITIARTIA CRTIEFOIS 45001, 206N ISE0RrAa |:|':.l' CAe
La=neure of Charrersn Lecounlants of Lndia, Toese Standards and the LCuidance Mote
raquare that wo Cormply wilh gthical reguaiemenis and oian ang perfarm the audit to
I'r|_|t|_'|||| [Bam e 191 Il.'.bl'ﬂ d=5Ul dilie clULrUL FrliRELHET I:II!J!jI_II_ll'.Il_I;' THITETThA | NINAMCIAl CaNTros guyer
hmanciyy ruporbing wnkth raterence [ these  staadalone “rancial statements  ~3@s
cstabishied ard mRntEmmad and of such confrols cpecaked efectively 0 all material
respeCis

ornkd. .2
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Cigr auit inwiives gerfa ming orgoeduigs T abfan dedit evidedce about the sdeguacy
O VW IR TR AL AR LOPEriE srseen vueer flogogia cepading sath relergnce to dese
STANYA 9ne NAang@! SLATermenls and thed operanng efiecovanass . Jur audee of internal
linancial controls oser Mnancial recorind @cleded abtaining an understanding of Internal
fINancial conora s over financa reparcing with reflerence (o ithese st@andalone financial
statemants. asseceing the sk thpt & mAlénd| wiokkiess 8WISTS 300 [2sTAg anc
svaluating *he design arnd operating effect woencess of intermal contre! based o0 thea
ansessed nnk. The procedures seiected depend on the auditor's iddginent, inglucing Lhe
asEassmanl of Ce NEKS of FAaranal misstacemant af ce standaione lindancial staiemeny

Aiebler duye b rraud oF errer

S FlpEwe TRAT PR Jud|T eVIence e Rave norained s sufficient and ARPrO0 A A
pravide & basiz for ouP gudit apmnlan on the Campany's ntemal “mancial esnkrd & System
mweer finans i reacrking with refereace fo these sfandalone financial statements.

searing of internai Financiai Controis Over Financial Recoriing with reference
to these Standalone Financial Statamanes

HI| AIMMPArY S mFernal rimancial control aver nancial "l:p':l‘”.lng MICN "eTEremACe [0 TheEe
standalons financial stateinents s a grocess designed o providde reasanable pssudancn
pe Aoy e ANy L IrAnLA T EEEDEg iy Lie Orepana i ol skandaicne firdicial
srgberpebs for CRLE-NA pufposes In docargance witn Jenerally aocepiea socaunnng
i) i||._.|'_'||1_=;. A I:l;:lr1'l|_'IE.'|r""g"5 ke @l Firsanglal contool cwer Financlal M=f art g LN reteErence
i Chese suandaione finandal slabements noludes hose poidies and grocedures that (17
partain b3 the mamlenaece 8t récaeds TRac, i reasonanie dertail accusarciy and iy
ceflack rha rransactions and disposilons of the ascets af the company; (&) prov de
reasoiab.e assurance that ransactions arc eeorded 88 Qecessary 1o permiil preparatian
~f BLANGCAICAE NNaNCIg@l staremencs n acrcorosance walkk :Jq-.rlrrrall-.- accensted aocaunting
jpriacipes, and thas recaipts and expenditures of the Zompany are Deirg mage oniy in
accrdance with authossat ons of management and d recOers of the Company; amd (4
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members ol
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanylng financial statements of Haldiram Ethnic Foods
Private Limited { the Company'), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended inciuding the statement of
cash flows, and notes to the financial statements, including 8 summary of significant
gccounting policies and other axplanatory infarmation.

In our opinton and to the best of our Information and aceording to the explanations given
to ug, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner 5o required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting

orinciples generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2024, its Loss and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conductad our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing [SAs) specified under
secllon 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibiliies under thase Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Staternents section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India tagether with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statemeants under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied
our other ethical responsibillties In accordance with thesa requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate
to prowide a basis for our apinien on the financial statements.

Ihe Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises Directors” Report including the annexures thereon, but does not

include the financial staterments and our auditor's report therecn. Such ather information
Is expected to be made avallable to us after the date of this auditor's report

Qur opinicn on the financlal statements doas not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion theraon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information |dantified above when it becomes available and in doing so consider
whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knewledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materfally misstated,

é—"" ' Contd...2
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When we read the report menticned above, if we conclude that there is a material
Mmisstatemnent thereln, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance. As the other Information s not made avallable to us as at the date of this
auditer's report, we have nothing to report in this regard.

'he Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financlal position, financial performance of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principies generally accepted in India,
Including the accounting Standards spedified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenanca of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
Implemeantation and maintenance of accounting policies: making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating affectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant o the preparation and
presentation of the financlal statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

N prepanng the financlal statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concerm, disclesing, as applicable, matters related
la going concern and using the going concern basls of accounting unless management

zither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so,

ITe Board of Directors is alse respensible for oversaeing the company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statermants
@5 8 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
lssue an auditor’s report that includes our epinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of
assurance; but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detact a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasgnably be expected to Influence the #conomic decisions of usaers taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
prafessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audil evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

b fram fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve
i collusicn, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

P
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* 0Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whethar the company has adequate internal financial controls systerm in place and
the operating effectiveness of such contrels.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of secounting and, based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related te events or conditions that may casl significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern, If we conclude that a material
uncartainty exists, we are requirad to drow attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditlons may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a gaing coancern,

= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the linancial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financlal statements represent the
dnderlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significent audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies In internal control that we ldentify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complled
with relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear an our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issuad
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of
the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company
a5 we considered apprpriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the “Annexure-I" statermnent on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent appllcable.

[ ]

As required by section 143(3) of tha Act, we raport that:

Gl We have sought and obtained all the infarmation and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

=} In our apinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept

by the company so far as It appears from our examination of those books
except for complying with the requirement of audit trall to the extent stated
in the paragraph 1 below on reporting under Rule 11{g);

L ) The Balance Sheet, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
L Statement dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the books of
9 account; - =

bl
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d} [n our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations recelved from the Directors as
on 31% March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disquallfied as on 31% March, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

R with respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectivenass of such controls,
refer to our separate report in "Annexure-II";

g) Section 197 of the Companies Act is not applicable on the Private Limited

Companlas, 50 report under section 197 (16) of the Companies Act is not
regilred:

f) The commenl relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matter

connected herewith is as stated in paragraph 2 above as reporting u/s
143(3)(b) and paragraph 1 below on reporting under Rule 11{g).

i% With respect to other matters to be Included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

in our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the
axplanations given ko us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
Impact its financial position.

i) The Company did not have long term contracts including dervative
contracts for which there were any material foresesable lossoes:;

iy There were no amounts which were required to be transfierrad to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and bellef, other than as disclosed in Mote No 29.(iv) to
the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or investad
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company te or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever {*Ultimate
Beneflclaries®) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any
gQuaraniee, security or the fike on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries,

i b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its
s knowledge and belief, as disclosed In Note No 29(v) to the
accounts, no funds have been recelved by the Company from any

_ (;ﬁ?q' persens or entibies, including forelgn entities ("Funding Parties”),
tﬂ)ﬁ with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
- that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in

("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties

~or provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the

E_ _ other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
Ulttimate Beneficiaries; ancd

Contd...5
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c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been
considered reasonable and appropriate in the clrcumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (k) contain any
materlal mis-statement,

v} The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year.

vl]  The reporting under Rule 11 (g} of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 is applicable from 1 April, 2023.

Based on our examination which Included test checks, except for the
Instances mentioned below, the company has used SAP accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trall (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
coftware:

The payroll software, point of sales software for recording sales of
Q5R business at outlet level and master data management toals used
fer maintenance and updating of master data at respective
accounting software used by the company did not have an audit trail
feature enabled, consequently, there was no audit trall maintalned
for transactions recorded within these specific software’s for the
whole year. Also, audit trail features facility was not enabled at the
databace level to log any data changes for the accounting software
used for malntaining the baoks of accounts.

Further, for the periods where audit trail {(edit log) facllity was
enabled and operasted throughout the year for the respective
accounting software, we did not come across any Instance of sudit
trail feature being tampared with during the course of our audit,

For P, R. KUMAR & CO.
Chartersd Accountants o
Firm - Mo.: 003186MN

Place: New Dealhi (DEEPAK SRIVASTAVA)
Date: Z4™ Saptermber, 2024 Partner —

M. No.:501615



"Annexure - I

Annexure to Independent Auditor's Report

\Referred to In paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirement” of cur report of even date)

(1} {a)

(i}

)

td)

(=)

(i) (&)

)

(A) The company has maintained proper records showing Full partlculars
including quantitative detalls and situation of Property, Plantand Equipment.

LB} The company has maintained proper records shewlng full particulars of
intangible assets.

We have been informed that the Property, Plant and Equipment of the
company are physically verified by the management according to a phased
program designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which,
In our opinion, & reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
the nature of Its assets. Pursuant to the program, physical verification was
carried out and no discrepancles were noticad on such verification.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the Company, the title deeds of Immovable
properties (other than properties where the Company Is the lessee and the

lease agreements are duly executed In favor of the lessee) are held in the
name of the Campany.

According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not

revalued ils property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or bath
during the vear. ;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records af the Company, there are no proceedings
inibated or pending against the Company for holding any benami propery
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The inventery has been physically verified by the Management during the
year, In our opinlan, the frequency of such verification Is reasonable and
procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and
the beeok records that were 10% or more In the aggregate for each class of
Inventory,

As disclose in Note No- 29(x) to the financial statements, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rupees five crores in
aggregate from Bank during the year on the basis of securty of current
assets of the Company. The quarterly return/statements filed by the
Company with such banks are not in agreement with the books of accounts
of the Campany and the details are as follows:

tﬁ*ﬁ e Contd...2



(i)

(@)

{c)

(d

(&)

(f)

_2_
{(Rs. In Lakhs)
!"Quarrer" | Value as [ Value as per | Difference | Reason for
ending par quarterly difference
books of | statement
acoounts | submitted
with lenders
June, 2023 1160.81 | 136081 | 20000 | The difference are
because of derical
arrcr in calculation
| of books debts,
Sep, 2023 1176.89 1176.89 -
Dec, 2023 1117.36 1117.36
‘March,24 | 134163 | 134163 -

Cwring the year the Company has provided loans; advances in the nature of
loans and provided guarantee to companies as follows:

Particulars = Loans | Guarantees |
I
| (Rs. In Lakhs) | (Rs. In Lakhs)
' Aggregate amount granted/
! provided
-Other ' 22.50 + Nil
' Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date out of the
above cases
4321.50 il
=0ther t :

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations giver
te us, the terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans and guarantee
provided are, prima facle, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In respect of loans granted to cempanies, there is no schedule of repayment
and payment of Interest has been stipulated. It has been explained to that
loan that loan and Interest therean is repayable on demand.

There are no amounts of lcan granted to companies which are.overdue for
more than ninety days, as it has been explained to us that na demand is
made by the Company regarding repayment of loan or interest.

The Company has net granted any loan which has fallen due during the year.,
Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to sattie the overdue loans,

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, which is
repayable on demand. The details of the loans are given below:

Cantd...3



(v}

i)

i)

(&)

i
{Rs. In Lakhs)

I' Particulars LAl Promaters | Related |
| Parties Parties
| Aggregate amount of loans/

advances In nature of loans

‘Percentaga of loans/ advances 100%

in nature of loans to the total

Loans

In eur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of

the Act, with respect to the loans granted, Investments made and guarantes
ar security given.

According to the information and explanaticn given to us, the Company has
not accepted deposits as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
consequently, directives ksued by the Reserve Bank of India; the provisions
of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Rules framed there under are not applicabla,

Accerding to the Infermation and explanation provided by the management,
the company is not engaged In preduction of any such goods or provision of
any such services for which the Central Government has prescribad
particulars relating to utlization of material or iabour or other items of cost.
Hence, the provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not
apply to the company,

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the
information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the Company is
generally regular in depositing its undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, goods
and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value addad tax, cess and
any other statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities,

According LO the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed payable
in respect of provident fund, income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material

statutory dues were in arrears as at 31% March, 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became pavable.

Contd...4
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According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of records of the Company, there are no statutory dues
relating o Geods and Services Tax, provident Fund, employees' state
Insurance, income-tax, sales- lax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us ard on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as Income in the books of

account, |n the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as iIncome during
the year.

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(&)

(f]

(a)

()

According to the information and explanations glven to us and on the

basis of examination of records of the Company, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loan or berrowings or In the paymant of
interest thereon to any lender,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the bacis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not

been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or government authority.

According to the Information and explenations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has utilized

the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purpose
for which they were obtained.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that na funds
ralsed on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial staterments of the Company, the Company does
not hold any Investment in eny subsidiaries, assoclate or joint venture {as

defined In the Act), consequently, clause 3{ix)(e) of the Order Is not
applicable.

According to tha infarmation and explanations given to us and proceduras
performed by us, we report that the Company does not have any subsidiary

(@5 defined under the Act), consequently, clausa 3(ix){f) of the Order Is not
applicabla,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer ({including debt
Instruments). Accordingly, clause 3({x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year, Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of

.g_-

the Order is not applicabie. ity
C ot
L

e



262

-5

(xi} (a)&{b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the Information and

explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clauses 3(xi){a) and
(b} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{e} According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures

Ly

(i

Lxiv)

(3w

perfermed by us, we report that the establishment of whistle blower

mechanism is not applicable to the Company, consequently, clause 3({xl)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

I'he Company |= not & Nidhi Company, hence in our opinion and according to the
infarmation and explanations glven to us, clause (xii) of the Paragraph 3 of the
Drder is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and detalls

of such transactions has been disclosed In the Ninancial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company dogs nat have an
Internal audit system and is not reguired to have an internal auditor as per
provisions of the Companles Act 2013, consequently, clauses 3{xiv}{ai(b) of the
Order are not applicable.

The Company has not entered Inte any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him; accordingly, In our opinion and according to the

information and explanations given to us, clause (xv) of the Paragraph 3 of the
Drder is not applicable.

(xvl) (a}&{b) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-TA of the

(i}

Favlii)

.ﬁ g

v

#

W

eoft

Reserva Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clauses 3(xvil(a) and (b} of
the Order are not applicable.

(e) The Company is not & Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined In the

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of Indla. Accordingly clause 3{xvi)(c)
of the Order is not applicable.

{d) According to information and explanations provided to us, there is no core

Investment company within the Group (as defined In the Core Investment
Companies {Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016), consequently, clause 300v)(d)
of tha Order is not applicable.

The Company has not Incurred cash losses In the current and in the Immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,
Accordingly clause 3{xviii) of the QOrder is not applicable.

Contd... &
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According to the Information and explanations gliven to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and sxpected dates of realisation of finandal assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to ocur attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company Is not capable of meeting its llabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a perled of one year from the balance
gheat date, We, howewver, state that this Is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any quarantee nor
any assurance thal all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the

balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
du,

According to the information and explanations given to us, section 135 of the
Companles Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company, consequently, clauses
I{ec(a) and I(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable,

For P. R. KUMAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Rgg. Mo.: DO2186N s MAR™
/l.'f qi‘:-.

Date! 24" September, 2024 Partner ;

M. MNeo.:501615
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Annexure — II

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATE LIMITED

| Referred to paragraph { 2(f) } under the heading of "Report en Other Legal and Regulatory
~equirements” of our report of even date)

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {I) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the Act")]

We have audited the Internal financial eontrols over financlal reporting of Haldiram Ethnic
Foods Private Limited ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 In conjunction with cur
audit of the financial staterments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Rasponsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management Is responsibie for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the Internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
luidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financlal contrals that were
operating @ffectively for ensuring the erderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s peolicies, the safeguarding of its assets; the prevention and
detection of frauds and errers, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable financlal Information, as requlred under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our respansibility Iz to express an opinion on the Company's Intemal financial controls gver
financial reporting basad on our azudit. We conducted our audit In sccordance with the
Guldance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Flnancial Reporting (the
‘Guidance Mote”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of intérnal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financal
Controls and, both Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance absut whether adeguate internal
financial controls over financlal reporting was established and maintained and If such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Dur audit invalves performing procedures te cbtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and Lheir operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal financial contrels over financial reporting included
ebtaining an understanding of internal Mnancial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
tparating effectiveness of internal contrel based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selacted depend o the auditer's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatament of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or ermor.,

Ne believe that the audit evidence we have obtained |s sufficient and appropriate to provide

4 basls for our audit opinion en the Company’'s Internal financial controls System owver
financial reporting. :

Eﬁ?"“. Contd,,..2




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reascnable assurance regarding the rellability of financdal reparting and the
prepgaration of financial statements for external purposes In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal Ananclal control over financlal
reporting includes thoese policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the malntanance of
records that, In reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
vispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with autherizations of
Management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the Company's assets that could have 2 material effect on the financial statemants.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Becausa of the Inherent limitations of Internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, matarial
misstatements due Lo error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the Internal financlal controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financlal contral over financlal reporting may
pecome inadequate because of changes In cenditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinker, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
cantrols system over financial reporting and such internal financial contrels over financial
reparting wete operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criterla established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated n the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Lontrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P. R. KUMAR & CO.
Chartered Accountants .

Firm Rag. No.: D03186N k*’,\h
s .'II: :
| -| i (D : |

Place: New Delhi (DEEPAK SRIVASTAVA) T
Date; 24" September, 2024 Partner
M. No.:501615
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HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATE
Reqd. Office | Haldiram-Village Kherkl Daula, Delhi Jalpur Highway, Gurgaon, Basal Read-1272001, Haryana, Indis
Tel @ +31 124 4778400 , Emaill @ cefhaldizam. oo
(CIM : WISAZIHRZO0APTCLIETL L)

BALAMCE SHEET AS AT 3ist Hﬂ 2024

EIMTYED

[ Al amounts. in Indan iBkchs, unéess ntheraize stabed }

Particelars Note No. As &t A5 Ak
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
] Share Canlisd a 2.0 EE.05
b] Feserse and Suepio 2 3,502 51 3,249.20
IT Mon-cwrrent (bilitins
3] Long-term barrawings 4 1.250.0:0 2280 0
o) Tifer Leng Tesm Labiles 5 24,181 510
] Lang Term Provisons [ LEEGa 402.17
I Current llabEides
8 Shars Term Bomimings 7 SOTL2] 2,213.98
fi Trade Payaiies - 8
&) total sdtitending chies of micr enterpdans. and smail 1511 24,55
ENLQIrises
B Lolal eulstanding oues of cradibes alher than mécrg 431875 355563
ETECIOriSES MNE Sl snterprises
o] Ohlwy Current Linbsibes - ®
A mocal sulstarding coen of miong enterprises and smal
Entue s
B futsl tutstanding duas of craditors otber than micg 1ma9on 35489
ENLETRrisaE §ri small enteimrises
b Snoet T Frovisions 10 138,11 L0815
14,739,239 12301.79
ASSETS
I pen Current Assets
&) Property, Plant and Eguipmant and Intongible assets
ii Property; Fant and Equipments 11.1 10,002 85 P
] Intsrgible fsseis 11.2 318,33 407
] Capital wah-m-progosy 113 62.33 R
il Intargibie. Bseets Untar Dessopmart 154 - B0
b Defered Tak Accor [Hat) Bz R IG5
21 L5Ap Tesmw Loans and e v arees i 112605 119321
Il Burrent assets
&k Inwentorias 14 JER &5 50108
o) Trade pecemables 15 453 9% BELFE
) Cash and Cask Equivalents L& Bl 04 41,69
A Snoet Tenn Lsdns and ASvances iy BT5.44 3. 20
14,730.39 L2, 301. 79
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The sccomponying notes form on integral part of thess financial sfatements

in terms oF sair Audit Reoor At
For P K. EUMAR & ©0,

M. Mo, - 30314855

Place - Hew Delbs
Dobg - d&4th September, 2024

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limitad

B

|
_'pY‘E[N—lr# ﬁw{
(MARNOHAR LAL AGARWAL) {ASHISH L)

Birgciar Director
OIN: O0293783 DN O
Address:1-15, Bliock -] Address;-15, Block -2
Haue kkas Enclave, i Haur Khes Enslave,
Few Deii=1 LO0AE '{." Mow Deini-1 L0018
&7, _.
e

-



A7
HALDIRAM E C FOODS PRI D
Regd, Dffice | Haldiram-Village Kherkl Daula, Defhl Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basai Road-122001, Haryana, India
Tel i 491 124 4771400 , Emall : cs@hakdiram.com
{CIN : UIS1Z2HRZ003PTCLIAT1L)
PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024
e TA amaunts i Indian ¥ LakNs, aiess sherwhe steked

Particuiars Hobe Ao, For the year For the year
ended amded
21 March 2024 31 March 2023
INCOME
b Fermnue from Doerationes 13 35,000,592 31, 37184
II Cthar |Aeame i 0&5.85 .72
IIf Totml Incoma [1+11) _ﬂ 21,438.53
I
¥  LXFENSES
Coat of Matenalz Cordgirigd aa L0, 196,02 3, 737.87
Purcaeas of Srock-n-Trade 1 &, T19,48 4,54 700
Change & irsentones of Fnisned goods and stack-in- 3 .52 (L1274
rage
Emrpigivan Seell Expense = §.502.21 534835
Firsnc= Cost 24 436,53 218 9
Crepreciation and Amgieetion bl 1.933.73 1,501.88
Cither Expenssy 25 13, 737.5 10,224 43
Totsl Exponsey _“,H_.ﬁ W
W Brpfit/| Losa} oefore e (TI-1W) {348.28) [ L. 4]
VI Tox Expenses
Curent Tax 27 Hr.oz2 L¥5.084
Shorpexcesd) Prunscn for tax 1.Z5 =
Dieférrad Tl (Reverns) [ - T ) [203.26)
VI Profit/ (Loss) [V-¥E) ___ (zesam) — (121.33)
VIl Barnings por sty shares of feca valus of Ra. f|
10/~ each
1] Bast in AL} (43300 {12,273
) Diyrad {in Rs.] (42,30} 1B.27)
| Significent Aocoumting Polickes 1
| The accompanying notes foem an integral part of these financial statemaents
[ beres of oor Audt Rapert Arraches Foer & on behall of tha Boord of Diractars af
For P. R KUMAR & CO. Heldiram Ethnle Foods Private Limited

Chartered Accountents
Firm - e 003 166K TR ru]qh,‘/]LJ

(DEEPAK SREVASTAYA] o100

{MANDHMAR LAL AGARWAL)

P i Biremor

M, He - 5165 DN SlEanTeg
Addressi]l-15, Bock -1 Address: }-15, Block -3
Maux Khiss Endave, HAauZ KRB Bl gy,
Maw Delfi- 110006 o Cofh- 110008

MBce - New Beihi
Cinte : ddinSephamiar, J24
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Ted : +91 124 4771400 , Emall ; ce@haldiram. com
fCIN | U15122HRI0GIPTCIIBT1N)

HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATE GPLPED
Regd. Office : Raldiram-Villege Kharkl Caula, Delh Jaipir Highway, Gurgaon, Basal Road-1 12001, Haryvana, India

{ A &rdunks in Indlan #

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2024

uniass ctherwiee stated )

|

Far the yaar Far the year
ended uhded

== 31 March, 2024 31 Manch 2003
SASH FLOMW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mat Prafit/{Lase] Pefiore Tas [ 348, 20) [13&_?3)
Adiustmant for
Cspracation 1.933.73 1,501.89
interest Paig 436,53 23595
Lozs/iProfit ) oo Sale of Property, Pant & Equipment {det) . {a.z21)
Discard of Property , Mant & Equpmarnt 74.55 in9.28
Inierest Remelved - (31.55)
[nigme Tax {Fac)yLeland (53.37) {a&.07
Gpurating Prodit Defers Warking Capital Changs 2,033.1E 1,571.49
Adfusted tor
Clmrggra ' Decresse in Tnvenbo res 119874} 122.6]
{lncreasaly Decresse in Trody Rocplyvabis 39R.01 [243.33)
plrcressely Decpase i LoBes & Advances {201,103 (146.93)
incredse) (Decrease] n Trades Payable TLT.48 J3m 51
Intrease) | Cecrease] Othver Liabilibes 145,53 f.id
a) Cash Generated froom Operation 2,E58,24 1,730.38
Losh (runm Lnga sl SLLWIGE
Purshiss of Property |, Plant & Equipment (3,513.91) {3,546.63)
Salm of Ranarly | Mant B Egolorman - 5 5E
Irestrment i Bank Daposr . -
InfErest Racened 1111
b} Cash used in investment activity T (A51291) 12,529.07)|
Cash fmom Finance Ackivities
Inkarest Faic (436.53) [225.96)
Decreuse in Lang Tarm: Barrowing {0, Ol Oy 133433
Lriregse m Shorl Term B i L . Ba7.23 [26:0.45]
e} Exch weed in Finoasing Actlvity L4Z20.70 817,032
Met Increass in cash and cash oquivalant a0 F.0%8 743
LCash and cosh squiatents at the begirming of the yesr #31.04 P11
Cash gt cash equivalents at the end of the year B91.04 23494
Camponenl of cas™ and cash &quivalenty &8 por Bolence sheet | Refer HBRL.04 B9y
Hote Mo, 167
Lass: Bank balances not considered as Cesn and cash equivsients o - .
GRNRE i A3 Cash Flow STabemang
Dedmnii= with Lanks teid &5 margin maney  secunty againGt guarantse = .
Mel Cash and cash eguivabents BFL.04 E3.95
{Redefnen in A5-3 Cash Faw Slataments] indudes in fefer Mots Mg 13 - -
Cach and cawh squivelants at the end of the yoor comprises : -
Cah 1 hang 250,30 TEGE
Chégee in hano - =
Balanie with Banks = -
&) I turment acoorts 635.01 =
By In depasil sicaums 573 5.3

89104 J-

In termeof mir Augit Bepoert Attached
Far B, A KUMAR & ©O,
d Acenumtanis

LT
iialy
i 8
I3 -
IL LT

o{ o o, |
g S i
bp s
PAMRAE % '?:'.‘._-;:.'*t:;-_:l\.ﬁb
M. Mo, - BD1615 o i
‘:: i o
* '*-{
Fiagca | Mew DEihl - iﬁ.ﬁ?
Date | Hih Sagiamber, 3034 t@ :

-

For & on bahalf of the Doard of DIFeoamsE of
Haldiram Ethaic Foods Prlvals Lol bed

wﬂ“‘

~ -:*::;L:,L.Lrﬁ, thue |

(MANOHAR LAL AGARWAL) [ASMISH Aﬁuti ]
Diresctonr Hrector i
R1%%: DO2S0TED DIN: DOD11486 ™

Ardress =15, Binck <)
Haarr Khas Enelaus,
Mes Deihi-110016

Adciress= 115, Blogk -]
Hauz Khas Erclava,
Mo Dol piA 10015
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HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATEEIMYTED

Regd. Office : Haldiram-Village Kherki Dauls, Delhi Jalpur Highway, Gurgaon, Basei Road-122001, Harvana, India
Tel: +81 128 4771400 , Email ! csBhaldiram.com

{CIN : U15122HRZ003PTCI1ET11)

Motes on Financlal Statement for the Year ended on 31st March, 2024
e B I b e —————— s

Wote- | SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING PFOLICIES

A

Baszis of Accounking.

Mhess fnancil Satements have been propared |n eccondaros with B senerily sceepted accounbing principles |n India under
the histodcal cos convention on acorual basls, Pursyant te section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 resd with Rule * of the
Companies [Mcgunte) Mules, 2014, O the standaids af atcounting or any addendum thereto am prosceibed by Ceatral
Gavernrmant (0 conuikeaton and reccenmendation of the Natisnal Finnesisd Feporting Authorly, Uhe eslstng Acooursing
Standards netified ooder the Campanies Ak, 1358 ghall contirue B apph. Consequently, these rancial statement have beer
prepammd o comple i oall materls sspects with the accounting standards motified unger Section 21H3C) |Companles
[Accaunting Standarcs] Ruls, 2006 53 amsnsad] and other ralevsnt provisions of the Companies A, 3613

All agedis and fabiities have been cassfed as curment of non-cumisnl g5 per the Company's apersting ocle and other cripera
et ol e e Scivedule Tt this Companies AL, 2013,

Geing Concern Assymition

The financial staternents have besn arepared an the sssmpbion of Going Concerm Dasls, accordngly i the assets and
EabiEtins have Deen reflactsd ar ther book valus,

Use of estimpias

e prepasation of neacls statements in conformity with tedian GASF, requires Mansgemment m make Juclgments, sstimates
and mssuspiions that affect the réoormed amounks of revenus, expenses assets and labiities and dscosarg of Contingent
fabiflizs ot the ead of the reporting peried, AKhough Lhese estimates are based upon mansg=ment's best knoedadgs of
TUMATE MyEnin and actiones, wnoertainty absaul ess accumptione ond golimables oould resulk in the outoames regquiring =
meateris ad|ustment W the carrying amnents of pssety or Hebiities in futare parods.

PEroparty. Piant and Eguiosvent

Propery, Plant snd Equijeneils are cepaaiised o0 oosh of esouigtian inchusive of Ireight, rarspormaticn snd ocher ircigental
=y pensis nofating Lo Feladatian,

Eepreciation Amurtization

Depredetion on mngokn AsssM commences when the sty are ramdy for bheir otended st which & geanerally o
emrHEsionEy] Bnd = proviced onbhe Weitten down value method ower ths el s of aszets, The Management hes

REIMALEE The Dekivw usehul life Dased on ite estimate regarding the poriod over which the ssests are expacted to be LEed and
e iy =apported by Techrical evaluston

Property , Plant and Equipmant Useful lives as per Managameant | Useful (e = per Sthedais I |

Famory Bulling |5-60 Year — |30/ 60 Years

Plank and Eqyipment I-13 Years 15 Years

Electrizal Inmndlatios T- 10 Yais 14 Yeads

Furmiture & Fichiire 4-10 Yaar 14} Veziar

Tffics Equipments 25 Year 5 Year

Vehighs B -10 Yebry 1 Veass B

Buidlirg on Leasengd premises Amoriised over e penod of lease | Amartised over the period of lease
b e

The compansnts have bedn dardified by the management oo oo the Pegursment of schedule (1 to the Comperiles Act, 2013
5rd the entifed (omponenls 2re beéng desrecated separacely ouer ther iseful bves ard the FRTAininG enmparents s
Jegreoated ower Lhe e of the peindpal axsets,

Laasahedd |ard il be srmartized ovar @ period of lase from the date of smrting of comemencisl praduction,

Lintpngibles
Intarglle anzats arem portized on 8 straight B basis ower Hhe estimated usefil ecoramie e,

A summary of amarization poiickes apoied to the company's irtangide assets |s a9 bebow:
Intarginle agigi= Extimalad Waefid Ule In No of year

Sofwpres I Wears

Cordd.2




o,

Inventorias

Raw material, fuel, packing mabersd and firished goods sre valued ok lower of tost s et redlissble walis. The bapls of
petErmiring (os For varigus EQanies of inventones are s folowms:

Ray Material, Fle=l; Paccing Motorial AL COGT O WG Awerage basic
Semi-Fnichod Cooce Ak getimbted cost

Fimshed Cobds: Bought ear kms Ab gzai 2 Wieight Average bogi
Finigheo Gopds: Inhouss Bems & petimated eeak

Revenug Aeseonition

Revenue fram reRaurant and swest shap sales (fod and beverages) in reengnined ot the tme of undetyhg sale to the
Susiomer.

Revenue is recognised when the Company transfers rsk and raward of the promised services fo e custamer . The Campary

INEUSUIES [Evards, fof Lhe monskleration (o which the Company & cxpotted b be sntitled In aochangs for tromesferring
fircmised seraican,

laterest income i recognised on @ bme gropartian bass into acooang the Bmaount oustanding and the mte hpeicable.

Salditienal dumand of taxes

Hayment of agditional demand of Sxes Tax ard Income Téx are sccoankad fof oh payment basla. Similarty refurd of thase e
socuuntad fer "AR st when received” Daghs,

Lazatien

Proviesn for gurrent tax = made aMEr @kIng N conskieration benefis admissibie under the gravigans of the Incorms Tox
B, 1961, Frovision ame rocarded when ks ecdmated that & llabily due o disallowance or stier matberis probable. Hirdmum
sftErmative Lax (MAT) padd In sccordance with thi Gae ey, which 5 given rise to Tubine Soomemic benefits i form o tax cract
Fpairst futurs. incoeme ay lability | b= recogrised 35 an Bssetd in the balance shoet ©F fhare & conwirtdng =widence that the
sempany will pay nonmal tae. Tisy company Qifsets, on vear i year bass, e current e 2E5a0E and lianditias, where & has a
Egalhy eninroesnis nQide and wivies (b irtends tomettie suCh assoty and lebilHes on & net basls.

Seferrel lax far timing differerces potvwenn Lax prafgs and Dock Frofks 15 acounted Tor using the tax mates and laws thal have
SRn eNpCes or mlstantaily anacted s of the belsnce shest date. Daoforred ek awssts are recoghised 1o the exkent Lhere =
rEasonable certaindy Lhat these acsets can be reslised i futuee, Deferned Lax Bsosks Sre reassaseed Tor the apompriateness of
thial” FespRClve carmying amaunts af each batence shael date. Thi Compasy SM%s on a year on yoar bass, the current acnd

Aoreogmrent e assets and llabdmes where © has o iegedy enforceabie right and where it inbands ko ssttle such assete and
lakilitie=; on A net BAGE

Empioyves Bunaff :

The Company bas various schemes of retirement benefis sich a5 provient mund, gratufty and lesve encashmert, Thi
Company's condnbullon bo the provident fund & enargis) sgainst revenoe pvery yeas,

Gratuity -The company provides Tor grebuity, a defined benalit ratFement plan(Grikulty Fan) covoring all emoloyess. The
cempany has an amployess gratuty st meneged oy Baja) Allang Uil [nsureros Co Ltd, The Gratuky pisn praride Limp
fAum payment bo vered smoioyees , e retirement or termingtion of employesment . Bn amount Daseed on the respective
EITEEIVERS S0 drawn hade miany and the years of 4mgleyesment with the company. Uskiity with regerd b0 Gratuky pan &
sccured based on aticsl vislestion ob the Baloncs sheek date, carnied oot by an ndependent adusry. Acural galn or ks
refogrited immemaiedy in e siatemert of Profis & Loss &5 Mcome or eaoenses

Provisan foc les ancashment is soued and provided for én the bosis of actuarial valuation made at the end o sach
fmencal vear Actuanal gain gnd loesesane immedatety tharped b Profit and Loss Account and are riol defered,

The company recogrusm o bobligy for Sich Leawe to tRe estent thet absence In the caming Yeas are @xpedctec [0 be greater
than the Sck Leave entitiements samed In the coming pear. The amows 0 cbeulaied deed on the unusod Sick Leave
antiklemest that can be camied Torsised ot the Belance sheet date, to the extent byt e campany anticipates L wil be used by

SEAT Lo cover Mase fuurg agsances, Father, e provison of Sick Lesve §8 accrued and provided on the basis of actuérial
valuation made 6L the end al aach fnsncsl year,

Exchange Fluctuation

Curment aysels and |lapllives 0 ferégn cumency outttanding at (e dase of e finandal wear ang valised at the apprapete

smroangs rato at the close ol Bhe Year, The locs of gEn dus @ Auesuation of eschange mies s chargad o Prog and Loss
FCOETL

Impairment of aEseis

It e carrying amaunt of fked aotets ewceads b rmcoversile amaunt on the reporting date he carcying smeunt is redoced
to the samouerabie mounk The recoverable ampont 18 measured =t the higher of the net selling or the value in e
SEtErmuned by e present yvoles of estimeted future cach fows,




271,

Leagad
Renini ard &1 offer axpenses In resoect of leasehokd lamd e rested A5 Fevenus expandiure,

Erpvisions, contingent abilities and contingant nasets

Froveisnng arg recogrieac for lablities that can be meamred only by sy @ substartal dugroe of estmaton, if
al Tha compary MES E fresent abligation as o result o & Rl sl
) & probabie outfiow of msources s akpestad Fn dettle the chligation ang
£] The amount of tha.Giigatan can be relabiy astimatad,

Contingent lLabiity |s Giscipsud in the case of 1

) o present obligetion arlsing from & past event, when i is 0ot profable that an eutfiow o  msources sl b Foquived o
setie e abigation

B & possble obligation, unkess tha probability oF ouitfiow of resources 1S remoli.
Cenfingent Bssets ane nalthor recagnized ror Ssdossd,
Prvisns, contngent ladities ang contaent fioets are revicwed o gach balants shest dats,

Prior pariad snd extrsordinary tams

Ineams And euperidture perkalning to price period be waell as extriordinary fems, wihere miberial; are disclosed separatsty,

Sagmeont Regorfing

As: the compeny's Disingss ectivity Falls wikhen o single primary Dusiness "Earabls Products® the dsdosure requirement of
Actounting Stardar [As-1F) "Segment Aepoiting "hsued by th Ingtitute of charensd Acoountants of [ndia & not applcatie,

Capital Work In Progress
Asdets not put o Lee nefore the year-end are disclosed under Capital Week InProgress.

Bocriawing Cost

Gorrewing costs that are attribatalde 10 the sogulstion ar construction of qualifying Assets are aplalsed as part of cost of
Euch aeeets. A qualiying gsset s one that nesessarfy fakes substantlal period of tme tu get ready for Intended e &l sther
Garrawling Cials are cnamged 1o revenue,

Efirning. mir Share

Baze ezming per are are caloslaled by cwiding the set profit or loss Tar (e year attributable to eguity shareheiders (afier
atbrbutecie teees) Oy wetighied sversce nummbsr of eoulty shares cuiskanding during the perod. Farty pasd equity shares am
freated a& & fractier) of an equity shares to the eubent thak bhay are entithed o particdpete in dividends selative Leoa fully paid
Euity shares curlng the reporting period. The welahted awerage nomber of ‘equity shares outstanding during the seriad
BOLELOC for Bvenl such &= bonus ksum, BONUE elerants 1h 8 right Bsue, share spiit and rwrerse share splt (consolidation of
Ehares | that Raeg chanped the numbsar of ghang outstanding , without & comesponding change i FesouUmes.

Foi the purpass of calculabng diked earming per sharss, the net profit or ks for the perlod sktrbutable o equity
sharzhgicers sl e weghted average number of shares cotsanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
St patentinl @cuity aharas,

Cosh and Cash Eoulvalants

Cagh end Cagh Equivalsnbs for the purpoge of cashl Ao stetemenl canprise cash ot bank, cash in hand, demand depoeit wid
bank and péfer short-lerm ceposit with an ariging: maturity of thees month o e
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Motes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 3ist March, 2024

{ Al BMGUNEs s Ingian ¥ L3NS, Uness ctharmios Srated |

a Equity Fwmre capitol

Particalars T....MII._...._
-Mar-24 Fl-Mar-31
Authurised capltal
Eguity sharas of Re. L0/- each
HNumnber of shares 11,080,000 11,040, D0
Amouil 1100 g0l

Issued, subseribud and fully paid up capiail
Equity shares of B L0/~ aach, fully pald-up

Huambasr of s4grEs H,E,ﬂ-i] E-I'il.-ilﬂ
Aampunt 62.95 GG
[Tetal 62.95 62.95
ial Reconciliation of the numbar of shares and amount sutstanding as at the beginning and ot e snd of the yeme
Particulars Mumber of Ameunt
lles CLIFT T
Outstanading at the 31 Mar 20232 6,258,453 62,
Agdd: sued during e period - -
Outstaniling ai the 31 Mar 2023 5,20,483 &3,
Aicdd: Tegun duriig e perod = =
Oulslansding st the 11 Mar 2024 G 29,463 CFET]

(b} Daotaike of shares held by each sharahelder bolding more than 5% shares

Farticulars Az pt ——
J1-Mpr-24 31=Mar-23
M, of Uiy Mo, af Lo
Slares hoking Shikrzs halding

My Radhe Kedla Trust 3,37, T2 531650 337,720 53659

M/ Annapuma Trus 180,443 TG I, &0 ad3 28,87 %

{Haidiram Mig. Ca; Pyb. Lbd, 50,158 9.40% R T 3,40 %)

(el Detalix of sharms held by Promatsre:
= Az ot 31-03-2024 Az at 31-03-2023
Promater Mame Mo of Shares | %% of Tolal % Changs | No.ofShares | % of Total
shares during the Shares
year

{Madie Krahne Trst = 3,37,720 £3,65% 0.00%, 337,720 53.65%

Armgpuims Trus 1,850,443 2.5 1% 0. LD 1,80,443 28.67%
i Marabar Lal Aanrwal (HUF) . .00 =100 GO 30,001 4.77%

Mladnisiidan A | HEE) - T.00%: =1 {H}, CO 20,001 ERE

Hokliram Srécks Procate Umited - .00 =1L CET R i 0.,

HMaidiram Marketing Privale LUmibsd - 0,005 =100, D0 B 1 .00 %

Hakliram Masufactaring Co Privats 50,152 2,405 0. 00 % 55 152 AN

M. Equipment Brd Warehousing - 1.00% =100, DO B 2,145 9344

Mo i Devl Bgerwal 2,146 [HECE L1 L0 D05y E 0.00%

Arnnd Agarsnl 10,000 1. 55, L0, Dt = Tre

A Aganiva 10,000 1,550, 20, E = 000

Fankdca] Agaraal 10,001 1.55% 100, D% = THT

Limesh Agarwal A, 00t 3.15%: 100y, 0%, - 1 T

Total of the abowa G, 29,463 100.00% 6,29, 463 100, 00 %

Tudal no. of Shares B, 29,463 6,259,963

E1  RWhis, preferences and restrictions attached to shores

The Company hag enily ana cless of eguity shares Raving par velun of Rs. 10 per shere, Each holdar of SOuily Share is enttisd 10 one
wotg par ghare, The Cempany declares and gays dvidend in Indisn rupeas.
Inshe avant of. iquidabion of the Company, the heiders of aquity shares @il bo enkited to recklve remalning assets of the Company

after distribataon of 8l the preferential amownts, F any, The ditribution will be 0 the prapeeticn To the numser of equity shares hakd
oy thie Gharaholdars

2.4 The company hes nok kapt any Hsued equity shares msorved for sa0e under gptions and Cantracts/cormmimerls.

Tre company bes not Boumd any BOuly shares during the kst five finandal VEErS Immediately preceding the balanse sheet diks e,
A1 Harch 2024, In mlatin 0 shares ssued WERAU receiving cash, FURther, noos of the equity shares have bean lnued = bonce

shgres and neEtar any of (e ejuly shares heve been bought back dusing the iast five Mnancal pears immediately preceding the
froolancr svwel date, e, ¥1 Harch 2024, L
I

-
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2H]

491 124 4771400, Email !
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Diher agulty
Farticulars As ok

Al-Mar-24 Fl=Mar=15
Hasarveu ard nirplun {Refar Nate R
SEL FilE premium 42000 00, 00
GEnaral retpoyn 5,ETH.T 1.676.74
RAtming @arragy B16.17 1,083, 46
Total 1,982.51 3,248.30
Aeasrves el Surplus

Particulprs | A at

A1-Mar-24 31-Mar-13 |
Securitiar premium scoount
Oparry falance 4%0.00 H50,00
el Presnium an smares imasd dufng e pecdod - =
Closing balance 490,00 49000
Goneral rsorva
Ciening balance 167674 1,676, 74
Al During e pear = E
Legs: Trangler (o metaingd samings on & oount of -
Clasing bslance 1,606,794 1,676.74 |
Hetalned saminga
Cerng halence 1,082 48 1,203.78
Add! Profit fTipes) for the year [ penod I:EEE.H_I] [L21.32)
Closing balance 216.17 1, 08Z. i

Matare and purpose of reserves

Securitias Framium : The amount réceived in excess of face value of te equity shares |s recogrised In Securkies Premium. Tn case
EF diuiby-wettled share besed payment trensmiions, Le diference beteeen faie velp= on grant date and ramingl velue of share =
ACCHuNTEd ak pstsriies gremium

Ganaral Resarys: The Company bod denbified e rdggrg pursuent & amalgamekion of atier Companiss mith Haldram Ethers
Foodn Private Limited Mandastory transfer o gansral ractesys 1@ pet sequired drder the prosisians of Companies At 2019, The same
Car e ubibzed inapcordanoe with the provisiong of the Cempanies Act, 2013

Retairad Enrnings: Retaned samings am the pralts thet the Company has eamed ti dete, less any marsfers i censral reserdae,
dividands or cther distribulions ped to shamboiders,

Lang-term borrowings

Partculars Az at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-13
Seoured
Tarm loan fraomy bisias & 1,250, 00 . 250.00
Totai 1,510,000 2, 250.00

# The Term Laan from HEBC Bank Umited, |5 Secured By way of Firt Parl pagsu By way of hypothecstion on all movable floed sssaty
of the company and by corporale guarsstes provided by Haldicam Snocds Private Limitsd , The Company has nok defalted in
fapayinern terms inckding inferesy

Terms of repayment and rabe of inlerest
Total lonn sanctiorssd 3 moontag o 300,00 facs and oubstanding amaLint coneisks. of:
ioon Lo 1000.0D leds repofaelie in 12 eguel guastesty ingaliments starting fron 7 Marth 2022 Cerryping mierest mte of &,44% pa;

Loan A 1RO lecs repayalie in 12 equal quasrtienty Instalimests dERrting Teom @ Auguest, B022 Camrying intenest rate of 7,32 g0
Lo 30 TEO0LEA leg repayibie in 12 squal quarterty Instalimests starting Irom 14 Jemeary, 2023 Corrying Inferest rate of 7.50% p.al

Otber Long Term Lisbilities

| Partlculars fie ml

A 1-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
i_fr:mnugﬂ.ucam 25 13 12,40 .l !'".'..".':-"'
| okl | 24,81 32,10 |
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Notes to the Financial Statemant for the year anded 31st March, 2024
T Al amaLats in Indian T Likhs, unlnes ccharwise skates |

8  Long Tarm Provislons

Particulars
F1-Mar-2d Ji-Mar-x3
Grefuity {Fundad) 33819 204,77
Laave Ercaghment (unfunded) 216,08 1031
Sick Ledwe 20,29 ll-.D_g-__
| Tatal G586 1T
7 Short Tarm Borrawings
Particulars T
I1-Mar-24 Fil=Mar-23
St real
Chvardratt fecliity payabds an demand from banss 1 Refer 571,21 L043.31
e Mote ¥o. 1 balow)
Currint mpbursties of long-term Borrowings {Refer to 1,000.00 BSE.GT
Moke No. dh
Uneecared
Loan payable on damand
lnan fram Peloted Portics (Refer oo Nete Ko 2 hefow] S0k.00 F0r.00
Total 507131 2,313.58
Horal,
Dverdraf®t facdity from Akl Bunk Lid.
Exclusive charge on curment ssssts and movable Med sssets of the borrower (both prasest and fubure) indudng stecks of raw
miterial, s=mi firishad sad finEhed goods; store a0 spares and Il recsivablos and Dook debts [both pressnt and Futurs)
Tarms of repaymant and rate of interest
Fayment o DEimand, Inberest & 7 055
Nek=1,
Ursciined loan from Haldirem Snacks Private Limitoo
Tarms of repayment and rate of Interest
Fayment o Demand, Interest @ 0.5%
B Trade payabias
Particulors A5 at
31-Mar-z4 Fi-Mar-13
Cinar Than Adepeances
Tota oufstanding duss of mcroenkergrses and senall 1511 24.65
ANCETHEES
Torsl outstenmeg dues of credi@rs gihes Man micrs 4,316.75 1. 535.68
ortemrices
Total 4, 03786 3,620,334

Disclosure required under saction 23 of the micro; small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, T006:

_P‘.irrJr:ul.u-;

Fi1-Mar-24

S3l=-Mar=13

il} Prindpal amsnnt remaning uroald by any supplle &= =t
i gl af the sccounling year

fii} Interest dus thereon ramalning Gapaid to any sepplior
g4 ot the and of theé accnuibey year

{iiit The amount of Intorest paid 8leng weh @ie amoants o
e payrment made tothe sppler bevond the appointed
2ay

[} Thie ampant of interest due and pavable for the year

{#) Thesmount of interest aocrwed and rermaining Lnpaid at
e end ol the abcounting yamr

I%9) Th amaunt of Further \ncerset due 3nd payabie even 1]
e austseding vear, untll such dete whar e Inbenest dues

#F=.A00we ane aetually paid

15811
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Motes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 3ist March, 2024
! | Ata in Indian T La unbess atfmrwise stated )

Ll

Trade payables againg schedule

Particulars

Citstanding for following perlods fram dise dabe of payment

Less than L

Mot Bue 1-2¥ears | 2-3 Years | More than | Total
yakr 3 Yaars
F¥ 203%-24
i) MEME 1941 = = £ 19.11
£y Canere 215971 1 5E=51E 10271 2641 4.5 | 431876
JGi) Sreputed dues -~ MSME s - = = =
{1v] Disputed duds = oONErs L M - - = N
FY I02X-23
(1] HSHE 24, E5 = - - = 24 66
| (i) Cerers D443 204222 39.4% &.43 AT | 355550
Dther Currant Liabilitias
Partsculars A &t
J1-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 |
BRIy Creiors for LapitE moom 09,72 TN
Advance From Cuslomers 4.5 6,32
Sratutory Liapkiliey 178,584 240,
Inberesi Pavable . .
| Tatal ; 20,50 364,59
Dischosura reguired under section 22 of the micre, small snd Medium Entarprises Dievelopment Act, Z006:
Parficislars | 31-Mar-14 §1-Mar-z3
(1 Principal Bmount remsning wnpeild - o
any RUppiEr @a at the end of tha
BEsoanling yoar
¥} nteresl doe therpan remainlng urpaid
o any WEpler &5 al mE end of the
pocounkng vear
[0} The amolrit ol interest pakd algrg with =
b hmpuris of e payment madeE o the
supglier beyond the appointad day
[fw) This amourd of iMees dee and - -
payabibe ol bl ydar
[¥] Thi amaunl af |nlerest scomied and -
reimadning wnpald &' fhs eno of e
atsqufibing vear
(e} The srralunil gF further miberess due and
payable gyon In the succesding year, until
such date whon tha mTerest dues as abowes
are sctusfy mald
Shrt Tarm Provislans
Pariiculmmn Aol
I-Mar-24 A1-Mar-23
Provimen for employes linnelits
Grafisyy [hanced ) 5325 F
lLeave ErcEshiment {unfunded) 19.58 23,19
Sk Leavn 2H 0.4
Fther provision
Prowisian for Regplagemang 55.84 b1
Toitai 13011 10616
Movamam i Provision for Repkacemenl
Particulamns 31-Mamr-24 3i-Mar-13
Opening balance G441 133
Acdcition gl Provizien 17 441
Aamce vt IS T { Rewe rpad ) {7 1132} [
Closing balancm 55.84 4,00
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Moles on Financial Statament for the Year ended on 3 1si March, 20243

1.2 Property, plent & egeipment

 WF emaounis 0 Ingan T LEEhs, Unkss ollieryise stabed |

Particulars Leasehold | Buildings Building on | Computers | Furniture and | Office Plant and Vehides |" “Electrical Total
Land Leasehold fixtures Equipments | eguipmenits instalintions
Praparty and
equipements

wross carrying value o

As at 31 March 2022 255.65 800.34 4,705.12 58833 | 1,039.25 643,44 4,579.99 92,08 232,42 | 13,033.53 |
Addibons - 313 51‘.‘1._@:3 138,99 | 151 .87 45,31 1,037.B0 4258 15,06 1,96E.57
Dispasals - 174,36 7.65 | 11,36 71.B5 134.50 - . T s
As at 31 March 2023 255.65 B12.47 5,131.59 717.67 1,179.76 £69.89 551329 134.67 267.48 | 13,E82.47
Additians - - 1,727.40 402 B8 451.63 118.11 1.814,35 25,80 77.18 4,117.45
Dicpoake : 16613 B.0E .69 11.92 LE.05 = . 211.E5
As at 31 March 2014 255.55 B812.47 610286 | 1,112.40 1,621.70 776.08 7,311.58 160.57 344,66 | 18,588.07
Accumulated depreciation

As at 31 March 2022 41.01 489,55 1,119.04 A05.43 533,43 362,60 2, 568.09 51,54 53532 5,628,351
Depreciation 748 32 A5 325.89 147.70 182,86 136,50 513.11 11.76 aE,84 1,400,595
Dispasals - - BO. 24 7.00 10.76 15.06 91.14 . 704,20
Adjustoent - = G = = = = - - -
As at 31 March 2023 48,49 522.00 1,365.79 550,13 705.55 484.42 2,990.06 65.30 10236 | 6,834.10
Depreciation 7.23 2839 438,28 210.05 232.19 115.12 725.79 ~ 28.40 52,96 1,886 41
[Disposals - - 9847 7.60 7.69 11.31 12.22 - - 137,29
Mm.ﬂt - - - - = - = - -

As at 31 March 2024 55.72 550,39 1,755.60 752.58 930.05 588,23 3,703.63 91.70 15532 | 8,588.22
Met carrying value |

Ag at 31 March 2023 207.16 290.47 3,765.80 167.54 474.21 185.47 2,523.23 69,37 165.12 | 7,848.37
As at 31 March 2024 199.83 262.08 4,437.16 359.91 691.65 187.85 3,607.96 66.87 189.34 | 10,002.85
Motes :

e - ':L

{1} The Compary has not revaluetd &5 property, plant anc equipment during the cument and previous years.
(i} A%l tha title deedz of Immovabie property are in the name of the Company.

(1) The Company does not have any benami property and no proceedings heve bEen nitated or pending against e

(Prohibitions) Act.1988 (45 of 1988} snd the reles made thessurider

B 5
e

1 1- 3
hblding eny beram| property, undar the Benami Tramsactions

ot

¥
o+

i
A

o

-
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Motes on Financial Statement for the Year ended on S1st March, 2024
__m—
{ Allamaunts in Indlan ¥ Lakhs, ualiss otherwse stated |

11.2 Cther Intangible Assets

ghway, Gurgacn, Basai Road-122001, Haryana, India

Particulars Computar Softwane Tatal

|Groas carrying value

A5 at 31 March 2022 238.13 238.13
Additions 24,24 34.24
[ Disprsals L -
h}ld]ustr"r-lent = -
As Bt 31 March 2023 27237 172.3T7
Additiany B.57 .57
Disposnls - -
P_.EIJUEI:JnEnt - -
As gt 31 March 2024 281,94 8194
Accumulated depraciation

Asat 31 March 20232 106,41 106.91
Depreciation 91.849 21.39
Oisposals w =
hdjsstment -
Az at 31 March 1023 | 188,30 F9E.30
Fiemrasiagenn 45,51 45.31
IETRIEL T = -
Adicimont - -
Az ot 1 Mareh 2024 243.61 243,61
Met carrying walue

Az at 31 March 2023 74,07 Ta.0F
As at 31 March 2024 38.33 JE.33

11.3 Capltal work-in-progross

Farticulars fs at 31 March 2024 Ag at 31 March 2023

Opaning balance 438.59 108.58
Adgitions 3,750.76 2,409.90
Transfér to Prparty, plant and equiprment (4.127.02) {2,079.88}
Cloging balamnce 52,33 43,59
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Notes on Financial Stetement for the Year ended on 315t March, 20234
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[ Al ameunis in Irdian ¥ Labds, orfess cthenwise absted )

MNotes Lo Capital work-In-progress :

(@) Borrowing costs of s Nil -(Fievious Yeer Re.NIL) has bean capitslised during the year of qualifyng capital work in progress,
(b Copital work-in-progress pgeong schedale

|Particulars Amount in CWIP for a perlod of Total

Less than 1 1=2 yesr -3 yaar Maore than 2
year YEars

As at 31 March 2024
|Prajecis in prograss
Frojedls lestiporaniy suspended

As ot 31 Morch 2023
frajects In prograss
Projects termporarily susperded

L) apprate Gscksure o reguired for CWIP, whase carmpletion is overdue o has sxcesdad Its codt campared tu &= orginal
pian, Following CWIF complation schedule shall be given;

Cwip To be completed in
Lass than1 1-2 years 2-3 yaars More than 3 |
ik YERrS

Prujects in progracs - . =
Progest 1 - - - =
Praject 2 . = - =
Profecls ternporarily, suspentded . i 3 5
Fraject I < . -

Praject 2 ' e = =
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MNotas on Financial Statement for the Year ended on 31=t !-!irrJ'lI 2024
| e — e —————

[ &l amaurtts in Indian T Lakhs, uniess othansise stotec )
11,4 Intangible assets under developrmants

Motes te Caplis| work-in-progroas ;

(8} Intangibls psees undér development aging sdeeduls

Particulars Amaunt i CWIP for a paried af Tatal

Laszx than 1 1-2 ymar -3 yaar Hoare than 3
yeEar YEurs

Asat 11 March 2024
Propects in progiess
Projects tempararly Suspended

Agat Il March 20E3
Projects i progress B5.0% a - = 2503
Frojects gy suspendad F . - )

#5403 - = = 85.03

Rl Irmanginid assels under develapmant, whike completan & ovordug oF hae: exceaded Ib ook coepasd o s ariginal plang Palizing
Intengible Ansets under develapment complation schedule shall b given

CwIp To ba esmplutasd in
Less than 1 1-3 years 2-3 years More than 3
FEAr years
Projects r.h-'.':i?ﬂéﬁj : - -
Priaject I - B5.03 - -
Prinject 2 z . = .

Projecis temporary suipendod z = =
Pajent | - - N
Praject 2 ; i -
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Motes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

>

13  Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

13

[ ]

{ A amounts in ndian T Lekhs, unless othenaise siated §

PFartiowlgrs Ax ok
| 3i-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23
Datarred Tax 'I.I.ll:rlﬁ.'ir
Reiated to Proed Assets - -
Daferred Tax Assats
Hzimasd ko Pastt Assots 198.00 SR
[ respiect of MEen /% 438 LS5 50 i3y.22
Oifsrs 13934 B, 51
Total 500.91 225.65
Lang Term Loars and Advances
Particulars As at
IL=Mpr-24 31-Mar-23
(Unumcured onsidersed good unlesa i —
otharwise statad | I
Canksl hdvance 51,23 222.11
Sacurity Deposit
Premises and Othes Deposiis 1,075.07 ag.10
Less & Provieion for Doubtha [aehies ) -
Totad LIT680 | 1,170.31
Inventories [At lowar of cost and net roalisable value)
Particulars s Al
Jl-Mar-Z4 | 31-Mar-23
Baw Mataral 33E.78 20042
Facking Matorial Z80.E8 2A0EF
Finsshes Sooc 41,51 41 44
Stock i Tiack e 47.%1
Stores and Spares o4, M6 5348
Total FERES 501.82
(An taken waliad, and ceclifed by Hhe Managemest)
Trade recalvables
Parlicilars ak
A1-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-x3
Cutstanding Ior 2 period excasding shr marahs
‘Unsetired, Consldared Goad 709 B33
CLNEr AacEvankss
- Unsecared Carsioe g il Good e 1] AE9.a3
- Dot debes 144.87 142,97
[8ab Tatal SR7.62 995,73
[Lass: Prosisinn for Doubthl sents 124,87 1ae.a7
[Luul 452,85 B852.76

Trade peysbhlas againg cchedule

EFlrﬂ:H'I:IE

Cutstanding for following periods from dus date of payment
Lass than & |6 months - 1] 1.2 yesrs | 3-3 years | More than 3| Total
monithes WEAF FRAFE

FY 2023-24
Undbputer Trade Recewabies - oosdersd Jrase 5051 18,37 E I H 0.1 453,95
[=elal]
Undisputet Trade Rsetervablon ronddered
ekl
Disputed Trede Recenabies - cordidered good
Dispubed  Trasde Recevabiss = onsdensd 79.54 11.31 41.3% 11.0% .71 144.87
coubthul
[} Disputedd cugs = MSpE = . = - = =
() Disputed cees - others = - - - - .
F¥ F022-23
Lindieputen  Trade Wooeresoles - oonsidensd) SER.T1 5072 4146 nar = 8527
pood
Uniclsputed Trade Recswables - congidened - - - - - -
Eouheful
Disputerd Trede Rorghabies -~ orsidensg good & | & - - -
Digputsd Trede Recewabics EEE Dy 5269 685,43 21.85 * - 14898
bl

ot
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Motes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
{ Al gnaunts in Indian ¥ Cakiks,-Lnlsss otherwise stabed |

16 Cash and Cash Eguivalznts

Particulars - As at
3i-Mar-14 Jl-Mar-23
[Cast-n-hann T 25030 TE.65
Bnlaryoe weeh banu
b Cuirrenk-Ascairyts E35.01 -
Figed Depos® [Matumly Lot tran 3 Manths) 573 £.34
Totzl 20404 83.99

LT  Short Term Loans and Advanees (Unsscired considernd grood unless sthensioe stated H

P P o L Ag ot
= FA-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Lan to Resaled] Paaty aF1. 50 SQ.an
Freanid Expencey &0, 83 44.07 |
#dvanoe 1o supplier
Carmigeied good 157,20 107396
Deriiefill S fnces 1812 -
Frosislon anaiesl docbiths adwancos 2311 -
Advaros Lo steff afh2 42.37
favards Tax (Ml of Tes) 314,06 EI9E
Bislance Witk Statutory Authgely 104,22 13418
Otfiar Advancos B, 6l 5.47
Interest Recsivabie 10,33 23.24 |
Total BTS84 | BI1.20

L7.1 Loans ar dclvances - siditional disclossras
{a] repayvahble cn darmard

(] without specifying any terms oF Qi e af repaymeant

Type af Borrowar A an 31k March, 2024 A% on 3160 March, 2023
Bmaunt of laEn Fﬂt.ﬂgﬂ Amiaint of F-mhg.
ar sdvance in the' sdvanes la tha laan or adwmnce inithe
nature of loan matura of lean | advance in the | mature of laan
cutstznding cutstamding nature of loan cutstanding
Porcentage to the| outstanding Paroantage to
total Losns amd the totml Loans
Advances in the and Advances in
nature of loans the nature of
lomns
Froenobers - . -
ChirEgors - ] -
Wiy £ - .
Feloban Partine LB h“ - H0M.00 100%

17,2 Disdoswrs reguired under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Ack 2013
Laars: incude tha feilswing amaunte, the particulars of wiich are diislossd below as required by Sec 1854} af the Compenizs Ao 2013,

[Hume of the Entity 31-Har-24 31-Mar-23
{H-B, Bakers (P} Lid
Felation Entking with
TN &g AMANS
personined and thehi
relative ary abia o
exercise sianificant
Infhence
Bate of 1ntensgt 8.50%| B. SCRE
[Securedli Urseounad Liregcuned
|Hm: of Fatiity Loan
FLirpdad Genierd Purposs
and expansion of
IbLisness
et A31.50 409,00 f
: ,;‘I“' K
":; i £
J-'.
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Motes to tho Financial Statement for the Vesr anded 31st Hlﬂ:h: 2024

Revenue from sperations

laipur Highway, Gurgasn, Basal Road-122001, Haryana, India

| All armaunts in Inmian ¥ Lakhy, unless athers e itated ]

Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-24 3i-Mar-13
Sale of Food products 35,023,852 31,287.31
Other operating rovanuas
Sorap Sales FEAD g4.50
Total 35,099.02 31,371.81
Othar incomes
[ Farticulars For tha year anded
31=Mar-24 I1-Mur-23
Imtere4t Income
- From Others 33.70 31.55
- Incoma Tax Refund 1.72 4.53
= from Bank 0,55 .09
Mt Profit/iLods) from saka of Plant & Machinery = 0.29
Flental Income 3.6 .60
Misckllanedws Income 5744 19.66
Tatal 96,85 64.72
Cost OFf Material Cansumed
Particulars " For the year ended
3i=-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
[Raw Wzersal £, 155,00 9,787,687
Total 10,196.02 9,787.87
Purchase Of Stock in Trade
Particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-13
Purchass of Fopd Produects 4TI AR 4,547 B0
Total 4,726.48 4,547.80
Change In Inveéntories of Finshad Goods
Particulars For the year anded
u Al=-Mar-24 31-Mar-13
Opening Stock- Fead Product
Finkshed Goode- Feod Product SL.44 25,95
Somy-Finished Goods- Fogd Product . ]
Stock In Trade- Faod Product a7.5] 4757
Total (K] 88.75 77.48
Closing Stock - Food Product
Finished Gaads- Food Froduct 21,51 Al.ad
Sami-Finished Goads- Food Product =
Skock in Trade- Food Praduct 3772 47.31
Total (B) 79.23 BB.75
{Incraase)/Decrease In Stock (A-B) [ETS [1127)|
Employes Benefit Expenses
Particulars For the year ended
e ) 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Salaries and Wanss o 5 BED O 4,916,555
Contribution Lo provident fund and other funds 5 gf‘\l hrs 546,35 348,70
Staff Wesfare Expandsas ; nifi e B6.06 B3.14
Total E 5,502.23 534839
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Motes to the Financial Statement for _th_lr:nr anded 31st March, 2024
¢ Al amoonts in Tndlan ¥ Likks, unless otherwise stabed |

133 The ssdopaews Meguired under Accounting Standord 15 “Emplovee Banefits® antified v the Companies: (fecainkirg Siarciaros)
Koles FOS, are ghven beows

Defined Contribution Plan Por the year endesl
AL-Mar-24 Jl-Mar-23

Contributios to Defined Contibution Plan, remgnized ans charged off for the Ear

OO o under

Emsgrloyer’s Contrituriaon to Provident fang) Persan Scheme 108,43 HS 5%

232  Dafined Benefit Plan

Tha smpltyees' gratuity schéme i @ defined banefit plan. The presont value of obiigetion I determined based on acuaral
saiuaEN usnE e Progecied Uil Credit Method, Under the FUC method i grajedted scorued berafit i caladated ot the beginning
ef the period and agdin @ the and of the parod for woch eneft that will Accree for & Bctive member of the pls.

Farticulars For the year ended
J1l-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Change In Present Yalue of the obligation
Fresorn Yalue of Coligation as at the baginning of the periad 343.39 343,24
Irfere=r Cost 25,17 4,54
Lirrent Service Cost 11313 B s
Pasl Service Cost
Bene=tits Aaid TELTH) {51.04)
Actuanial [Gain] Loss an chligaten L4 {57.89]
Presant Value of Ohligation as at the and of the peeriad a1 20 43,09
Fair Valee of Plan Assets at baginning of the period 11084 11773
At Roturm on Flan Assets Tras) 1447
Employer Contributions
Beriafis Pak {xa_74) (EL.04)
Fair Walue of Plan Assets ot (he 2nd of the pesan 2065 110.85
Furd Status TR0 64 {233.54)
Excass of Actual over astimats retaurn on Plan Astals I:Ij.Ei:! fq.72
Actuarial Gain/ Loss on Plan Assets
Escepted Rélurm o Plan Aasets A.16 B4S
Actusl Ratiint an Plan Asuety (P AE) 14.17
Actude il Saie f{Loss | on Plan fssers [L5.81% .72
Actuariol Gain /Loss Recognized
Aectiarial Gan f({loss) far the pedad Obligathon (224 57A%
Actuarial [ Gain)/Logs fee the pevicd - Pl assets 15461 [5.72)
Total (Esin kLo far the poriag L7.86 (63.41)
Acpuariad | Galn )/ Less Remnrizad i the priod L7.5E (E3.4L)
Unrecageized Sotuaiial {Gaing) Laztes as the periad of the pericd - o
The Amount to be Recognised In the batance shoet and related analvss
Presont Yalid of Obligation as at the enel of the pericd 4§1.19 343,39
Fair Vatue of Plan Azsets ak the and of the perind W65 136,85
Funds Statis /Difference (300,64} {232,543
Expecs of echian ovesd pgtinated [15.61) 572
Umrecogrized actuariel (geins)/Losses - =
Mt osecnlakilitea} Recognized in The balance sheet (500,847 [EIT L4}
Expensas recegivized in the stetemment of Profl & Loss
oy Current Sersice Cist 11313 64,14
',‘:-": Pt Service Cank F - -
A _.. Tt Cisl E 2527 FEN- ]
.. I:,ﬁ?q‘ Expesten Retuim o0 Man Assets . {8, 16] {B.45)
mﬁ Net Actuaeisl (GAiN)/Loss recnonized i L period 1784 (6341}
- Evgerses recognized in the statament of froft & Loss 148,140 17,02
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MNotes to the Flnancial Statement for the year ended 31st “.[ftﬁ‘ nx4
| amgiing: if Indian # La Lﬂﬂﬂadl‘.hh-wlhstlﬂ}

Farticulars Far the year ended
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Racanciliation statement of Expanses in the Statermant oF Profit & Loss

Prasont Vetue of Obligatan a2 &t tu= end of parad 451.29 B4 Y

Prasent Vs of ablgation s at the baginning of the period I 2 P 4124

Bergfity Pad 2274 H1.0%

Actual returm on Flan Assists TG (14,17
Expenses recagrieed i the Statemant of Prafit # Lass acoourts 14840 ¥7.02

Amaunt for the current Period

Puesertl Yalue of Coilgation 88 & the end OF ek #hil.g 34335

Fair Visluz of Plan asssis ot the =nd of the period 4O &5 110,85

Burphist| Defiit) [380.84) (232,54
Erporierce aclustiment an plan Liabilites (loss)f galkn 7.2 10,52

Evperinrce adjistment on plan 3gests {loss ) Gain 15,513 5.7

Hoyvamant in the liability recognized in the balance sheer

Dpering Lishdicy 4338 343,34

Eipenses az abown 146,10 Kl ]

Barmsfit: Paid [20.74) {5184}
Actug Retum en gan assets [7.48) 14.L7

Chasirg Liability AEL. 35 343,39

Fejor Cotegoeies of Man dssets (a5 perenlsgs of Tatal Pan hscers 1.06 L.0:d

Furmds Managed by nswner

Erfermriie best estimate of &xpenses for the next Anfusl reporting perod & 20303 14515

Sensitivity Analfyais of the defincd benelts Obligation
Impact of changs in Discount Rale

Presant wSlustion of cblgation at the end of the: panod A81.25 34338
Impact due at inoease of J50% (T8 DE) (17.73)
Imipdte dus o decreass of 508 40.6E %176

Impoct of changa in Sslary Increase
Impact due to increase of _Sldg

Prasant waicaton of cblgation at the erd of the penod 48128 343,39
Tmpact ie T increase of 504 a1 A5
Impact due to dacranse of S0% (38.1E) (37,04

oy

B b
w

-,
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Jaipur Highway, Gurgaen, Basal Read-122001, Haryana, Indis

Motes to the Financial Statement for the ended 315t March, 2024
e - s ' n;mlmru'mhnm'!'mlawm'mmi

24 Finance Costs

Particulars " For the year ended
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
[nténesh Expenses 436.53 225.95
Total 436,53 125.06
45 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Particulars For the year anded
31-Mar-24 1=-Mar-23
Depreciation snd smortisation for the year:-
Tanglble espais 1.BB8.42 1,410.00
- Intangibile assets 45,91 91,65
{ Tokal 1,933.73 1,501.69
26 Other Expanses
r Particulars Faor the year ended
__31-Mar-24 3i-Mar-23
Power, Fue,Elactricity and Watsr Expenses 2,055 05 1,758,623
e 2, 58500 2, 13385
Repalr and Malntenanos - Biding 674 78,1
Repair and Maintenance - Plant and Muchinary &4 .08 4517
Rapair angd Malntensmos - Others 531.1% 134,81
Uullet Comman fAree Maintenance Charges 68277 &12,85
Peeking Matarsal 2281 84 2409, 18
Insuranes Chisnges 25,24 448.52
Rete, Faes & Taves SR.E2 3333
Rovalty Expanees 35,37 224E
Conveyance fk Travelling Bxpanges 157,56 142 94
Lenal & Professional Chargas 158.32 15841
House Kesning Expanses 67E.53 B0 4E
Pririting & Skationery 84.11 7282
(Sacurity & Sendces Clarges 21a.03 18008
TEephong & Postage Expenges 43,98 i -
Audit Faes [Refar Note below § 14,50 12.00
|Charity 8rid Denation 2,70 5.17
Freight & Cartage 259,50 304 4
Atiertisement Expengas 4,11 169 1%
Hehate and Discount 42,248 S BZ
Silas Fromaton 135148 12261
Replacernent Fxpences 517 5309
=endlee Charge {Credit Card Commission on Saken) B2 206 4B5.67
Previgidn for doubtful dabts 144.87 9797
Provision for doubtiul advanees 28:12 .
Bad Debis Writtar odf g%.149 -
Los= an Miscard Assets 74,55 113.28
Miscellanaous Fxpensas 21734 133.35
Tatal 11,737.54 10,234.63
Matss:
Payment to Auditors
Auidif Fois 10 EH GO0
. Tax Budit Feag 362 .00
cdte v [Other Mokters < 107
1:: |:_."-.
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MNotes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st Han:hl 3024
i Al amourts in Isdan Lakhg, un stharwise statind )

A7 Tax Expenses

For the year anded
Farticulsrs 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Tax Experses foe tha o T
CAirrent Tax 2202 135.64
Shirlf (emesss] provisian for tax 1.2% -
Dafermed Tax/{Reygrse) {175,261 {20326}
Total [(BL1.99) (67.42)
28  Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted)
For the year anded
Partonines 31-Mar-24 __? 31-Mar-23
Profit After taw For vaar in Lakhs {265 (£21)
Frofit attribubablo to equity shase for the year in Lakhs {265} {121)
Waighte:] aversge number of shares outstanding durng tha year, 6,289,463 6,29 463
Mool sNEms 6,29,463 6,259,403
Basic ERS (Ps.) {42.30) (19.27)
Dlisted BFS (Rs. ) {42.30) [19.27
Hominal Vielug per equity share (RE.) 10 1
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 3024
{ &7 amaungs in Indlan P . uribass stabad |

20 Additional Aegulatory Information

|. KEY FINANCIAL RATION
8.No Ristins Mumerator Denaminator | FY 1023-34 | FY 30253 |0 Varlanace Ramaris ]
I |Eurrgnf rakia Current Agsery Chrvent Linbl s 931 a.a7r =18 45 a
1. |[Deot-Equty Tatal Dabes |Sharehadars z.08 1.35 53,889 |Incransa In Deot
Batin Equsly
i \Dedr seryce _l"r-lﬁ Profe bafpse taves + Irterest & Leass 4.H0 T.24 -33.70% | Beduction In Canh
bowerEge rabia | Nen-cash dperating Faymans <+ et
eXpeenses ke depnecatisn Frincipal
and ether aroritzations + Hepayments
[nerest 4 cller
adjustmenls 1% loss an
sale-of Fieed assods ale,
4 |Raturn o Fauily | Frofits alter tas Average Tata o 0.0 13E.67%|Increase n 1odE
Expaity
i |Ireenmey Cost af goods sold o Sales [Avwerage Sp.ES 4R.03 C.ARY, =
Furnoewor matle :Iﬂ'l"El'ﬂ?.'r
G [Trade Hevenue from Sale of Average Trade 5176 42.97 79.12%| Raduction n Dabhors
raceivabies Prodicts and S=rvices recelya e Bnd mersasa in
JurnaveEr main Turrogar
¥ |Trede paables |Mot Purchases of ram Aeerago Tracks 4,25 Z.38 FLAL% ! Increesn ¥ purchase
lumos'er ratio maiafial, packing materal  (payabies and dedsase in
Ard focc-n-frage mveTage payable
I [T Rewanue from Operatons  [Working Caplal 15.12) [7.85) -35,58% | Increase in |oeses
turedvar-raths (Eurrent Ansets -
wrent Lialkiites)
9 Wbt prcf® matlc  |Profs after tax Rovare from .01 0,00 5. L7%| INCraase in luses
Cipsaraticns
10 18eturtl on copital|Profit bofore interass LA wgrage Canial 01 (3,060 U6, 5% | Inersass in kosses
ernpicpsd L=xoiling Inteness on Sebse |Emplayed [Tota
liabllibse), sxcsptional tems Eqiity + Tatal
and e Dhilst
{Barrowingsj| A A
& e
- 11 |Reoan on Incams during the yemr Thre welghted - - | @h’m ]'_-”
wrvestrmen| Twarags of E 1
Innesrmert N Ry

i Then Coenpary Mave rot traded or Ervestod in YRS CUTENSy or vimual currency during e Anandal VESr. ==
- The Company oo nat have iy transschians with camipénkes sruch off,

h The. Comoany have net advanped or loandd o lvected furds to ®ny other persends) or ertiy(i), Induding Foreign entities
tintermdiaries) with Dhe underszss ding that the Intermagiasy shall;

L8 drmctly ar indirectry lrel o- Invest i cther persars or pnijbes identified in amy manner whatsoaver by or on beball of the
compmry (UIHMEte Benefcibries) or

(b)) provide sy guarastse, socurlty or the (s 5 o on senall of the Uitimate Benefcaries

¥ T Comaany heve not reckisd any fud from any persanis] or entityiis], hclugirg foreign ertities iFunding  Party} wih the
understencing (whether secardsd in weiting o athesmiss] Lhet the Company snait:
(e} crectly o indirnctle lord or IPvast in athes pereons o entities (dentifiod in sny manmer whestssewer by &f & behalf of he
Funding Party (Lmimate Benafisries] or
(b} prislde nry guarsnces, seturty o the (ke sn Bahalt of the Uitimate Benefidaries

W Thit Company Rave granted Wsna snd advarces b5 e nasurs of BBrs f0 promotare, directces, KNP and other releted partiag. [Ref .
BCRE M. 17, 1),

Wl The Company daes nok have ary changes in DCCOLRRInG polCy OF e pericd BVars,

p Wi The Compaey coes nol Rave ary Benami Eroperty, where anp procseding has Gesn inkabed o pencing ageinst tho Compary for halding
T diz any Benami property

-

i Thir Coicpany have not 2ny [mmaosebis propertes which & nol beld i name of e Company.
ﬁ?q- The sompany nas barrdidngs fram banks o fnandal instivtions.on the hetesis of sepurily of current sssets, the Detmil ae Lnder @
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
[ All emcunts in Ingian ¥ Lakhe, sniess otherwiss soicd 1

Particular of | Name of Bank Quarter Amount &5 | Amount repart| Amount of | Reason far materis]
Socuritiss per Books of i the differance i repaneies
Frovided acounks Chua rberly
Besuit

202334

Irventory and [ Axis Bank/HSBC lune, 2023 1160.81 1350.81 {206.50) | The afference e

Bock Debis bnranine of clorlesl srrar
in calcidatian of books

| dedts.

TAveraney ared |Anin Bank/HEBE Sgg, 2023 1I76.80 1768 = [ ra

Hook Denis

InvEigty and AL Bank/HSEC Disc, 2073 111736 111736 = | NA

Book Tietrn

Inwenitary and | Axk Bank SO March,24 1,341.63 134163 = [ 8iA

Bood, Dmabiw

FIFFEFE]

Irventory and | Axis Bank HEEC dinm, 7033 195740 1570.25 {Z20.B5) | The differonos are

Begk Debs boceuse of clarcal snor
In cefcuanion of boaks
debiz,

Invedsitery and  [Adls BankMSEC Sep, 2022 21039 1= (38502} | The differences ara

Book Cwbits becausa, the statemants
Mied With e fenders ang

=0 ——== hagad &n Anancial

IrveEntory arsd Axls Bar/HSBED Dee, 2023 1,710.20 IF53.00 (5. 83} statements prepared on

ook Dedits provisional basis ,

AmeETiory snc Axh Bark/HSRC Maren, 23 144468 1,633,000 (159.332]

Back Debs

2 Thee Cuifidlany has net revalusd any |bem of prigerty, plank and equipmork and Intangibig Assel

| The Company dess not have ny transacticns whera the company hae Aok icod Hh Barrowings fram banks snd Anancsl msttutions for
Rise specHfic pinpose for which it was taken ak B balanics sheet data

ili  The Compary does rat heve any trangscton whith i not reconded in the boaky af scoounta thit has bees subsequesntly surrenssred. or
Slsdnsed a6 income dunng the yoes ag part of the on golng tne asseqsments undar the Tnoame Taw hct, 1961 [smh a5, smareh ar gy
ar sy oNar relevart proviiore of the Tneams Tax AL, 1961,

Wy Company has noft recesed any grents and donations.
#y The Comguainy has nok teen decangs ag willl cafaiitter by eny bank or fnandal instutian or Doverninest or By government alarty.

uvl Thi Compliny s compied with e aumbar U LEyers preseribed unoer the Companios Ad, 3013,

il Thare 8= fo charges or gatisfatmon of change yat ba b registered with the Registrar of Cormpanies Seyand the Statutory Perod.

¥ The comgany has not entered Info ary Scherm of Arangamant which reguiris dpprovel of competent authory i Berms of sectios 230
L2 237 of the Companies Ast, 2013 fenee ro detalis Aave been given as reguired o be discineed under this eliuss of e AR Herpeerrer,

the Company have mtered imo g Sdeme of Arrangement afver tlosure of Fnamneial Year 20Z5-2024, the details of wihich hgve been
dachksiad Irnobe ne 4 of e ARAncisl SLaLemieME,
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
Al amaunts in Indlan ® Lakhs, un ros adherwise siated

lﬂ...ll’--

i §

J1

£

Contingant Lisbility & €ommitengnt

Particulicrs An wh
_X1-Mar-24 Ii-Mur-33
Cinlm againet the company, disputed 1abIILES not achnvwindged
Llnim acadnst the compaiy) disputed Babiiities NEt aciipwiadged - .
nearme TawTOE daim disubed By the company related to lssue of spplicsai®y ang Sessiication - 1.E2
I8 e
Guarantes Tssued by the Bankers on Behall of the company
Tewand Peformanoe Cusmanbess - =
COMMITMEMTS
Estimnted anvaunt of conirgos FEMAM NG w be sxesuted on cap®al ccount ard not provided far I97. 36 20458
fAdditional Infarmation
Ad Bt
Particulnrs I1-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-13
Expanditure im Foreign Curremcy 7219 i7.32
Earning in Farsign Currency il LT
value of imported mnad indigenaus Raw Materisl Consurassd
Particulers Am ok
A-Mar=34 31-Mor-23
Wibine o s Value Fomge
Impoerad 10k 00 - {1, GO
Indgenous 19, 19602 100 COeE B THT.ET 100
C.IF.Value of Import on Acerual Basls
&g &t
Particulars Ji-Mar-24 | 3iMer3
Capital goods * =
Sparos Parts i .

Frevicis year figies have boen regrouped) raaranged, wherever cormsiderad REcemany,

Borrowing eost to the-exbant of Bs, 72,42 Lekh wPreviaus Yoar W5 19.93 Lakh artrisuknble be b scouisitian o comstrischan af

gualifang fssets nas Deen capitalisad durirg the year a5 part of cost of mach agests,

Mobe en Schame af Arrangement

After cosure of Minencial Fear ended 3 arch, 2024,
ArrangE=menr (‘The Scheme’) trough which & hos basn prosossd (o demerge the QSR Business of :
L. Haldiram Manafactising Comoany Privabe Limged [ Demarged
£. Haidram Ethric Foods Privete Limged {"Demargad Campary-3/ Applicant Comipsny Mo.-27)

and Lo merge e business of:

L. Halthiram Products Private Umited [* Trarsfoosr Company-t/ Applicont Camppny Mo.-47);
L HA Eakers Private Limniked (*Trarsferor Coampany-2f Applicant Company Ba,-5")

3. Haidram Retad Frivate Limited (“Trarsfear Company-3; Appfeart Camgary Mo.-8"1; and
4. Brapincann Foods Private Uinilsd “Treansseroy Larmpany -4/ Applicant Company No.-5)

Sipein e dabe of 18t Aped, 2024,
from oo entity, The Sclwame for the COmposte Scheirs
£5th May, 2024 and the applitation oefore the Hon'bhe
4

Company-1 Applcant Company Wa-17]; and

the Company have fled & Joint Appliestion for the Camposke Schesme of

Transferas Companyy Appiicant Company Hao,-3%1 with effect from e
Isverape the resolrces of all the Companiet and upscals Q5R business
of Arrangemsnt was approved by the Baard of Dirgctars of the Company on
National Comparry Law Trifunal [Chandipant Bench) was fied on 31 Hay,
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Rogd, Office @ Haldiram-Village Kharki Caula, Delhi Japur Highway, Gurgaon, Basal Road-112001, Haryans, India
Tel - +01 124 4771400 , Ernall | cs@haldiram . com
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Motes to the Financlal Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
[ A4 amounts In [ndien # Lakchs, u cthwrese stabd §
35 Corporatc Socisl Respousdbility [CS5R) Exponditure:

Particular AS @l
¥i-Mar-24 A-Mar-23

'} Grass amaLrit requared Lo BE SpANE by the Compeny dUring The year 38 7o Erdian T35 57 s
ALk
) Ameaiat aporowed By the Board

i} Adtug amount spenl during e year on:

{8} Constrietion/acquilsitian of an asset
1B} On purposes cther than (8] abova

Iv. Ceetmies of redatedt party branssonac, eg., conbibebion Lo & Lrust cntroled oy the company in
relation b3 CSR expenditure as por resssant Arcrsinting Standaid

¥. Whers @ provision & mrsde with rapect toa llsbity ncurrea by Enbenng inlo a contractusl
obligetion, e movaments in the prowsion during e poar dhel be shaam soporabely,

vl Lrspent Amait provides o

i} Cutof the {{ili}b)} above, babow mentlamed 5mo s hae hean contributed to following entithes :
Particular As
I -ar-3q 3i-Mar-z3

[Total




HALDIRAM ETHNIC FOODS PRIVATE

Regd, Dffice : Haldiram-Viliaoe Eharkl Daula, Delhi Jalpur Highwav, Gurgaon, Bazal Road-122001, Harvans, India
Tl = 431 124 4771400 , Emall : cxi@haldiram.com
(CIN : U15127HR2003PTC] 187113

Notues to the Financial Statement for Ih-gnndqd 3ist Illll'l'._I!l_l'li 20249
All mmecamis in Erdlan B, U EryiGe 5 )]

6 Ralated Party Transackione

A5 per-Ancouiiding stamdard 13, Esued by the Instiute of Chameag
refated parties as defined in acTounting standard as |dartfied by

381 RELATIONSHIP

Acrouniaats af india, the dissloslire of rangaetions with the

the marsgement arg given belas:-

L Enterprises in which the company has contral: LT
2 Key Management Parsannol
1 M, Manohar Lal Agarwa| Directar
F Me. Ashish Agarwal Director
3 M. Arsang mgecmad Cirector
1 Mre. Manju Agarwol Director
5 Mr. &nursg Gupta Director
1 Relatives of Dirsctor and/ar Kay Managerial Persanmel who may expected to fnfibence
1 Mra. Sumitra Agarwal Spuse of Key Management Persorinal
z Mr=. Priyanka Agarwal Spaise of Key Managemen: Persanmal
3 Mre. Prest Boarwal Sirouse of Key Management Perdanne
il M. Ak Aggacaal 3an of Koy Management Berosnmel
4] Mr. Parikka] Agarsal San of Kay Management Pereenned
(] Hir. Matdhu Sudan Agarwal Brather of K=y Management Bersennel
7 Hr, Umesh Agarwe] Hrother of Keay Management Pesannel
L Erdities ovver which Directors and /or K&y managament parsonmal are able to exercise significant Influence,

1 Haldiram Snacks Privebe Umited
& Haldirnm Mamfacturing Carnpany Private Limited
3 Hasdiram Meckoating Prvats Limibesd

FL 3
5
34

T-Brachdrs Agri Export Privets Lirmited
. O. Fresh Vieg Private Lirmted
Haldiram Fopgs Tntemational Privets Limited

# Feadiran Products Private Limibed 31 Haldiram Snacks Manufacturing Privats Limted
5 Haldliram Inde Private Limiksd 32 Surya India Limited
& Trawhes Expericncsd Private Lmdbad 31 Simplersalthy Poods Private Limted
T Bright Ageatech Private Limied 32 Bhnic Food Manufaciuring Frivate Limitag
B H. A Bquipment & Warehnsing Prvata Limilked A5 Futurnlife Poods Privale Limeed
8 HR Srocks Brivate Lmbed A Wadram Bnacka Food Private Limited
1} Hi Bakers Privams Limked 3T Wirjl Nutrich Private Limites
1L Azeash iooal Fends Privene Limibed 36 Kushalts Balkcos Frivare Limited
b madiram Cversens Limited (U] 3% Sindoor Fabrics Frivatg Limited
13 Chighwood Apsriments Limited (LK) 40 Arandem Snacks snd Bevermges Tnbsmational Private Limited
14 Hadesm Rats® Privale Limited 41 Mjs ARA Agarwal Family Oifices LLP
LS Prarthnamart Setals Prvess Wnked 44 HMfs Haldimm Bdusational Soclety
16 Pregatl Snacks Privals Limited 43 M5 daldiram Charitadle Sacety
17 Babajl Snacks Private Limted A4 Mys Shubh Lasrni Trst
15 Diresmoorn Feads Private Lirdked 45 M'u Bndhe Krighan Trost
13 Sukamya Holding Limited (LK) 46, Mis Annapsanne Trust
20 5. M. Food Engireering Private Limbsd A7 Mfs Manohar Lal sgarwal Famly Trust
21 Atgg Food Frogucts Privabe Lmibed 48 M5 Anend Agarwsd Familly Trus
22 Anklbs Agro Fool MOCESSIRG Frvata Limibed 49 Ky Parka] dgarveal Family Toust
L3 Chanmgsirn Sweets Limined B wys Amit Agarwad Family Trust
I8 HR Recyclng Private Limited 51 s Madhu Sudan Agaraal Family Trust
2% Heryana Siesl and Alinys Umked T M Ashish Agerwsd Famiyy Trust
iE & M Bxgloratian Privaba Limiles 53 Mfe Umesh Agarwal Family Trost
L7 Jarding Farms Privete Limitad 84 Dewimirss Private Limitnd

5 Post Employec Bensfit Trust Wivere the raparting antity sxsrcise significent nfiuevecs

Haldiram EFPL Emplicpaes Group Gratulty Truss
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Notes to the Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024
[ All amaurts in Ingian 7 ufléss obhonwle stated )

34.2 The fellowing transactions were carrled out with related parties In the crdinary cowrse of Business

Perticulars Entorprise aver Koy Managerial | Relativas of Key | Subsidiary Tatal
which key Personnal Hanagarial
managamant pErsan
paErsennel adnd thelr
ralptive ore abie to
exercize sigaiflcsm
influsnes
Transaction durlng the yoar
Purchase of guods o,GHE & | - - 9,965,608
[=,155,61) . = 5 i%,159.63)
;,E al g 1,5:_2_.3':: - ' - 1,573, 34
|35, 33} - 5 = [585:33)
Purchisis af Properey, Flant & .70 a . R .70
LEQulprmerts
Sales of Properry, Mand & = . = =
Eguipmenis
[ = _ 3 = :
[ert Faid 171.0% - - - 175,05
- [150.78} - . u (150 749)
flant Recsived 340 % - - 340
[ER] . = {3850
Hoyalty .37 - . . 31.37
[20.45) - - - (20.45)
Irberest Pald 40,00 - - - 40,00
137.59) - - - [37.59)
It Racsy s 33.70 - - - 13,7
{3138} - = - [31.34)
Loan Takgn . = = = z
- {156,005 - = - {15000
Loan (Rafund) - - - - -
i 150, 0 = - - { 1500y
[Loan given 22.50 - L - 22 50
ican ghvan [Refund) . = - = T
412.50) . - - {1250
|Corparale Guarantes Receheed ¥ - x * =
£5,000.00) = - - [EEET T
[RaivLiperation F 1,176,06 = 2 1,176.00
- 1,110.72) . . {1,140.733
Employes Bargdils = 40,00 - = 49,00
- [4%,01] - - (49,013
Fomt amploy menk nersli - = s >
Contrifition tn Fund Tt |
. ' {3e.001] = - - {3me0}
| Clusing Balanes as on 3151 March, 3023
[Trade Recelvatm 90375 | : - 803,75
1398.27) - . - [¥28.27)
Advints to Supplly | 1147 . = - 11.47
! (2.25) - . . {2:25)
Trace: Payahls 5,584.70 - + E 3,584, 70
(2,515.56) ] - - 11,315,568}
[Lzan Taken 500,00 - - - 500,00
| {500-00) - - - [300.00]
Laan Ghgn 4350 - - - 431.30
- aa_un] - = s {400.00)
Interest Rocelvabe 13.70 3 . . 33.70
[26.24) - - - (28.24)
Cofporste Ouarurmes Recelyed 5, 000.00 - 5,000.00
[E,000.00) = {5, 000,00}
: ‘L F Infmrecs Dayplie . = i #
Oy L1E.AT) - {1687}
b {Bemuneration Peyvabis . 85,70 .70 |
o Qﬁ?“l I - (7-45) [7.45)

{ ) irdieates previous pear figune
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Naotes to the Finsncial Statemant for the year anded 3ist Ma 2024
[ All Brmgunts in m ¥ Lakhs, unless obherwise saded |

Information ragarding the Significant transsction FBalanhce
{Ganerally In excess of 10% of the total transaction valus of same brpe)

RELATED PAHTY TRANSACTION SUMMANLY 2023-24 2022-23
Transaction during the year B
Burchaise of guodsy

Haldiram Snachs Py, Lk B317.38 345545
Hadiram Marketing Pyt Ltd 1,012.38 ap2.63
Haldirarm Manufacturieg Co B, Lbd 135,17 212,98
Haicieam Producs Pet Lod 458.81 &71.78
H R Bmiers Privalts Lirdbed 1.37 .56
Oreamearn Food Put. L, 20,50 15.53
Sk of grods

Haldiram Snechos Put, Lid AGT-63 k[
Hallirsin Mareting Pyt Lid 511 15813
Haldiram Progucts Pyt U 1510 Jasoas
HalFram Manufactieing Co P Lid 1L 10 1341
H R Bakuts Pelvate Limied a.34 2,55

Haldiram Snbcics Put,LED a i

Haldiram Manufacturing Co Py, Led . =
Hakliram Markoting Sy, L - :
raldiram Produds P Ltd 2.70 :
aaks of Frooery . Plant & Posipomanty

Hakdram Snpcks P Lbd L
Makdrmin Harueting Py Lo i
Haddl ram thu.rﬁ;-_'l_u'lni o Pt g =
Haldirem Products PeL, Lo 5
H B Bakdr Privete Umites =

Eant Fafit

Surya Tndia Lig Irins 15579
Bent Rscelved

H R Bakers Privale Limbed .80 .60
Bovatiy

Haldiram India Pyt. Lid L7 2045
dntara: Pald

Haldiram Manufacinng Co Pyt Lid . 2
Haldirmm Snacks #flvate Limibed 00 3525
Haldiram Preducts Frivabe Lrnibad . 1.24
Intarist Beceived

H F Bakers Privats Limited ] A A0
Bemuneraticn

M. AsteshBgarwal L 0a4, 05 G52
M. Manju Agareal 13t.40 124,14
Emioye Banalits (Leave encashment] .

Hr_ &shigh Agarwal £ 43.53 43.593
Hn'-.?_ﬂqju agarwal 5.47 Sosn

T

F,

ot
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MNotes (o the Financial Statemant far the rended 2ist March, 2024
{ All @Mcunts In Tndian # Lakmns, uniess atherw s sated )
BELATED PARTY TRANSACTION SUMMARY 2033-24 20232-1%
Lean Taken

Haldiram Producis Private Lmibed

150,100
Haldiram Snacks Private Lirded s
badn {Befung )
Hmdiram Maaufscturing Private Lid E =
Haldiram Prodigets Private Luniied : 150,00
Lian aiven
H B'Bakers P Limiees 12,50 =
Loan giveni Reband]
A W Bowers Privete Lmited . 125
Loipeiate ouprantess Recglved
Haldbraim Snacks Pricts Lime 5,000, 00
Slosing Balonce
Itade Rocaivabie
Haldirasn Snadks Private Limitpn 510,80 12594
Haldiram Hamsfacturing Co Privote Limifed 6,95 527
Haldiram Mariketing Private Limibed TB.84 133,20
taldiram Froducts Frivate Lintibed GAE 1iz.&2
HaklEam Educatinns Socemy 032 [ v
H B Bakers Pavab= Limbesd 2038 14,593
Linde Favablg
Halciram Snaeks Privato Limiled &,739.F7 LASh. 1%
Haldireen Markaiing Prvete Lmiteg 84,60 244 03
Haldiraen Indls frieats Limitesd 2B.03 .
Halgiram Produtts Privals Lomsted 5650 179.37
Halgiram Manufarturng O Private Umitsd i e 20,38
H R Bokers Arivate Limibesd - "
Surya Tndiz Lid 14.56 21,748
Loan Taken
Hdidiram Hnn-.iaumng = -
Haldraan Snacks Privdle Limited 500,03 L0000
Laan Ghven
H R Bakers Private Limibed 431.50 409 .00
Intarest Becedvabie
H R Bokers Btivate Uimited jare B2
AdVanee to Supplisr
H® Bakars Private Limited 1547 -5

- ,;"“' !
":- g !
L i ]
2 E'ﬁ?q‘ ¥ >
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Rogd. Office | Haldirarm-Village Kherld Daula, Delhi
Tel t +51 124 4771400, Emall cshaldirarm.com
{EIN Lllﬂi.?IHHEIJDJ-F'TEIIE?IIJ

MNaotes to the Financlal Stotement for the rended 31st Ma 2024
E %i Emaunts in Inclian T Lakhs, uniess DiFesrmize statad §

Jaipur Highway, Gurgaon, Basal Road-122001, Harvana, India

EELATED PARTY TRAMEACTION SUMMARY 202324 2023323
Bemunemilen Pavabis
Hir . fgtish Agarwal 7545 -
Hrs. Manhi el Agarwal 0.25 745
Inlsrest Poyable
Habirmr Snscks Py Lid 16,87
Haldiram OFFL Employess Group Gratuty Trost 30.00
Loropmle guaranioes beceived 200000 50000
Haldiram Snacks Privats Lmited
In t=rms of aur Audt Reparl Attached Far & an b=hall of the Board of Directors of
For P, R. KUMAR & CO, e Haldiram Ethnic Foods Private Limitesd
i ACCountants AN
F 0. OIS LEEN k
[ AvA) {MANOHAR LAL AGARWAL) [ASHISH AGARWAL)
Eariner Directar Corectar
W, Mo, S0161% LN : Q0230780 GO MOCL1486
= Heddresszi 15, Biodk - Address:]-15, Sok <)
Hauz Khas Erctave, Hauz Khas Enclave,
Hew Dehi-110016 Hew Deibl-Li08i6
Pisce - Mew Dot
Dty [ Fdth Sopiombsar, 20249
= ,‘L g
i
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AuNEXURE- G

Emall IE : cpdebaddiryr,cor, Plione Moenber ; @10 52 104

CEIR : UESL 2 IHRZMOIFTC] 18711}

PROVESIOMAL BALANCE SHEET A% AT Jiat DEC, 2034

FARTICLULARS NOTE B A As A
JLl-12-2024 200F e T4
1 1B (Tn Wb} (In R, ] |
EQLUTY AND LIABILITIES
i Eharshokdmrs” hands
a) Jlupry Syt k] bl ek b K B2, 5 E30
b Fazareg gnd Sunphis | FRGE, TELaAL ELEENEL R T
T1 | M= il G e
| Cagrgy o) g r-omTags & TRAF, 2000 12,5000, M5
B! Cdbepr Laong Toermn L e i [ 3,24, FEX FEFTE T
21 R T Pt H Lo [ ] TAL RA Sndh G.5A, . B
O | Tt Nu ekt
A) SharL Tein B e b F 24, 10,51,927 HLrL I axy
bl Triapt PAypniey - F 3
L) botet st seedng dusts o Mo 14, M.314 1%L, 195
e And HTH A gr R
B} bhnsd cubtbending duge o arad ity AL, MAR A 03, 15 M, B35
o Chan mioo ardanpeiess s amal
b
&1 Obherr Carecnd Uabe = - 4
A 0 e Ll Aecingy Pl [ oot
armirint i ima edterpraes
B rowl cuCARNge g g of 5 radibo o b, I, 35 {0 1,10 90,048
tHhear Hhen muons apdemnises and sl
ErkerTaea
O} Fuprt Teeme Frovwnons F1 ) 1,378 108 130, 10,414
1, 62,64, 34 550 Lidl :I'Ei-"!lI 3?i35E
ASSETS
P |Mon Currant Assets
2)Proparty, FAnL 3nd Boulphni gt
Lk iarlivhi el dirt
i} Braperdy, Fand pnd 8gug-reets 3 % | o hd 13,30 10002, 35, e
o] [ SEEnrs i ki 13 B4 B1E C-Ac PN RN ]
Wi g Pl i - e Ay ii.a [ et i b 1 1 33400
I} Inkwng ble brsaics ol DaspodaTran! 134
b¥] I SRR N S 13 A [ IRHIE Ce ]
c} Dpfarrad Tax Axpute {kat) iz LR PELE ERLA-T L
] Lang Tanm Loans wned Adv e LE Lx T 5h 711 11.26,5% 14K
O | CUrrih i deth
2 Inumrdtanag [ F 103,10, T, 0,55, X100
b Tracs raotey Mkt 1% 5 TEE1.1T0 LRI R NS
21 C e e Db B EE 14 8,355, Ta5 .40, 00 s
b St Timti) Livietd And dthanes ir BHE 1 E 6 Q.Hci [ :

ST stk Ak itimp o |es

1L 0d, 2d TER

|Tha socompanying ndtus Form aminlogrsl port of Ehicss Ml aaeia 5Ly B

Pl Dulhl
Frabad : Ziwm Pab. S0d%

1 47.909,97, 308

Rar 3 on bahald ol e Board & Diracters oF Hokdlreth
e Foo-de Prhoavts Lisibad

o Py W L L A AL )

[Hrgnmnr

D (RO
At )=1 5, Glah o]
Hpg Khgy Crglaen,
ki Dei bl 1 10001 &

Hi by

MamdHAR B
LA AGARRRAL tH

LT e restad
ACARIR L D It

[AEHTERH Aok A}
CHirmamt ot

Cloa; (WRCE D444
Aidreyr;)-1%, Bk, -1
Himde EIvi s Ewclarn,
PP I AR
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Haldiram-yilage KRerk Dauls, Dell Jalpor Highem, Guegmon, Bhisl Agad- 122001, HaryBia, [Rdea
Emad 1D ;. calPhakdiram. com, Phore Humbeer : Q11 45204 100

{CIN | WI5Y 2T7HR JMAFTET LT 1)

PROVISIOMNAL PROFIT & LOSE STATEMENT FOR THE PER

[Oih YEAR EHDEC 318t DEC, J024

0 YEAR €NOKD 31wt DEC 3020

PARTECULARS Mok mo For LHo year 4m For the widr ended
34 CrieC T10I8 Fh Hwigh dhds
(LLILC Y [T By
INCCrHE
L Aezsmmpyl frody O p-ietl kel ig 1,307 20, 3,509% 9L £52
1. | fer Tnaowe ig 60,27 000 i, f S
Il |Toial Taconnes [T+100 1502430 T B¥ 186 76, 0
. |EXFEMSES
Coct of Matariels o mmed ) 1, 1280, 37 (ubl 100,03 A
Burchnbat of 0ok T 21 3,40, 20 ATE AT I TR
Change In dcabiedd of (kb = 1102, 7, e #,50.541
noods and P k-m-rgde
E o] Eaeit € Rprinos 1= Lo R 5F02, 23,474
Farg ng Tk 2 FE: RN T b 36,53 0d
Chil rac-ahhzn s Eam et bedion: L 14,52 65012 130 Y ROSE
ke IE vkl F1) 002 A 1,0% %0 51, da
Tatsl BxpemEap ]lﬂﬁ.&lﬂ.]ﬂ“ 3,55.45,02, 646
W [P [ Ledal b fowe be CI-ED 307,407 [ AR RS 14
wi [Tan Knpsinekt
Currer Tan ir 5, N, (MG 63,032,430
Cleort #cars 1 oy i e 1 - L3, 037
T il Tk Rl B [, TR LU0 -1 ] 11,7514, 00
whl  [rabifTLoss) [v-wI) k10 538 [ :ii.l?.Jlﬁr
W01 |Warmiregs por aqely bt o ed 2
walue pf R LW - smdh
I3 Bas {in K5} 154,19 (.30
21 PRApd Lbn FX ] 1%4. 19 (42307
St il A< el el 10l B 3 1
The uwcll'npq'l_l:!_'r_l_[l_g mppitgep by n e gl pave o dhaes fimoncie] @i rgrm gy

Pt i 2 gy gl 3T thie B ofF Dirwctons wf B kil o
It ri: PRcriuchi: 1P el 1L AP Lt

MANGHA Cialub st

P LAL s ASEN LTI
Corbe 2025412 20 AGARAL q-nl_uu:ﬂr

AGARWAL 12250 rovar

o gt Lk AR B AL T LA E W Sk, Rl

CHreoior DrEcoor

i 0 gr3e0l 7 5] DIN. DL 1435

HAdran :1o1 5. Blask 4]
pl KHgg Bhelien,
Hewr Pelhe 1000 10

ARhdE A e L, Block X
Heur Whar Becliea,
M Dol - LA S
Prlaere Dbl
Cabted © 20Hh Fef, 2028
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IMDEPENDGENT AUDITOR'S REFDRT

1U ThE |'r||=r|| hErh IJ"
HALDIRAM MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED

RAQOrt on the Audit ¢l Financial Statements
ST

W Frwers ocinigacd T ACCOMparying fimanrAal srAaremeants 0t Haldirmm hnruerlng drivars
Lirrited 2 the —orpany which Camprise tha Zalance =h=et ac at March 41, 2024 amd
the Sratement of Profil and Lgas, Inclyding the Steiement of Other Coamprzhensiesdes
Incare. the Cash Flow Sigwernent and toe Staement of Chanoes in Egulty Far the vear
fhen 2naed and nores G rhe Inaneial SCETEPents InCueing A SUmmary of sigoehsant

accounting pabcies and ofher explaaatary ofgrmatian

Inoour owman and bty the iesh af aucnformatieon aod accomding to fhe exolanafians given
T, he ARATESEIT SMARCIRD STATEFMENTS J vé FRE InfOrmarion fegliren My T Dormed nmes
Lo 2023, 2% amended ("the Act”) in e manner soorequired and give a brue and Fair
witwy ocenformeily with the Indian Accowvnting Standards prescribed ander sectiarn 1335 of
Cha: Act read with che Toropeanees (Indian SCccuntng Sianoands ) Holes, (015, an
amendad, < Tn0 AS7: ang SEher Accaunnng pRncipies qenerally ACCapTea v Lng &, 3r e
ctate oF akairs 2 Eh r..-ﬂrl'll:la"l'r' as ab Marck 31 20241 ke loss |J'I|:||,.|IJ|I'II: afhet
coriprehens. @2 noams, (15 cash flows and Che Changes i auuily fin the weai anced an

1AL e,
Baxs for OCpinion
Vo LU CLED 2T Anrrsn ral PO “1arices sCATHmIEADS I Accorndnss wicn the Sidanaarees ore

“'“".'!'['“Q' 285 speciied ondd- sueckion 13 f0 100 oF the ot Lur rE"‘_-'»-F'Clr""ilD“'[IE‘E- under those
standard: are Terther described in bhe Auditer's Respansibilitizs for the Audit of the
Financial Statemmenis seclion af owe reaort e are independenl of the Ceanodans in
ACCOFAAFCE AnEh TNe L oa8 of ErRICe [S5uea By TNe LAsCimgte 2F CHAeran Looalntaars of
nedez CLEAL] Logotheer ekl 1he cthics! reguoiremenls Lhatl are -elesant Lo oo aodit of Ehe
financial slebesnents ander bthe o ovisiona of the act and the Rules thereander. and we
riase foiiilied e arher ptniraln respansim IT PS 10 ACCOrAANCE WIrh Thess recniramenrs ann
fre LAl Code at Ethice we bahewe Fh3at Fhe aad b evidence we have obtalnad s
suff cient and appronnabe te provide a Bass far gur gminlon on the ingnoial stateiments

T Cwmpany = Boond of Direckors 15 respansible for the other nfarmation. The other
PEDAN T I LILHD LA eSO SE LU H.I.'E'l,.l':.lrl PEPCILELLITG TF1Rs ATITRE LIRS (IR TERrE LT CIErRs e
INCIIAE TNe FiInanClal S[ateImenis amg oLl addmar 5 Epgrr CHREFean. muth QERer wwlearrmal g
i Bxpected fo e made avallable o s afer the dage of thes agditor's repoet

Contd &
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CAUT MG ORI TINANCIA] STEIEMMENCE AGES Rol SoWer the other o information and wee g
Nol 2xpress amy ftorm of assurance COncloSian eredn

L commeg o wlth o gudit of Toe TAanci@ Srarements . our responsioicy 15 [0 FEga [N
ULAEr In™amacan and in ogeng 55, Consiar whelhaer the other informatian 15 matepially
incansistent with thg flnarcia sbalemoents or our knowledge clhtalned in the qudil o
piheiwise aooear+ 0 e A Erialivy ImisstaTen

i, based 2n the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a materlai
nusstaloement af chis other Informmaind. e are recuired Ec report Thar faci. Wwa nave

“rxllarig o FEPOT N TS FEar.

Bezuunsipilfiy of Management o jne Financidl Staremeanis

Me Company's Board of Dikechors s responsib.e for the matters statec an section 13405
af bhe Act wich respect (o [he predaralicn of thesse financial statements hal giwe g frue
md Fan view of ke fimancal pesition, fnanciae  perrormance IRCHIIAY  alhrr
TCMprensnsve Incame, cqch fitks and changes ' aquity af the Company o) acoardance
iLh the accounting prnciples generally accepzed In Jndla, includiyg tFe [ndan Accounking
Srandards (ind A5 specified wnder section 1332 of e dol read wiel fhe Compares
Lirmpan |"":"'-'r"“"I”l'lEl SEANOAMIs ) Hues P15, as areonded This retponstbiiby also inclides
manlenance of adequate aoCoanllng records in acoordance wikh the provisions of the Ak
for safeguarding of the gascis ot the Compaty and fo preventing and ueiecing fraons
ant uifller nreguibiies; SEIBEUON AN ApRICATCN OF SppropRate aCocounirg policies
makIing  Juagrments anad astimates that are easonale and prudosl, and design
mmplgrgatalicn ard maintenance of adeguake mignal fimancial cenbiols, Ehatl  sere
swerating effaciively o ensurng ffe acouracy Aand compieteness of tha acoounnng
eeurdy ralavant to the greparatlorn Bnd presentation of the financial starements that
give a true and fans wiew and aro ree from material misstatement. whether due i feaur
Qr =rror,

n L gL rin ‘he financial scaemeris, rr'|.-|r|.a-'|g|_=-rnr-|-nl 13 r-l:_l::pn-nl_:lhln “n ASEEsSiIng [RE
Cormpany = aolity [0 CanmNLe A% & going concern, disciesing, as apphicable, matters
relatad o going concern ard using the going concern bams of accounting wnieds
management & g inkcnds Lo liowdaie the Comoany Qi (0 @ 8dse LRErALIONS, ar BAas no

saghsic aliernatme el FC Oy S50

Those Board 01 Direcinr. An: %0 reaspansIoie e CUErSERRG The LOmpany s hnancial
FEDOFTING pracest

MU R ER L IMES 3FR LD GRLAIN reasanan @ asslrance pholCwhether Lhe fenancial statemants
A% & ok are Tree From matenal misstatement, sbelbor dee G froud o 2ol and (o
1Z5ue o guditor's repors that includes our ooivici. Reasonabie asswance i a mgn evei
nf Assura e Bot s oo o U ArARTEE (ITHE A0 AU0IT CONAWcEeEa In aECOr@aAnca WirR A wel
almays detect a materna! milsstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can anse o Fraod
ar error and are anadered material it individually or In the Aggregaie fhey cooid
I\} . MeBSonably be exoecren [0 infinence ne soamfimile 02015 ON5 07 USEFS TAKEN On [ Bags

/ af these financal s1aremenr:
S ot
-

—onbd. .
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Az paii owl an audic a0 accprdance AN BAs s Bxercise pirofessiong JUdgrisEIT ano
mainTan pratessongl soepllcism chrcughaul Lhie audic. Ae aesy:

ldentify ana assecs the nisks of materlsl misstaterment of the floancial stRTRments
WETASr dus fo fraud o ermor. Jdeslan and perform audit procedures ragpantie tn
Lhuse risks, aind abialy audit eviiieace rhar 15 suffecient and appropriata te provide
8 basis far ow cpinien TRe Ask of Aot Cetecting 3 material misstatement resulbing
fram fraun 5 wgher thar to one resulting fromm error. as fraud Y INYOIYe
celusion, ferqery, intentanal Gmissicns, s renresensanons. oF TRE averrde AF
nternal coniral

Anrarn gl undecstandng of inktemal coplrol reflevant io the augis i1 arger 10 ges gn
udN procediures that dre agppropniate inome CroOmMSTArced, Under secton
P3SN0 Nt Ehe Aot we are also respongible for 2xpressing gur coimion on @ hethor
rhe Lompany has adequabe internal firdncial controls with referance o finansal
taternents inoplace and Lhe ooerating efiectiveness of SUCH Conkrais

Evaiuaie the appropriateness of accountlng salicies used and Che e 54 1 ADere sy
araccueunting estimates and re'ated disthesures made by maranement

* Conciuce o Ll appropriaterecs of management's gue of the Flng Lanern basis
or Accountiang and, Gased %0 the audit evidence obitawned  whether a matena
uricerkainly exists reldlec Lo eweis ur conminns tarn may Sasm signiticant ekl
At the Cumpany s albivy o connue 35 & Joing congern. Il we cenclade that a
materal uncertainty cxists, we are reduired o draw atterniian ino opr apadiEs s
Fepart to the related disclosures i fhe financia sEATEmEnrg por, i such disclasures
A imadeguate. fo modify g opiven Our cgnolugions are based an Che audil
TMIQENCE O0CA1e0 up B0 ENe dale 2" our auchiai's report, Howewer fuilure avents
or condIfons may Cduse [he Comoany io cegsse o canrinue as @ Qelg concern

T EMallgte ne  mdergll presertation,  stoactisre  and content of the  flnania
sratemeants, ancludeg the discloswees and whethe the finanra staremants
Blreseat the undenyirg transactions A1d zvents in a marner that achlgves fair

Lo s Lo

WE communicate wrth oo charoed AITh gevernance reqardng, amono akher
malters. fhee panneq seoape anc fiming ot the awdit and slom ficant audrt firndings
T g any sigeih2ant deficencies ninlemal conoreal That we mentify Alrripig aur
Al

W mien prowide those charged wilh governange with a siatement thai we nave COH felee
wilh resavant oth cal requirements regarding indepannence, ani e commur ek with
Lherm &l reletionships and other matiers [hat may reasananly Lo thought to bear on ool
iNdeperdence, di wiers appicanie, rejatad satequaris

Lontd._. 4
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Auorequrred by che Companies | Auditer's Peport® Order, 2020 ["the Sider”) issued
Dy tha Central Gavernment oF Indig o terms of sub-section {110 of sectiar 145 of

he At we qive 0 Lhe "Annexuce-'A7" 8 statement on the matiers spocbisd o
carearAihs 3 ann 4 of the Jrger [o (he @xtent applicabie;

VR Sworaguired by Sectlon 13373 of che aci. D SEG TR CUE AUOIT WE Rk
“hat

al wre have sought ard sbiagined all the nfaomation and eaplanations whirt
[0 the best oF our knowiedoe and beilel were neressary for rne mneEe

Jidn At

Lo maur apiron, proper 2okl of dccount az requiied Dy law nave been
bapl by Lhe company 0 far a5 ik appears frarn wur @xamication o tNose
s Cavept fon Ccamipiying with Toe requirernent of auml Ll b bRe
eXier YIaed 0 The pargaraph 1 balow on reperting under Rsle 12(at

Tri Balunce Sheel. Che Statement of Pofic ano coss mcioding 1pe
Slatement of Dther Comprenensive iIncome, the Cask Flow Staterment apd
Sraternent of Changas in Equity deall with by Lhis Report are in agree i aat
Wb Bl e SOdks of accpunt;

Enl

d I cur apnion, the atoresqd bnancial statements comply with che
socounting Ftandands spocified ande Sectlon [33 of the Act, read with the
Cormpanigs (JnGian Accounting standerds | Roies 2015, 35 amenoen:

(e =N The 0Ag: of the wrotten repraseatations received from the directors as
o 31sl March, 2024 ard taken on record by the Board of Direcinrs  none
Sf Ll directors s disea fied as rn 31sT March, JoZFa fram oeing appointed
A JIreChor I CEonyg of Sectior 144 (F)] of the Act;

=T Nith raspect 1o the adecwacy of the intarnai financial canTrais suar financal
rRCOMinG of the Company wifn “efénnce o these financal statements and
e noerating attectiveness ol such contrals, refer Lo 9w Separate Repor
I Enmexure - 8 ko Fhis repart

Ll 3ecrun 1A ol ENe wompanes 400 13 nol appicable an the Privele Limited
Lompaniss, nence ~gpamrt uider section 1%7 (16) of the Compdines &
2013 is not required;

n Fhe Coimmuont rel@fmg to the maintenancs o acCounks and abther maiier
cornected herewith 5 a5 stated o palagrapn 2 snowve as FEDGITIFG 11/%
14343%W 0T and pargarann © beiow on repoETing under Hule 110g]

LB Wth respect [ bhe akhar maiiers b be included i the audiioes Hapor n
ACCCTOENCE wkh Sube 1 af o L"nrnp:jnle: f sk 3R H.I.IIJIIZEII'E_:I Hiles
Sl Ay AMenadaqd .0 ahe apmen and oo the f 25] our irfc.-marmn and
Accarding to the sxp'anations given to s
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i. The Campany mas hiscimsad fna imEpan of pEnding AT0ETICNS an ks
fim@r oAl posimian oy nanca) statements HWafer Mote ke, AR o Ehe
inanclal staken ents

H Tha Company did nod Rgve any ondg-terr conlracts including derlvative
contracts For which bhere st atay (Mdlberial foreseeable Qsses; Al

iii. Mhcre warg ne amounts whilch weie fgduired Lo be lransferred to the
diwesior education and F‘ruu-:l..hl.:-rl ='qul;,l Ly e f'.n-n'lpanu'

19 ra The Management has reoresented thal, b The hest of iis
Eiarsidane and CeNSr ng TGS mEDE Deen advabiced or
loaned or invested |[aibher from borowod Mands or chare
premium o any cther agurces of kicd of Tends) by the
ompany Leeoar o any abhier persnn: ar entisies, ieciing
foreign anfimies [TLArRrmeqanes” ], with the cnderstanding,
whether rmcorded In witing or othersise, that  che
Intermigchary shall, directly or ndirecily lend o invesi 1
DidEr  pErspns Broo @nnn|es dentifed  in 3ny A f Aer
wnarseeyer [ UInmate dQaraticiaries" | |:I':,' arf an Behalt ol 1he
Company o provide any guaranoge. sedudiity o fhe like on
bahalf of the Jlitimais gen=iiciar e,

il The: MAanagemant RAS FApresanted [FAT, 0 The Bes) o (ts
wncw'edges and Be lef, ng funds haws Been received by the
Zompany from any persens or endilies, incuding foreign
ent [iges ||""Fu||-;ur||:_| Faridneg “.- WIEN [he UnNaersraning,
wneErier recoriied o *-'n.'r'ting or athernuies . thal the CCI’I"I[‘}E My
ihall directly or ndirectly, lend of ridestin cther cerstns e
entitees adeqtified i ary manner whaisoeser CLilmare
BEnariciaras . ooy orf of Daralt ar tree Fgredimg Harbes ar
provide any gJlardhbes, secor by or thae like or behalf of the
Ltmate Gencficiaries, and

LC; Based on Ehe aydit proceduras pesfarmod lhat have been
consdered reascnabie and abprooriate in the circumsiances
||El|:h|||-g has corme fo aur Aantice rnar nas CAUSED LS N0 R Egge
[Rar fe reprosentotions under sul-clawse (1] ang (il conkain
any materfal mis-statermsait

o The Company has not declarad ar paid o e igend during Che geai

Wie Mhe repcriing aader Roige 60 9 g: of tne Compames &uar 390
HUJ CORS | RUE, S04 L appl cab'e from 1 April, A2

Ed'."l'l'.".l WP Ul EXAINWIA LI WEECn ImcidneEn mrest Cnecks E:l'-.'_‘Erl[ iy Thg
nErances menmoneld Doy e campany has used SAF accounfing
P sctbware for maintsining its books of account ~Pich Fas & fedture of

tedh™
{;\/ racord i 3wedil Lras (adic |'Lll..|‘| facility and che saime a5 LI AL

thragfcnd tAe wear for al refeyant TranSactns: rresarded o fhe
-

wﬂﬁ?ﬂ' softwarg:

Contd.. 6
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=

= The payrobl saffwdre, poimi of SAies soThware for recardifg
Saes 0T LnE pusihests 30 outler lewvel and master dakg
rmanagemenl [Gols used for maintenance and wpdatng of
masier dala at respeclive acoounting software wsed oy ihe
LAJTITLGar Y d"’.l' 10T Nave an auQit ralf regidne 2R3gh)ead
LomseJuently. Lhe~s was nCc audd frall mnalnfaereed for
[ransachions recorded within thess specific aofMwiare’s Far the
whinie year Alen audic tran FEATURES FACHINY Was a0 ensbied
Al The datpbasze |avel to log any datsd cheandges For bhe
accaunting  software used for maimtainlag Lhe books of
acoaunks.

Further, “arthe periods whene audit Eronl fedit log) fBcility was enabalod
and operated throughout the year [or the recpective accounting
slbwara e did ol Come acrcss aryy (nslance of audit frail fearyre
terg tTampered with during the colise of our sudit,

For P, R HUMAR & Co.
Chacied Sccounbanis

Fr
Place e |:'E"“'| [DEEPH“
Date 14th september, 2024 Fartne

PM.MC SOIELS
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Arnexure- & (¢ the Indepandent &uditor s Report

VReterad To pardgraph danider the heading of "Renort 20 DCher Ledar and REQ ULy
Requiremignt” af our wepcrl of even date

) ar (A Except for the matter sfaberd by v in Paragraph 204 W o) ang
“aragrapn 2(EIWG N Sacman 1A403) FHopoad on Other  _agal ang
Hegulatary Reguirgrmert ol cur Independent Auditor's Repar, We
eparted that the compaiy has Maintained procer records showing full
garticulars inciuding quanritative derais and STUACON OF DFOEerTy, plant
and equUpmEnT;

B The Lompe iy Fids I e e LHPOIRIES FEMAIRS Smreing o
CarT CUIaFE Or mcanginie Assers

ral The Company has & reguiar origramme of physical venficaoon of jis
Qropery . RAant and equipment [ ncladmg rght oF gse assats | andar whiok
tha assets are physically werified ‘1 & phased manner aver a penod of [hreg
vears, which v gu gpinlgn. s reasunadie having regard 0 the size of the
Comoany and nature of 1S gssiviy, Tn accordance with -his Qrogrann e,
eraln praperty, plant And equiprient Jncluding right aF 152 355885 wWers
vartied during the yedr and o material discrepancies wereg nobiced a0
soch werlflcation

W) Aocording ko Ehe intgrmation ang Sgp'anation given L s and on the casmis
af our caamenation of ecords of the Zamoeany, the Litle deeds i all
IIIIIIIIJ'-l'dLIIt IJI\'.IF.'I'_"TLII;":\ LRI IThAll I'_erlll_li-_ll'l'IE'\-i WAEars e ql_',irl'lpal'l'\u' |5 rF'EI-
lassge and Fhe ledso agreornents are duly executed in favour of the |2ssee)
are held I the name of the Somoany.

He N LoCardir o fo bhe mtormation and axplanations grean T oes and an tho bacsis
ef vur exemination of the records of the Zompany, che Campsnye has noi
revdiuns ibs oromerdy, glant and T r||:|u-::||r|g FIgIrsc % IrSR AS5Eers)
ar rangiblie AsRaTS o 0Arn Jrlg e vear

Bl Accarding to the mifermaticon a i caplanations iven w = and e 1151
uioouer exasndiren of e secoros af e ~Dmpany, COersE e o
proceedingt inbiabkec or pend ng agalnst the Zompary for helding any
Lenami groperty ender the Prafuliclon of Benarm Proeperty “ransactons
B Q&S 3nd FLES mMARE CRErerdar

1l la; Fhe Lnventory has been physicaiiv verlfied by the Manageineni during

the weas In our gpinign, tThe freduency of such serification s reasonable
ard  procedgret and  coverage as  fglowesd Qv mengdenient  wece
appropriate Mg dlscrepancies: wore noticed an werficariaon bebeeen the
frysical Sstocks and bhe book records chat wearg IQ% or morg in the
AL regars For 8ach CIass af InvenTory

O Jisbuser i Pobe o-ddy s w the nmancia) siaiermens, ine LOmoaAny nas |
buen cancticned warking capiial lirmil ne perpse of Rupees five crores in
aggredate from 2ank dur ny thie wear on che basls af sequriby of curren
accebs of the Company. The Quarterly returndstaslemznts filed by the A
campany anth such Banks are nel in agreemert with the books of Emuriﬁ{;{f/ |
o2
A

3 the Coenpany and the details ame as fllgws:
-
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-3
{ra 10 Lakhg)
Quarter ¥aiue &6 | Vaiue #6 pei | Différence | Reason for
‘I!Ildlfll:i oEer aouks ql..l'ﬂrl-rl? 'l-‘“HEr'Ell':E
ar SEATEANT
ECCOUnEE subrmittad
with lenders
lune 4143 The difference iz
5.HEZ . &Y 7,744, 31 | 5@ 3, | Fecause of clerlcal
arrgr o Caltulation
Spatembor 02 ofF books dabts in
= June  quamer M
Z 6833 7. Bl 44 444 {ilfarrererces 10 reSE 3
December. 2023 duarters Oerause.
the skatemeants Filed
N 15 T | 57
A e Lo Lowth rhe lenders are
Marctk, 20234 oa=ed on hnancial
. SratTemenrs
2T 1y
= ‘116 = £.|II'4:I :II:] ELJ-. I::Irl."'rlﬂﬂ"lﬂ on
O o sionial Basis

EH Cwiring the year the Company has pravided laans, agvances o {he
nakurg ol deEns and proyidied quarnbes fo carmpanies 85 follows
oarticulpre LOan 5 Giuaranbeessy
CEES. N LAKns VRS in Lakns)

Aggragare AMOLAT  franta;
uruun‘lEd
AR o +/ 25 Il
Baldiwe ouwisbandine  as ot
bGalanie sheset date oult o Che
Ab0DVE Cares 17, 28 Mil
LRk

L aur JpInor . anc 3{"“'“:""; I Eha imfonmakion and E"ip]ﬁl.ﬂtlﬂlﬁfp
Cpeart COo%, THE TAFMS and Conmiiehs 0T [he Jrant of 48 the lpans
AN LIUAFANERE CrOMIOEC are Onma tace nob prejudical oo gne
nieresi ol the Comppany

In respecs of loans granied [0 comoaiiles, (here s e scheduie of
repeviment and pavment 3f interest has been stipalabad. 1t has heer
explained to that loan that 'san and nterast tharean 5 repaysble
N R TArE

Fagre are o ampounts af I0an granten 1o COmpanies wiicn are
owgdue [oF mere Ehan n rll;,'t"l clagy, % iF 1A Freer |-_-:-|;|;,;||ﬂ|n|1,|:| s
Chal o demand is made oy the Comoany regarding recavimeni of
loan ar inieresti

Ihu Company has nat granted any oean which has Fallen due during
[ne year. FUFLAer, Do Trest I03s pord granied D any party to settle

[RRL] l"l'll'l'l'ull.l_' ||"|t|rIL'

The Comirany las gransed eans ar 2rlvaces 0 Re nature of loans
whech 1o ropavable en demand. The details of the lpans are geeei
el

—anta. 3
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t]-I I_deIEI

Farficuiars anl Fromorers | Reiaged

EFarties Fartias
LuUyregan:  Amans or  oansg
adwances in ngide Al odans ey, | il ]
Fepawabie oo deimand
Perosnbage o I ns, Sdwanices
aatlre o loans= ko Lthe tokal Tad1
JerM E

Iy our openicn and according o tne informzakion and explanatlons gheam o
JE, ENe Zompany mat cofmiplied el T prosisans of sectlon 185 and 156
af fhe A wiin respercr 1o Fhe lgans granted invesrmMEenTs made ann

guaraniee 4 securiby g wen

Trguer gpinian, and accerding bo the information and explanaten given 1o
s, Lhd Company has ool accevied any depcsiks or there = no armond
IR BAS fpeer o censidered as oesemen jepn-_r.il WAISFIF TS IS ning
fechigny 75 and 70 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Cepaslts)
Ruyle 2014 (as amended]. Accordingly, reporting under clause 30w of the

Qrgder is ol aeohcabie wo the Comeany

AT

Accorcing to Che lnfarmation aid esplanablon provided Dy the mdandg ement.
fhe commpany © net engaged n produchion of any such Joods 3r provision
af ANy FUCH SAMWCES fOr WreCh Che Leniral Government nas peescribed
DAL LA S DRUER Y L 02 Igre o TTIACM rIA | Gr kU T ar nener items a1 cosc
Aence, he mowisons of sechicn 148010 of the Comordimes Acg. 2013 In
clatian to maintEnancg of Cost recaids 4o ot eoply 1o th e cumpany

.-".-:':U"dl".g * :he records ot the LI:II'I'.F-EI..'!, guanined Ay U5 e che
INTGHPACISN 3nd SHp@nSLans given Lo us, in our cpinmn the Company |5
qungrally reguiEar m mEpasitifng ITs WROIspuTeEq STaritary augs r|'|l":||.,.|l:ll|'lu
prowidant remd, income-ray, 2alesz-rad saroiee fax poGas Ang séraice fax,
duby af coabamg, diey ol pxose value adoed A%, CRES Ana any arhar
mraberial statdtory dues. as aenlicain 8. wiirh Che anocooriaie ailhorities.

unAISpuLEn

|'1'f:|rrr|a-|1|r:-r And NECIanAcnns gl".:'F"I'I e U=

.ll.LLIJI:'JIrII'J Irx 'I‘II
Arredrt 1 oraspeel of slatutory duss payable which were cutstanding as o
ilar March, 2024 for 3 period of more than six montehs from the date fhey

DECame vavdble dnd oaio are LFTERT CIEM I

Statemeant of Arrears of Statutory Dues Dutstanding for Mors than 5ix Months

i mount In quh:]

Mame pf | Matore of | Amourd | #eron o | ooe LAre ot | Remarks,

the Statute | the Djeg whith the | Daie Favment | if anv
FIMC i
-alabtas

The Bunding -1 LS 0& :_-’I_'I-_'.E X S -mMar mAr Bl

calr bl e Q023 |13l

canstruckhcns

wa fara pecs

M ]




1w

(#] [al

307

e

hoocarding oo IRE tnrge NANaR §Ra copignatons gieen Lo us and 20 the basls
G T e AT AL 8 recorgs of tre :’:lleFlﬂl'l"." care are Na sTatltory AUes
refabing fo Goeds and Senwvices Taa, ciovident rond, enpgiovess’ sigon
NEUrance, income-fas, salesn- tae seaylcs tae, duly af cusluins, dubw of
=wClae, Jalue added 1as, tess and anv olher statuiors dues which have nat
Deen cepobited on accounl of any dispute

Sroard it £a 1he it rmaton and axplanaticns given to us and on the Basls
o cur exdrminaticn of the records of the Cempeany, che Company has ot
srrendered or disclosed any transaciionsg orewviousiy  woarscorcen  ps
ITHITHE 0 ENE OOOKS 01 ACCOENE, IR IRE 13X A5SeSsSMents UN0er [ | neome
Tax ACt 19h] a5 mcome dunng tre pear. Accordingly, Fhe requirerme ity ko
report or clause 3ivil] of the Order 15 not soplicable 1o the Camoany

ACCCrAlNg To Che hIGPmalnn gnd axplandlons gidan to us and on the
nasis af gwaminatlan of records of che Company, Che Comoany nas nos
defanifan i the repsavment of ioan @r mArrawingy ar i the oavment f

INt&aiEal ThErenpn Lo any lerder

Gecorchiig bo fhe information ano exoianalions O ven (© us and o the basis
Ul 1nyr EXArreinAtTian nf Th&e TRECOrAE ar thl:l l_-\!'lmF-\,an'l.l'l Nal-1 I'Dmpan'l'l nag "E\T
Peeeen gesciared 3 wylty! defadlber Iy any Jank or financial mstltwblan g
FJovernment o government authorioy.

ln our ap noan ang aoornng o the INTCPMmAen 299 eaplardlions given to
-5, the company hgs willlzed the money osblaired ov oway ol lerm loans
aurning FRe waAr far (e puroresss e which Fheee were abcmined

Locorohin 1 bhe intormation and sxplanations given o gs and cn an averall
crarminalicrn of the Ananclal statements of the Comoany. e repcert thal no
IS FATE mn SNofT FRNM 0asis Nave Deen Jsed rad I0n0-Cerm DU rposes
by 1he Company

ST A LwErdl 2 A H D fnane i sediersers ol (e Curnpan'!,.'. rna
LCmpanYy nEs nab faKen any TUROS fromd Sny cancy ar person on aooounk of
or e omaeel Phe abligatiang of 115 sebsidiaries, associabes ar jpint ventures.

Thu :li.""1]J-'IF"'|. has nab raisaed ogans ".Il..lr"'lg the Year an fhe [.I|IEI:|§|E nt
spcutities held in its subsidiaries. joint senlures of asS0Clate COMDANiLs
Hence, the recuirermeEnls T resteard i ciause FAlexifF1 af fiwe Orfior is mnr
appheanie o the Company

According bo the informetbion and fxplanacions given & sy, P8 Campdny
has not raiged monevs Oy oway ol iniial ouabic offer (inciuding debd
inskrurments). --"||:|'.|.r|"::||r|'\.||"|lJ Cladse 3-|_n:ll:'a_| ol the Srdes 50wk @apimieobis

accarding fo the inferrmaticn and esplanaticns given to us and on the bass
cl sur exameation of the records of the Comgany the Sompany has nok
maje Ay peoferentdl Allgtment or private placement at shares or lly or
partiy corwartinie debentures dur ng TRe YeaF ACordingly, clacse Sixt|B)
gl I.'III'_' Elldlz'r Is FIRIL 3|i‘|3‘|l|..r.||]ll.'!'

Cankd, 5
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Troihe parse of nur knowliedge aned acoording 1o TRe A oraACion

Al AnALons deer B us, n A iy [ rae f'.mnpan'!.r rr on rha C“jrnpan'y' nas
Leen nerficed o reporoed during the wear, Accordingiy, Clauses 30 ial and
‘bl Ehe Drder are nok applicable to the Zompany

ALCOrgg LG Lhe piformation and 2xplana bens given 39 U5 and siacgduras
performad by as, we repart that the establishiment of whistle blower
machamsm £ nol applicable G0 the Company, consequently, clause 3(xi )
af Lhe drder is not appllcaile

Thie comoany is nct 8 hid Comoany. (eace ra aidi CxCkm IR A arcoraing
FarFe IATArMATIGN AN0 BEXCIEANATIONS Jeegth O IS, CIALSS 5 Lsily of fhe Lrder

5 not applicakls

LTI Le LTI INrAarmagion ano 2xplianafions qivern o US ang asen on
aur &xdimaron ol the recards oFf Ehe Company, trensaciigns wikh [the
resfatid parties aie 0 compliance with Secfion 177 and 186 of the &gf wheie
Aprd rahie and Aetalie Af suck rRARMSACriAns nas hean discigsen 0 Thg
fransal Statemuents a= reguired by the apphcable accounting stardards

Tha Comoany has an infermal atioir Sl BPITT LA ITIE T S FATC WWITHA TNE S512E

and nature of 0% busbiness,

TR Incerngl audit repores of the Company issued till (he date of the audl
“Cport, 'or the perod under aodit have been congsdersd Dy 65,

ITT INAT SENINGT 30a greorampg 1o IMFEFMALION ana aexplanatons groen oo o
Lhe Compaay mas ool soigrecd il oy mon-casi ransaclons wen s
direchons o G008 connecked be it ditectuw s and h2noe I EguUCl BTHENE
rEoOrt 2N cladse J3ixy i of The COrder moied apakicande @@ rhe Corsany

Thi Cefmpany is not required to be registgred wnder sectlan d5-14 of the
Recerva Bane of Inglg Act, 1032 Accord ngly, clauses 2{vilial and {b] of
[Per Tirder arde ot applicatle

The oAy 5 nol A Core Dvesirmer . _ampany '.'-:]"-] a5 Oefined i [no
regulations  mode oy e Heserve Baok af incha, Ao reingiy  Clause
IxAIC] of Phe Groder o5 nob Gooddabie

sccording o mtormaticn and edplaanakions provide Lo ds, thoens = no core
IFESTIEEL COrmpany wikhin the Sroup (as defined 1in the Coce Dvastrient
“Dmpantas (RaEsenvVe Sank] LDIrechons, UL, pconseguenly, Zlause
A i) of Ehes e s nol appicoble

Ihe Dmmoane has mob ncorrea casn i0sSses 0 FRe cJrmenc ane N TRe

Irmmgdlalely Hredied g hnancial year

Therae has eer nn rI'-S.IgI'Ial‘InI'I. af the srarucory Iuairors AUFING Frg wadr
and ACCCPIingly raguirement ko report on ciause 3 xovieg of Ehe Qrder is ol
Aol |Cale (G the Comoany

Cohbkd 6
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ALLoid i Lo Lo fdarnagion e EELNAMELIONG g 0D LS ANG On FRe Nasig
ar e Financial Fat o5, agesng 4hd eXpechixd daley of realisatlon o1 hinanoial
as=etz and payment of Flinanclal mamlices, sthe- inlormialion Sccompanying
the financial statements, aud dooeledae of fhe 3oacd of Direchons and
irereagerien bopdEn: aned oeied a our exanunanon af the ewinenoe
SUREDAING CNE pssWmMptiaons, Aoinmg RBas come o our attentbien, which
TEAEEL s TG Dellewe Ehial Frin Y meaterial Jllﬂ!l'tﬂillt'l gxists a5 qGii the dat& l:l'f
I.Ill.-. ﬂlll1|. II'|'|'.III AL 1Y I‘ I L I.IIIII‘IﬂII'h.I 1" |||||‘ HI‘IHIIW I NHIEELIFIL) I IIdrIII.I‘.lt"::
2ty Al LAe cate of balance shest as apd when they a3l dua withp 3
perlad af ane oyadr from the balance sheer date. 'We, howewver, stale thak
This is nigb an assurance ac bo the future wiab. ity of the Comoany. v
UFTTET STACE TAAC AUF reporing 65 DASEA 0N The Ta0T2 U0 0 Che JATE AF Lhae
udid report and we neither give any JUuarantes nar any assurance Lhat all
liabilties falling dus eathin & cened of 0ne year ronm e balance sheet
date. will gel Oncnarued Dy e CIER I A% A wEEn ey B due,

Accerdlng to the information and zaplanations given to us, there = o
inzpent amounl wnder sub-section (51 of 2ection 135 of the Ac ouisuank
L Ay projecl GEnEr FAAN angoing arneces. Accordingy FEQOTIRG LIRQer
claust A[xx) of the Orcer 15 not app.icable

Mhe coimpanye  as o procpeare  conseiriaie dinAanciar sraremant.

Therarars  Peparting undar clause sx of Fhe order 15 1ob applicable

R BOH, KUIMOH L0,
“harbered Accountants
“irm Beg. Mo - G0=184M

c_{: M. Mo 501615

e
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Amnmexure-8’' [v the Indepenoend Gudmors Repnet

(Esterced Lo paraqraph {20910 Jnder che Feading of "Redgort cn Jther _eda e

Reguy aiory RCauirement” of ow repwet af even dais!

Regart on the Intamial Financial Contrals vnder Clause (11 of sub-aeciion 3 of
S&CEIOnN 193 of the Companies Act, 2013 [(“tha Act™)

Ae navg audifed the internal finenclal conbrgls ever finaioal raporbingg of Haidiram
Marketing FPrivabte Limited "Che Compdey " as of March 341 2024 in conjungtlue makh
arAudic of The HNENoA SLAtements of the Campany For the year ended oh that dace.

Management s 2azpansihllity for Internal Fingnolal Cantrols

he Compary s mManagement 5 resoonohle o actabllshang angd mamtareng aternal

fmarcial controls Rased on Lhe inlernal control owver financial reparting oriteria
establishied oy the Domoany considering the essential comoanents af iniernal controe
staied 0 the Guidarce Mose ar Aot oF infernal Financa| Contoas feeer Fpancial
HEDFIng sshed By the Insttute of Charte-sd Accountarts of Incia UICALY) These
respensibilities rclude the design, Implerentation and maintcnance of adegeaie
niegsrpg dingncial contrels that were aperafing #iferioy for snsunng che ameny ang
giflc poi connuct of ks BUSINESS, INCILOING  AANEFECE IR COmpAny's polcles, the
saregquardrg ef (b= aszabs, the predventicon and detection of frauds and errors, e
acciracy and completerness of the accouitng records. and the Cimely precaration af
redigbic fnoncial infermation . a5 reguired unaer the Companes Ger, 2012

Auditors R25p0nEd bl ity

Qur reaponsibilty 5 00 @nbrcss an owinien on the l.’_-;.l||||.|=|||'§,r 3 miLErna fhanci al anrees
over finarial JETLINIL WILH TEEMENCE 00 TRESE TINARCIEE SCETAMEBNTE DEse] oh dur audit
WE Sanabered dur Gudif noacoordance with [he Gadance Mote arn dudie of [nternaf
Finarclal Controlt ceer Financial Eeporting (the “Eu dance Mofe” ! and the Skandai ds v
"'-l.-ldl“ll'-lg_. 5 suecifled unoer section 140100 ¢f te Tompdnnes 2o 20011 bg the aRTAMAL
Applicanie e an awaic of incerna, financia contees and, Dotk ssued by the Inshicke of

NaarLbered accoantants of indla. Thase Standénds and the Guidance hole iedulie fhiat
me Camaly with gthical recmrenienis and rian aeed |:|r-l-|-|'nr|-r| rhe auAir To ohrain reatnanlo
ASSUFARCE AT Wwierner adedquate interna! Anancal conbrpls wvar fipgnoal reparting
arth reference to thase financial statements was askakhshed and malntained and if such
contrals operaked cffectively in all material resosces

g gt arvra oty parforrmurg pracedures b chtain aodit cvidence about Ehe adequacy
Fthe Inferral P rancial cortrals svstem ower flnancial reoorbing with reference to fnese
financia statermrenia and cheir OpErALng erfecriveness DU audit ar nrermal firancal
TOFCroE muver ninandisl 'E.:lﬂ"'['f'lg Neiug e EIDL!'I'”"IQ an Jnﬂﬂrﬁtﬂﬁﬂlﬂg af nearnal Financaal
cortrols oer francial reperting wath reference G0 these flnancial statements, assessing
the nsk thal a material weakness exisis, arc psting and ewaluaring fhe fesign anm
ourerdlng effecovenass of inTerna) Cohieol Based on the assessed risk. The pocedure:
seledied depend on the audifor's jusgrenl inclading the assessment of the cisks of
rdleridl misstatement of e fiaancial Statements  wnether dUs T TFaI0 QO &Sronr

Wle believe Fhat the audll 2vidence we have abkained 15 sufficient and approoriace oo
prowide & 0asis Tor aui Audit ouinign On e CFITEHNY 5 IACRTA | TIRANCIA CONTAOIS SyETa
wl CiAnLiAl TELRITLING WICR FefeFance 1o these Ananc 8l statements

@"/ Contd 2

coP
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Maaning of [nternal Flnanchal Controis Ower Financiai Reportlng with referanee
i these Financial Sthtuml!nls

& Company's inierngl fingnoial coneroi aver fRanoial repoEring w o FeTeErance Bo chesa
frmancial STatemencs |5 & prosess designed b0 provide reasonable assarance regarding
Lhe reliaboltty of Fnapcid! reporkting and BEhe orepacafien of fAnancial stalements 5o
external purpases [N accterdaice  @ith generaly accecied HCCALIMLIIL BrNCIEies A
Camgany's mernal “inarciar contral cuer FIRANCIA| PERGITING wilh reference to Bhese
nhancial statermenls nclades those pallcles and procédures thak (1) certain 1o the
malntenance of rocords that, Jne reasonable Jelal accwrately and Fairiy reilect ihe
ertsaclitng and dimpositiores of e assees of e CompAany 2|| AroWidE FERASOA e
Annurdlce Lhdl (rinsacriaons are reccliaen 34 ﬁece%sal‘y Lo permit prepa ratien ar timanglal
TFerenls N accocrdance wikh gem.ra'ly d{[&[}[ﬂ] ﬂI:I:I;,-urll‘_iI.q |_;|rirp:_'i|:||-E_-.II ﬂl'd I:hgl
creipls and eapend tures of the Coimpany 4o oming mode Jnly N oacioidange wise
AT 1=minns or IT'FII'I:u;EFI'lEI'lr SRl d]fﬁ.""‘[ﬂ.rt Af Fha mom Fl-ﬂ""'r"ln and t :] Fn:.l..'p-jﬂ reamnabh.
saranca regardirg preventen of Timely delection of unauthar sed acqulsitlar, gse, o
gispesition ol the Comaany's assets thet could have a macerial effect on the fina:aciai
sLateimenie

Inherent Limitatfons of Internal Financial Contrals Dver Flnanclal Aeworiing
with refgigice (o theas Financial Staiemenis

Hacs s ar 1ae nhepant mitations of nkerngl financigl ceontrals gver Nneneial reporting,
wikh referance o theze Anancial stacenents, Ir-l:-l'udrl"lg the pogsibility of collusian or
MO oer rnamagerment Qwenride of coanirns, malarad misstarermencs O Ue ¢ arrgr oF a0
Mgy QCCUr and not e Agected. AlLd, p-ojections af amy ewvaluation of the [nterpal
hmancial controls over Faanclal reparting with reference to these finamcial sfatente fis Lo
Tuture perods are sibeect to the risk bhat coe mcernal fnancial concrel ever {finanoiai
reporting with reierence o these finANc@ sATeMeants may 0ecame INAMsNLaTE Sucayce
or Fharget o cantibion s, or that the degree of compllance with the poafle es or procedures
mgy Jdeleriprat

Gpnian

[ Gur cpireen, ERe Commibany Fas, i all iace o) sesmreos. i AL LA L ITILEIT IS T RANCIS
T, Sy Jwer fiaancial reporcing W rn rargrance 1o nese  [nancal statements
and =uch internal Finencial contrels avar flaanclal reporing with reference to dhesse
finarcia statermonts weire operating Effl.-e-l'.TwEllf A% At March 11, *i#4a masan on The
PErer Caniral nver financial fEpering golerd extabhshed by the Company considering
P vexpnbal components of Inlermel conbrof stated in the Godance Mote on Awdil of
Irto-nal Francidl Contrale Over Financial meoerting sseed by she insEluie ai CRarrensd
Acceuntants af india

ror B R HUMAR & Ca.
Narmere] AocalnaCanlys
Frir Mo O03186M
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